
Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 1978

  1 BEFORE THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

  2 ENERGY FACILITY SITE EVALUATION COUNCIL

  3    ______________________________________________________

  4   In The Matter Of: )
  Application No. 2013-01 )

  5 )
  TESORO SAVAGE, LLC ) Case No. 15-001

  6 )
  VANCOUVER ENERGY DISTRIBUTION   )

  7   TERMINAL )
)

  8

  9   ______________________________________________________

 10 HEARING, Volume 9

 11 Pages 1978 to 2258

 12 ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE CASSANDRA NOBLE
  ______________________________________________________

 13
9:03 a.m.

 14
July 11, 2016

 15
Red Lion Hotel

 16 2300 Evergreen Park Drive S.W.
Olympia, Washington 98502

 17

 18

 19

 20   REPORTED BY:  Diane Rugh, CRR, RMR, CCR No. 2399

 21
  Buell Realtime Reporting, LLC

 22   1325 Fourth Avenue, Suite 1840
  Seattle, Washington 98101

 23   206.287.9066 | Seattle
  360.534.9066 | Olympia

 24   800.846.6989 | National

 25   www.buellrealtime.com



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 1979

  1 A P P E A R A N C E S

  2   ADMINISTRATIVE LAW JUDGE:

  3

  4

  5

  6

Cassandra Noble
Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council 
1300 South Evergreen Park Drive SW
P.O. Box 43172
Olympia, Washington 98504-3172

  7
  EFSEC STAFF:

  8
Stephen Posner

  9 Sonia Bumpus
Tammy Mastro

 10 Kali Wraspir
Joan Aitken

 11 Kara Denny
Energy Facility Site Evaluation Council

 12 1300 South Evergreen Park Drive SW
P.O. Box 43172

 13 Olympia, Washington 98504-3172
(360) 664-1345

 14

 15

 16

 17

Ann C. Essko
David Stearns
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL 
1125 Washington Street SE
P.O. Box 40100
Olympia, Washington 98504-0100 

 18

 19

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

 25



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 1980

  1 A P P E A R A N C E S (Continued)

  2

  3

  4

  5

  6

  7

  8

  9

 10

 11

 12

 13

 14

 15

 16

 17

 18

 19

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

 25

  COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:

William Lynch - Chair
Jaime Rossman, Department of Commerce
Cullen Stephenson, Department of Ecology
Joe Stohr, Department of Fish and Wildlife
Dennis Moss, Utilities and Transportation CommissionDen 
Dan Siemann, Department of Natural Resources

Local Government and Optional State Agency:

Ken Stone, Department of Transportation
Bryan Snodgrass, City of Vancouver
Greg Shafer, Clark County
Larry Paulson, Port of Vancouver 



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 1981

  1
A P P E A R A N C E S (Continued)

  2

  3

  4

  5

  6

  7

  8

  9

 10

 11

 12

 13   FOR TESORO SAVAGE:

 14

 15

 16

 17

Dale N. Johnson
Jay P. Derr
Tadas A. Kisielius
VAN NESS FELDMAN LLP
719 Second Avenue, Suite 1150 
Seattle, Washington 98104-1728 

 18

 19

 20   FOR PORT OF VANCOUVER:

 21

 22

 23

David F. Bartz
SCHWABE WILLIAMSON & WYATT 
1211 SW 5th Avenue, Suite 1900 
Portland, Oregon 97204

 24

 25



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 1982

  1 A P P E A R A N C E S (Continued)

  2   FOR PORT OF VANCOUVER:

  3

  4

  5

Connie Sue Martin
SCHWABE WILLIAMSON & WYATT 
1420 5th Avenue, Suite 3400 
Seattle, Washington 98101 

  6

  7   FOR CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:

  8

  9

 10

Taylor R. Hallvik
CLARK COUNTY
1300 Franklin Street, Suite 380 
Vancouver, Washington 98666-5000 

 11

 12   FOR THE CITY OF VANCOUVER:

 13

 14

 15

 16

E. Bronson Potter
Karen L. Reed
CITY ATTORNEY
415 W. 6th Street
Vancouver,Washington 98660

 17

 18   FOR COLUMBIA RIVERKEEPER, ET AL.:

 19

 20

 21

 22

Kristen L. Boyles
Janette K. Brimmer 
EARTHJUSTICE
705 Second Avenue, Suite 203 
Seattle, Washington 98104-1711 

 23

 24

 25



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 1983

  1
A P P E A R A N C E S (Continued)

  2

  3
  FOR THE ENVIRONMENT:

  4

  5

  6

  7

Matthew R. Kernutt
ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL 
1125 Washington Street SE 
Olympia, Washington 98504-0100 

  8
  FOR COLUMBIA RIVER INTER-TRIBAL FISH COMMISSION:

  9

 10

 11

 12

Julie A. Carter
COLUMBIA RIVER INTER-TRIBAL FISH COMMISSION 
700 NE Multnomah Street, Suite 1200 
Portland, Oregon 97232

 13

 14

 15   ALSO PRESENT:

 16 Amanda Kleiss, Paralegal
Annalisa Provence, Legal Assistant

 17

 18

 19

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

 25



                                                       1984

  1                            HEARING
                       Volume 9: INDEX

  2

  3   WITNESSES:                                        PAGE

  4   KEITH CASEY

  5          Direct Examination by Mr. Derr             1987

  6          Cross-Examination by Ms. Brimmer           2014

  7          Redirect Examination by Mr. Derr           2027

  8          Recross-Examination by Ms. Brimmer         2051

  9          Cross-Examination by Mr. Potter            2053

 10          Direct Examination by Mr. Derr             2056

 11   GREG RHOADS

 12          Direct Examination by Mr. Kisielius        2061

 13          Cross-Examination by Mr. Potter            2143

 14          Redirect Examination by Mr. Kisielius      2165

 15          Redirect Examination by Mr. Kisielius      2178

 16   BRIAN DUNN

 17          Direct Examination by Mr. Johnson          2179

 18          Cross-Examination by Mr. Potter            2206

 19          Redirect Examination by Mr. Johnson        2224

 20          Redirect Examination by Mr. Johnson        2240

 21

 22

 23

 24

 25



                                                       1985

  1                           EXHIBITS

  2    NUMBER                                           REF'D

  3    Exhibit 0001-008233-PCE........................    2180

  4    Exhibit 0114-000131-TSS........................    2182

  5    Exhibit 0196-000392-TSS........................    2079

  6    Exhibit 0218-000001-TSS........................    2200

  7    Exhibit 0246-000007-TSS........................    2128

  8    Exhibit 0247-000019-TSS........................    2123

  9    Exhibit 0248-000017-TSS........................    2122

 10    Exhibit 0262-000002-TSS.....................       2115

 11    Exhibit 0263-000023-TSS........................    2120

 12    Exhibit 0264-000007-TSS........................    2113

 13    Exhibit 0302-000002-TSS......................      2180

 14    Exhibit 0353-000004-TSS........................    2065

 15    Exhibit 2012-000012-CLA .......................    2249

 16    Exhibit 2013-000005-CLA .......................    2249

 17    Exhibit 3008-000005-Van........................    2154

 18    Exhibit 3014-000002-Van........................    2218

 19    Exhibit 3015-000002-Van......................      2196

 20    Exhibit 3058-000206-Van........................    2153

 21    Exhibit 3085-000061-Van........................    2145

 22    Exhibit 3087-000028-Van........................    2144

 23    Exhibit 3089-000009-Van........................    2151

 24    Exhibit 3123-000001-VAN .......................    2249

 25    Exhibit 3124-000071-VAN .......................    2161



                                                       1986

  1    Exhibit 3125-000005-VAN......................      2253

  2    Exhibit 3126-000006-VAN .......................    2253

  3    Exhibit 3127-000026-VAN .......................    2254

  4    Exhibit 3128-000014-VAN .......................    2254

  5    Exhibit 3129-000003-VAN .......................    2254

  6    Exhibit 3130-000003-VAN .......................    2255

  7    Exhibit 3131-000001-VAN .......................    2255

  8    Exhibit 3132-000005-VAN .......................    2255

  9    Exhibit 3133-000026-VAN .......................    2255

 10    Exhibit 3134-000009-VAN .......................    2255

 11    Exhibit 3135-000001-VAN .......................    2256

 12    Exhibits 5221 through 5251.....................    2247

 13    Exhibit 5630-000138-CRK........................    2240

 14    Exhibit 5631-000082-CRK........................    2240

 15

 16

 17

 18

 19

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

 25



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 1987

                         DERR / CASEY

  1                          PROCEEDINGS

  2               JUDGE NOBLE:  Good morning.  We are back on

  3   the record.  Before the State of Washington Energy

  4   Facility Citing Council, Case No. 15-001, matter of

  5   Application Number 2013-01, Tesoro Savage LLC, Vancouver

  6   Energy Distribution Terminal.

  7               Are the parties ready to proceed this

  8   morning?

  9               MR. DERR:  Yes, Your Honor.

 10               JUDGE NOBLE:  You may call your first

 11   witness for the day.

 12               MR. DERR:  Thank you, Your Honor.  The

 13   applicant would like to call Mr. Keith Casey.

 14

 15                         KEITH CASEY,

 16      having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

 17

 18                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

 19   BY MR. DERR:

 20      Q.   Mr. Casey, could you first state your name and

 21   spell it for the court reporter.

 22      A.   Yes.  My name is Keith Michael Casey, K-e-i-t-h,

 23   C-a-s-e-y.

 24      Q.   Thank you.  And I'll reiterate, we have a court

 25   reporter here today so you may occasionally get asked to
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  1   speak into the mic or to speak more slowly, so she's

  2   trying to take down everything.

  3           Mr. Casey, as you probably know, there have been

  4   a series of questions about sort of the management of

  5   Vancouver Energy or the joint venture, so I'm going to

  6   ask you a few additional questions and then there will

  7   be an opportunity for the intervenors to ask you

  8   questions and an opportunity for the council to ask you

  9   questions.  So let's start with some background.

 10           Can you please describe your position with

 11   Tesoro and how that fits within the overall company

 12   management structure?

 13      A.   Yes, I can.  I'm the Executive Vice President of

 14   Operations.  I'm part of the executive team for Tesoro;

 15   I report directly to the Chief Executive Officer of

 16   Tesoro.  And I'm accountable in my position for all of

 17   operations, anywhere where we have people and assets,

 18   whether that be refining, logistics, marketing,

 19   environmental health and safety, and supply chain

 20   activities.

 21      Q.   Thank you.  And how long have you been at

 22   Tesoro?

 23      A.   I've been at Tesoro for just over three years.

 24      Q.   And what has been your involvement with the

 25   Vancouver Energy Terminal?
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  1      A.   So I've been involved with the Vancouver Energy

  2   project since inception and been part of the management

  3   community since inception.

  4      Q.   I'd like to start with some questions that were

  5   asked the last couple of weeks about the purpose of the

  6   project.

  7           Why did Vancouver Energy decide to proceed with

  8   this project?

  9      A.   So the -- I'd say the industrial logic of this

 10   project, the premise is this is a fantastic port

 11   facility, been in business for over a hundred years.

 12   And the opportunity to build a state-of-the-art

 13   crude-by-rail marine transport facility was requested by

 14   the Port.  Logistically makes quite a bit of sense due

 15   to the geography and the proximity to North American

 16   crudes.  The facility, again, is very unique with the

 17   construction within the port for the loop track rail.

 18           And then from a customer standpoint or a from a

 19   demand standpoint, it fulfills the need for the West

 20   Coast refining centers to be able to access North

 21   American crudes and be able to competitively provide

 22   transportation fields to our customers.

 23      Q.   What about refineries in Washington; is it

 24   expected that this terminal will serve those refineries

 25   as well?
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  1      A.   Yes, it is.  So all refineries in the West Coast

  2   will benefit from this facility.  Refineries in the

  3   state of Washington will benefit from having available

  4   access or increased access to North American crudes to

  5   the refining centers in Washington state; as well as

  6   from a macro level, any time you unlock access to

  7   additional North American crudes into the market,

  8   because the West Coast all functions as a market, it

  9   increases the availability of those feedstocks which

 10   benefits all of the manufacturers.

 11      Q.   We heard testimony in the last couple of weeks

 12   that the Anacortes refinery, the Tesoro refinery in

 13   Anacortes, already has a rail unloading facility.

 14           Can you comment about the capacity of that

 15   unloading facility and whether that facility can

 16   adequately serve the Anacortes refinery?

 17      A.   Yes, I can.  So the Anacortes facility is

 18   120,000-barrel-per-day refinery, and as part of that, in

 19   I believe it was September of 2012, we opened up crude

 20   rail unloading facility, so just going on four years

 21   it's been in operation.  That has a capacity of about

 22   50,000 barrels a day of capacity at that facility.  And

 23   we could use additional North American crudes into

 24   Anacortes.  You can see 50 from 120 is 70,000 barrels,

 25   and other crudes are running at that facility on a
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  1   normal basis.

  2      Q.   What about the other current supplies for the

  3   Anacortes refinery?  Aren't they coming from Alaska and

  4   California?  Isn't that adequate?

  5      A.   So I think it's been probably previously

  6   discussed, I haven't read all the testimony, but when

  7   you stand back from a macro crude supply, both

  8   California and Alaskan production has been declining

  9   over time and continues to decline and it's projected to

 10   continue to decline over time.  And so as those crude

 11   availabilities have become more limited, there's been an

 12   increasing amount of foreign crudes that have been

 13   brought in to fulfill the need; crudes from West Africa

 14   and crudes from the Middle East, crudes from Russia,

 15   crudes from Canada, and crudes from other areas to

 16   fulfill that need.

 17      Q.   What about sulfur fuel standards?  What can you

 18   tell us about sulfur fuel standards and how that impacts

 19   the need for these sources of crude?

 20      A.   Yeah, so it's an interesting point, because as

 21   we talked about, what are the needs for crude oil in the

 22   West Coast manufacturing centers, there's the phenomenon

 23   from crude about the availability of the crudes and

 24   where they're coming from and as fields are decaying in

 25   production and what fields are coming into availability.
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  1   So that's one dynamic.

  2           The second dynamic takes place on the product

  3   side, so we're making -- we're taking these crude oils

  4   and we're processing them to make gasoline and

  5   distillates, which is diesel as well as jet fuel, it's

  6   all part of the transportation fuel dynamic.  And as

  7   standards for, as your example, sulfur, the amount of

  8   sulfur that's contained in those products continue to

  9   sharpen or lessen so that we can lessen the

 10   environmental impact of fuels, it's necessary to modify

 11   the configuration of the refineries as well as seek

 12   crude oils that have less sulfur or less heavy

 13   materials.

 14           So the two simple examples of changes that will

 15   take place in the next five years is Tier 3 gasoline

 16   will come into place -- (Court reporter interruption.)

 17   Tier 3 gasoline requirement -- thank you -- will take

 18   place, which is going to require the reduction of sulfur

 19   in gasoline to 10 parts per million on a corporate

 20   average basis.  So to be able to meet that standard,

 21   there's either additional hydro treating capacity that's

 22   necessary to remove the sulfur from the process but

 23   there's also the ability or the desire to have lower

 24   sulfur crude oils so then there's less of that sulfur

 25   that you need to remove.  Many of the mid-continent
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  1   crudes and North American crudes have that lower sulfur

  2   in the crude itself so that's an advantage for those

  3   crudes getting into the system.

  4           Another important change that's going to take

  5   place, particularly within the state of Washington,

  6   because there's a significant amount of shipping trade

  7   that takes place within the state and around, is the

  8   IMO, which is the International Marine Organization, as

  9   a MARPOL spec, it's called, which is going to reduce the

 10   amount of sulfur in bunker oil or fuel oils for ships so

 11   that it decreases the emissions from the ships.  And

 12   that's a very significant reduction which is going to,

 13   again, force the reduction in the sulfur for that fuel

 14   which goes back into both refinery capability to remove

 15   and extract that sulfur as well as the feedstocks, the

 16   crude oils, and the content of the sulfur there.

 17           So in general, as a theme, and I know this is a

 18   long answer, lower sulfur feedstocks such as those

 19   within the mid-continent will have increasing value to

 20   Washington state refineries and refineries in the West

 21   Coast over the course of time as we continue to work to

 22   deliver cleaner, safe and reliable transportation fuels.

 23      Q.   And the MARPOL fuels that you described, are

 24   those products that are produced at the refineries in

 25   Washington as well?
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  1      A.   They are, yes.  It's pretty significant, as I

  2   said.  With the amount of shipping activity that takes

  3   place in this state, it's a pretty significant line in

  4   the distillates businesses.

  5      Q.   So I want to ask a more precise geographic

  6   benefit question.  There were several questions in the

  7   last week or two about whether the crude oil passing

  8   through the Vancouver Energy Terminal is expected to

  9   benefit Eastern Washington as distinguished from Western

 10   Washington.  What would --

 11               MS. BRIMMER:  Your Honor, I'm going to

 12   object.  We're in a line of questioning that was not

 13   disclosed and it was not our understanding of what

 14   Mr. Casey was going to address.  We're once again in a

 15   situation where we've got a witness that was not

 16   disclosed.  At the end of the first week we were told

 17   Mr. Casey would be brought in to address some specific

 18   questions from the council which had been asked of

 19   Mr. Larrabee about corporate structure and liability

 20   issues of the limited liability company, who owns what.

 21               We have him testifying to economic issues,

 22   market issues, supply issues, which they've already got

 23   a witness that's done.  We have a witness that was

 24   prepared to respond to that person.  They're building

 25   their case as they go.  This is an additional example of
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  1   they apparently weren't quite ready and now they're

  2   bringing in witnesses that were not previously disclosed

  3   to talk about these things.

  4               MR. DERR:  Your Honor, if I might respond.

  5   These were all within the questions that were asked by

  6   council of the various witnesses that led to an offer to

  7   bring a member of the management committee to speak to

  8   council.  And it was not just questions of Mr. Larrabee

  9   that were -- at least our understanding was Mr. Casey

 10   was to respond to, there were questions of insurance,

 11   there were questions of what is the function of and the

 12   reason for this project.

 13               And Mr. Casey is an undisclosed witness

 14   because we didn't know until last week that the council

 15   wanted us to bring an executive from the management

 16   company to speak to them.  And so we brought Mr. Casey

 17   here to talk about the questions I've asked as well as

 18   all the questions that Ms. Brimmer has identified.

 19               MS. BRIMMER:  Your Honor, we can go to the

 20   transcript to see exactly what was represented, but I

 21   don't recall the council requesting Mr. Casey's

 22   presence.  In fact, counsel for the proponent is who

 23   suggested bringing Mr. Casey and who specifically

 24   identified the financial structure issues.

 25               JUDGE NOBLE:  No need to go to the
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  1   transcripts.  I remember.  I think I remember accurately

  2   that Mr. Casey was described as a witness who was going

  3   to describe the corporate structure, and I don't

  4   remember him being described as the witness that was

  5   going to go much beyond that.

  6               Now, the remedy for this problem, it's a

  7   failure of discovery, essentially.  The remedy is for

  8   the opponents to be able to have an opportunity to

  9   question this witness before this testimony.  And that's

 10   not possible for the testimony he's already given, but I

 11   think they still need to have an opportunity to question

 12   this witness.  And so I would like his testimony to be

 13   interrupted to give the opponents an opportunity to

 14   question this witness and also to bring an additional

 15   witness to rebut or testify about the additional matters

 16   that are being brought up in his testimony.

 17               MR. DERR:  Your Honor, if I may respond

 18   briefly.

 19               We have not done depositions of any witness

 20   in this proceeding so we haven't had preliminary

 21   questioning of any witness in this proceeding.  I guess

 22   I'm not clear what would be the nature of the

 23   questioning other than cross-examination, which I

 24   expect, of this witness who flew in specifically this

 25   morning to address the council.
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  1               JUDGE NOBLE:  As I understood it, and I

  2   didn't get too much in the weeds of your discovery

  3   practice, but I did encourage informal discovery and I

  4   understood that that what was taking place, and I don't

  5   know how in-depth that discovery was.  But that's the

  6   remedy for this kind of a problem for a witness who's

  7   testifying about something that's a surprise to the

  8   other side and that they were not able to prepare for.

  9               And so I would like to interrupt this

 10   witness's testimony and give the opponents an

 11   opportunity to talk with this witness with you present,

 12   of course.

 13               MR. DERR:  So I guess I need to understand

 14   logistics.  You want us to terminate the proceedings now

 15   and take a break for questioning and then come back for

 16   cross-examination?

 17               JUDGE NOBLE:  No.  Well --

 18               MR. DERR:  We're about to move to responding

 19   to corporate structure and insurance, which is what I

 20   thought and -- in fact, I asked my last question on the

 21   explanation of why the entity is pursuing this project.

 22               JUDGE NOBLE:  Right.  You can proceed with

 23   the questioning on that limited area, but you still have

 24   to make this witness available to the opponents so that

 25   they can talk with him about the testimony he's already
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  1   given where this representation, that that was a

  2   surprise.  And then we'll proceed with another witness

  3   and you'll be able to bring Mr. Casey back if that's

  4   what you want to do.

  5               MR. DERR:  Okay.  Well, maybe I'll proceed

  6   and then I can ask more questions about what comes after

  7   this next.  Mr. Casey is prepared to answer some

  8   questions about governance, about assets, about

  9   insurance, which it's my understanding that was the

 10   reason to bring him.

 11               JUDGE NOBLE:  Yes.

 12               MR. DERR:  If the intervenors are going to

 13   object to that line of questioning as well, I guess I'd

 14   like to know that before I go down this path.

 15               JUDGE NOBLE:  I'm not hearing an objection

 16   to that because that is what the council was asking and

 17   that's what I understood Mr. Casey was here to testify

 18   about.  He was called as a corporate witness.  And so

 19   you may proceed on that basis but not into these other

 20   matters that appear to have been a surprise to the

 21   opponents.  And you need to make this witness available

 22   to them to talk with them and do a little bit of

 23   informal discovery.

 24               You have other counsel with you.  I hope

 25   that you'll be able to -- we won't have a break in the
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  1   proceedings.  I think one of your colleagues can attend

  2   that questioning.  And that's all assuming that the

  3   opponents have some questions for this witness, which I

  4   assume they do.

  5               MR. DERR:  Yes, Your Honor.  And we have

  6   actually -- Mr. Kisielius will be addressing the next

  7   witness, so if you want us to take some time right after

  8   Mr. Casey has finished his direct, we can do that.

  9               JUDGE NOBLE:  Please do.  And then update me

 10   on what has been decided.  I'd like the opponents to

 11   update me on what has been decided about how you want to

 12   proceed with this witness.

 13               MS. BRIMMER:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 14   BY MR. DERR:

 15      Q.   Mr. Casey, let's turn to some questions about

 16   the structure of the joint venture, what's called Tesoro

 17   Savage Petroleum Terminal LLC.  We've also referred to

 18   it as Vancouver Energy or the joint venture, and its

 19   governance.

 20           First, can you describe why the Vancouver

 21   Energy, the joint venture was formed?

 22      A.   Yes.  In response to the request for proposal by

 23   the Port to develop a crude-by-rail marine transport

 24   facility at the Port, we evaluated the strengths, our

 25   strengths as well as our partners' strengths, and
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  1   decided that ourselves in conjunction with Savage

  2   Services, developing this project jointly would be the

  3   most appropriate response for the RFQ.  And so we

  4   created the joint venture between the two companies

  5   expressly for the purpose of this facility.

  6      Q.   Again, I believe you said this, but if you could

  7   just restate, who were the owners of the joint venture?

  8      A.   The owners of the joint venture are Tesoro

  9   Refining and Marketing Company and Savage Services.

 10      Q.   And why was Vancouver Energy formed as a

 11   Delaware LLC?

 12      A.   So my understanding is that -- and I'm not an

 13   expert in corporate structures; however, Delaware is

 14   very renowned as a state that has very established and

 15   for a long period of time corporate law and corporate

 16   structures, and many, many corporations are established

 17   in Delaware for that reason.

 18      Q.   And who is on the management committee?

 19      A.   The management committee, there's -- from the

 20   Savage Services there's two gentlemen, Nathan Savage and

 21   Curtis Dowd, both executives with Savage Services.  And

 22   then from Tesoro there's myself and Brian Sullivan who

 23   is our Vice President of Corporate Affairs.

 24      Q.   And does the LLC have by-laws or other operating

 25   documents that govern?
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  1      A.   Yes, we do have a set of by-laws and operating

  2   documents we operate under.

  3      Q.   And how does the management committee function

  4   as compared to a board of directors in a corporation?

  5      A.   So it's analogous to a board of directors in

  6   that we meet quarterly.  When you think about the

  7   management committee's accountability is for the

  8   strategic objectives of the company, and we meet

  9   quarterly and review budgeting, strategic objectives,

 10   contracting and so forth.  Mostly since the facility

 11   does not exist now, we've been talking about permit

 12   process and engineering design.  And then the day-to-day

 13   activities will be the accountability of the general

 14   manager of the joint venture.

 15      Q.   And how are decisions made by the management

 16   committee?

 17      A.   The decisions are largely made by consensus, so

 18   we find a lot of alignment in what we're trying to

 19   accomplish within this company.  And there is within our

 20   operating agreements provisions for when you need to

 21   vote and whether it requires a majority or a super

 22   majority.  And there's also a conflict resolution

 23   process there in case we were unable to meet agreement

 24   with consensus.

 25      Q.   Mr. Casey, I believe you stated a minute ago
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  1   that you have a general manager in the management

  2   committee.  I'd like to ask you some questions about the

  3   role of the general manager at that facility.

  4           First, the general manager, is that Jared

  5   Larrabee?

  6      A.   That is correct.

  7      Q.   And can you describe Mr. Larrabee's authority

  8   over terminal operations?  Will he have authority over

  9   all terminal operations?

 10      A.   The general manager, Jared, will have complete

 11   authority over terminal operations.  You think about

 12   accountability, the management committee is accountable

 13   for more of the strategic objectives of the company.

 14   Jared, the general manager, has full accountability for

 15   day-to-day operations and all the activities that take

 16   place within the facility.

 17      Q.   Will that include authority over the rail

 18   unloading operations?

 19      A.   That includes the rail unloading operations,

 20   yes.

 21      Q.   And how about the marine vessel operations?

 22      A.   It included some marine vessel operations as

 23   well.

 24      Q.   Will there be any other activity that occurs in

 25   the operation of the terminal that Mr. Larrabee does not
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  1   have authority over?

  2      A.   No.

  3      Q.   How about Captain Bayer?  When he testified he

  4   described some of the maritime operations and

  5   responsibilities including who makes decisions about

  6   when a vessel can depart.  Will Mr. Larrabee have

  7   authority over those decisions?

  8      A.   No.  I'm not familiar with what Captain Bayer,

  9   all the details of his testimony have been.  But in

 10   general, on the marine transportation side, the Coast

 11   Guard and the pilots and others have authority for

 12   managing vessel traffic, and they have the ultimate

 13   authority, so Jared cannot -- or nobody can override

 14   their decisions about marine traffic.  They have the

 15   ultimate authority.

 16      Q.   Will Mr. Larrabee have authority to enter and

 17   administer all contracts including contracts to run the

 18   operation of the terminal?

 19      A.   Yes, he will.

 20      Q.   And how about decisions about whether to accept

 21   a shipment of crude that does not meet the vapor

 22   pressure standards?

 23      A.   Yes, he will.

 24      Q.   Would that even apply to oil that's owned by

 25   Tesoro?
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  1      A.   Yes, he will.

  2      Q.   Will Mr. Larrabee be an employee of Vancouver

  3   Energy or will he continue as an employee of Savage?

  4      A.   I believe Jared is a seconded employee -- (Court

  5   reporter interruption.)  Seconded.  And I don't know how

  6   to spell that, I'm sorry.  But he's an employee of

  7   Savage but he is, in essence, loaned to the joint

  8   venture and operates on behalf of that.  The management

  9   committee will do his performance reviews and he is

 10   fully accountable for the day-to-day operation.

 11      Q.   So if Mr. Larrabee will remain a Savage

 12   employee, will that affect his authority over the

 13   terminal operations?

 14      A.   None whatsoever.

 15      Q.   How about Tesoro or Savage as separate

 16   companies; will they have any role at the terminal?

 17      A.   It's anticipated that Tesoro will be a customer

 18   of the facility but no role in directing day-to-day

 19   operations.  Savage as a company will probably have a

 20   service agreement for the employees that will handle the

 21   rail unloading, the management of the tank facilities.

 22   And it's anticipated that Tesoro, with our expertise at

 23   marine operations, will have a service agreement with

 24   the joint venture to handle the marine aspects of the

 25   terminal facility, all under Jared's instruction.
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  1      Q.   And if Tesoro and Savage enter these service or

  2   operating agreements, will those agreements address the

  3   care, custody, and control over the products that they

  4   handle?

  5      A.   Absolutely.  It's absolutely vital through all

  6   processes and all places within the complete supply

  7   chain care, custody, and control is in place, very

  8   vibrant and clear, as well as proper insurance and

  9   indemnities.

 10      Q.   Will those contracts clearly address handoff of

 11   care so that there's no gaps in coverage?

 12      A.   Absolutely.  Absolutely no gaps in coverage

 13   through the entire supply chain.

 14      Q.   And you mentioned, I believe briefly, insurance

 15   indemnification provisions.

 16           Can you describe a little bit more of what you

 17   would anticipate in those service contracts?

 18      A.   So importantly, the joint venture will have its

 19   own insurance policy for the activities of the facility.

 20   I believe council's already heard about the nature of

 21   that policy.

 22           In addition, any services that would be provided

 23   by Savage or by Tesoro, or for that matter any other

 24   contractor that works at the facility, will have to have

 25   appropriate insurance and indemnification for any work
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  1   activities that they're performing at the site.

  2      Q.   I'm going to come back to more questions on that

  3   in a minute but a couple more on operations.

  4           Who has authority to stop the operation if

  5   there's a safety issue?

  6      A.   Just a great point of alignment between

  7   ourselves and Savage, every person at the site has stop

  8   work authority.  And it's a constant theme throughout

  9   all of our operations and Savage's operations that no

 10   matter what your role in the organization, contractor or

 11   employee or where you come from, if you see something

 12   that's unsafe or if you have a question or concern about

 13   the actions that are taking place, you have the

 14   authority, actually we talk about it being an

 15   obligation, to stop that work and make sure it's

 16   appropriately elevated, resolved, before you can safely

 17   go on.

 18      Q.   So does the management committee have the

 19   authority to overrule the general manager, Mr. Larrabee,

 20   on terminal operational issues?

 21      A.   So I'd say day-to-day terminal operations,

 22   they're completely within the general manager's

 23   authority.  I understand your question.  I'm sorry,

 24   there's a fly up here.

 25           But from the respect of the management committee
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  1   is if we felt that for some reason the general manager

  2   was not acting in a safe and responsible manner or

  3   leading the troops in prosecuting his authority to make

  4   sure things are going -- (Court reporter interruption.)

  5   Prosecuting, acting on his authority and making sure

  6   that stop work authority is throughout the organization,

  7   if we felt he wasn't doing that appropriately, the

  8   management committee can remove him.

  9      Q.   Thank you.  I want to ask you some questions now

 10   about the assets and the insurance expectations for

 11   Vancouver Energy.

 12           Can you briefly describe the joint venture

 13   assets sort of both in the present circumstances and

 14   what you expect once the terminal is permitted,

 15   constructed, and operating?

 16      A.   Okay.  So presently I'd say the terminal is not

 17   constructed or in operation.  The assets would be the

 18   least that we have at the port, the ability to develop

 19   this potential project.

 20           Once the facility is constructed and in

 21   operations, when you think about assets, and you'll have

 22   all the assets that have been constructed, the six

 23   tanks, the unloading barn, and the improvements to the

 24   wharf facilities which are in the neighborhood of, I

 25   believe, $200 million, you'll still have the lease and
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  1   then you'll have the revenues from the customers that

  2   are bringing crude oil through the facility and contract

  3   arrangements with those within service of the facility.

  4      Q.   What is Vancouver Energy's plan for financing

  5   terminal facility construction?

  6      A.   So we plan to use equity.  There's no plans for

  7   any debt.

  8      Q.   No debt --

  9      A.   No debt.

 10      Q.   -- no secured debt at all?

 11      A.   No secured debt plan.

 12      Q.   What about management committee's plans for

 13   insurance or other financial assurances for terminal

 14   operations; what are your plans in that regard?

 15      A.   So again, the facility itself, the joint venture

 16   for the terminal operations will have its own insurance

 17   policy.  And we rely both -- Savage Services has

 18   insurance experts that help do analysis for the

 19   insurance requirements, we as Tesoro have our experts as

 20   well that do this for our companies, and those two

 21   experts will come together and do the appropriate

 22   analysis.

 23           With all insurance policies there's, I think,

 24   minimums, there's minimum insurance levels stated in the

 25   lease.  I believe in the State of Washington, if I'm
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  1   correct, there's some role that the Department of

  2   Ecology will play in what's an appropriate insurance

  3   analysis.  And then within that we will get a

  4   recommendation from our people for the insurance for the

  5   facility, for the joint venture.

  6      Q.   And so let me go down that path a minute.  What

  7   happens -- you get this recommendation from your

  8   insurance team, Tesoro and Savage.  What happens at the

  9   management committee?

 10      A.   Management committee will discuss the

 11   recommendation and approve it.  You hire experts for a

 12   reason.  They're very versed in this and understand the

 13   appropriate insurance levels that are necessary.  And

 14   we'll approve their recommendation.

 15      Q.   Are there any plans to self-insure the

 16   obligations?

 17      A.   No plans to self-insure.  There is typically

 18   within these policies some sort of deductible and so you

 19   could say that's self-insurance, but no plans to

 20   self-insure anything of any significance.

 21      Q.   You mentioned earlier that it's possible or even

 22   likely that Tesoro might enter a service contract and

 23   Savage might enter a service contract with the joint

 24   venture to perform services and that they would have

 25   insurance.
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  1           Would those insurance coverages be in addition

  2   to the joint venture's coverage?

  3      A.   That's correct, they would be in addition.  And,

  4   likewise, anybody that was to do work at the facility,

  5   they have to have their own insurance independent of the

  6   joint venture, any contractor or service provider.

  7   (Court reporter interruption.)  Or service provider.

  8      Q.   We're getting the beeps on the court reporter

  9   too.

 10               All right.  Ms. Hollingsed, who was Savage's

 11   insurance risk manager, testified last week.  She

 12   described what was called a conservative approach to the

 13   liability insurance coverage typically procuring

 14   insurance coverage in amounts above similar operations.

 15               Can you comment about the joint venture's

 16   expectations in that regard?

 17      A.   Yes.  That's our expectation.  We'll take a

 18   conservative approach and typically above the

 19   requirements.

 20      Q.   And there were questions about the relative size

 21   of this facility.  For purposes of evaluating comparable

 22   insurance coverage, in your mind how does the size of

 23   the project compare with other crude oil storage and

 24   loading facilities around the country for setting

 25   insurance?
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  1      A.   In my experience this would be a small to medium

  2   size facility.  When you think nationally about crude

  3   oil storage and terminaling operations, there's quite a

  4   few that are substantially larger.  And, yeah, I think 2

  5   million barrels of storage, just over 2 million barrels

  6   of storage this would be on the small to medium size.

  7      Q.   Thank you.  Ms. Hollingsed also described

  8   various coverages, exclusions, and endorsements for

  9   liability insurance including optional coverage for

 10   things like terrorism.

 11           Will Vancouver Energy agree to purchase

 12   endorsements for things like that?

 13      A.   Again, our teams are going to recommend which

 14   endorsements are necessary and prudent for this facility

 15   and I anticipate the management committee is going to

 16   follow the recommendation and approve that.  I can't

 17   speak to the specifics since it's kind of a hypothetical

 18   at this point.

 19      Q.   There was a question of Captain Bayer about

 20   Jones Act vessels -- (Court reporter interruption.) --

 21   and whether Jones Act vessels will call on the facility.

 22           What's your view of whether Jones Act vessels

 23   will be calling at this facility?

 24               MS. BRIMMER:  Your Honor, again, that seems

 25   to be beyond the financial structure of the company.
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  1               MR. DERR:  I'll withdraw that question.

  2   BY MR. DERR:

  3      Q.   And there have been several questions about

  4   project commitments and what is the company's and the

  5   management committee's solution on various project

  6   commitments like tank cars.

  7           Can you describe how the management committee

  8   use its commitments and obligations for this project?

  9               MS. BRIMMER:  Again, Your Honor, tank cars

 10   is not part of the financial structure of the company.

 11               MR. DERR:  I'm asking a general question

 12   about commitments.  Tank cars is one example.  Council

 13   has asked questions -- parties have asked questions,

 14   will the commitments change and where are the

 15   commitments.  Mr. Casey is one of four members of the

 16   management committee who will be making those decisions.

 17               JUDGE NOBLE:  The objection is overruled.

 18   The question is allowed.

 19   BY MR. DERR:

 20      Q.   You can answer the question.

 21      A.   Okay.  So the commitments we make and continue

 22   to make to this facility will be in regards, and I think

 23   through tank cars are an example.

 24           So when we first -- when this facility was first

 25   contemplated by the Port and the joint venture, there
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  1   was not a federal tank car standard.  And Tesoro had a

  2   history of, in our fleet, getting the latest and

  3   greatest available cars for tank cars.  As we have

  4   learned more and worked to improve rail safety with all

  5   the partners that are involved in the supply chain,

  6   things have changed and improved up to and including a

  7   federal railcar standard which is now published.

  8           And so our intent as the joint venture, when you

  9   think about this in the course of the next 20 years, is

 10   we will continue to improve the standards by which this

 11   facility and the supply chain is able to safely and

 12   efficiently and reliably function, and so that is our

 13   intent.  Safety technology, like all technologies,

 14   continues to advance, and it's not a stagnant theme.

 15   And it will be our intent to continue to improve those

 16   standards over time for this facility.

 17      Q.   Would that apply to things beyond tank cars?

 18      A.   It applies to everything at this facility.  We

 19   continually throughout our operations, and when I say

 20   "we" I'm talking about this is another example where we

 21   have alignment with Savage as a partner, we continue to

 22   seek, whether it's training practices or facility

 23   technologies and safety systems, continue to seek and

 24   understand what's the best available technology, and

 25   evaluate and implement that with appropriate time
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  1   limits.

  2      Q.   And if this EFSEC council were to identify items

  3   that were needed as conditions of approval or through

  4   its environmental review, are those examples of

  5   additional commitments?

  6      A.   Those are examples of additional commitments

  7   that we would certainly evaluate and take into

  8   consideration and make those improvements.

  9               MR. DERR:  Thank you.  I have no further

 10   questions.

 11               JUDGE NOBLE:  Cross-examination.

 12

 13                       CROSS-EXAMINATION

 14   BY MS. BRIMMER:

 15      Q.   Mr. Casey, good morning.  My name is Janette

 16   Brimmer, I'm with EarthJustice and I represent a number

 17   of the intervenor organizations in this matter.  I just

 18   want to again clarify the terms and the identities here,

 19   so I just want to go into a little bit of that.  You've

 20   referred to the joint venture.

 21           To be absolutely clear, I want to make sure I

 22   get the name right.  That is Tesoro Savage Petroleum

 23   Terminal Limited Liability Company; correct?

 24      A.   I believe that's correct.

 25      Q.   And the d/b/a is Vancouver Energy; correct?
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  1      A.   Doing business as Vancouver Energy, yes, ma'am.

  2      Q.   Okay.  And the limited liability company is a

  3   joint venture between Tesoro Refining and Marketing

  4   Limited Liability Company and Savage Companies; right?

  5      A.   It's a joint venture between Tesoro and Savage

  6   Services, correct.

  7      Q.   Well, when we say Tesoro, I just want to make

  8   sure we get the right Tesoro entity.  It's Tesoro

  9   Refining and Marketing Company, LLC; right?

 10      A.   I believe that's correct, yes.

 11      Q.   Okay.  And that is a subsidiary of Tesoro

 12   Corporation; right?

 13      A.   I believe that's correct, yes.

 14      Q.   Okay.  And I think you also -- I believe you

 15   hold positions with Tesoro Logistics Limited

 16   Partnership, also a subsidiary of Tesoro Corporation;

 17   right?

 18      A.   Correct.

 19      Q.   Okay.  And then I think there's one other Tesoro

 20   entity so I just want to be clear.  There's someone

 21   called Tesoro Companies, Inc.  Are they involved at all

 22   in this limited liability company that is going to be

 23   Vancouver Energy?

 24      A.   I'm not familiar with any involvement.

 25      Q.   Okay.  I want to make sure that members of the
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  1   council -- some members of the council I'm sure are

  2   familiar with this but I just want to make sure.

  3           Is it a correct description of a limited

  4   liability company to say that the business structure

  5   combines the benefits of a passthrough taxation like you

  6   would have in a partnership with the limited liability

  7   of a corporation?  In other words, there's that point of

  8   limiting liability but the tax benefits flow through and

  9   flow up; is that right?

 10      A.   I wouldn't be able to answer with specificity

 11   the detail of the corporate structure and the benefits.

 12   There is some taxation considerations as well as

 13   management considerations between the various

 14   structures.  So I'm not an expert to testify as what's

 15   the, I guess, flow-through of taxes, if you will.

 16      Q.   But at the same time, one of the important

 17   benefits of an LLC is that shield on liability so that

 18   the liability all stays down at the LLC; right?

 19      A.   The liability is with the company, and that's

 20   important for the respect of making sure that, as this

 21   company will have its own insurance company -- insurance

 22   policy and liabilities, it's doing business.  The intent

 23   for us was, as I said, and this is very common, two

 24   companies, Savage Services and Tesoro, coming together

 25   to form a company and utilizing their strengths to be
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  1   successful together.

  2      Q.   I want to make sure I understand your answer.

  3   When you say "the company," when I was talking about

  4   keeping liability all in one place and having a shield,

  5   "the company" is Tesoro Savage Petroleum Terminal LLC;

  6   right?

  7      A.   The partnership, yes.

  8      Q.   Am I correct in assuming that Tesoro Savage

  9   Petroleum Terminal LLC will not own hard assets like

 10   tank cars, for example?

 11      A.   No, you're not correct in assuming that, because

 12   the hard assets at the facility will be owned by the

 13   company.

 14      Q.   So the company will own tank cars?

 15      A.   Not tank cars, but you said "hard assets like

 16   tank cars."  Hard assets at the facility within the

 17   terminal will be owned by the company.

 18      Q.   Okay.  So I think we've heard that that would be

 19   the oil storage tanks and any buildings that are

 20   constructed, and I think you also said improvements to

 21   the wharfs; right?

 22      A.   As well as the rail unloading facility.

 23      Q.   Well, when you say a rail unloading facility,

 24   the track is already there, so are you talking about the

 25   additional structures that are needed to pump out the
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  1   oil and send it to the storage tanks?  Is that what

  2   you're referring to?

  3      A.   That's correct.  It's commonly referred to as

  4   the unloading barn.  It's a structure that the trains

  5   pull into and it has an unloading facilities and the

  6   piping to get it to tankage.

  7      Q.   And I think you had said that those will not be

  8   encumbered by a bank loan.  And that causes me to ask,

  9   how is the limited liability company being funded right

 10   now since there's no revenue stream?

 11      A.   The limit liability company is being funded by

 12   partner contributions.

 13      Q.   So how does that work?  Is there just a regular

 14   monthly -- I don't know what to call it -- stipend or

 15   infusion of cash?  How do the funds make it into

 16   Vancouver Energy right now?

 17      A.   So from the management-based standpoint, as I

 18   said, that's one of the roles of the management

 19   committee.  So our quarterly meetings, we review the

 20   financial needs for the coming quarter, and we look

 21   at -- not only do we look at what has been spent and

 22   making a projection of what will be spent, and then

 23   there is a call to the partners for capital

 24   contribution.  I can't speak to how that works on

 25   Savage's side, but on Tesoro's side I have the authority
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  1   to authorize the capital contribution to the joint

  2   venture.

  3      Q.   So you don't need additional action by Tesoro

  4   executives or board to do that?

  5      A.   No, ma'am.  I am the Tesoro executive that does

  6   that.

  7      Q.   And I would assume that the funding of all of

  8   the construction for the facility will occur the same

  9   way?

 10      A.   That is our intent.

 11      Q.   So then how do the parent companies get paid

 12   back?  Or do they not get paid back for the funding that

 13   is going in now and for construction?  Do they take a

 14   lien, for example?

 15      A.   No.  The facility will generate a revenue once

 16   it's up in operation and in business, and that will be

 17   distributed back to the partners.

 18      Q.   So when you referred to equity, is that some

 19   future equity that will be left with Vancouver Energy or

 20   will all of the revenue in the future be distributed to

 21   the partners?

 22      A.   So you're asking a question about a level of

 23   detail we have not gotten to, and I believe some of that

 24   may be business confidential.  So I can't answer

 25   specifically that question.
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  1      Q.   You testified during direct concerning the

  2   arrangement where Mr. Larrabee, by way of example, is, I

  3   think you said on loan to the limited liability company.

  4   Do you recall that?

  5      A.   He's a Savage employee that is seconded into the

  6   joint venture.

  7      Q.   And I think a layperson's description was "on

  8   loan"?

  9      A.   On loan, correct.

 10      Q.   Is his salary paid, then, by the limited

 11   liability company or is it paid by Savage?

 12      A.   His salary is actually paid by Savage but is

 13   part of the joint venture.  So he's -- his expense is

 14   the only part of the joint venture expense of a paid

 15   employee, I believe.

 16      Q.   And then I think you said that it would be

 17   Savage employees working through a contract between

 18   Savage and the limited liability company that would be

 19   doing the operation of the terminal such as the train

 20   unloading and those kinds of things; right?

 21      A.   It is anticipated there will be a service

 22   agreement for Savage Services and their employees to do

 23   the rail unloading and tank management, correct.

 24      Q.   So, similarly, they will be paid by Savage and

 25   then Savage gets reimbursed by, what, funds from the
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  1   limited liability company?  Is that how that works?

  2      A.   So again, a level of detail and specificity that

  3   has not been resolved yet since the terminal is not in

  4   operation.

  5      Q.   Let me ask a more general question.

  6           Is it anticipated that the limited liability

  7   company will have any employees that are employees of

  8   that company?

  9      A.   So typically when you do a service agreement,

 10   just to make sure it's square from a high level, is

 11   Savage Services, those employees who are doing that

 12   work, will get paid by the joint venture to perform

 13   those services and then they would handle payroll for

 14   their employees to do that.  Just like any other service

 15   contractor or provider, they're contracted for a service

 16   to be paid for by the joint venture.  The joint venture

 17   is getting the money to pay for those services by

 18   performing the service at the facility and the people

 19   that are paying for the availability of the terminal

 20   services.

 21      Q.   So it's a two-way arm's length contract between

 22   the terminal company and, for example, Savage?

 23      A.   There will be a contract that's -- it's

 24   anticipated there will be a contract between Savage and

 25   joint venture, yes.
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  1      Q.   So I think that causes me to turn, then, to the

  2   insurance.

  3           So we've heard a lot about how the limited

  4   liability company will have insurance policies in its

  5   name to cover everything from property damage to

  6   liability.  Anything I'm missing there?

  7      A.   So again, our experts will recommend all the

  8   insurance that are appropriate for this level of

  9   operation for the terminal facility.

 10      Q.   So let me back up a bit.

 11           So there's some minimum insurance obligations in

 12   the lease with the Port; correct?

 13      A.   I believe that's correct.

 14      Q.   And the testimony from witnesses so far,

 15   including you, I think, has been that there's an

 16   expectation that the limited liability company will

 17   purchase insurance in excess of the minimums required in

 18   the lease?

 19      A.   That is correct.

 20      Q.   And that will be based on recommendations of

 21   experts?

 22      A.   Of our internal experts.  And they're also

 23   working with, as I understand, this Department of

 24   Ecology or the State has some studies that they do about

 25   appropriate insurance limits as well, and it's all
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  1   factored into the recommendation.

  2      Q.   And then that decision, thumbs up or down, on

  3   those recommendations is made by the management

  4   committee?

  5      A.   It would thumbs up by the management committee,

  6   yes.

  7      Q.   Are you saying it would be thumbs up no matter

  8   what the recommendation is?

  9      A.   What I'm saying is we hire experts to manage

 10   this space and understand these areas very well, and

 11   they make a recommendation.  And it's likely going to be

 12   approved by the management, very likely.

 13      Q.   Similar to the funding questions, are you

 14   authorized to make that decision on behalf of the Tesoro

 15   parent companies?  In other words, do you require any

 16   additional board or executive action at Tesoro for that?

 17      A.   So that's a great question and I don't have the

 18   levels of authority memorized for insurance purposes.

 19   Our treasurer, who works with our chief financial

 20   officer and I, review that.  And either I will have the

 21   authority or our chief financial officer will have the

 22   authority to approve that.

 23      Q.   So right now there are some things that you have

 24   authority to do and bind the Tesoro parent companies but

 25   not all things; is that right?
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  1      A.   It depends on the level.  Again, we're asking a

  2   hypothetical.  I have insurance authority to some level

  3   I'm just not familiar with today.  And I don't have the

  4   hypothetical level that's being requested, so I can't

  5   answer specifically if I have that authority.  More than

  6   likely I do.

  7      Q.   Are the management committee meetings recorded?

  8      A.   Yes, they are.  Not recorded like TV recording

  9   here, but there's notes taken and memorialized minutes.

 10      Q.   You testified during your direct concerning

 11   insurance that both Tesoro -- I lose track of names --

 12   Tesoro Refining and Marketing Company, the parent or

 13   partner company here, and Savage Companies will have

 14   insurance and indemnification agreements, and I want to

 15   explore exactly what that means.

 16           So -- and obviously I'll have you speak to

 17   Tesoro Refining and Marketing.  What will they purchase

 18   insurance for related to the operation of this terminal?

 19      A.   I guess I'll go back to care, custody, and

 20   control and making sure there's absolutely no gaps, so I

 21   can answer it from Tesoro's perspective.  Very

 22   importantly, the joint venture will have, as we've

 23   talked about, a very appropriate and conservative

 24   insurance program for all activities of the joint

 25   venture.  Independently of anything else that Tesoro or
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  1   Savage or any other partner will do, that policy will

  2   exist.

  3           As far as other Tesoro activities, Tesoro as a

  4   company has insurance, if you will, and I'll use an

  5   example, for our marine liabilities or for other

  6   transportation liabilities.  So our personnel who would

  7   be doing any marine activities, we would have

  8   appropriate insurance and indemnification for any of

  9   those marine activities.  That is a Tesoro, as the

 10   customer, obligation.  Very different than the joint

 11   venture.

 12      Q.   So -- and again, I want to make sure I'm

 13   following that.  So if Tesoro -- we've heard that some

 14   of the oil coming to you will be Tesoro oil; correct?

 15      A.   That's correct.  Tesoro is anticipating 60,000

 16   barrels a day coming through the facility.

 17      Q.   So -- and there will be Tesoro employees working

 18   on the marine end of the operation at the terminal?

 19      A.   That is correct.

 20      Q.   So if the Tesoro employee somehow makes an error

 21   or there's a failure of marine equipment when there's

 22   that custody and control point that's been talked about

 23   where, you know, as it passes the flange between the

 24   hose and the ship, custody changes, that's what that

 25   insurance is for, if there's some mess-up there or some



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 2026

                        BRIMMER / CASEY

  1   accident there that results in a spill or some other

  2   disaster?

  3      A.   Yes.  There's two points there.  So not all of

  4   the oil that goes through the terminal will be Tesoro

  5   oil, right?  As I said, about 60,000 barrels a day.  So

  6   for the marine activity of transferring the oil safely

  7   onto the marine vessels, Tesoro will have a service

  8   level agreement with the joint venture to do that work

  9   under the authority of the general manager.

 10           Tesoro will have its proper insurance and

 11   indemnifications for providing that service to the joint

 12   venture as any contractor or consultant would be to a

 13   facility.  If it is Tesoro's oil that is being loaded,

 14   there is additional insurance policies that Tesoro has

 15   for any of its oil activities.

 16      Q.   So let's talk about the indemnification

 17   agreement.  Does that flow one way or both ways?  In

 18   other words, if something happens and Tesoro's insurance

 19   for whatever reason has to pay out, are you saying that

 20   there's an indemnification potentially back from the

 21   limited liability company to Tesoro for that?

 22      A.   I don't think I understand your question.  I

 23   don't know about the flowing back and forth.

 24      Q.   I guess what I'm trying to understand is

 25   indemnification agreements are usually -- if I end up
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  1   having to pay, you're going to indemnify me; right?

  2   That's the simplest form of an indemnification

  3   agreement; right?

  4      A.   That is a form, yes.

  5      Q.   So what I'm trying to understand is when you

  6   said there would be indemnification agreements back and

  7   forth between Tesoro and the limited liability company,

  8   I'm trying to understand who indemnifies who.  Is it --

  9   it's a mutual agreement or is it just that if Tesoro has

 10   to pay, the limited liability company will indemnify

 11   Tesoro?

 12      A.   You're asking a level of specificity I cannot

 13   answer.  Tesoro will be insured appropriately for

 14   conducting that activity.

 15      Q.   Okay.

 16               MS. BRIMMER:  I have nothing further, Your

 17   Honor.  Thank you.

 18               JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there any other

 19   cross-examination of this witness?  Rebuttal?  Redirect,

 20   rather?

 21               MR. DERR:  I just have one.

 22

 23                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION

 24   BY MR. DERR:

 25      Q.   Mr. Casey, you mentioned an Ecology study that
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  1   sets ultimately insurance requirements for this project.

  2   If that -- if Ecology does that study and they determine

  3   an amount that's inappropriate and EFSEC imposes that

  4   insurance amount as a condition of this project

  5   operating, not knowing what that number is today, is

  6   that a number that the management committee would

  7   accept?

  8      A.   Yes.  If that's what has been agreed by EFSEC

  9   and the State as appropriate insurance, that's the

 10   agreed number.

 11               MR. DERR:  Thank you.  No further questions.

 12               JUDGE NOBLE:  Council questions?

 13               Mr. Shafer?

 14               MR. SHAFER:  Mr. Casey, thank you very much

 15   for your testimony this morning.  One question.

 16               You made reference to, if I understood you

 17   correctly, that every single employee has the authority

 18   for stop work on the facility.  And could you help

 19   clarify on that a little bit?  Particularly my question

 20   is in regards to, has that ever caused any dispute or

 21   confusion either among co-workers or staff or management

 22   which may have led to environmental impact or improper

 23   function of the facility?

 24               THE WITNESS:  Yeah, it's a great question

 25   and I'd love to elaborate on that.  And it's actually
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  1   quite the contrary.

  2               I can give and cite numerous examples where

  3   contractors have noticed something abnormal, and

  4   escalated and said stop the job; operators, maintenance

  5   craftsmen, all levels of the organization.  And so the

  6   result of this is safer facilities with less potential

  7   environmental consequence.

  8               Because it's the authority, or as we talked

  9   about is an obligation, is now bringing all sets of eyes

 10   into the facility saying the most important thing we do

 11   is protect people and the environment.  And we have

 12   safety tennants that underpin that as well.  And there's

 13   always time to do it right, you know, stop work

 14   obligation and authority.  The design is intended for

 15   everybody to be aligned, is the first and foremost

 16   objective.

 17               It's a great question.

 18               MR. SHAFER:  Let me just clarify on that.

 19   So if a -- say a staff level worker is -- sees a

 20   situation to stop work.  Does the work immediately stop

 21   at that moment?  Is that something that goes immediately

 22   to management and then they look at a review?  Is there

 23   a decision tree there?  Can you help us --

 24               THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  The intent is to

 25   immediately stop and then it gets escalated.  So it
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  1   doesn't have to go up and get escalated to see if it

  2   gets stopped.  In refining, the example is we talk to

  3   our operators all the time, they have complete authority

  4   to stabilize, slow down and shut down without calling

  5   for permission, complete authority.  So if they see

  6   anything that's causing them concern and they have that

  7   complete authority.  Now, we'll come in afterwards and

  8   review and help them determine appropriate safeguards to

  9   reestablish operations, but they're in the moment and

 10   they see the hazard, they have complete authority to

 11   stop.  And then we can get the appropriate resources in

 12   to help alleviate whatever situation was causing the

 13   concern.

 14               MR. SHAFER:  Thank you.

 15               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Stone?

 16               MR. STONE:  Good morning, Mr. Casey.

 17               The question was asked earlier who will own

 18   the tank cars, and I'm not sure I heard the answer.  I

 19   understand that oftentimes tank cars aren't actually

 20   owned but they're leased.  So will Tesoro Savage's

 21   company own or lease the tank cars that will serve this

 22   facility?

 23               THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Good morning, Mr. Stone.

 24               The joint venture is not anticipated to own

 25   any railcars.  The railcars are either owned or leased
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  1   by the customers of the terminal, so each of those

  2   manages their own fleet and they make the decisions on

  3   whether to own or lease as well.  So it's not

  4   anticipated that the JV will own any railcars coming to

  5   the facilities.

  6               However, we did make a commitment that the

  7   facility will only accept the DOT-117s, which is the new

  8   federal standard cars, into the facility.

  9               MR. STONE:  Okay.  So any customers of the

 10   facility who want to use it, they'll be made known that

 11   only the newer, safer tank cars will be accepted at the

 12   facility?

 13               THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

 14               MR. STONE:  Okay, thank you.

 15               JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other questions to my

 16   right?  Questions to my left?

 17               Mr. Moss?

 18               MR. MOSS:  Good morning.

 19               THE WITNESS:  Good morning.

 20               MR. MOSS:  I wanted to follow up a little

 21   bit on the stop work because that's something I'm

 22   unfamiliar with.

 23               How is that communicated?  If an employee

 24   spots something that appears to that employee to be

 25   dangerous and that employee believes that work should
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  1   stop, is that communicated throughout the operation, and

  2   if so, how?

  3               THE WITNESS:  Yeah, so again, great

  4   question.

  5               Multiple levels of communication there,

  6   actually multiple times are repeated.  And even myself

  7   as head of operations, in every employee engagement,

  8   which I visit all of our facilities at least annually, I

  9   reinforce that with all the employees, because they are

 10   often looking and saying does the boss really want that

 11   to occur.  And so I do that as part of my business.

 12               The stop work authority actually starts on

 13   day one with employee orientation as part of our

 14   training about safe, compliant, and reliable operations

 15   and all of us having a role or an obligation in ensuring

 16   that's taking place.  And then it's reinforced from

 17   weekly safety meetings to monthly safety topics up to

 18   and including, as I said, as an executive within the

 19   company, I make sure with every interaction I have with

 20   employees, we talk about our desire to create an

 21   incident and injury-free workplace and stop work

 22   authority as an obligation for all of us to hold that

 23   intent and act on it.

 24               MR. MOSS:  That was helpful.

 25               Another aspect of my question was let's say
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  1   I'm an employee working unloading railcars and I see

  2   something that I think is amiss there and make this

  3   announcement that there should be a stop work.  Does

  4   that stop everything at the entire facility or just in

  5   that operation that I'm focused on?

  6               THE WITNESS:  Again, so it's a very good

  7   question, and I think the question to your -- or the

  8   answer to your question is a bit complicated so I'll

  9   give you two potential scenarios, right.

 10               If it's an issue with one car stopping and

 11   isolating that car and then backing up and stopping the

 12   unloading operations so we can get all this done, would

 13   be an example.  If that employee were to notice an issue

 14   on the common header which is going to the tanks or one

 15   other thing, it will stop the entire operation.  The

 16   facility is also designed with, we call it ESDs,

 17   emergency shutdown devices, which in our field

 18   vernacular is the big red button.  You push the button,

 19   it puts the entire facility into a safe state and shuts

 20   it down.  Any employee and all employees will be trained

 21   on where those are and have the capability to push the

 22   big red button and shut down the facility.

 23               MR. MOSS:  Thank you.

 24               My other question has to do with insurance.

 25   You indicated in your testimony that the -- I suppose
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  1   the joint venture or perhaps the parent corporation,

  2   there's no plans to self-insure, basically.

  3               THE WITNESS:  No, sir.  There is within each

  4   of the policies a deductible amount, which is 5 or 10

  5   percent of the policy, but no self-insurance.

  6               MR. MOSS:  So I was interested in the other

  7   end.  Assuming that for some reason the limits of

  8   liability of the policies were exceeded by the event in

  9   question, what then?

 10               THE WITNESS:  So I think all of our effort

 11   is to prevent those events from occurring.  If there was

 12   an unfortunate situation where all of the insurance, and

 13   there's several layers of insurance that come into play

 14   here, are expended, I believe ourselves and Savage

 15   Services, the joint venture, would work to do the right

 16   thing as much as we can to alleviate that situation.

 17               It's hard for me in a hypothetical situation

 18   to give you an affirmative answer to that, but we are

 19   very much committed to make sure that the right things

 20   occur within the communities we operate.

 21               MR. MOSS:  Thank you very much.  That's all

 22   I have for you.

 23               JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other questions to my

 24   left?

 25               Mr. Rossman?
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  1               MR. ROSSMAN:  Yeah, thank you very much for

  2   your testimony and coming here today.  I have some

  3   questions on the financial assurances and liability and

  4   when you talk about operations.

  5               So my understanding from previous testimony

  6   and from some of the opening briefs there would be on

  7   the order of 700 million to a billion dollars of

  8   financial assurances needed for the oil as it was coming

  9   down the rail and somewhere on the order of a billion

 10   dollars of financial assurances needed for the vessel

 11   from the point that it leaves the terminal.  But I

 12   understand from the lease we're looking so far at

 13   somewhere in the neighborhood of $40 million of

 14   assurances that are required and then through the course

 15   of studies there may be some additional amount

 16   determined.

 17               Is that all right so far, to your

 18   understanding, at least as far as what's going on with

 19   this facility's insurance?

 20               THE WITNESS:  Yeah, I haven't reviewed all

 21   the testimony to understand all the details, but it

 22   sounds appropriate.

 23               MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  And we also heard

 24   testimony about, I believe, some similar facilities in

 25   California had an insurance cap of 330 million.
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  1               Are you familiar at all with that or?

  2               THE WITNESS:  No, we do do business in

  3   California, but I'm not familiar with any of the caps

  4   that are on the facilities there.  Like I said, an

  5   example, the least we would consider that minimum

  6   requirement.  The State is going to help address what is

  7   an appropriate requirement.  We anticipate our experts

  8   will look at if there's even additional coverage beyond

  9   the State recommendation for the facility.

 10               MR. ROSSMAN:  What about as to like other

 11   Tesoro facilities?  You mentioned on direct examination

 12   that you saw this as a small to medium size storage

 13   facility overall.  Does Tesoro have larger storage

 14   facilities than this?

 15               THE WITNESS:  Yes.  In each of our

 16   refineries we have a tank and wharf, in our coastal

 17   refineries.  Our mid-continent refineries do not have

 18   wharf, obviously.  But so we have tankage, and it's

 19   typically in the, let's say 4- to 8 million-barrel

 20   capacity of those operations.  Then there's extremely

 21   large terminals, predominantly in the Gulf Coast or in

 22   Oklahoma, that have upwards of 80 to 90 million barrels

 23   of capacity.

 24               MR. ROSSMAN:  So recognizing that presumably

 25   the insurance requirements of a refinery will be
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  1   different from just a transfer facility, do you have any

  2   idea of the insurance amounts of large Tesoro storage

  3   facilities?

  4               THE WITNESS:  So I do not have all the

  5   specifics, but we have very significant -- as I said,

  6   we've got insurance experts work for our treasurer, and

  7   we've got very significant insurance policies for all of

  8   our operations which includes both the refining

  9   processes and refineries as well as any of the handling

 10   of materials, feedstocks or products around those

 11   refineries and logistics operations.

 12               MR. ROSSMAN:  But you don't know the amount

 13   or the order of magnitude?

 14               THE WITNESS:  I do not know the exact order

 15   of magnitude or amount, no, I don't.

 16               MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  What about as to Tesoro

 17   employees who will be working on the site under a

 18   service contract with Vancouver Energy; you mentioned

 19   that they would have insurance.  Do you know the amounts

 20   and types of coverage for that insurance?

 21               THE WITNESS:  No, I don't.  Again, since the

 22   facility is not in operation yet, we have not determined

 23   that.

 24               MR. ROSSMAN:  Would the intention be for

 25   those that just have the types of insurance that would
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  1   cover sort of a general liability, or is it also -- my

  2   understanding is that there are additional environmental

  3   pollution insurances that are required.  Do you have a

  4   sense of whether the Tesoro employees would have those

  5   types of insurance?

  6               THE WITNESS:  Yes.  My sense is that they

  7   will be intended -- it's intended that they'll have all

  8   the appropriate coverages for the type of work that they

  9   are performing, which would be general liabilities as

 10   well as any kind of pollution policies that would be

 11   necessary for that work.

 12               MR. ROSSMAN:  So the intention is that

 13   Tesoro employees onsite would be independently insured

 14   by Tesoro Corporation or one of the Tesoro Corporations

 15   other than Vancouver Energy for their direct liability

 16   and also environmental damages that their work caused?

 17               THE WITNESS:  For any service agreement,

 18   it's no different than any other contractor performing

 19   work at a facility.  They have to have appropriate

 20   insurance for the work they're conducting at the

 21   facility.  And that would be the intent for Savage and

 22   Tesoro employees conducting work at that facility.

 23               MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  And I do some

 24   contracting for the State, and thinking about

 25   indemnification, our contracts, the boilerplate has our
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  1   contractee indemnifying us as the State for work, and

  2   that makes sense to me in that it sort of reduces our

  3   level of risk to have that level of indemnification.

  4               But you don't know which entities -- you

  5   don't know whether Vancouver Energy would be

  6   indemnifying the Tesoro employees onsite or Tesoro would

  7   be indemnifying Vancouver Energy; is that correct?

  8               THE WITNESS:  Yeah, number one, I'm not

  9   familiar with those details.  Number two, these haven't

 10   been all resolved yet and brought to recommendation by

 11   our expert, so I can't really speak to that.

 12               MR. ROSSMAN:  At the Tesoro facility in

 13   Anacortes, Savage operates a terminal there; is that

 14   right?

 15               THE WITNESS:  That's correct, Savage

 16   operates there.

 17               MR. ROSSMAN:  Would you say the agreements

 18   between Savage and Tesoro are similar in nature,

 19   generally speaking, to what are likely to be in place at

 20   Vancouver Energy in terms of those kinds of service

 21   agreement onsite?

 22               THE WITNESS:  Yeah, I haven't reviewed them

 23   in detail, but they're likely similar in nature for that

 24   service.

 25               MR. ROSSMAN:  Do you have any sense of how
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  1   the indemnifications and insurance work --

  2               THE WITNESS:  I do not.

  3               MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  So going back to my

  4   original question.

  5               Recognizing that Ecology maybe has a study

  6   in the work and recognizing that your experts and

  7   Savage's experts are going to be thinking about how to

  8   price risk, it intuitively seems to me that if we have

  9   somewhere on the order of a billion dollars of risk at

 10   the rail and somewhere on the order of a billion dollars

 11   of insurance on the vessel, that we should have

 12   somewhere on the order of a billion dollars of insurance

 13   at the facility.

 14               And I recognize that you don't have the

 15   details on what the rail or vessel insurance is, but do

 16   you have a sense from your position whether Tesoro and

 17   Vancouver Energy would have a problem taking in the

 18   range of a billion dollars of insurance at this

 19   facility?

 20               THE WITNESS:  Yeah, so the joint venture,

 21   Vancouver Energy has -- from what I know from our

 22   experts, has no concerns with getting appropriate

 23   insurance for the magnitude that you're discussing for

 24   the insurance at this facility.

 25               MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  So just to be clear, is
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  1   a billion dollars in the range of what you consider

  2   appropriate insurance pending future study?

  3               THE WITNESS:  Again, I can't determine

  4   appropriateness of what the number is going to be.  I'll

  5   be relying on those experts to work with Ecology and

  6   understand what their numbers and recommendations are.

  7   But a billion dollars of coverage is -- I can't even

  8   judge whether that's appropriate or not.

  9               MR. ROSSMAN:  Would that make sense if

 10   that's comparable to other Tesoro facilities?

 11               THE WITNESS:  I do not have any sense of

 12   comps.

 13               MR. ROSSMAN:  Let's see if I have any other

 14   questions.

 15               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Rossman, do you mind if I

 16   ask a question while you're looking?

 17               MR. ROSSMAN:  Please.  Thank you.

 18               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Casey, I just have a quick

 19   question about the assets of the joint venture.  I think

 20   the testimony was that the assets of the joint venture

 21   are the lease, the constructed improvements, which are

 22   worth around 200 million, I think was the figure, and

 23   revenues.  But then later in your testimony you said

 24   that the revenues are going to be Tesoro, just Tesoro.

 25   Tesoro and Savage?
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  1               THE WITNESS:  No.  So typically when two

  2   companies form a joint venture, the profits of that

  3   company has some payment back to the partners, and so

  4   it's anticipated there will be -- this is a

  5   profit-making enterprise and some portion of those

  6   profits will be going back to the owners of the company.

  7               JUDGE NOBLE:  I'm not questioning that.  I'm

  8   just saying that those are not really assets of the

  9   joint venture, they're assets of the parent companies;

 10   right?  Revenue is not much of an asset.

 11               THE WITNESS:  So typically when you create a

 12   company as a partnership, the revenue that's generated

 13   from executing that business comes into account, and

 14   then there's some agreement about how much and when does

 15   any of those profits go back to the owners themselves.

 16   For the period of time it's in the joint venture it is

 17   an asset of the joint venture.

 18               JUDGE NOBLE:  I understand that, but if

 19   something were to go wrong, the joint venture's assets

 20   would have to cover any amounts over and above the

 21   insurance payment to pay for damages.  And the testimony

 22   that you gave, I think, was that the joint venture's

 23   assets are the lease, the constructed improvements, and

 24   revenues, so I didn't get a sense that there was much in

 25   the way of revenues that could be considered an asset of
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  1   the joint venture; is that correct?

  2               THE WITNESS:  Yeah, it's a difficult

  3   question, again because we're not in operation, since I

  4   can't give you a cash flow or a balance sheet of what

  5   would be on the asset ledger.  The contracts themselves

  6   have some value, too, for the facility to be able to

  7   move through to have it be a viable business.  So

  8   difficult for me to answer your question with the

  9   specificity I think that you're looking for.

 10               JUDGE NOBLE:  No, I'm not looking for any

 11   specificity above the revenues or how much they would

 12   be, I'm just saying that they are not really part of the

 13   assets of the joint venture.

 14               THE WITNESS:  Well, they are until they get

 15   dividended back to the parents and at what level, right.

 16   And that hasn't been all agreed yet because, again, we

 17   don't have the commercial construct in place.  So there

 18   have been times that they are on the joint venture

 19   paperwork.  Then the joint venture, if an incident were

 20   to occur at that point in time, they are assets of the

 21   joint venture because it has not been dividended back.

 22               Does that make sense?

 23               JUDGE NOBLE:  That makes sense, thank you.

 24               Mr. Rossman, did you find any other

 25   questions?
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  1               MR. ROSSMAN:  Just a couple.

  2               In terms of the commitment that Tesoro has

  3   for part of the throughput of the facility, I heard

  4   testimony earlier that was 60,000 barrels; is that

  5   right?

  6               THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

  7               MR. ROSSMAN:  Have contracts been executed

  8   as to that commitment or is that just a conceptual

  9   commitment at this point?

 10               THE WITNESS:  Progress has not been executed

 11   yet because we don't have a facility in place yet, so we

 12   haven't been able to do the full economic analysis.

 13               MR. ROSSMAN:  Are there any contracts in

 14   place presently between Vancouver Energy and Tesoro

 15   Corporation?

 16               THE WITNESS:  I'm not aware of any contracts

 17   in place between the joint venture and Tesoro.  You

 18   know, we have the joint venture agreement which

 19   theoretically is a contract.

 20               MR. ROSSMAN:  That's an agreement between

 21   Tesoro and Savage?

 22               THE WITNESS:  And Savage, to create the

 23   joint venture.  I'm not aware of any other contracts

 24   that are between the joint venture and Tesoro.

 25               MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  And that 60,000 barrels
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  1   of throughput, is that in any particular Tesoro

  2   refinery?

  3               THE WITNESS:  Our refineries in the PNW and

  4   the West Coast.  Pacific Northwest, sorry.

  5               MR. ROSSMAN:  So to the extent that those

  6   would serve Anacortes, how would the oil proceed from

  7   the facility to Anacortes?  Have you made any

  8   arrangements for that?

  9               THE WITNESS:  So we have our marine group

 10   that handles all the movements of both crude oil and

 11   feedstocks along the West Coast.  And that's where those

 12   arrangements will be made.

 13               MR. ROSSMAN:  Thanks very much.  No further

 14   questions.

 15               JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other council questions?

 16               Mr. Siemann?

 17               MR. SIEMANN:  Thank you.  Good morning and

 18   thank you for being here this morning.  So I have just a

 19   couple of questions.

 20               I wanted to ask about the stop work order.

 21   And I'm interested more in the practical application of

 22   it rather than the theoretical application.  And as I

 23   understand it, the Tesoro facility in Anacortes

 24   experienced an explosion some years ago.

 25               Was there a stop work order that was in
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  1   place there, that opportunity for stop work by any

  2   employee?

  3               THE WITNESS:  I'd like to -- I will answer

  4   your question directly but I want to give you some

  5   context here.

  6               Very relevant to the safety culture, I

  7   think, is the facility that is a terminal facility in

  8   Vancouver today, this operated 30 years without injury

  9   or incident, as well as the crude rail unloading

 10   facility in Anacortes going on four years with 70

 11   million barrels without incident.

 12               To your point specifically, there was a

 13   tragic incident at our Anacortes refinery in 2010.  The

 14   root of that incident was a metallurgical failure in an

 15   otherwise unknown industry phenomenon called high

 16   temperature hydrogen attack.  And it was well for -- for

 17   30 years there was what was called a Nelson curve.  And

 18   forgive me if I get too detailed in this description,

 19   but it's important because these Nelson curves have been

 20   in place for a lot of times, that said if you have this

 21   partial pressure and this temperature you should not be

 22   susceptible to high temperature hydrogen attack.

 23               That incident became the first of the plots

 24   in many decades where a metallurgical failure could take

 25   place.  It was a tragic incident and it caused the life
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  1   of seven of our employees, and it was a sad day for us.

  2   I was not part of the company at the time, I'm not

  3   dissuading any accountability.  Stop work authority was

  4   in place at the time.  That would not have been an

  5   unsafe act.  That was a heat exchanger that had been in

  6   service with a failure mechanism in it that nobody could

  7   see until, unfortunately, those employees were around it

  8   when it released.

  9               It's my belief that had the employees

 10   thought it was unsafe or any part of that operation or

 11   had a -- good example of where an engineer can do stop

 12   work authority, had an engineer suspected during the

 13   corrosion review that this failure mechanism was

 14   possible, they had the authority to stop that.

 15   Unfortunately, it was not known to anybody in the

 16   industry at the time.

 17               So that was immediately shared throughout

 18   industry.  And the entire industry, I can tell you from

 19   my experience, and I said I wasn't with the company at

 20   the time, I was the recipient of the Tesoro

 21   investigation that came out very early in the process,

 22   well before most of the other investigations.  And I

 23   went and slowed down and did additional inspections and

 24   spent millions and millions of dollars correcting my

 25   units in another company because of what happened at
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  1   that incident.  So it's a very different scenario.

  2               But the stop work, I would anticipate if an

  3   engineer is in a corrosion review and identifies, boy,

  4   that doesn't seem right, that would be stop work to say,

  5   hey, let's do further study, let's do further testing,

  6   let's shut down or slow down this piece of equipment

  7   because I found something.  So it does apply.

  8               Does that make sense?

  9               MR. SIEMANN:  It does, thank you.  I

 10   appreciate that.  Second question revolves around

 11   insurance.  There's a few questions around this.

 12               This idea that you have coverage and you

 13   have assets, but if you have an event at the facility

 14   that exceeds those -- that coverage and those assets in

 15   terms of cost and damage, what happens then?  Can you

 16   foresee a situation in which the state or county or city

 17   or communities are left holding some of the financial

 18   cost because of that event, because it exceeds the

 19   coverage and the assets of the joint venture?

 20               THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Obviously that's our

 21   intent is that situation will never occur.  First and

 22   foremost, we put all our efforts into prevention and

 23   litigation measures working jointly with the rail,

 24   working with our facility, and then with each about the

 25   railcar safety that we talked about, all members of the
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  1   supply chain.  And when I talk about safety not being

  2   stagnant, you need to continuously focus in improving

  3   that so we can drive that zero incidence.

  4               Now, if there is an incident, there's

  5   mitigation measures and layers of protection in staging

  6   of equipment and having Current Busters technology

  7   available for anybody that has any incidents on the

  8   river, so on and so forth.  Our levels of mitigation is

  9   to minimize the potential consequence, minimizing

 10   consequence.  And then the payment for that is, as you

 11   said, insurance policies, and that's where we come to

 12   that care, custody, and control and making sure that

 13   everybody has -- there's absolutely no gaps and we have

 14   appropriate coverage for every point in that supply

 15   chain so that communities or others are not left in a

 16   bad position in this accident.  So that's the intent.

 17               MR. SIEMANN:  I understand that that's the

 18   intent.  I guess my question is still, how can we be

 19   assured of that?  And the example that's been offered in

 20   previous testimony goes back to the incident in Canada

 21   in which the short line railroad did not have sufficient

 22   coverage, did not have sufficient assets, so filed for

 23   bankruptcy and walked away.

 24               And what I'm interested in is, how do we

 25   ensure that that does not happen here and that the joint
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  1   venture does not file for bankruptcy and walks away,

  2   leaving the parent companies unscathed, I suppose?

  3               THE WITNESS:  It's obviously a difficult

  4   question to answer with complete certainty since, again,

  5   we're talking about a hypothetical.  But I can tell you

  6   both Savage Services and ourselves, our company, has

  7   great integrity and we work to do the right thing, so

  8   it's more than an intent.  We will work very hard to

  9   make sure that it is executed throughout the supply

 10   chain, there's care, custody, and control, and the

 11   appropriate levels of insurance.

 12               I can't offer an ultimate guarantee that if

 13   all of those things don't work and it's somebody else's

 14   liability that the joint venture or the corporation is

 15   going to step in.  It's not appropriate for me to be

 16   able to offer that level of guarantee.

 17               MR. SIEMANN:  No further questions.

 18               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Rossman, did you have

 19   another question?

 20               MR. ROSSMAN:  That answered it.

 21               JUDGE NOBLE:  I think that's all the council

 22   questions.

 23               Counsel questions based on council

 24   questions?

 25   ///
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  1                      RECROSS-EXAMINATION

  2   BY MS. BRIMMER:

  3      Q.   Mr. Casey, in response to some questions from

  4   Council Member Rossman, you talked about some other

  5   Tesoro facilities.  Are there any other exclusively

  6   crude-by-rail transloading facilities like the one we're

  7   talking about here in Vancouver that Tesoro has in a

  8   similar situation in terms of size, the fact that it

  9   just transloads crude-by-rail, and that it's on a major

 10   river like the Columbia and major wildlife like the

 11   Columbia, any others that are like that?

 12      A.   So our crude-by-rail facility in Anacortes,

 13   Washington, that's rated at 50,000 barrels a day is

 14   right on a bay so it's an environmentally sensitive

 15   area.  So that operation is the only other operation

 16   that is somewhat analogous but not of the size and scale

 17   of the proposed facility.

 18      Q.   You testified in response to -- and forgive me,

 19   I think it was one of Mr. Rossman's questions but I

 20   might be in error.  But you talked about the 60,000

 21   barrels is anticipated to be Tesoro oil that will be

 22   transloaded through the facility.

 23           You said some of that would go to the Pacific

 24   Northwest refineries and some would go down the coast to

 25   California; is that accurate?
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  1      A.   That's correct.

  2      Q.   And so just to be clear about how this is going

  3   to work and how it comes in, Anacortes already has some

  4   crude-by-rail; right?

  5      A.   That's correct.  They have 50,000 barrels a day

  6   capability.

  7      Q.   So this oil would come into the terminal by

  8   train, it would be unloaded at the terminal, it would be

  9   stored, and then it would be loaded out to tankers, go

 10   out the Columbia River, turn right, go up to Puget

 11   Sound, travel to Anacortes, unload at the dock, and be

 12   supplied to that refinery?  That's how that would work;

 13   right?

 14      A.   Yes.

 15      Q.   And are you aware of the long-standing federal

 16   limitations on the amount of oil that can be shipped

 17   into Puget Sound?

 18      A.   Yes, I am, if you're referring to the Magnuson

 19   Act.

 20      Q.   Yes.

 21           I also want to ask a little bit of follow-up to

 22   questions from Council Member Siemann on the unfortunate

 23   incident at Tesoro in 2010.  Tesoro was found --

 24               MR. DERR:  Your Honor, I'm going to object

 25   to this.  And, again, I'm in a dilemma where it's
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  1   difficult to object to council questions, but I'm going

  2   to object to both relevance for this proceeding and to

  3   Mr. Brimmer's point at the beginning of his testimony.

  4   This was to address structure of the joint venture,

  5   assets and insurance.

  6               MS. BRIMMER:  I won't ask it, that's fine.

  7               JUDGE NOBLE:  The question has been

  8   withdrawn.

  9               MS. BRIMMER:  No further questions, thank

 10   you.

 11               JUDGE NOBLE:  Are there any other questions

 12   from opponents based on the council's questions?

 13

 14                       CROSS-EXAMINATION

 15   BY MR. POTTER:

 16      Q.   Good morning, Mr. Casey.

 17      A.   Good morning.

 18      Q.   I'm Bronson Potter, I represent the City of

 19   Vancouver.

 20           In both your direct and in your answers to

 21   council member questions, you made reference to the

 22   commitment to only accept 117s at the facility.

 23      A.   That's correct.

 24      Q.   In Mr. Larrabee's testimony he said that the

 25   form of that commitment would take -- it would be
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  1   contractual terms in the contracts between Vancouver

  2   Energy and the customer sending oil to the facility.

  3           Is that your understanding?

  4      A.   It's my understanding that that's how it is

  5   anticipated to be executed.

  6      Q.   Do you understand that the applicant in this

  7   proceeding has taken the position that the State of

  8   Washington does not have the authority to regulate

  9   railroad transportation of crude oil?

 10      A.   I'm not sure I understand your question.

 11      Q.   I'm asking you whether you understand that

 12   Vancouver Energy is of the position that the State of

 13   Washington does not have the legal authority to regulate

 14   how oil is transported on railroads.

 15      A.   Yes.  I'm not an expert, but I know that there's

 16   federal regulation and commerce law that talks about the

 17   movements in goods.  So I think we've probably

 18   reaffirmed whatever is legally in place between federal

 19   and state governments.

 20      Q.   So with respect to the commitment on 117s, is

 21   this commitment one that is voluntarily self-imposed by

 22   Vancouver Energy as opposed to something that you would

 23   accept as a regulatory condition?

 24      A.   Well, this is a commitment to meet the federal

 25   standard which has a timeframe for implementation.  So
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  1   our commitment is to say we're going to meet the federal

  2   standard now with all the cars coming into the facility.

  3   But it is based on the federal standard.

  4      Q.   Well, the testimony has been that the 111s and

  5   the 1232s that are not retrofitted will not be accepted

  6   at the facility during the phaseout schedule.

  7           Is that your understanding?

  8      A.   Yes, that's correct.  The commitment is that the

  9   federal standard is now published, there is no question

 10   about when it will be.  And our commitment is when this

 11   facility opens up, railcars will meet that federal

 12   standard.

 13      Q.   And what I want to have clear is the manner in

 14   which this commitment will take place.

 15           So the question is, it sounds like you're going

 16   a little bit beyond the federal standard in that you

 17   will not accept 111s and 1232s during the phaseout

 18   schedule?

 19      A.   Yes.  We're saying the federal standard is

 20   immediately in effect for this facility, and so -- and

 21   the ability to manage the phaseout within the rest of

 22   your fleet, it can happen elsewhere, but for this

 23   facility, it will be the federal standard.

 24      Q.   Okay.  And will you accept that as a regulatory

 25   condition imposed by the State of Washington?
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  1      A.   So we've made that commitment.  So if the EFSEC

  2   or council were to say, yes, we want you to memorialize

  3   that decision, we would be glad to memorialize that

  4   decision.

  5      Q.   And a condition of your permit for this

  6   facility?

  7      A.   That's correct.

  8               MR. POTTER:  Okay, thank you.

  9               JUDGE NOBLE:  Thank you, Mr. Potter.

 10               Are there any other questions from the

 11   opponents' side?

 12               Questions from Mr. Derr?

 13

 14                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

 15   BY MR. DERR:

 16      Q.   Mr. Casey, just one.

 17           I'm going to try to go back to the discussion

 18   about indemnifications and which way it goes.  So let me

 19   pose to you, if I may, a hypothetical scenario to see if

 20   that helps you answer the question of who would

 21   indemnify whom.

 22           So if the oil were being loaded by Tesoro

 23   employees under a service contract on a marine vessel

 24   and there were to be negligence, there were to be an

 25   incident, and I realize that doesn't happen, but ride
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  1   with me that suppose that were to happen.

  2           Would you expect in that scenario under the

  3   service contract that Tesoro, because of its employee's

  4   negligence performing the marine loading operation,

  5   would indemnify the JV if they're found liable?

  6      A.   Yes.  Tesoro would take accountability in this

  7   situation, yes.

  8      Q.   So in that case, that's a scenario where --

  9      A.   That's a scenario where -- (Court reporter

 10   interruption.)

 11      Q.   We're talking over each other so we've got to do

 12   it one at a time.

 13           So that's a scenario where Tesoro would

 14   indemnify the JV?

 15      A.   Yes, sir.

 16               MR. DERR:  Thank you.  No further questions.

 17               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Casey, thank you for your

 18   testimony.  You're not excused as a witness, though.  I

 19   think there may be some questions for you.  Mr. Derr and

 20   some opponent's counsel may want to talk with you.  It's

 21   possible you may come back for more testimony.

 22               MR. DERR:  Your Honor, if I might, I have

 23   some questions about the scope of that.  I'm not sure we

 24   need to do it on the record with council members

 25   present, although I'm happy to do that if you prefer,
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  1   but I need to have better understanding of whether this

  2   is now a deposition of Mr. Casey on anything or on

  3   solely the topics which were the first three or four

  4   questions of his testimony that counsel objected to.

  5               I'd like to understand what the scope of

  6   that is and I'd like to understand how we do it, whether

  7   that's a private conversation, is that a court-reported

  8   conversation.  I'd like to know what's expected.

  9               JUDGE NOBLE:  Right.  I am not ordering that

 10   there be a deposition of this witness.  I'm just

 11   reaffirming the original intention that there be

 12   informal discovery between the parties, and it seems to

 13   have not quite taken place in this instance with regard

 14   to those first questions you were asking, that line of

 15   questioning.

 16               It would be my intention that the

 17   questioning of this witness should extend only to --

 18   would have extended only to what the expected testimony

 19   was going to be in general areas of inquiry.  So I don't

 20   think there should be wide-ranging questioning on this

 21   witness.  If you have problems I think we can take care

 22   of it off the record and come back in.  We need to

 23   proceed with the next witness.  Why don't you informally

 24   without a court reporter meet in a room and give the

 25   opponent side the opportunity to ask whatever questions
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  1   they deem appropriate.  If you think they're not

  2   appropriate or going beyond what this order is, then you

  3   can come back in and we'll resolve it then.  I'm hoping

  4   you'll be able to --

  5               MR. DERR:  And, again, just so I'm clear, so

  6   it's that first set of questions --

  7               JUDGE NOBLE:  Yes.

  8               MR. DERR:  It's not additional questions on

  9   insurance, assets, et cetera, it's just that first set?

 10               JUDGE NOBLE:  There have been -- yes.  There

 11   have been questions about insurance and assets and

 12   there's been the opportunity to cross-examine on those

 13   matters.  So it was what I viewed as the surprise aspect

 14   of the extent of the testimony at the beginning of his

 15   testimony here today that seemed to surprised the

 16   opponents, and the normal remedy for that is additional

 17   informal discovery.

 18               MR. DERR:  All right, thank you.

 19               JUDGE NOBLE:  Are there questions on the

 20   opponent side about this?

 21               MS. BRIMMER:  No, Your Honor.

 22               JUDGE NOBLE:  All right, good.  So we'll

 23   proceed to the next witness.

 24               Actually, it's a good time for a break.  So

 25   we will be in recess for 15 minutes until 11:05.



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 2060
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  2               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Johnson, would you call

  3   your next witness.

  4               MR. JOHNSON:  I'm sorry, just briefly, we

  5   have resolved with opposing counsel the issues related

  6   to Mr. Casey's testimony, and at this point I think

  7   we've agreed he won't need to be recalled.

  8               MS. BRIMMER:  That's correct, Your Honor.

  9   They're going to supply a little bit of additional

 10   information to us that we requested.  And then we just

 11   agreed that opponents can have some additional latitude

 12   in their case as necessary to address the issue rather

 13   than giving an informal deposition or recalling

 14   Mr. Casey.

 15               JUDGE NOBLE:  Excellent.  Thank you for your

 16   efforts.  Thank you.

 17               Mr. Johnson, would you call your next

 18   witness.

 19               MR. KISIELIUS:  Your Honor, I'll be

 20   questioning the next witness.

 21               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Kisielius, sorry.

 22               MR. KISIELIUS:  That's okay.  The applicant

 23   would like to call Greg Rhoads.

 24                         GREG RHOADS,

 25      having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:
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  2   BY MR. KISIELIUS:

  3      Q.   Mr. Rhoads, could you please state and spell

  4   your name for the record.

  5      A.   My name is Greg Rhoads.  G-r-e-g, last name

  6   R-h-o-a-d-s.

  7      Q.   And can you describe your occupation?

  8      A.   I'm the president and principal consultant for

  9   Greg Rhoads and Associates, Incorporated.

 10      Q.   And what types of projects do you and your firm

 11   work on?

 12      A.   We're a full-service health safety environmental

 13   consulting company.  We specialize in projects for the

 14   chemical refining and transportation sectors.

 15      Q.   Okay.  And digging into that in a little bit

 16   more detail, do you work with railroads?

 17      A.   We do.  We work with rail carriers, we work with

 18   bulk motor carriers, trucks.  We work at chemical

 19   plants, terminal facilities, refineries, those type of

 20   activities.

 21      Q.   How about local governments?

 22      A.   We do provide that service.  Oftentimes

 23   associated with our other projects we're called upon to

 24   deliver training to local emergency response groups.  I

 25   also, separate from my industrial work, I do work with
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  1   municipal governments for emergency response planning to

  2   hazardous materials incidents.

  3      Q.   Thank you.  And before your time with Greg

  4   Rhoads and Associates, what other emergency response

  5   experience do you have?

  6      A.   I entered the emergency response profession in

  7   1977 as a volunteer firefighter/EMT in Pennsylvania.

  8   Subsequently I was with Prince Georges County Fire and

  9   Rescue in metropolitan Washington D.C. as a

 10   firefighter/EMT, and also a member of the county's

 11   hazardous materials response team.

 12           After I left PG County, I was a state hazardous

 13   materials response officer for the Commonwealth of

 14   Virginia with what was then the Department of Emergency

 15   Services.  Currently that agency is called the Virginia

 16   Department of Emergency Management.  During my time with

 17   Emergency Services, as I said, I was hired as a

 18   hazardous materials officer.  I was promoted to the

 19   response supervisor for HAZMAT response throughout the

 20   Commonwealth of Virginia.

 21           After my time with Virginia, I was employed by

 22   CSX Transportation, a major Class 1 rail carrier in the

 23   East Coast.  I was hired as a hazardous materials

 24   manager charged with hazardous materials response to

 25   rail incidents within a six-state area.  I was promoted
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  1   to senior manager where I had response -- oversight for

  2   our entire system.  And ultimately I served as the

  3   director of chemical safety for CSX.

  4      Q.   Do you have any rail operational experience

  5   beyond the HAZMAT-specific piece you just described?

  6      A.   I do.  During my initial assignment in the field

  7   in Richmond, Virginia, as a hazardous materials manager,

  8   I was covered by the operating rules.  That's the set of

  9   safety rules and operational rules that govern the

 10   movement of trains throughout the system.  I was

 11   involved in teaching operational rules classes to

 12   engineers and conductors and I was qualified as a

 13   transportation officer.

 14      Q.   How about, have you published any books or

 15   articles in your area of expertise?

 16      A.   I have.  My primary publication is the Emergency

 17   Responder's Guide to Railroad Incidents, published in

 18   2007 by Red Hat Publishing.  Associated with that

 19   publication was an instructor's package and

 20   instructional package for use by local emergency

 21   responders.  I've written articles and pieces in the

 22   trade press for rail and chemical operations.

 23      Q.   We're going to get into the topic of first

 24   responder training, so just to -- have you been involved

 25   in any training of first responders directly?
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  1      A.   Yes, extensively.  One of my clients is a Class

  2   1 rail carrier.  I'm one of their lead instructors for

  3   providing outreach training throughout their system to

  4   local emergency responders including response to crude

  5   oil incidents.  Again, as I said, a portion of my

  6   business is also providing training associated with

  7   client projects.  I've been involved with the design,

  8   construction, and startup of several bulk unit train

  9   facilities that involved crude oil and ethanol, and we

 10   provided training to emergency responders in those

 11   communities.

 12      Q.   Okay.  And in preparation for your testimony

 13   today, have you had the chance to review the prefiled

 14   testimony of the intervenor witnesses on the topic of

 15   rail safety and facility safety?

 16      A.   I have.  I have reviewed a number of prefiled

 17   testimonies.  The most applicable documents that I've

 18   reviewed are the prefile of Michael Hildebrand on behalf

 19   of the City of Vancouver, Michael Hildebrand on the

 20   behalf of the City of Spokane.  I've reviewed

 21   Mr. Chipkevich's testimony, I've reviewed Dr. Millar's

 22   testimony extensively.  I've reviewed testimony from the

 23   Sheriff of Clark County, from several of the tribal

 24   witnesses.  I've reviewed information from the BakerRisk

 25   report.  I've looked at information supplied by
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  1   Vancouver Energy on the design of their facility.  I've

  2   reviewed the fire protection report that was done.

  3           There are a number of others, but I'm sorry, off

  4   the top of my head I can't speak to them.

  5      Q.   And, Mr. Rhoads, did you yourself present

  6   prefiled written testimony?

  7      A.   I did.

  8               MR. DERR:  And for the council's benefit,

  9   Mr. Rhoads' CV is Exhibit 353.

 10   BY MR. DERR:

 11      Q.   I want to start with some overarching questions

 12   about the regulatory framework.  I believe there's some

 13   intervenor testimony about the adequacy of that

 14   regulatory framework governing rail transportation.  So

 15   I'd like you to start, if you could, with a brief

 16   overview kind of at a higher level of the regulatory

 17   framework that governs the transportation of hazardous

 18   materials by rail.

 19      A.   Okay.  The regulatory framework for

 20   transportation of hazardous materials is quite

 21   extensive.  It is housed within the U.S. Department of

 22   Transportation.  Within the U.S. Department of

 23   Transportation there are different agencies assigned

 24   with components of transportation regulations.

 25           Kind of the overarching umbrella organization or
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  1   agency, if you will, is the Pipeline Hazardous Materials

  2   Safety Administration, or PHMSA, P-H-M-S-A.  PHMSA is

  3   charged with developing regulations with regard to the

  4   classification of materials as a hazardous material and

  5   then subsequently classification into one of the nine

  6   DOT hazard classes.

  7           PHMSA promulgates the regulations regarding

  8   development of shipping documents, proper shipping

  9   descriptions, proper classification of materials, how

 10   they're described, and the various modes of

 11   transcription.  Placarding requirements are promulgated

 12   by PHMSA as are marking container specifications from

 13   five-gallon pails through tank trucks through railcars

 14   are promulgated by PHMSA.

 15           Within each mode of transportation, the

 16   Department of Transportation has specific agencies set

 17   up.  For rail transportation, that's overseen by the

 18   Federal Railroad Administration.  The Federal Railroad

 19   Administration is charged with overall rail safety.

 20   That's a broader topic than just hazardous materials,

 21   but it ties in to the hazardous materials issue in terms

 22   of their regulations for track and engineering

 23   specifications.  There are requirements for track

 24   inspections, there are requirements for signaling and

 25   communication, for mode of power, that is, locomotives
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  1   for the operation of the trains over the tracks, as well

  2   as a component that is the hazardous materials portion

  3   by rail.

  4      Q.   And you've mentioned the U.S. Department of

  5   Transportation component.  Is there a Department of

  6   Homeland Services component to the regulation of

  7   hazardous materials?

  8      A.   I think you're referring to the Department of

  9   Homeland Security.

 10      Q.   Sure.  Excuse me.

 11      A.   There is a portion of hazardous materials

 12   transport regulations that are not overseen directly by

 13   DOT.  What you're referring to is the set of regulations

 14   that the Department of Homeland Security has promulgated

 15   in terms of the handling of toxic inhalation of

 16   hazardous materials, TIH, or poison inhalation

 17   materials, PIH explosives, and other types of highly

 18   hazardous materials.

 19           The Department of Homeland Security has

 20   established a definition referred to as a high threat

 21   urban area, HTUA, and they've promulgated regulations

 22   with regard to routing and planning of movement of those

 23   high hazardous materials through the HTUAs.  The

 24   Department of Homeland Security also has regulations in

 25   place regarding the handoff between the shipper, the
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  1   carrier, and then the final consignee of that material.

  2           So that's kind of the extent of DHS's

  3   transportation.

  4      Q.   And is crude oil one of those materials that's

  5   been identified as -- you described TIH, PIH explosives?

  6   Does it fit in that category?

  7      A.   It does not.  Currently it's not on their list.

  8      Q.   How are the regulations you've just described

  9   enforced?

 10      A.   The Federal Railroad Administration has

 11   approximately 400 inspectors that operate nationwide

 12   conducting subject matter-specific inspections.  As I

 13   said, there's locomotive or mode of power inspectors,

 14   there's track inspectors, bridge inspectors, hazardous

 15   materials inspectors, signal inspectors.  So their

 16   inspectors are throughout the rail network conducting a

 17   variety of inspections.  On any given day a large Class

 18   1 rail carrier like CSX may have a dozen or two dozen

 19   inspectors somewhere on their property conducting some

 20   form of inspection.

 21           In many states, states also have rail inspectors

 22   that are inspecting to the federal regulations within

 23   their state.  To my understanding, Washington state does

 24   perform some rail inspections within their jurisdiction.

 25      Q.   So with that regulatory context I want to switch
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  1   to a different topic.  Just again, more for context and

  2   background, there's been some testimony about deliveries

  3   of crude-by-rail as a new phenomenon.  So I want to ask

  4   you more generally, how long have flammable liquids like

  5   crude oil been transported by rail?

  6      A.   Crude oil was actually one of the first

  7   hazardous materials transported in bulk by rail.  With

  8   the discovery of oil in Western Pennsylvania in the

  9   1850s, 1860 timeframe, the crude oil was transported out

 10   of that area by rail to larger metropolitan areas.

 11           Previous to the discovery of oil there and the

 12   use of rail, all liquids that were transported by rail

 13   were shipped basically in wooden barrels.  So because of

 14   that and the volumes that were coming out, railcars or

 15   tank cars were developed to handle that crude oil that

 16   was coming out of Western Pennsylvania, and then used

 17   for illumination.  Prior to the discovery of crude oil

 18   it was whale oil for illumination so it supplanted that.

 19   The crude oil coming out was handled in unit trains, if

 20   you will, at that time of these new type tank cars.

 21      Q.   You mentioned unit trains generally.  How long

 22   have unit trains been used in rail service?

 23      A.   Well, a unit train can describe any train that

 24   has a large block of a single commodity.  So from that

 25   perspective, the railroads have been operating unit
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  1   trains for well over a hundred years in the form of the

  2   coal trains that operate in terms of grain trains.  You

  3   can have a unit train of automobiles, you can have unit

  4   trains of molt sulfur, potash, of a number of

  5   commodities.  Unit train, again, refers to a large block

  6   of a single commodity handled by a train.

  7      Q.   Okay.  How about unit trains used to move

  8   flammable liquids; how long has that been happening?

  9      A.   Well, again, with the amount of crude oil coming

 10   out of the original finds in Western Pennsylvania, we

 11   would be looking at excess of 150 years, we've seen unit

 12   trains of crude oil used extensively during World War II

 13   when marine transportation was unsafe due to global

 14   hostilities.  So throughout the U.S. unit trains were

 15   used to move fuels very commonly.

 16      Q.   Let's focus on rail incidents.  I think there's

 17   a lot of testimony we're going to be talking about over

 18   the next couple of minutes about the ability of first

 19   responders to address an incident, a rail incident.  I

 20   want to start with basic concepts again.

 21           And I know you've described this in your

 22   prefiled testimony, so at a higher level can you

 23   describe the different categories of incidents involving

 24   a tank car that a first responder might need to address?

 25      A.   Sure.  In my testimony I discuss five different
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  1   types of incidents.  The first incident is referred to

  2   as a non-accidental release, or an NAR.  A

  3   non-accidental release represents by number the most

  4   common hazardous materials incident that we see in the

  5   rail industry.  A non-accidental release is a case where

  6   a product is released from a railcar due to some action

  7   other than an accident.  That means the railcar has not

  8   sustained physical damage from an accident, has not been

  9   derailed, a product is released from the car.  And

 10   typically we see that that's from a loose or an

 11   unsecured valve or fitting on the railcar.  Those type

 12   of NAR incidents are most often identified in a yard or

 13   a terminal, they involve small amounts of material being

 14   released, and they can be readily corrected by

 15   tightening the valve or fitting or some other

 16   intervention.

 17           The second type of incident that I discussed is

 18   a grade crossing accident involving a train.  Grade

 19   crossing accident would be those locations where, either

 20   a public crossing or a private crossing where a vehicle

 21   fouls the track.  That means it's within the limits of

 22   the train.  If they foul the track and the train is

 23   coming by, there can be an impact.  The grade crossing

 24   accidents typically do not involve damage to the tank

 25   equipment, it's primarily the locomotives that would be
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  1   involved.

  2           You could have a crossing accident that would

  3   lead to the third type of incident that I discuss, and

  4   that is a derailment without a release.  This would be a

  5   case of where the railcar or a number of railcars could

  6   come off of the rail, that is, the wheel-rail interface

  7   is interrupted, the railcar derails.  We could see the

  8   railcar remaining in what we call an upright and in-line

  9   type of orientation where no mechanical damage has

 10   occurred to the tank itself, no release of product.

 11           The fourth type of category that we talked about

 12   is a derailment with a release.  And in that type of

 13   derailment we would see the railcar leaving the

 14   rail-wheel interface.  The car may be overturned, it may

 15   be upside down or in a number of conditions.  And as a

 16   result of the derailment, product may be released from

 17   the car either from a loss of integrity of the tank due

 18   to a puncture or loss of integrity due to a valve or

 19   fitting.  In that case we could have product spilled on

 20   the ground but not necessarily have a fire.  All

 21   derailments with crude oil do not necessarily involve

 22   fire.  A derailment with a release with no ignition

 23   source, we would have the environmental spill to deal

 24   with.

 25           The fifth category would be that derailment with
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  1   a release with product out and the product ignited due

  2   to an external ignition source and having a derailment

  3   with release with fire.

  4      Q.   Just to be clear, is the potential for these

  5   types of incidents unique to the trains that are serving

  6   this project?

  7      A.   No, they are not.

  8      Q.   Also in your testimony -- now you've described

  9   the different categories of potential incidents.  You

 10   also described the framework for a response.  And if you

 11   could again at a higher level just summarize, I think

 12   you referred to it as the acronym is the D.E.C.I.D.E

 13   approach to an incident?

 14      A.   In my testimony I discuss use of an emergency

 15   response tool that's used commonly throughout the

 16   hazardous materials response community.  It uses as

 17   acronym the word D.E.C.I.D.E.  The D.E.C.I.D.E. model or

 18   tool is intended to give first responders with a

 19   framework for decision-making and to recognize what it

 20   is that they're dealing with and how they can plan their

 21   response.

 22      Q.   Can you describe what are the steps in the

 23   D.E.C.I.D.E. model?

 24      A.   Sure.  The "D" stands for detect the presence

 25   and quantity of a hazardous material.  That's one of the
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  1   key components is to identify what it is that you're

  2   dealing with and how much of it that you have facing you

  3   in the incident.

  4           The "E" is to estimate likely harm without

  5   intervention, that is, to look at where the incident is

  6   occurring, what the situation is, and what truly are the

  7   risks not only to a community but also to the responders

  8   if you choose to do no intervention.  And I'm going to

  9   stress non-intervention is not being you're not doing

 10   anything, you're taking a more prudent course.

 11           The "C" is to choose your response objectives.

 12   Response objectives always include protection of life

 13   safety, that is, of the community but also of the

 14   responders.  It's protection of the environment, it's

 15   protection of resources and infrastructure, and lastly,

 16   it's to restore the system back to its normal state.  So

 17   choose your objectives.  It always needs to be life

 18   safety first.

 19           The "I" stands for identify your action options,

 20   that is, what is it that you're going to do to support

 21   those objectives.  Is it suppression, is it pooling, is

 22   it evacuation, is it a combination of those things.

 23           The "D" stands for do your best option based

 24   upon the resources that you have available to you and

 25   your community.
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  1           And the "E" is to evaluate your progress

  2   continually towards resolving the incident, always

  3   keeping the objectives in mind of life safety.

  4      Q.   And is this D.E.C.I.D.E. model that you've just

  5   described a widely used tool?

  6      A.   It is widely used.  It was first developed by

  7   Ludwig Benner of the National Transportation Safety

  8   Board back in the '70s.  It's been taught in numerous

  9   classes and it's included in most hazardous materials

 10   texts.

 11      Q.   Okay.  Let's focus on the first "D," the detect

 12   piece.  What are detection clues?  What does a first

 13   responder look to in order to detect the presence of

 14   hazardous materials?

 15      A.   You used the word "clues" and that's exactly the

 16   terminology that we used.  There are a number of

 17   detection clues that we teach responders to look for and

 18   to listen for any hazardous materials incident, not just

 19   an incident like rail.

 20           The first clue that we discuss is occupancy and

 21   location.  And occupancy and location refers to, for

 22   example, if a first responder got a call for an unknown

 23   medical emergency and an exterminator.  The occupancy

 24   clue would be that there's pesticides at that type of

 25   facility so they should be thinking about the
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  1   possibility of exposure of pesticides at that location.

  2           If they got a call for an incident involving a

  3   train at let's say Main Street in a community, they know

  4   that hazardous materials are transported by rail, they

  5   know where the rail is in their community.  So again,

  6   the occupancy and location is a clue to them before they

  7   ever leave the station.

  8           We also instruct another clue is to look at

  9   container shape.  The shape of the container will give

 10   you information about the size of the material, of the

 11   quantity that can be contained.  The shape of the

 12   container can also give you clues about what type of

 13   material you could have.  Is it a pressure type rail

 14   tank car where it would be a propane, an ammonia or some

 15   other type of uncompressed gas.  Is it a liquids tank

 16   car where you would be dealing with a liquid product.

 17   Is it a covered hopper that could be possibly an

 18   oxidizer in a solid form.  So occupancy and location,

 19   container shape.

 20           We then recommend that they look for placards

 21   and labels.  Placards are the large devices, 10 and 3/4

 22   inches square on point, that are required to be on both

 23   sides and both ends of any bulk hazardous materials

 24   shipment.  That's by rail or by truck.  The placard

 25   gives emergency responders a number of informational
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  1   data elements that they can use to determine what it is

  2   they're dealing with.

  3           Subsequent to that is shipping papers.  The

  4   shipping paper example would be the train consist that

  5   would be maintained by both the engineer and the

  6   conductor on the train that would have a listing with

  7   the proper DOT elements of what was in each car in the

  8   train.

  9           Another clue that is -- that we currently have

 10   available, which is relatively new on the scene,

 11   reflects new technology, and that's a program that is

 12   called AskRail.  AskRail is an application that an

 13   emergency responder can get.  You have to sign up

 14   through a rail carrier.  It's downloaded to your

 15   smartphone.  With AskRail, an emergency responder can

 16   get realtime information about what's in each car, so if

 17   they enter the car initial and number, that's the unique

 18   identifier for each railcar in North America, the

 19   responder can see what's in that car.

 20           There's a higher level of access authority that

 21   can be granted to chief officers, to emergency planning

 22   representatives, and that gives them the ability to

 23   enter in, again, a car initial and number, but they can

 24   get the entire consist for a train, where that car is

 25   at.  So again, another detection clue in the toolbox for
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  1   the responder to identify what they're dealing with and

  2   what quantities.

  3      Q.   Does the unit train mode of delivery itself make

  4   this first step any different than a manifest train, for

  5   example?

  6      A.   I believe that it does for a number of reasons.

  7   Again, in a unit train type operation every car in that

  8   train has the same commodity, so to look up each

  9   individual car to see what that car contains would

 10   really be unnecessary, as opposed to a manifest train

 11   which can be made up of a variety of shipments, both

 12   hazardous and non-hazardous commodities.

 13           It's very common practice and currently

 14   allowable that we can have different tank cars with

 15   different commodities in the same train and beside each

 16   other in the train.  So if we had a manifest train that

 17   was involved in an incident, it would be very prudent

 18   for the responders to look up the information on each

 19   individual car to see what that car contained.

 20           It further becomes compounded as a problem if

 21   those cars are breached and if we have that situation

 22   where we have derailment with a release and now we have

 23   potentially different products mixed, both hazardous and

 24   non-hazardous commodities mixing.  The response to that

 25   would be much more complex and difficult.  So a unit
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  1   train is easier to figure out what you're dealing with.

  2      Q.   Okay.

  3               MR. KISIELIUS:  Ms. Mastro, could you please

  4   pull up Exhibit 196.

  5   BY MR. KISIELIUS:

  6      Q.   As she's pulling that up, I think your testimony

  7   and the opponent's testimony refers to the Emergency

  8   Response Guidebook.  Can you describe what that is and

  9   how it helps through the D.E.C.I.D.E. model?

 10      A.   The Emergency Response Guidebook, also referred

 11   to as the DOT book or oftentimes the orange book.  And

 12   I'm sorry, I don't --

 13      Q.   It'll be coming up.  If you want to look at Tab

 14   13.  I should say you've got your testimony, some

 15   exhibits we're going to be referring to, and all of the

 16   opponents' testimony in two binders in front of you.

 17      A.   Okay.

 18      Q.   This particular exhibit is Tab 13.  It's on the

 19   screen now too.

 20      A.   Yes.  The Emergency Response Guidebook, I am

 21   familiar with this and have extensive experience with

 22   this.  The Emergency Response Guidebook was first

 23   published by the Department of Transportation strictly

 24   for U.S. operations or U.S. transportation of hazardous

 25   materials back in the '70s.  It's evolved now to include
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  1   both Transport Canada and the Mexican government, so

  2   it's referred to as the North American Emergency

  3   Response Guidebook.  Again, in the vernacular we call it

  4   the orange book or the DOT book.

  5           The intent was that this document, this book,

  6   would be in every piece of emergency response

  7   experience -- excuse me, every piece of emergency

  8   response equipment or vehicle nationwide.  During my

  9   time with the Virginia Department of Emergency Services,

 10   we were the responsible agency for distributing these.

 11   We in Virginia at that time would distribute over 12,000

 12   of these throughout the Commonwealth.  And again, the

 13   intent was that every fire truck, every law enforcement

 14   vehicle, every rescue vehicle, and in some cases these

 15   were also on Department of Public Works vehicles or

 16   State Highway Department vehicles.

 17           The Emergency Response Guidebook allows someone

 18   to very quickly access information about what the

 19   product is that could be involved in any type of

 20   hazardous materials incident.  And it does that through

 21   a number of ways.

 22      Q.   I think it would be helpful to walk through how

 23   you'd actually use this document, briefly.  So if you

 24   could tell us --

 25      A.   Okay, I'm sorry, I don't have it on the screen
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  1   that I see.

  2      Q.   You might have to turn around.  But you can

  3   also, if you use that book and you use the page numbers

  4   in the bottom right-hand corner --

  5      A.   Okay.

  6      Q.   -- we could have Ms. Mastro advance it to the

  7   right page so we're all looking at the same thing.

  8      A.   So in my testimony about the detection clues, I

  9   discussed placards and container shape.  If you would go

 10   to Page 8, that's EX0196, dash, a whole bunch of 0s, 8.

 11   There you go.

 12           If all the responder could see was a placard,

 13   they could correspond that placard, or in this case --

 14   can you go lower on that page, please?  In the lower

 15   left on that page are flammable liquid placards.  This

 16   would be the type of basic placard that would be on

 17   these crude oil cars, with the exception that the word

 18   "flammable" would not be there.  In that case there

 19   would be a square with a four-digit number.

 20           But if all you could see was a red placard that

 21   had a 3 at the bottom, that would tell a responder that

 22   it's a flammable liquid involved.  And the number 127

 23   that's circled would refer the responder to the

 24   yellow -- or excuse me, not yellow, the orange pages

 25   which provide them with specific response information.
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  1   If all the responder could see was the container

  2   shape -- now if you could pull up 00010.

  3           If all the responder could see was the container

  4   shape like we see here, it would tell them, in this case

  5   the low pressure tank car, that would refer them to

  6   guide 131 which would give them basic response

  7   information.

  8           If the responder could see the four-digit

  9   identification number on the placard, and if you will go

 10   to -- let's go with a 1267 for crude oil.  If you would

 11   go to exhibit, ends in 28, here we have an example of

 12   the yellow pages of the Emergency Response Guidebook.

 13   In the yellow pages, products are listed numerically by

 14   the ID number.  That ID number refers to the United

 15   Nations number, the UN number or the North American

 16   number, NA number for some commodities.  And that's the

 17   four-digit number you see on the center of placards for

 18   hazardous materials that are shipped in bulk.  So we see

 19   for 1267, we see product name is petroleum crude oil,

 20   and it refers the responder to a particular guide

 21   number, in this case guide 128.

 22           Now, you'll notice previously on the placard

 23   page and also on the container shape page, it was

 24   referring to different guides.  As we get more specific

 25   information, the guide becomes more specific that they
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  1   would use.  So if all we knew was the UN number, we'd go

  2   to the yellow pages.

  3           The blue pages work very similarly.  And if you

  4   want to jump to -- for example, if we went to the blue

  5   pages, Page 139, please, we would see -- you're going to

  6   need to scroll down because petroleum crude oil is the

  7   last entry in the left-hand column at the bottom of this

  8   page.  Petroleum crude oil.  So if we knew the UN number

  9   we would go to the yellow pages, if we knew the product

 10   name we'd go to blue pages.  Again, it refers us to

 11   guide 128.

 12           So if we could go to guide 128, which is 196 in

 13   the exhibit, this is an example of information that

 14   would be available for a responder.  There are two pages

 15   of information.  On the left-hand page it starts with

 16   the primary product hazard, and in this case the primary

 17   hazard is fire or explosion.  It's listed as a highly

 18   flammable liquid and gives instructions for how to

 19   respond to that.  There's information about health,

 20   further down public safety, protective clothing,

 21   evacuation.  And then further on the next page, 197, is

 22   more information about what to do for fire, what to do

 23   for a spill or leak, or what to do for first aid.

 24           So the Emergency Response Guidebook is a very

 25   basic tool commonly used throughout U.S., in fact used
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  1   throughout North America, for first responders to

  2   identify what it is they're dealing with and then some

  3   practical guidance on the correct response.

  4      Q.   Okay.  And we're going to get into the details,

  5   I think, of some of these response measures.  I want to

  6   focus on one at the outset, though.

  7           What does guide 128 tell you about the need to

  8   evacuate in response to a crude oil incident?

  9      A.   Guide 128 on Exhibit 196, for a large spill,

 10   downwind evacuation for at least 1,000 feet, again

 11   downwind.  For a fire involving a railcar or tank trunk,

 12   they recommend isolating for a half a mile in all

 13   directions.

 14      Q.   So I noticed when we were looking at the lists

 15   of the different products, that some of them were

 16   highlighted in green.  Is that meant to create a

 17   different approach with respect to evacuations?

 18      A.   Yes, it is.  If we go back to the yellow page

 19   for crude oil, that was Page 28.  So on Page 28, we'll

 20   see in the left-hand column there, there are several

 21   products that are highlighted in green.  Products that

 22   are highlighted in green have been identified as

 23   products that have some pretty significant or severe

 24   health risks.  The green is intended to give a responder

 25   with an immediate clue that it is a material that's
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  1   going to require immediate evacuation before you would

  2   even start looking at the guide.  At the end of the

  3   Emergency Response Guidebook is a table of evacuation

  4   and isolation distances that correspond to those

  5   commodities that are highlighted in green.

  6           So you can see on the Page 28 where we're at,

  7   crude oil is not highlighted in green.  It hasn't been

  8   identified by the DOT as having a high toxicity or an

  9   immediate health risk.  There are other commodities that

 10   are much higher health risks if released that you would

 11   want to begin evacuation for.

 12      Q.   And does that mean the response doesn't involve

 13   evacuation for crude oil?

 14      A.   No.  A response to a crude oil incident may

 15   involve a -- may very well involve an evacuation, as is

 16   recommended in guide 128.  However, evacuation may not

 17   be the first consideration for a responder.  For those

 18   commodities that are highlighted in green, they have a

 19   very low toxicity, and low toxicity means it doesn't

 20   take a whole lot of this chemical, if you're exposed to

 21   it, that would give severe health risks to anybody

 22   exposed.  So for those commodities that are highlighted

 23   in green, you want to begin evacuations very quickly and

 24   immediately.

 25      Q.   Okay.  I think we're going to refer back to this
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  1   as we talk a little bit more about some specific

  2   incidents, but I want to ask you a couple questions

  3   first about rail incident response and preparedness.

  4           So Dr. Millar and several other witnesses talk

  5   about the ability of local responders to prepare for and

  6   respond to a rail incident?

  7           What can emergency responders do in general to

  8   prepare for a rail incident involving release of crude

  9   oil?

 10      A.   I think that one of the first steps that any

 11   community, regardless of your capability, can do is to

 12   undertake that preplanning action.  And part of that

 13   preplanning action is to identify where in your

 14   jurisdiction you have active rail tracks, to identify

 15   where they are, where access points are for you, the

 16   presence of sensitive receptors, whether they be

 17   environmental receptors or public receptors near the

 18   rail tracks.  It's to identify who the rail carrier is

 19   that owns the tracks and has operating authority over

 20   the tracks, how do you get in touch with that rail

 21   operator, what are the 24-hour contacts.

 22           There's an opportunity to reach out and work

 23   with the rail carrier to provide flow study information

 24   on what commodities are going through your jurisdiction,

 25   in what quantities so you could begin to prepare there.
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  1   Looking at your response capability as well as the

  2   response capability of other mutual aid type of

  3   jurisdiction agreements that you have.

  4           So all of that preplanning can help a community

  5   prepare for an incident.  The preplanning includes

  6   consideration of scenarios where you can do a tabletop

  7   scenario with a map or with other resources to say,

  8   okay, what if this event happens in this location; how

  9   are we going to respond, what would we do, who would we

 10   call, what forces or resources could we bring to bear on

 11   this.

 12           So by doing those type of preincident scenarios,

 13   you can identify weaknesses or opportunities for

 14   improvement.  You can also develop some protocols and

 15   establish those decisions of what we're going to focus

 16   on first given an incident and particular location so

 17   you don't have to do that, you know, in the stress of

 18   the incident.

 19      Q.   And do you believe that first responders in

 20   jurisdictions should be taking these steps given the

 21   absence of this project?

 22      A.   I do.

 23      Q.   Let's focus in on the couple of specific

 24   locations.  Have you reviewed -- you said you reviewed

 25   the testimony of Mr. Hildebrand regarding Spokane?
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  1      A.   I have.

  2      Q.   Okay.  Do you recall his testimony about his

  3   work in 2014 in which he evaluated the City's ability to

  4   respond to incidents?

  5      A.   In the prefiled testimony for this case, he

  6   references previous work that he did in 2014.  I have

  7   not seen his work from 2014, I can only go by his

  8   comments in the prefile.  But yes, I did read them.

  9      Q.   And do you recall what he said in 2014 about the

 10   City's ability to respond to an incident?

 11      A.   Based upon his assessment in 2014, he felt that

 12   the City of Spokane had minimal response capability for

 13   a large scale rail incident.

 14      Q.   Okay.  And did Mr. Hildebrand offer the City of

 15   Spokane any ways to improve their response capability?

 16      A.   He did.  As I recall, in his prefiled testimony

 17   there was a list of I believe there was eight

 18   recommendations that were made to the City in 2014.

 19      Q.   Okay.  And do you recall what those were?  If

 20   you need to refer to them there's a binder.  Let me try

 21   to cut to the chase.

 22           Do you know or do you recall whether

 23   Mr. Hildebrand testified to the City's progress towards

 24   those eight recommendations?

 25      A.   In his testimony Mr. Hildebrand said that the
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  1   City had made progress towards all eight and it was

  2   expected that they would complete all of the eight

  3   recommendations in 2016.

  4      Q.   And do you recall of his recommendations, were

  5   there any that were unique to the City?

  6      A.   As I recall, without taking the time to look --

  7      Q.   Feel free, I don't mean to cut you short, if you

  8   need to refresh your recollection.

  9      A.   Of the majority of those recommendations, I do

 10   recall that he discussed an improvement for the -- for

 11   Spokane law enforcement as well as some other agencies

 12   to get some incident management training or what's

 13   referred to as NIMS training, that's National Incident

 14   Management System, used for managing large incidents.

 15   That's a very sound recommendation for any jurisdiction.

 16           He talks about developing a foam logistics plan.

 17   I think that's sound for any jurisdiction.  Two of the

 18   recommendations specifically that stick out that I

 19   thought were very Spokane-specific, one was to upgrade

 20   the capability of their current command vehicle.  I

 21   don't know what the status of that command vehicle was

 22   or is.  He's testified that it's -- the recommendation

 23   has been closed so I have to believe it's been improved.

 24           Many jurisdictions operate without command type

 25   vehicles.  Command posts are established in a number
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  1   different ways and different resources so that may be

  2   very Spokane-specific.  I believe Recommendation 8 was

  3   that the City should look at Spokane being identified as

  4   an alternative state emergency operations center.  I

  5   think that is very Spokane-specific and would not apply

  6   to this specific case.  But the other recommendations

  7   would apply.

  8      Q.   And are his recommendations uniquely necessary

  9   to respond to an incident involving unit trains

 10   traveling to Vancouver Energy?

 11      A.   Those recommendations are sound for any

 12   hazardous materials response.

 13      Q.   Okay.  To your knowledge does Spokane have a

 14   hazardous response team?

 15      A.   I believe they do.

 16      Q.   And I think switching from Mr. Hildebrand for

 17   just a second, Mr. Schaeffer testifies that they only

 18   have -- they have the only Type 2 hazardous materials

 19   response team in the Spokane area.

 20           Does that present any unique problems to

 21   incident response?

 22      A.   The designation of a Type 2 hazardous materials

 23   response team refers to a definition established by FEMA

 24   for response resources.  It defines their capability and

 25   what that response team can do.  I don't believe that
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  1   that includes all of the resources that would be brought

  2   to bear in the event of a rail-centered incident.  I

  3   believe Mr. Schaeffer is referring to municipal

  4   hazardous materials response teams.  That would be those

  5   fielded by a local government like a fire department or

  6   a fire district.

  7           The BNSF has a large operation in Spokane.  It's

  8   my understanding from a review of their prefiled that

  9   the BNSF has a cadre of approximately 200 hazardous

 10   materials responders throughout their network.  I

 11   believe that there are hazardous materials responders

 12   that work in the Spokane facility.  Also, the BNSF

 13   purports to have spill control trailers or fire control

 14   trailers.  I would believe that given that location they

 15   would have that equipment there as well.

 16           So there's other response capabilities beyond

 17   just a municipal Type 2 team.

 18      Q.   Okay.  Sorry I'm jumping around, but going back

 19   to Mr. Hildebrand's testimony, did you have a chance to

 20   review Mr. Hildebrand's scenarios he identified, I think

 21   three locations that he described as especially

 22   vulnerable?

 23      A.   Yes, I have reviewed those.  I've also

 24   personally -- I've visited those sites and looked myself

 25   at those locations.
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  1      Q.   And do you agree with his conclusion that those

  2   three locations are especially vulnerable?

  3      A.   The current rail traffic through the City of

  4   Spokane is through their downtown metropolitan area.

  5   There are structures and residences close to that line

  6   today.  Whether these -- let me say this.  They

  7   currently have exposure to rail traffic today.  I don't

  8   believe that their exposure is significantly different

  9   from any other metropolitan area in the U.S. with train

 10   traffic through the center of town.

 11      Q.   Do you recall his conclusions about Spokane's

 12   ability to handle an incident?

 13      A.   In his testimony, based upon their

 14   implementation of the recommendations, he currently

 15   believes that they have a capable response capability,

 16   it's adequate.

 17      Q.   I want to switch to a different location.

 18               MR. KISIELIUS:  Your Honor, it always seems

 19   to fall on me to have a witness immediately before

 20   lunch.  We have about, I would guess another 40 minutes

 21   with this witness and I'm prepared to continue if that

 22   would be helpful, but I also observe that it's 12:00.

 23   But if you prefer to take a break now or plow through,

 24   we can finish up.

 25               JUDGE NOBLE:  You didn't say how much time
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  1   you've got, it sounds like a bit of time, maybe at least

  2   a half an hour.

  3               MR. KISIELIUS:  I would say 40 minutes.

  4               JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.  Well, we need to

  5   break, then, for lunch.

  6               MR. KISIELIUS:  I was about to switch to a

  7   different topic.

  8               JUDGE NOBLE:  Good.  Then this is a good

  9   time for break.  Sorry for the break in your

 10   testimony --

 11               THE WITNESS:  I understand.

 12               JUDGE NOBLE:  -- but we need to be off the

 13   record.

 14               (Lunch break.)

 15               JUDGE NOBLE:  You may proceed.

 16   BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 17      Q.   Mr. Rhoads, we were just going to switch to a

 18   different geographic vicinity.  I want to ask you some

 19   questions about the City of Vancouver.

 20           Have you reviewed Mr. Hildebrand's testimony

 21   regarding the emergency response capabilities of the

 22   City of Vancouver?

 23      A.   I have.

 24      Q.   To your knowledge, does Vancouver have a

 25   hazardous response team?
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  1      A.   They do.

  2      Q.   And mutual aid agreements?

  3      A.   They do.

  4      Q.   What does -- do you recall what Mr. Hildebrand

  5   describes as the biggest challenge for Vancouver in

  6   responding to a derailment with release and fire?

  7      A.   In Mr. Hildebrand's testimony he uses as a

  8   yardstick for success the ability to respond and to

  9   mount an offensive fire suppression operation and to

 10   extinguish the fire within one hour of the event.

 11      Q.   And in your opinion is adopting an early

 12   offensive strategy always the best course of action or

 13   the objective of every incident response?

 14      A.   No, it would not.

 15      Q.   What would the alternative be?

 16      A.   The emergency response incident commander will

 17   need to perform a size-up of the situation.  That

 18   size-up is to identify the commodities that he has

 19   involved, again referring to the D.E.C.I.D.E. process,

 20   to identify the quantity or an estimation of the amount

 21   of material that is currently involved or the number of

 22   tank cars in the event -- in the case of a rail

 23   incident.  They also need to take into account what the

 24   location of the incident is, what the immediate

 25   exposures would be.  Again, back to the D.E.C.I.D.E.
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  1   model, the choose your response objectives, the life

  2   safety objective being protection of the public and also

  3   of your responders.

  4           It very may well be that the incident commander

  5   makes a decision to adopt a non-intervention strategy.

  6   That non-intervention strategy could involve conducting

  7   evacuations of threatened or exposed population, it

  8   could be to perform a defensive actions like diking,

  9   damming and diverting to be able to stop the flow of

 10   product.  It could include application of cooling water

 11   to exposed tank cars.  There are a number of things that

 12   the incident commander could do other than an offensive

 13   action in this case.  All of them are sound tactics and

 14   have been used successfully.

 15      Q.   So just to be clear, does the fact that a

 16   defensive or non-intervention approach is the best

 17   option, does that mean that emergency response

 18   capability is inadequate?

 19      A.   No, I don't believe that's the case.  In

 20   reviewing crude oil derailment situations, in a number

 21   of locations smaller communities have effectively dealt

 22   with and handled crude oil incident involving spill and

 23   fire using that one hour to extinguish the fire as the

 24   yardstick.  I don't agree with that.  I personally

 25   measure incidents based upon outcomes, not based upon
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  1   the clock, the outcome being have we protected the

  2   responders, have we protected the community.  We can

  3   replace the cars, we can replace the product, but it's

  4   that life safety, and life and health is number one, and

  5   that's the outcome I would use as a measurement.

  6      Q.   Okay.  What about Mr. Hildebrand's testimony

  7   about the need to be able to respond to an incident

  8   entirely on its own?  And we're talking about the City

  9   here.  Do you agree that the City has to be able to

 10   handle an incident entirely on its own?

 11      A.   No, I would not agree with that assessment at

 12   all.  I think particularly of a rail-centric incident,

 13   that there are a number of key stakeholders that need to

 14   be involved in the response and in the developing of the

 15   tactics and strategy necessary to bring the incident to

 16   a successful conclusion.  Those stakeholders may include

 17   mutual aid resources from other jurisdictions, municipal

 18   responders.  It may involve use of other City assets

 19   including public works, law enforcement.  It could

 20   include and should include interactions with the

 21   railroad and their hazardous materials response

 22   capabilities, and also the response contractors that the

 23   railroad will bring for air toxicological monitoring,

 24   for fire suppression, for control.

 25           So there are a number of resources that would be
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  1   brought to bear and not strictly the City fire

  2   department on their own.

  3      Q.   Let me ask you to explain a little bit more the

  4   notion of mutual aid.

  5           What purpose does a mutual aid agreement serve?

  6   Why do jurisdictions do that?

  7      A.   Well, there's an understanding in the emergency

  8   response community that no community can handle

  9   absolutely everything on their own.  Even if we take

 10   hazardous materials off of the equation here,

 11   large-scale fires, multiple-alarm fires may require a

 12   large commitment of resources from any one jurisdiction.

 13   Mutual aid companies could come into the city to form

 14   backfill for stations where those units were used

 15   someplace else on a large fire.

 16           We see mutual aid commonly used in mass casualty

 17   incidents where we have a large number of people who are

 18   injured requiring transportation to medical facilities.

 19   We see mutual aid commonly used for airports and other

 20   mass transit.  If there was a large scale mass casualty

 21   incident that involved Amtrak coming through the city, I

 22   would imagine that there would be mutual aid resources

 23   that could come support the city as part of that fire

 24   rescue EMS component.

 25      Q.   Okay.  Did you have a chance to review
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  1   Mr. Hildebrand's scenarios in the City of Vancouver?  I

  2   think he had identified two locations.

  3      A.   Yes, I did.

  4      Q.   Have you seen those places first-hand?

  5      A.   I have seen them first-hand, yes.

  6      Q.   So let's first talk about the area in the

  7   vicinity of city hall.  Are you familiar with that?

  8      A.   That would be at Phil Arnold and Columbia?

  9      Q.   Yes.  So let me ask you also, are you familiar

 10   with Mr. Guthrie's testimony to the rail infrastructure

 11   in that location?  Did you see the transcript?

 12      A.   I did see the transcript, I did review it, yes.

 13      Q.   Can you recount what protections are in place in

 14   that location?

 15      A.   From a physical standpoint, the design and

 16   construction of that track from the switch coming off of

 17   the BNSF mainline coming down the grade and into the

 18   port, that area was to be protected with a guardrail,

 19   including the area that we're talking about here, that

 20   bridge over that overpass over the top of Columbia.

 21      Q.   And do you recall Mr. Guthrie's testimony about

 22   the speed that the train would be traveling in that

 23   vicinity?

 24      A.   Well, that's the second component.  The

 25   guardrail would be the physical hardware that would be



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 2099

  1   in place to help to ensure that if a car did derail in

  2   that location, that it would remain upright and in line

  3   and within the footprint of the ties.  It would not be

  4   on the rail but it would be between the rails and the

  5   ties.  And that's what a guardrail is designed to do and

  6   how it performs.

  7           The second thing that I took away from

  8   Mr. Guthrie's testimony and also based upon my

  9   observation of location, the train will be slowed

 10   considerably when it begins to traverse off of the main

 11   line into that switch into the facility.  With that

 12   10-mile-an-hour speed restriction, the train will be

 13   going much slower than 10 miles an hour, I would

 14   estimate in the 5- to 7-mile-an-hour range, because the

 15   requirement would be that the crew be able to stop the

 16   train in half of the range of vision if the track became

 17   obstructed.  That's a railroad operating rule and

 18   commonly applied in this situation.  So the train will

 19   be going much slower.  That's an operational safety in

 20   addition to the hardware safety of the guardrail.

 21      Q.   And so looking at the scenarios, how likely is a

 22   derailment in that location?

 23      A.   Well, in terms of how likely a derailment is in

 24   that location or how likely it is to be -- the type of

 25   derailment that Mr. Hildebrand describes?
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  1      Q.   Maybe we should talk about both.  A derailment

  2   of any kind.

  3      A.   I think the likelihood for a derailment at that

  4   location is a pretty low probability for a number of

  5   factors.  Again, the speed of the train is going to be

  6   very slow.  The train is going to be traversing that new

  7   switch and into new infrastructure into the port.  So we

  8   have good components, good construction, so we're not

  9   looking at worn issues there -- (Court reporter

 10   interruption.) -- worn, wear, w-o-r-n issues associated

 11   with that track.  So the probability of the derailment I

 12   believe is very low at that location.

 13           Now, the second part of that question, a

 14   derailment of the type that Mr. Hildebrand describes in

 15   his testimony, he describes a derailment where tank cars

 16   leave the track bed, come down over the embankment,

 17   suffer severe mechanical damage, breach, and

 18   subsequently catch on fire.  I don't believe that

 19   Mr. Hildebrand takes into account the guardrail that's

 20   installed on that track and the function of the

 21   guardrail.  I don't believe that he's considered the

 22   speed of the train at that location.

 23           So I find the probability of a derailment to be

 24   very low.  And then a subset of that and even much lower

 25   probability would be the type of derailment that he
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  1   described where a railcar would derail and be

  2   subsequent -- to come down the embankment on the other

  3   side.

  4      Q.   Okay.  With that in mind, I want you to assume

  5   that the derailment that he describes actually does

  6   occur.  And he suggests that an incident like that might

  7   not be approachable for eight to 12 hours.

  8           Do you agree that that would be the case?

  9      A.   Each derailment is a little different.  It's

 10   different based upon the number of cars that are

 11   involved, it's different based upon the final position

 12   of those cars, and it's different based upon the amount

 13   of product that would be released from that derailment.

 14   If it was a derailment as he describes with several cars

 15   losing product, other cars being impinged upon by fire,

 16   I don't necessarily agree that it would be

 17   unapproachable for -- I believe he said eight to 12

 18   hours?

 19      Q.   Correct.

 20      A.   I don't agree with that.  Is it possible?  Yes.

 21   But I don't agree with that statement.

 22      Q.   And what about based on your knowledge of other

 23   derailments in places with maybe fewer resources

 24   available immediately?  Have there been derailments of

 25   that size, that that department's resources have been
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  1   able to approach faster than eight to 12 hours?

  2      A.   I think most recently the derailment in Mosier

  3   showed the capabilities and how the incident could be

  4   safely managed.  In Mosier it's my understanding that

  5   the fire was extinguished within 14 hours, and that's in

  6   a location with minimal resources that required a lot of

  7   additional resources to be brought in.  So it wasn't a

  8   case of that it was unapproachable, it was they didn't

  9   have the resources to begin to make that approach.

 10           I think that in Vancouver with the career fire

 11   department that they have, with the foam that's

 12   available, and with other resources, I believe that an

 13   approach could be made quicker.

 14           In the Norfolk Southern derailment in Columbus,

 15   Ohio, multiple car failures, multiple cars impinged upon

 16   by fire, the fire department was able to completely

 17   extinguish that fire within eight hours of the incident.

 18      Q.   And let me ask you just more generally, because

 19   you've been describing this defensive strategy.

 20           Do you have any concerns about utilizing

 21   something like a defensive strategy in the specific

 22   location that Mr. Hildebrand was identifying?

 23      A.   Again, it's going to be largely dependent upon

 24   conditions that the incident commander finds himself

 25   dealing with.  I believe that in the location that he
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  1   discusses, a defensive strategy could be successfully

  2   employed.  The area forms a natural bowl or depression

  3   on the south side of the track opposite of the Phil

  4   Arnold Roadway that he describes.  I believe that if

  5   cars did leave the track structure, that they would be

  6   more likely to go to the south rather than to the north

  7   simply because they're over on that side of the track

  8   bed, that's where the switch would be, that the rail

  9   roadbed would actually form a barrier between city hall

 10   and the rest of the infrastructure in the incident

 11   location.  So I believe that a defensive strategy could

 12   be successfully employed there.

 13      Q.   He describes a phenomena in this hypothetical

 14   scenario that he's painted, something called a

 15   heat-induced thermal tear.  (Court reporter

 16   interruption.)  Head-induced thermal tear.

 17      A.   We would refer to that as a heat-induced tear,

 18   the "heat" and the "thermal" being redundant.

 19      Q.   Redundant, okay.

 20      A.   So you often see that described as a HIT, an

 21   H-I-T, heat-induced tear.  Yes, I'm familiar with that

 22   phenomenon.

 23      Q.   So -- and are you aware of this project's

 24   commitment to utilize DOT-117 tank cars?

 25      A.   I am.
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  1      Q.   And does the use of DOT-117 tank cars, would

  2   that have any bearing on the likelihood of something

  3   like a heat-induced tear occurring?

  4      A.   A heat-induced tear occurs in a tank car when

  5   that particular car is subjected to long-term heating.

  6   The commodity -- the railcar itself has not breached, it

  7   hasn't relieved itself in any way.  So as that product

  8   is heated, it will naturally expand and build up

  9   pressure.  If that pressure cannot be relieved through

 10   the pressure relief device that's required on all the

 11   cars due to size or due to location of the pressure

 12   relief device being not in the vapor space but in the

 13   liquid space of the car, we've seen a phenomenon where

 14   as that pressure rises in the heat on the car, that the

 15   tank car shell will split open, relieving that pressure

 16   inside.

 17           With the DOT-117 car, a couple things, numerous

 18   safety features are in place to prevent that.  Foremost

 19   would be a thicker tank shell, a tank shell of 9/16ths

 20   as opposed to a 7/16th-inch shell on the current Legacy

 21   DOT-111 tank cars.  We also see on the 117 that there's

 22   thermal protection which would be applied to the outside

 23   of the car.  Most Legacy 111 cars don't have thermal

 24   protection.  So the thermal protection prevents that

 25   transfer of heat from an external source to the tank
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  1   shell itself and ultimately to the product.  We also see

  2   on the DOT-117 tank car a larger pressure relief device

  3   that enables the car to relieve that internal pressure

  4   in a larger capacity of pressure to be able to be

  5   released in a shorter period of time.

  6           All of those taken together in the aggregate

  7   will offer protection against the heat-induced tear

  8   phenomenon.

  9      Q.   Let's switch locations.  I think the other place

 10   that Mr. Hildebrand identifies is the vicinity of Marine

 11   Park.  And I think he suggests that people would be

 12   trapped at that location if there were an incident in

 13   that vicinity.

 14           Do you agree with his testimony?

 15      A.   No, I don't.  From my observation of the Marine

 16   Park area, there are multiple avenues for escape from

 17   that area that are multiple overpasses where the

 18   railroad goes over top of surface streets that would

 19   allow individuals to self-evacuate from that location.

 20      Q.   I want to stay on that topic of evacuation

 21   because there's another witness that testified to

 22   evacuation from city locations, Scott Johnson.

 23   Mr. Johnson used what he described as the 1/2-mile

 24   distance to determine the population that would need to

 25   be evacuated.
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  1           Do you agree with that measure?

  2      A.   Yes.  I believe that through what we've looked

  3   at with the DOT Emergency Response Guide, that a

  4   1/2-mile radius is the industry or recommended distance.

  5      Q.   And how is that 1/2 mile implemented?

  6      A.   Implemented in terms of measure or moving people

  7   from it?  I'm sorry.

  8      Q.   Measured, the first one.

  9      A.   Well, the 1/2 mile in all directions radius is

 10   given as a guideline and a recommendation.  What it

 11   doesn't take into account is topography.  A 1/2 mile in

 12   all directions, that may change based upon weather

 13   conditions, it may change based upon if the product is

 14   flowing and where it's moving to.

 15           I think that 1/2 mile is for a response -- for

 16   the incident commander it's a guideline.  It's at least

 17   a data point that you could overlay a radius on top of a

 18   map and say, okay, if it's within this area, yes, we

 19   want to move these people out, outside of this no.  But

 20   it's not like anyone's out with a range finder or a

 21   measuring tape and saying this is exactly a 1/2 mile,

 22   this is safe, this is unsafe.  That's not done.

 23      Q.   But just to be really simple about it, it's a

 24   radius, then?

 25      A.   It is a radius, yes.
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  1      Q.   So Mr. Johnson testifies that based on his

  2   assessment, drawing that distance out from potential

  3   incident locations, that there could be as many as 7,000

  4   to 13,000 people that would need to be evacuated from a

  5   rail incident.

  6           Did you evaluate potential populations that

  7   would need to be evacuated from a rail incident?

  8      A.   Yes, I did.  I questioned those numbers when I

  9   read that testimony.  I used -- in my evaluation I used

 10   a computer tool that's available from the USEPA, it's

 11   part of the Computer-Aided Management of Emergency

 12   Operations, or the CAMEO program, which is a program

 13   commonly used by emergency responders and planners

 14   throughout the U.S.

 15           A subprogram of CAMEO that's used for emergency

 16   planning is a program called MARPLOT, that's

 17   M-A-R-P-L-O-T.  And MARPLOT stands for the Mapping

 18   Application for Response and Planning of Local

 19   Operational Tasks.  It wouldn't be an EPA program if you

 20   didn't have an acronym to go with it.

 21           So the MARPLOT program allows emergency planners

 22   to identify a point and then to apply radius to whatever

 23   radius you choose.  I chose the 1/2-mile radius in all

 24   directions from a point.  MARPLOT then takes U.S. Census

 25   data information and identifies the populations, the
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  1   residential populations within that radius.

  2           I first performed that analysis and that

  3   modeling using Phil Arnold and Columbia intersection

  4   because Mr. Hildebrand had noted that.  I used that as a

  5   mapping point.  And when I ran a 1/2-mile radius, again

  6   the radius is 1/2 mile to the north, south, east, west,

  7   so the diameter across that area would be a full mile

  8   for that circle.  I found the population in that area as

  9   approximately 1,200 people.

 10           So with that as a starting point, I did

 11   additional modeling going west from that location in

 12   such a way that my radiuses overlapped each other.  And

 13   as I continued east through the City of Vancouver, I

 14   didn't find any area where the population within

 15   1/2 mile of the rail location was greater than 1,400

 16   people.

 17           So the 7,000 to 13,000 number, I'm not sure

 18   where Mr. Johnson, how he achieved that number.  I don't

 19   know if he took all of the different radiuses on the

 20   route and combined them together, but that would be a

 21   false application of the recommendation of 1/2 mile,

 22   because now we have something that's miles long.

 23      Q.   So Mr. Johnson mentions that -- I guess he

 24   focuses in on a couple areas, one of which you started

 25   to talk about.  There was the area in the vicinity of
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  1   Marine Park.  I think Mr. Johnson expresses a concern

  2   about the entire area between the river and Highway 14.

  3           Do you have any concerns about that location

  4   from an evacuation standpoint?

  5      A.   Particularly as we go east from Marine Park,

  6   there are a number of private residents which are on the

  7   south side of the track.  Their primary access point is

  8   a private road crossing to get to their properties.

  9   Access and evacuation would be an issue in those

 10   locations, but several factors come in to play with the

 11   train traffic in that area.

 12           First thing that comes into play is in the event

 13   of a derailment, the operating procedures call for the

 14   train crew to separate their train and to move the

 15   locomotives and as many cars away from the area as safe

 16   to do so.  So that uncoupling of the train will provide

 17   additional access points.

 18           If it would be an event where the locomotives

 19   were involved and couldn't be used, these trains have a

 20   locomotive at the rear, it's called distributed power.

 21   That locomotive could be used to move cars away and to

 22   increase access.

 23           Those locations where there are limited access

 24   points, that would be part of the pre-emergency planning

 25   process that I've discussed earlier.  And the response
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  1   community should be looking at other evacuation means

  2   for that, possibly using marine assets or other

  3   resources for evacuation.

  4      Q.   And is that need to look at that planning piece

  5   specific to this project?

  6      A.   No.  No, it is not.

  7      Q.   He also identifies -- this is Mr. Johnson

  8   again -- a couple other evacuation concerns, and

  9   specifically notes the State School for the Deaf and the

 10   State School for the Blind.

 11           Did you identify those?  Did you look at those

 12   in proximity to the rail line?

 13      A.   I looked at those using currently available

 14   mapping devices.  I did not personally go to either of

 15   those locations.  But using Google Earth and also using

 16   the MARPLOT program, the School for the Deaf, I believe,

 17   is at 611 Grant Boulevard.  That area, that location,

 18   when I took from the closest rail point to the School

 19   for the Deaf at 611 Grant -- or Grand, excuse me.

 20   Grand, not Grant.  At 611 Grand, the distance from the

 21   School for the Deaf to the closest rail point was

 22   approximately 2,300 feet, just within the 1/2-mile

 23   radius.

 24           But what is particularly interesting about that

 25   location is that that lies up-gradient from the tracks,
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  1   so if there was a spill of product there's no way that

  2   it's going to defy gravity to flow uphill.  The storm

  3   drains wouldn't provide a conduit to go uphill.  Rather,

  4   within that 1/2-mile recommendation, again, the

  5   topography comes into play.  It very well may be that

  6   the incident commander makes a decision to

  7   shelter-in-place for that facility.

  8           The School for the Blind at 2214 East 13th

  9   Street, by my calculations, that was at about 4,800 feet

 10   from the closest rail line and well outside of the

 11   1/2-mile recommendation.

 12      Q.   And going back to the School for the Deaf, that

 13   was, you said, within the bounds of the evacuation area.

 14   Where would the incident need to occur in order to have

 15   the school fall within the evacuation area?

 16      A.   It would have to be an incident almost directly

 17   due south.  As you begin to move east or west, that

 18   radius becomes larger, and actually the distance from

 19   the school to the incident becomes further.  So at 2,300

 20   feet, very quickly becomes 1/2 mile.

 21      Q.   Mr. Hildebrand makes a couple recommendations to

 22   the City of Vancouver to improve response capabilities.

 23   Are those uniquely necessary to respond to an incident

 24   involving unit trains traveling to this facility?

 25      A.   No, they're not.



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 2112

  1      Q.   And some of his recommendations involve training

  2   and expresses a concern about the ability to maintain

  3   staffing while folks are out at training.

  4           Do all training opportunities require travel

  5   away from the local community?

  6      A.   No, they don't.  There are a number of training

  7   programs and training activities that are currently

  8   available to all emergency responders that don't involve

  9   travel.  One of those type of training activities is

 10   through a program known as TRANSCAER, that's

 11   T-R-A-N-S-C-A-E-R.  That stands for the Transportation

 12   Community Awareness and Emergency Response Program.

 13           TRANSCAER is a joint program between

 14   transportation companies, both rail, marine, and bulk

 15   motor carriers with the chemical and petroleum

 16   industries to bring training out to local responders.

 17   That training can be in the form of classroom or

 18   tabletop type exercises.  It can include field exercises

 19   where TRANSCAER will bring in specialized tank cars that

 20   are constructed so that responders can walk inside of a

 21   tank car to see the valve on the inside.  There's valve

 22   cutaways that are available to discuss how the valves

 23   work, how railcars are constructed.  With the railroads

 24   being involved, they're able to talk about their

 25   emergency response capabilities and the resources that
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  1   they would bring to bear to an incident.  So TRANSCAER

  2   is one type of activity.

  3           Other training that's available, currently

  4   there's a free online training program available from

  5   the Security and Emergency Response Training Center,

  6   SERTC, S-E-R-T-C in Pueblo, Colorado.  SERTC offers

  7   several free online training programs to responders.

  8   One is a crude oil unit train training program, it's

  9   approximately four hours in length.  They offer a

 10   firefighting foam online training program and they offer

 11   a hazardous materials by rail online training program.

 12           Further, through the Department of

 13   Transportation, specifically through PHMSA, there's an

 14   online training program that's available that includes

 15   different modules.  The intent is that an instructor

 16   could use the instructor guide, could use the supporting

 17   class materials, and could teach training at the local

 18   level for responders.

 19               MR. KISIELIUS:  I'm going to ask Ms. Mastro

 20   if you could pull up Exhibit 264, please.

 21   BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 22      Q.   If you want to look at the book instead of the

 23   screen, that's Tab 8.

 24      A.   Okay.

 25      Q.   While we're waiting for that maybe I'll ask you
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  1   to start describing what we will soon be looking at.

  2      A.   What we have in this exhibit, I prepared this.

  3   The first page is the Security Emergency Response

  4   Training Center or SERTC.  This is the course

  5   description for their Flammable Liquids Transported By

  6   Rail Training program.  This shows the course direction

  7   or duration.  It includes -- the comment for the price,

  8   it says no charge to emergency responders.  There's a

  9   description of the training program.  The page on the

 10   screen is what I just described.

 11           The next page is very similar.  Again, it's from

 12   SERTC.  This describes the web-based crude-by-rail

 13   training program, four hours in length, no charge for

 14   emergency responders.  And there's an overview of the

 15   course there.

 16           The next page is U.S. Department of

 17   Transportation's PHMSA training program.  This is the

 18   Transportation Rail Incident Preparedness and Response

 19   Training program.  You can't see it on the screen very

 20   well, but there's the large horizontal picture, and

 21   directly underneath that are thumbnail pictures for --

 22   if you could go back there, please.  Stop.

 23           On the screen, those smaller pictures correspond

 24   with the different training modules that are available

 25   for delivery to local responders.  Again, this is a
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  1   recent training program that was released within the

  2   past year that's available for responders.

  3           The next page, this is an information sheet from

  4   the TRANSCAER website which describes the crude-by-rail

  5   response safety course.

  6           The next page includes contact information for

  7   the TRANSCAER state coordinators.  In this case the

  8   state coordinator is Mr. Overlie from BNSF.  And you'll

  9   see Lind Bingham with AkzoNobel, again highlighting that

 10   TRANSCAER is a joint chemical industry, petroleum

 11   industry, and transportation industry initiative.  So if

 12   a responder is interested in the TRANSCAER training,

 13   they can contact one of these individuals and they could

 14   set something up.

 15               MR. KISIELIUS:  Okay.  And, Ms. Mastro, if

 16   you could pull up 262, please.

 17   BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 18      Q.   And that would be Tab 6 if you want to describe

 19   what we'll be looking at?

 20      A.   What we have here, this is just more information

 21   about the PHMSA Transportation Rail Incident

 22   Preparedness and Response Training Program.

 23   Particularly on the second page, or the back of this

 24   particular exhibit, the How to Use This Program

 25   describes the nine modules and the introduction and how
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  1   local government could -- or the local municipal

  2   response agency could use this to provide training.

  3           I think it would be very prudent as well for the

  4   training course that's delivered at SERTC, the live

  5   course, and also the live course that's taught at Texas

  6   A&M Engineering Extension Facility, or TEX, in College

  7   Station, Texas, a jurisdiction could send a training

  8   officer or another senior officer to those types of

  9   events.  They could bring information back, and a very

 10   effective trainer-to-trainer type of cadre could be

 11   developed in a jurisdiction to provide training.

 12   Everybody doesn't need to go to that training to become

 13   effective.

 14      Q.   All right.  Let me switch subjects to another

 15   topic that Mr. Hildebrand describes.  He says

 16   firefighting foam, that that presents a significant

 17   operational challenge.

 18           Can you just start by explaining how

 19   firefighting foam is used?

 20      A.   Firefighting foam starts with a foam

 21   concentrate.  The foam concentrate is added to water and

 22   agitated so it creates a bubble.  These billions and

 23   billions of bubbles that create foam, they rest on the

 24   surface area of a flammable liquid.  On that surface

 25   area they're acting to isolate or to minimize the amount
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  1   of oxygen or atmospheric air that can come in contact

  2   with that fuel.

  3           If you look at basic fire, we need fuel, we need

  4   an ignition source, and we need oxygen.  And if you

  5   remove any one of those three legs of the fire triangle,

  6   you don't have a fire anymore.  So with foam we're

  7   removing that oxygen and we're smothering the fire.

  8   Foam can also be used to create a barrier to minimize

  9   the amount of vapors that are generated from the

 10   flammable liquid as well.

 11      Q.   So are there times when foam would not be

 12   effective?

 13      A.   Foam is only effective in a two-dimensional fire

 14   environment, that is, a horizontal pool fire.  Foam

 15   works very well if it's flat.  If it's a

 16   three-dimensional fire environment where we have fire

 17   emanating from a valve or from a breach in a tank car or

 18   flowing in any type of manner, foam would not be

 19   effective in controlling that fire.

 20      Q.   And is foam essential, though, to fighting a

 21   fire involving a crude release?

 22      A.   No, it's not.  And I think that's a

 23   misconception by a lot of individuals.  Foam,

 24   firefighting foam, is a tool that's in the responder's

 25   toolbox.  It would not always be effective, it would not
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  1   always be used.  Identification of where your foam

  2   resources are is part of that preplanning.  It can be

  3   very useful in some situations, but absence of foam

  4   doesn't necessarily mean that you can't handle an

  5   incident.

  6           Two specific derailments, which are referenced

  7   by Mr. Chipkevich and Mr. Hildebrand, the Mt. Carbon,

  8   West Virginia, incident on CSX was -- involved a release

  9   with fire.  That incident was successfully managed and

 10   extinguished without any foam being used.  The

 11   Lynchburg, Virginia, derailment, again on CSX, was

 12   successfully extinguished and managed without the use of

 13   foam.  From my reading of information generated from the

 14   Mosier incident, specifically a briefing that was given

 15   by an EPA on-scene coordinator, the amount of foam that

 16   was used in Mosier to control that incident was very

 17   minimal.

 18           So I think that those are three cases where

 19   there was a release of fire and foam was not the

 20   deciding factor in the successful outcome of the

 21   incident.

 22      Q.   Okay.  More generally there's been some

 23   testimony, concern about the, what's been called extreme

 24   secrecy of the rail industry impacting response

 25   measures.
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  1           Do you agree that there's not transparency that

  2   impacts the ability to respond to an incident?

  3      A.   I'm sorry, you kind of lost me in the double

  4   negative at the end of your comment.  But I will say I

  5   certainly would not agree that there's secrecy involving

  6   transportation of hazardous materials by rail between

  7   the railroads and local governments.  I would not agree

  8   with that at all.

  9      Q.   What are some of the steps in place to ensure

 10   that there is that communication between the railroads

 11   and responders?

 12      A.   Well, there are a number.  Some are industry

 13   best practices that are voluntary on the part of the

 14   railroads, and more recently as a result of the FRA

 15   emergency order that are now codified as part of the

 16   regulations.  I'll address first the industry programs.

 17           The rail industry, through its trade

 18   association, the Association of American Railroads,

 19   developed a set of recommended practices for the

 20   handling of hazardous materials, not just crude oil but

 21   hazardous materials that have been in place since the

 22   early 1990s.  That's referred to as the OT-55 circular.

 23   I believe that it's an exhibit in the materials that

 24   have been submitted.

 25      Q.   I'll interrupt you.
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  1               MR. KISIELIUS:  For the council's benefit,

  2   that's Exhibit 263.

  3   BY MR. KISIELIUS:

  4      Q.   Tab 7 in your binder.

  5      A.   Excellent, thank you.

  6           In OT-55, if you turn to Page 2 of the exhibit

  7   that's available, one of the components was the

  8   identification of a key train, and a key train defined

  9   as a train that has 20 or more carloads of hazardous

 10   materials that are listed in an appendices.  There are

 11   operating procedures for the key trains including

 12   maximum speeds, including train meets, that is, when a

 13   key train is meeting another train, one of the trains

 14   has to take a siding to allow the other train to pass.

 15   Key trains will always keep the main; non-key trains

 16   will take the siding to pass.  The spacing of defect

 17   detectors along key routes, again, key routes are

 18   identified in OT-55 based upon the amount of hazardous

 19   materials that are transported.  Yard operating

 20   practices.

 21           But most germane to your question is found in

 22   Section 5 of OT-55, and that recommends and requires the

 23   railroad to become involved in TRANSCAER and to also to

 24   provide communities with flow studies and traffic data

 25   on what they've handled over their railroad or component
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  1   of railroad in the previous year.

  2           In my roles at CSX, I was responsible for

  3   completing traffic flow studies, and I've done well in

  4   excess of a hundred such flow studies for a community

  5   where I provide them with information on what

  6   commodities are flowing through and in what volumes.

  7   And that can help that community effectively prepare

  8   based upon the types of commodities they can expect to

  9   see.  So those are the voluntary programs that the

 10   railroads have done for over 25 years.

 11           More recently the FRA, in one of their emergency

 12   orders, I believe it was DOT OTS [sic] 2014-0067, that

 13   emergency order required rail carriers to make a

 14   notification to the state Emergency Response Commission

 15   where the notification would kick in if they transported

 16   more than a million -- I believe it was gallons, it may

 17   have been barrels, but more than a million gallons of

 18   flammable liquids in unit trains.  That notification was

 19   to be made to the Emergency Response Commission, and

 20   include the routes, the frequencies, the volumes, and

 21   the types of crude oil that would be transported.

 22           So all of that, that doesn't seem like extreme

 23   secrecy.  It seems very transparent process to me.

 24               MR. KISIELIUS:  I don't think we need to

 25   call it up, but just for the council's benefit, the DOT
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  1   Order Number OST-2014-0067 is Exhibit 248.

  2   BY MR. KISIELIUS:

  3      Q.   The other concern that's been expressed by

  4   Dr. Millar, among others, is the cargo associated with

  5   the project is different from anything currently

  6   transported.

  7           Do you agree with that?

  8      A.   Again, I believe that this is a misconception

  9   that is shared by a number of people, including some

 10   people in the emergency response community.

 11           The crude oil that's being transported is

 12   different from a lot of people's preconceived notion of

 13   what crude oil is.  I think most people think of crude

 14   oil as something very thick, very heavy, very viscous,

 15   very syrup-like.  What we're seeing is a crude oil that

 16   flows like water, very similar to the properties of

 17   gasoline.  There have been a number of studies by PHMSA

 18   and also the API and through Sandia National Labs

 19   looking at the crude oil from the Bakken fields.

 20           All of the studies are coalescing around a

 21   common point that the material does meet the definition

 22   of a Class 3 Packing Group 1 flammable liquid, very

 23   similar to a number of products we see in that category

 24   today.

 25      Q.   And is there testing required to demonstrate
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  1   compliance with that classification?

  2      A.   There is.  And again, that was codified and made

  3   a requirement in the emergency order.  That emergency

  4   order I believe was DOT OTS [sic] 2014-0025, but I may

  5   be wrong in that number.  But it was an emergency order

  6   that required testing at the ship points to confirm that

  7   materials were classified correctly.

  8               MR. KISIELIUS:  For the council's benefit,

  9   that's Exhibit 247.

 10   BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 11      Q.   Let's switch and talk a little bit about the

 12   comparison to some of the scenarios that several of the

 13   witnesses point to.

 14           Have you reviewed the list of derailment

 15   incidents in the prefiled testimony of Mr. Chipkevich,

 16   for example?

 17      A.   I have.

 18      Q.   Does that list of incidents demonstrate that

 19   transportation of crude-by-rail is unsafe, in your

 20   opinion?

 21      A.   No, I don't believe that it does.  While those

 22   incidents have occurred and they've been very

 23   unfortunate, I think what they fail to do is to give a

 24   scale of the amount of materials shipped and the full

 25   volume.  It's like a fraction with no denominator.
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  1           If we look at, for example, 2013, and we look at

  2   the incidents that Mr. Chipkevich discusses, there were,

  3   as I recall, 43 cars that were involved in several

  4   incidents, and 43 cars actually breached and lost their

  5   contents.  The denominator in this case for that year,

  6   2013, U.S. railroads handled about 1.2 million shipments

  7   of crude oil and ethanol.  And I say ethanol because

  8   Mr. Chipkevich includes ethanol-type incidents in his

  9   listing of incidents.

 10           So when we look at the incidents which occurred

 11   but we also look at the number of shipments, we're

 12   talking an extremely, extremely low probability that we

 13   would have a car fail during a derailment.  The number

 14   of shipments to me doesn't demonstrate that it's unsafe,

 15   the number of shipments to me shows me how very rare and

 16   infrequent those type of events are.

 17      Q.   Okay.  Let's talk about some of those scenarios

 18   that they described in a little more detail.

 19           First, switching witnesses here, Robert

 20   Blackburn compares to TIH.  And we've heard some

 21   testimony on this topic already, but I'm interested in

 22   your opinion.

 23           Do you believe that the example he uses from

 24   that 2009 DOT report, the derailment involving TIH, is a

 25   fair comparison to a potential incident involving
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  1   crude-by-rail?

  2      A.   No.  I think that's very much an apples and

  3   orange comparison that Mr. Blackburn is making.  I've

  4   read his testimony and I'm familiar with the DOT report

  5   that he cites.

  6           The DOT report that was described as a nightmare

  7   scenario involved a toxic inhalation hazard material, or

  8   a TIH.  To help scale this, a TIH material would be on

  9   the order of anhydrous ammonia or chlorine.  Both of

 10   those products are products that are shipped as a liquid

 11   under pressure.  When they're released from the

 12   container they'll change phase from a liquid phase to a

 13   gas.  That gas, when released, is totally dependent upon

 14   weather conditions and the wind direction and speed.

 15   You can't control a gas once it's out.  It's going to

 16   move, it's going to spread over a wide area.

 17   Populations that are impacted by that product will

 18   exhibit immediate health effects due to that exposure.

 19           Crude oil, on the other hand, is a liquid.  It

 20   does have some flammable vapors, but it doesn't change

 21   state from this liquid to a gas that's dispersed over a

 22   wide area.  It will follow the topography, it will be

 23   governed by gravity, it will always flow downhill.  We

 24   know where it's going.  It's not spreading over a wide,

 25   wide area.  The primary hazard of crude oil is its
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  1   flammable nature, so it spreads over an area; if no

  2   ignition source, no fire, no risk.  Even if you were

  3   exposed to crude oil liquid, it would be a very

  4   localized type of exposure, a dermal exposure, possibly

  5   some inhalation, but not anywhere near the same risk

  6   profile that we would see from a TIH gas.

  7           So since the DOT report was based on a TIH gas

  8   in a populated area, we have total different risk

  9   profiles for the commodities involved, we have different

 10   transport mechanisms for the commodities being involved.

 11   So that's why I don't agree with that being the

 12   yardstick that's used with regard to insurance for this

 13   case.

 14      Q.   The other incident that Mr. Blackburn focuses

 15   on, and actually several witnesses focussed on, is

 16   Lac-Megantic.

 17           Are you familiar with the derailment there?

 18      A.   I am.

 19      Q.   What have you reviewed?

 20      A.   I reviewed the Transport Canada final report of

 21   the incident, I've reviewed several safety advisories

 22   issued by Transport Canada.  I've reviewed information

 23   that has been published by PHMSA and DOT and the FRA.  I

 24   followed this in the trade press as part of my

 25   profession and my field.  I feel that I'm familiar with
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  1   the case.

  2      Q.   So did the Transport Canada identify

  3   contributing factors to that incident?

  4      A.   They did.

  5      Q.   I'm going to ask you to assess whether the

  6   contributing factors they identified are a viable risk

  7   or issue on the route that we're talking about, meaning

  8   along the rail line into the Port of Vancouver.

  9           So if you could just identify what were the

 10   causal factors that the report identifies and then

 11   assess the issue as it pertains to this particular line.

 12      A.   One of the primary causes that was identified by

 13   Transport Canada was a failure to properly secure a

 14   train on a main line track.  The railroad in question,

 15   the MM&A, is a short line railroad, and their method of

 16   operation was that a single-person crew would bring a

 17   train eastward.  When that crew member ran out of his

 18   hours, train crews are limited to a number of hours they

 19   can work, much like a commercial driver's license or

 20   motor carrier, they have to go off duty for a period of

 21   time to get necessary rest.

 22           The method of operation was that they would

 23   leave that train parked on the main line, they would set

 24   air brakes on the locomotive and they would set some

 25   hand brakes on the locomotive, and the train would sit
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  1   unattended for up to 14 hours until the engineer was

  2   rested and could return and continue on his trip.

  3           In the facility that we're discussing here, the

  4   method of operation, the BNSF would not leave a train

  5   unattended on the main line for any length of time.

  6      Q.   Why not?

  7      A.   Due to the volume of traffic that currently is

  8   on this line.  With the coal trains, the unit trains of

  9   grain, other unit trains of crude oil going to other

 10   facilities, if they left a train sitting on the main

 11   line for hours, it would back their system up.  So

 12   operationally, the BNSF would not do that.

 13           But subsequent to Lac-Megantic, the FRA has

 14   established an additional emergency order.  This is

 15   Emergency Order 30 -- 30 or 28, I apologize -- an

 16   emergency order which prohibits unit trains, highly

 17   hazardous flammable trains from being unattended outside

 18   of the yard in any location.  So the operation would be

 19   considerably different in terms of unattended trains.

 20               MR. KISIELIUS:  And for the council's

 21   benefit, the copy of the order is Exhibit 246.

 22   BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 23      Q.   What about brakes?

 24      A.   The incident in Canada, again, the method of

 25   operation was that the engineer would leave a locomotive
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  1   running to provide power for the air compressor on the

  2   locomotive so that air brakes would remain on the train.

  3   He would set a limited number of hand brakes on the

  4   locomotive.

  5           One of the locomotives in the train experienced

  6   a fire.  Local emergency responders came to the scene to

  7   extinguish the fire.  And the locomotive -- they had

  8   been trained that before fighting a locomotive fire that

  9   you shut the locomotive off and you pull the circuit

 10   breakers.  That's a sound response tactic.  They did

 11   that, but when they did that they shut the power down to

 12   all the locomotives, and that stopped the air compressor

 13   from continuing to supply air to the train.

 14           The railroad sent out an employee who was not

 15   familiar with locomotive operations.  He was not aware

 16   that with the engine not running that the air brakes

 17   weren't being continuously charged.  Due to naturally-

 18   occurring air leaks in the train line, the train -- air

 19   would bleed off and that led to the train rolling away.

 20           Again, as part of the emergency order that was

 21   issued regarding trains being left unattended, there are

 22   also requirements that the railroads increase their

 23   training and their operating rules around securement of

 24   trains.  There also is a requirement that if an

 25   emergency responder has been on, under, or around a
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  1   train, it must be inspected by a qualified employee

  2   before the train can continue.

  3           So operationally, a number of differences in how

  4   the trains will be handled here as opposed to there.

  5      Q.   What about grades?  Did the topography of the

  6   vicinity where the train was left unattended play into

  7   the event?

  8      A.   The track grade from where the locomotive was

  9   parked into the center of town would have been

 10   considered a steep grade railroad-wise.  In some cases

 11   it was over a 1 percent grade.  That's considered steep.

 12   The rail route, based upon my inspection, I don't

 13   believe that the grade is 1 percent coming down the line

 14   into the facility.  So I think that topography-wise it's

 15   different.

 16           One of the key things would be in the signal

 17   track.  In the Canadian case, that was not signal

 18   territory that would have been under the control of the

 19   train dispatcher.  Whereas, the line from Spokane to the

 20   facility, from my review it looks like it's at least 90

 21   percent signal territory, including the track coming

 22   into the proposed facility.

 23      Q.   And what difference does that make?

 24      A.   Signal territory means that a train dispatcher

 25   in a remote location can see if something -- if a train
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  1   has moved, if a car has come out onto the track, if the

  2   track's been disturbed.  There's mechanisms that they

  3   can identify what's happening from a remote location and

  4   they're looking at that.  Again, given the volume of

  5   train traffic over this line, a dispatcher is going to

  6   be actively managing those trains and would see an

  7   unintended movement of a train in an area where it

  8   wasn't expected.

  9      Q.   Okay.  So given these differences, how would you

 10   characterize a similarly sized event occurring with

 11   trains traveling to this facility?

 12      A.   I would see it as exceedingly improbable.

 13      Q.   There's another event that you talked about

 14   earlier in your testimony, the incident recently in

 15   Mosier.

 16           Can you describe what you reviewed to become

 17   familiar with that?

 18      A.   One of the primary documents that I used of that

 19   incident was a report issued by the Federal Railroad

 20   Administration.  It was their preliminary factual cause

 21   finding report.

 22           In that report they report that there were four

 23   tank cars that were involved in the fire that lost

 24   product.  According to the report, one tank car was

 25   breached in the tank shell.  Two of the tank cars
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  1   released product due to the bottom outlets being sheared

  2   off and they leaked from the bottom outlet valves.  And

  3   the fourth car leaked due to a melting of the manway

  4   gasket due to fire impingement.  (Court reporter

  5   interruption.)  Manway, m-a-n-w-a-y.

  6      Q.   How did the tank cars that were subjected to the

  7   fire perform?  We had talked earlier about heat-induced

  8   tears.  Were any of those in that event?

  9      A.   Not that I'm aware of.

 10      Q.   Would you be surprised to know that foam was not

 11   used for the first part of the response?

 12      A.   No, I would not be surprised.  Mosier, as I

 13   understand it, is staffed by a volunteer fire

 14   department, smaller resources.  Even if they had 5 to 10

 15   gallons of foam, foam is most typically packaged in

 16   5-gallon pails on individual pieces of fire apparatus.

 17   Even if they had 5 to 10 gallons of foam, they would not

 18   have felt comfortable applying that.  You don't want to

 19   start a foam attack unless you have enough resources to

 20   sustain a foam attack, otherwise you are going to only

 21   half complete the job.  The fire will burn back as the

 22   foam breaks down and you will have wasted that resource.

 23   It's far better to wait until you have enough foam if

 24   you're going to mount that type of attack, until you

 25   have enough foam on hand and you have enough water
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  1   supply to begin that operation.

  2           So in that case, given their location, given

  3   their resources, it may have taken awhile for resources

  4   to be amassed to be able to sustain that attack.

  5      Q.   And what's done in the meantime if you're not

  6   using foam?  Is there other steps that the responders

  7   are taking to address that issue we talked about before,

  8   the heat-induced tear?

  9      A.   Certainly.  You would not -- well, one action

 10   that the responders could take would be to use large

 11   volumes of water to spray onto a car to cool that car to

 12   prevent that car from building that heat, from building

 13   that pressure that would lead to that heat-induced tear.

 14   You would not use foam as part of that operation

 15   because, again, it's three-dimensional, and spraying

 16   foam onto a hot car, the foam will break down

 17   immediately so all you're really doing is spraying

 18   water.  So the water to cool impinged or exposed tank

 19   cars or other structures is a very common technique, and

 20   a prudent one.

 21      Q.   How would you evaluate the effectiveness of the

 22   response to that specific incident?

 23      A.   From my review of the preliminary cause finding

 24   report from the FRA and also in reading comments made by

 25   the EPA on-scene coordinator, there were no fatalities,
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  1   there was no injuries to responders.  The incident was

  2   handled in a timely fashion.  It appears from the

  3   reports that there was good interagency cooperation at

  4   both the state, tribal, and federal levels.  It appears

  5   that there was very strong interaction in the working

  6   relationship between industry responders and municipal

  7   responders.

  8           I would characterize the outcome of that

  9   incident as very good, very positive.

 10      Q.   I have just two more topics and I promise you're

 11   almost done.  I appreciate your endurance here.

 12           There's been some testimony about tank car

 13   retrofits, specifically the ability to retrofit a

 14   DOT-111 or a CPC-1232 to meet tank car specifications.

 15   I'd like to ask you a couple questions about that.

 16           First, I guess, how are you familiar with the

 17   tank car manufacturing industry?

 18      A.   I currently maintain a client who is a

 19   manufacturer of tank cars in numerous facilities in the

 20   United States and Mexico.  My work with this client is

 21   the realm of my health safety and environmental

 22   consulting.  I assist them with the certification of

 23   their safety and environmental performance at several of

 24   the railcar manufacturing facilities.  As a result of

 25   that, I'm interacting with all levels of management and
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  1   with employees.  I'm on the shop floor where they're

  2   assembling and manufacturing the cars.

  3      Q.   And so I want to ask you, there's some concern

  4   about those retrofits.  What's your opinion about

  5   whether a DOT-111, whether the fleet of DOT-111s are

  6   likely to be retrofit to meet the 117 standards?

  7      A.   Well, PHMSA allows the retrofit of the DOT-111

  8   to meet the new requirements.  What we're really seeing

  9   realistically in the real world is that owners of fleets

 10   of DOT-111s are looking at their fleets and they're

 11   looking at the age of those fleets.

 12           For those DOT-111s that are older cars that

 13   would be retired within the next ten years, there's no

 14   economic advantage to pay the price to upgrade those,

 15   upgrade those cars.  It would be more economical for

 16   them to either upgrade their 1232 cars or to just

 17   purchase brand-new 117 cars.

 18           A railcar only has a defined life age-wise and

 19   operationally, like any piece of mechanical equipment.

 20   So while you could by regulation upgrade a DOT-111 car,

 21   it would not make sense to upgrade a 30-year-old car

 22   because it's going to have limited life.  Your resources

 23   would be better spent in purchasing a new car and

 24   getting what you need now and then having that long

 25   operational use out of that asset.
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  1      Q.   We've talked a lot about rail incidents.  I want

  2   to switch now at the end of your testimony here to talk

  3   about the facility incident.  You testified about

  4   potential incident with the facility.  Some of the

  5   opponents' experts have questions about whether local

  6   responders are prepared for addressing an incident

  7   there.  Let's start with planning and preparedness.

  8           Are the planning -- is the planning for an

  9   incident different -- at the facility different than

 10   what it would be to get ready for an incident at the

 11   rail?

 12      A.   Very much so.  In a fixed facility you have home

 13   field advantage.  You know where your access points are,

 14   you know your water supply, you know resource

 15   availability.  That can be developed for transportation

 16   incidents, but you don't know necessarily where in your

 17   jurisdiction an incident could occur.  At a facility you

 18   can do more specific planning.

 19           Also at a fixed facility, the facility may, and

 20   in this case from what I reviewed does, have a number of

 21   fixed safety systems built in as part of it.  So those

 22   are additional resources you have available.  I think

 23   planning for a fixed facility is actually easier than a

 24   transportation incident.

 25      Q.   And then in terms of the actual product
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  1   involved, because of the similarity, are there benefits

  2   there as well?

  3      A.   Well, again, at this facility it's going to

  4   handle one commodity, so that detect phase of

  5   determining what you're dealing with is minimized.

  6   We'll know what's at the facility.  It's the same

  7   commodity.  I don't see it markedly different.

  8      Q.   What unique equipment or personnel are needed to

  9   deal with an incident at the facility as compared to a

 10   rail incident?

 11      A.   Well, at the facility you have a couple

 12   different operating environments.  You have the railcar

 13   unloading area, so same railcar that you would have in

 14   transportation, same product, same commodity.  One

 15   advantage that you would have is that if you had an

 16   incident, it would most likely involve a single car.  So

 17   the commodity -- the quantity of the commodity would be

 18   greatly reduced from multiple cars in possibly a

 19   transportation incident.

 20           You have the pipeline, which is very improbable

 21   for an incident, and then you have the bulk tanks.  The

 22   bulk storage tank area will have in-tank fire

 23   suppression systems and foam.  So the big difference

 24   there would be that responders would need to be familiar

 25   with those tanks and those systems.
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  1      Q.   Okay.  Do you agree with Dr. Millar that the

  2   response to an incident at the facility would be

  3   entirely reliant on local emergency responders?

  4      A.   No.  And again, I think we've kind of hit upon

  5   this earlier.  I think it would be very short-sighted of

  6   the emergency response community to not take into

  7   account other resources available in terms of outside

  8   response contractors that could be employed by Tesoro

  9   Savage, outside cleanup companies, outside use of mutual

 10   aid foam, possibly the railroad would participate

 11   depending upon the type of incident.

 12           So again, there's a number of stakeholders who

 13   would be involved in that response.

 14      Q.   Mr. Hildebrand touches on a similar topic and

 15   notes that the response to a major incident at the

 16   facility would require 60 percent of the on-duty

 17   firefighters from the City.

 18           Is that, in your mind, unusual or problematic?

 19      A.   I would not see that that would be unusual.  If

 20   there was a large incident at the facility, I would

 21   imagine that a large percentage of the City's resources

 22   would respond.  And again, that's where backfilling

 23   through mutual aid companies or resources to staff the

 24   stations and the other emergency response needs of the

 25   City would be employed.
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  1      Q.   So there's a specific concern that

  2   Mr. Hildebrand raises about the use of some of the

  3   onsite response equipment.  He talks about the use of a

  4   single diesel fire pump in each zone and suggested

  5   that's inadequate.

  6           Do you agree with his assessment?

  7      A.   No, I don't.  I would maybe share that view if

  8   the facility had one pump to cover all of the areas, but

  9   the multiple fire protection systems, each system has

 10   its own pump.  The use of a diesel fire pump is a very

 11   common practice in industrial facilities.  I think given

 12   that, in my review of the plans, in each location where

 13   there is a fire pump downstream of the fire pump that is

 14   on the discharge side of the pump where you're supplied

 15   the foam headers and suppression systems, there are

 16   what's referred to as the fire department connection

 17   where there's the ability for the fire department to

 18   connect a fire engine with their pump to augment or to

 19   supply pressure if that pump fails.  So there is a

 20   redundancy building.  I don't have a concern with a

 21   single pump per system.

 22      Q.   Okay.  We've heard a lot of testimony and

 23   questions about issues or events related to a large

 24   seismic event.  And I know you're not a seismic expert.

 25      A.   Correct.
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  1      Q.   So I'm just going to ask you to focus on the

  2   rail unloading area and assume that there's an event

  3   that causes a derailment in that vicinity during

  4   unloading activities.

  5           Are you concerned that that situation could

  6   yield an uncontrolled fire event?

  7      A.   No, I'm not.  And again, I want to stress that

  8   I'm not a geologist or a seismologist, that's not my

  9   area of expertise.  But in my work with fixed facilities

 10   where we are unloading unit trains of flammable liquids,

 11   we do consider during our risk analysis the unintended

 12   movement of a railcar while it's being offloaded.  So I

 13   think there is some degree of analogy here between that

 14   car moving due to something else or due to it moving

 15   during an earthquake.

 16           And regardless of what causes the car to move,

 17   one of the key safety features in this is use of dry

 18   disconnect hoses.  Those hoses essentially have valves,

 19   spring-loaded valves at each end, so if the hose becomes

 20   disconnected from the railcar, the railcar side and the

 21   truck side seal themselves so there's no leaks there.

 22           So if there was a seismic event that was of a

 23   magnitude that it caused the car to move such that the

 24   dry brake hose would disconnect, we would have

 25   securement of the product through both the hose and the
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  1   railcar.  If that event further was of a magnitude that

  2   it caused the car to derail, again, there would be a

  3   kind of a spectrum of things.  The car could just derail

  4   and remain upright in line, the car could derail and

  5   roll over.  If we saw the car roll over, I think that

  6   it's very unlikely that we would have a release from the

  7   car due to the fact that we don't have that car

  8   impacting, we don't have a high degree of kinetic energy

  9   like we would possibly see during a derailment type

 10   event.  Is it possible there could be a release from a

 11   car?  Well, if we topple over a hundred of them

 12   possibly, but I don't think it would be a case of where

 13   each and every car would suffer any type of release.

 14           So to your question regarding a large scale fire

 15   release, I don't see that as a very high probable event.

 16      Q.   Let's focus on evacuation in the event of a

 17   facility incident.  There's some testimony raising

 18   concerns about the evacuation of Jail Work Release

 19   Center in the event of an incident at the facility.

 20           Do you have any concerns with the ability to

 21   evacuate the Jail Work Center in the event of a facility

 22   incident?

 23      A.   I've reviewed the location of that facility both

 24   topography-wise and as well as a personal inspection.  I

 25   have not been inside of that facility, I've observed it
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  1   from outside the fence line.

  2           I don't agree that an automatic evacuation of

  3   that facility would necessarily be the best course of

  4   action.  There's a very common tactic that's used for

  5   sensitive type occupancies like nursing homes,

  6   hospitals, correctional facilities that's referred to as

  7   shelter-in-place.  Shelter-in-place means that you shut

  8   off the air intakes and windows and other sources of

  9   outside air and you stay where you are at until the

 10   incident is deemed safe.

 11           I think in terms of the exposure of that

 12   facility from a thermal event from the railcar unloading

 13   facility I think is very, very unlikely.  The distances

 14   that it is from the closest railcar unloading point, I

 15   don't believe that the thermal loading on that structure

 16   would be significant that would require evacuation.  I

 17   don't believe that it would be prudent to take people

 18   out through necessarily a smoke plume from that

 19   jurisdiction -- or from that location, so

 20   shelter-in-place may be a good tactic.

 21           In the event that they decide that an evacuation

 22   is required, from my review of the area, there's

 23   numerous evacuation points.  I believe it's Harborside

 24   Drive which runs east and west closest to the river,

 25   they could take that in an east or west fashion to
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  1   evacuate from that area.

  2      Q.   Mr. Johnson's testimony raises concerns about

  3   evacuation of the Fruit Valley neighborhood.

  4           Were you able to do a similar exercise that you

  5   were describing earlier about evacuation radius from the

  6   facility?

  7      A.   Yes, I did.  The facility -- the northeast

  8   corner of the tank farm area by my modeling shows that

  9   it's about 3,200 feet to the closest resident from the

 10   corner of the tank farm area.  That's in excess of the

 11   1/2-mile evacuation recommendation in the DOT ERG.

 12      Q.   I just want to conclude by asking you based on

 13   everything that you reviewed from the intervenor's

 14   witnesses, is there anything in there that causes you to

 15   change the opinions you provided in writing before the

 16   hearing?

 17      A.   No, there is not.

 18               MR. KISIELIUS:  No further questions.

 19               JUDGE NOBLE:  Cross-examination?

 20                       CROSS-EXAMINATION

 21   BY MR. POTTER:

 22      Q.   Good afternoon.

 23      A.   Good afternoon, sir.

 24      Q.   I'm Bronson Potter and I represent the City of

 25   Vancouver.
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  1           In your prefiled testimony you described PHMSA,

  2   P-H-M-S-A, as being active in the regulation of the

  3   transportation of crude oil and you state that USDOT has

  4   the ability to take prompt action.

  5           Isn't it true that those agencies took over four

  6   years to develop the Enhanced Tankcar Standard Final

  7   Rule after the time that the Association of American

  8   Railroads petitioned for rule making?

  9      A.   That's correct.

 10               MR. POTTER:  Your Honor, I understand that

 11   stipulated exhibits have been admitted?

 12               JUDGE NOBLE:  Well, they have, most of them.

 13   You have some additional exhibits, though, that have

 14   been listed in a document that I have starting with

 15   3060.  Is that what you're thinking?

 16               MR. POTTER:  No.  I just want to refer to

 17   one that has previously been provided to all parties and

 18   has been stipulated to, Exhibit 3087.

 19               JUDGE NOBLE:  It's probably been admitted

 20   but I'll check that.  Mr. Potter, would you say the

 21   number again?

 22               MR. POTTER:  3087, Congressional Research

 23   Service Report on the U.S. Rail Transportation of Crude

 24   Oil.

 25               JUDGE NOBLE:  Well, I have a new list.
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  1               MR. KISIELIUS:  Your Honor, if it would

  2   help, according to our list, that has been admitted.

  3               JUDGE NOBLE:  Good.  I'll take your word for

  4   it, thank you.

  5   BY MR. POTTER:

  6      Q.   So I'd like to refer to a statement from that

  7   report and just ask you, Mr. Rhoads, whether or not you

  8   agree with this statement:  Unit trains of crude oil

  9   concentrate a large amount of potentially

 10   environmentally harmful and flammable material

 11   increasing the probability that should an accident

 12   occur, large fires and explosions could result.

 13           Do you agree with that statement?

 14      A.   I think that the key in that statement is the

 15   "coulds" and "mays."

 16      Q.   Okay.  Also, Exhibit 3085, another stipulated

 17   exhibit.  This one is the Emerging Risks Task Force.

 18   This report states, Tar sand oils and their derivatives

 19   in Bakken crude represent new and unique challenges to

 20   oil spill preparation and the response community in the

 21   Northwest.  Owing to their unique characteristics, the

 22   relatively recent increase in volume shipped to new

 23   areas within the Northwest via new routes and

 24   transportation methods.

 25           Do you agree with that statement?
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  1      A.   No, I do not.

  2      Q.   You state that there are 400 FRA inspectors in

  3   the nation?

  4      A.   That's correct.

  5      Q.   How many in Washington?

  6      A.   I don't know the answer to that question.

  7      Q.   How many miles of track are in Washington?

  8      A.   I don't know the answer to that question.

  9      Q.   Isn't it true that just prior to the Mosier

 10   derailment on June 3rd of this year, that there had been

 11   multiple inspections of the track within the previous

 12   six months?

 13      A.   That information was mentioned in the -- that

 14   was reported in the FRA preliminary cause finding

 15   report, yes, sir.

 16      Q.   With respect to the ERG guidance 128, isn't it

 17   true that if a railcar is involved in a fire, that not

 18   only is isolation recommended but evacuation within the

 19   1/2 mile from the derailed car?

 20      A.   That is recommended in 128, that's correct, sir.

 21      Q.   And 128 also provides that if multiple cars are

 22   involved, a greater evacuation distance should be

 23   considered; correct?

 24      A.   That's what it states, that's correct.

 25      Q.   With respect to the DOT-117, that's a fairly new
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  1   standard to build railcars to; correct?  (Court reporter

  2   interruption.)  Build railcars to?

  3      A.   I would not agree with that characterization.

  4      Q.   When was the rule adopted?

  5      A.   The rule was adopted May 1st of 2015.

  6      Q.   Okay.  Isn't it true that we've had limited

  7   experience with 117s being involved in derailments to

  8   date?

  9      A.   We've had limited experience with the DOT-117

 10   but not limited experience with a tank car that is a

 11   thickness of 9/16ths.  We've been constructing cars of

 12   that thickness for quite some time.  We do not have --

 13   it's not new to have full height head shields.  It's not

 14   new to have enclosed valves and fittings within

 15   protective hazards.

 16      Q.   Those are for pressurized cars?

 17      A.   Those are used for pressurized cars, yes.

 18      Q.   The 117Rs, the retrofitted either 111s or 1232s,

 19   would still have a tank wall that is not constructed to

 20   the 117 new standard; correct?  They're not 9/16ths?

 21      A.   That is correct.  They would remain at the

 22   7/16th-inch thickness of their original construction.

 23      Q.   With respect to Mr. Blackburn's testimony, you

 24   pointed out that the incident that he referred to had a

 25   commodity that involved a toxic inhalation hazard;
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  1   correct?

  2      A.   I did, yes.

  3      Q.   And that you didn't think that that was

  4   comparable to crude oil because crude oil is not a TIH

  5   commodity?

  6      A.   Not only because the DOT classification that it

  7   is not a TIH, but its chemical and physical properties

  8   are not similar to a gaseous product.

  9      Q.   But if you had a fire of smoke and a plume, that

 10   could present a hazard to people who would inhale that?

 11      A.   Not to the same immediacy -- it would not have

 12   the same immediate toxic effects that you would inhaling

 13   a TIH product.

 14      Q.   But there would be an inhalation concern,

 15   wouldn't there?

 16      A.   I would say there would be a health risk via

 17   inhalation.  I wouldn't necessarily characterize it as

 18   an inhalation hazard.

 19      Q.   With respect to the Mosier derailment, isn't it

 20   true that in combatting that fire they depleted the

 21   aquifer in Mosier?

 22      A.   I believe that in combating that fire, that

 23   there were -- that the water demands on the water supply

 24   available to hydrants was not able to be maintained.

 25      Q.   They exhausted it, didn't they?
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  1      A.   I believe that's correct.

  2      Q.   And the sewer system was offline for how long?

  3      A.   I can't speak to that, sir.

  4      Q.   Do you know how long Highway 4 was shut down?

  5      A.   I do not.

  6      Q.   Mr. Hildebrand in his testimony does not state

  7   that Vancouver Fire Department should only rely on its

  8   own resources, does he?

  9      A.   No.  Specifically in their discussion of the

 10   foam stockpile, he references outside foam supply.

 11      Q.   And with respect to mutual aid, he doesn't say

 12   that the Vancouver Fire Department would refuse mutual

 13   aid, does he?

 14      A.   No.  They currently have -- as I understand it,

 15   they currently have mutual aid agreements in place.

 16      Q.   What are the limitations on that mutual aid, as

 17   you understand them?

 18      A.   Well, I believe that a jurisdiction will supply

 19   resources to a neighboring jurisdiction to a point but

 20   not necessarily totally deplete their own resources in

 21   order to protect another jurisdiction.

 22      Q.   Aren't most of the other fire districts in Clark

 23   County rural fire districts depending on volunteers?

 24      A.   That's my understanding, yes, sir.

 25      Q.   And with respect to Portland Fire and Rescue,
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  1   their mutual aid agreement with Vancouver provides that

  2   their response to a hazardous materials incident is

  3   optional, doesn't it?

  4      A.   I believe that's correct.

  5      Q.   In your testimony you state that a spill from a

  6   large number of tank cars is an extremely remote

  7   possibility.

  8           What do you mean by "a large number of tank

  9   cars"?

 10      A.   I believe that on the order that we saw in

 11   Lac-Megantic, that the 67 or 63 cars, I think that's

 12   extremely low probability.  In the derailments that

 13   Mr. Chipkevich and Mr. Hildebrand cite, we have not seen

 14   anything on that order of magnitude of 60 cars

 15   releasing.

 16      Q.   Well, are you referring -- their scenarios don't

 17   use 63 or 67 cars as being involved in breaching, do

 18   they?

 19      A.   No.  Their scenarios are typically under ten

 20   cars.

 21      Q.   How would you characterize the size of the

 22   Mosier derailment and fire?

 23      A.   Characterize using what measurement, sir?

 24      Q.   In terms of size.  I mean, in your testimony you

 25   talked about large number of cars.  Mosier is four.  Is
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  1   that a small incident?

  2      A.   Without a doubt, a release of product with a

  3   fire and other cars potentially impinged upon, that's a

  4   serious incident and needs to be taken very serious, and

  5   is.  In terms of a large derailment, I would consider

  6   that a serious derailment but more on the small side.

  7      Q.   Okay.  So in reference to Mosier, serious but on

  8   the small side?

  9      A.   That would be my opinion, yes, sir.

 10               MR. POTTER:  Your Honor, I'd like to admit

 11   at this time Exhibit 3039 which is a video of the Mosier

 12   fire.  It's two minutes in length.

 13               MR. KISIELIUS:  Your Honor, I'm going to

 14   object.  There's been -- this is one of the City's

 15   exhibits.  It hasn't been admitted.  There's been no

 16   witness to sponsor it.  It's a YouTube video that

 17   they've pulled.  At the very least they need a witness

 18   to authenticate or talk about it.  There's been no offer

 19   into evidence.

 20               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Potter?

 21               MR. POTTER:  Your Honor, the witness has

 22   characterized the fire.  I think it's appropriate that

 23   the council be allowed to view a video of the actual

 24   fire itself.  We have both 3039, which is a YouTube, and

 25   3040 which is an NBC video report.
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  1               MR. KISIELIUS:  Your Honor, if I may

  2   respond?

  3               JUDGE NOBLE:  Certainly.

  4               MR. KISIELIUS:  The whole point of having a

  5   witness testify to it as it's being offered for

  6   admission is so that it can be confirmed if this is even

  7   the same fire or not.  This is his exhibit for his

  8   witnesses to speak to.  Our witness has not testified to

  9   it.

 10               JUDGE NOBLE:  I'm ready to rule.  I sustain

 11   the objection.  You need to have a sponsoring witness

 12   and then offer it -- reoffer it at that time once you

 13   can lay a foundation for it.  I understand there are two

 14   videos?

 15               MR. POTTER:  Correct.

 16               JUDGE NOBLE:  So the objection is sustained

 17   at this time.

 18   BY MR. POTTER:

 19      Q.   You reviewed Mr. Chipkevich's list of

 20   derailments?

 21      A.   I did.

 22      Q.   And isn't it true that that includes 24

 23   derailments of unit trains with either crude oil or

 24   ethanol with an average of 13 tank cars releasing

 25   product?



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 2153

                        POTTER / RHOADS

  1      A.   I believe that's correct.

  2      Q.   The Exhibit 3058 is the PHMSA Draft Regulatory

  3   Impact Analysis which has been previously admitted.

  4   That report predicts that there will be between 12 to 15

  5   unit train derailments per year for the next 20 years.

  6           Do you dispute that finding?

  7      A.   I would.

  8      Q.   Based on?

  9      A.   I've seen amazing safety advances in the past 20

 10   years.  I anticipate we'll continue to see continuing

 11   technology advances in the next 20 years.  I cannot

 12   predict the number of incidents that will occur in the

 13   next 20 years.  Based upon the industry trends that I've

 14   witnessed since 2000, I consider that it will continue

 15   to go down.

 16      Q.   Have you reviewed the PHMSA impact analysis?

 17      A.   I have not.

 18      Q.   In a derailment with release, what are the

 19   possible sources of ignition of the crude oil?

 20      A.   As the railcars derail and impact each other or

 21   impact rail or other infrastructure, metal striking

 22   metal, metal striking particular types of rock, could

 23   lead to sparks which could be an ignition source.

 24   Depending upon the area where it derails, possible

 25   downed power lines could be a source of ignition.  I
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  1   think that potential motor vehicle driving through a

  2   spill area could be a source of ignition.  I think that

  3   there are a number of sources that could ignite.

  4      Q.   And the emergency response itself could

  5   introduce sources of ignition, couldn't it?

  6      A.   If a responder drove through or was smoking or

  7   use of electronic equipment in an area of high vapors,

  8   they could introduce ignition sources.

  9      Q.   In your prefiled testimony you provided

 10   testimony that distinguished between fireballs and BLEVE

 11   events?

 12      A.   That's correct.

 13      Q.   And do I understand you correctly that a BLEVE

 14   event is probably considered to be an explosion?

 15      A.   A BLEVE event has two distinct components to it.

 16   The one component is where the container comes apart.  I

 17   would characterize that as an explosion.  The container

 18   comes apart and pieces are projected from the area.

 19           The secondary event after a BLEVE, as the

 20   container fails, the product that's inside is now

 21   released and may ignite into a fireball.  I would not

 22   characterize that second event in the same category as

 23   an explosion.

 24      Q.   I would like to have Exhibit 3008, which is the

 25   attachment exhibit to Mr. Hildebrand's testimony,
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  1   displayed, and specifically Pages 4 and 5 of that

  2   exhibit which are pictures of fire events.  So if we

  3   could scroll down to Pages 4 and 5.

  4      A.   Sorry, do I have that exhibit?

  5      Q.   I don't know.  There's a picture of it on the

  6   screen.  I don't know what's been provided, Mr. Rhoads.

  7               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Rhoads, those screens

  8   behind you might be closer if you want to look.

  9               MR. POTTER:  If you could scroll down just a

 10   little bit more, please.

 11   BY MR. POTTER:

 12      Q.   So this is a photograph, 2011 derailment at

 13   Arcadia, Ohio.  Can you tell us if this is a fireball or

 14   a BLEVE explosion?

 15      A.   Based upon the information provided, I cannot

 16   say if there was a BLEVE of the container prior to this

 17   ignition of this cloud.  I can't make that assertion

 18   just based on this photograph.

 19      Q.   All right.  Well, is this a photograph of the

 20   fireball?

 21      A.   I would classify that as a fireball, yes, sir.

 22      Q.   Okay.  Then if we could scroll down again,

 23   please.  So this is a photo of a fire from a derailment

 24   in Galena, Illinois.  Again, is this a fireball?

 25      A.   I would classify this as a fireball, yes.
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  1      Q.   All right.  Scroll down some more, please.  And

  2   just a little bit more.

  3           What about this photograph, fireball?

  4      A.   Again, based upon what's available only in this

  5   photograph, I would say yes.

  6      Q.   Okay.  And I believe there's one more.  Or maybe

  7   we're at the end.  Okay, thank you.

  8           How large can a fireball, or I think you used

  9   the term "radiant heat zone" in your testimony, how

 10   large can that be from a derailment event?

 11      A.   Well, sir, it would depend upon the volume of

 12   the car.  It would depend upon the type of commodity

 13   that was involved.

 14      Q.   So do you know if it was a single car of Bakken

 15   crude oil?

 16      A.   A single car of Bakken crude oil, the radiant

 17   heat energy area I would put at maybe 2,000 feet.

 18      Q.   And what do we mean by "radiant heat area"?

 19      A.   Typically the injury to unprotected skin is what

 20   we're looking at, is the amount of kilowatts of energy

 21   per centimeter of skin over a two-second exposure rate.

 22      Q.   And how long can that same type of event a

 23   fireball last?

 24      A.   Well, a fireball can last, again depending on

 25   the amount of fuel but we'll go with your example of a
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  1   single car, 10 to 20 seconds.

  2      Q.   And without putting precise numbers on it, but

  3   is it fair to assume more cars, larger potential for

  4   fireball, longer it could last?

  5      A.   I'm not sure I would completely agree with that

  6   characterization.  I would agree that there would be an

  7   increase in distance, but it is not necessarily linear,

  8   that is, one car is 2,000 feet, two cars is 4 and so on,

  9   because we're dealing with a ball radius.  So there is

 10   an increase but it's not necessarily a multiple of the

 11   number of cars.

 12           Also, based -- if we're assuming that all of the

 13   fireballs occur at the same time, it's not

 14   necessarily -- I don't necessarily agree that the length

 15   of the time of the fireball to be consumed would

 16   necessarily be longer.  It could, but not necessarily.

 17      Q.   So on the issue of the limitation of foam to

 18   suppress fires of crude oil, you described the

 19   two-dimensional fire.  Is that a flat, horizontal fire?

 20      A.   That's correct, sir.

 21      Q.   So typically a pool fire?

 22      A.   That would be correct.

 23      Q.   And the three-dimensional fire could be either a

 24   structure or a tank car itself?

 25      A.   That's correct.
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  1      Q.   And the foam is not effective for fighting the

  2   three-dimensional fire?

  3      A.   Generally that's accepted industry practice,

  4   yes, sir.

  5      Q.   And another limitation is that the foam has to

  6   be reapplied during the course of the response; is that

  7   correct?

  8      A.   Foam will -- again, due to the characteristics

  9   of what foam is, foam is a bubble.  Foam is a collection

 10   of a billion bubbles in a foam blanket.  The foam can be

 11   affected by heat, it can be affected by wind.  It will

 12   naturally break down.  So to maintain a foam blanket,

 13   foam would have to be reapplied at intervals.

 14      Q.   And so part of the challenge of the response is

 15   having enough foam transported to the scene to be able

 16   to reapply it throughout the event?

 17               MR. KISIELIUS:  Your Honor, I'm going to

 18   object.  Is he asking questions or is he testifying?

 19               JUDGE NOBLE:  I heard that as a question.

 20   Overruled.

 21               THE WITNESS:  Foam may be applied for a

 22   period of time post-extinguishment, until the fuel is

 23   removed.  Again, one of the key components is to control

 24   the ignition sources, so if you had a pool of flammable

 25   liquids, you would not automatically necessarily
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  1   continue to apply foam to that.  You may find that

  2   through atmospheric monitoring that you are under the

  3   flammable limits for any type of ignition, you can

  4   control ignition sources on the scene, and you may use

  5   other mechanical removal means to control the fuel in

  6   the pool, to contain it.

  7   BY MR. POTTER:

  8      Q.   But in making the initial decision on how to

  9   attack the fire and if you're considering the use of

 10   foam, it's the consideration that you have to have

 11   enough foam to apply it once and then repeat the

 12   application, isn't that true?

 13      A.   There would be -- if it was an active fire it

 14   would not be a case of the fire's out, we're done with

 15   foam, put it away.  The foam would be reapplied until

 16   you had control of the situation, again, to monitor the

 17   levels of flammable vapors in the air and to control

 18   ignition sources in the air.

 19      Q.   Can you characterize -- or excuse me, clarify

 20   for us the difference between a defensive strategy and a

 21   non-intervention strategy in fighting a crude oil fire?

 22      A.   If I had to draw a distinction there, sir, a

 23   defensive action may be to apply cooling water to a

 24   tank.  A non-intervention strategy may be that we don't

 25   enter to do anything like that, we put our resources
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  1   towards isolating and evacuating people from the area.

  2      Q.   And let the fire burn itself out?

  3      A.   Correct.

  4      Q.   Isn't it true that one of the risks or concerns

  5   of a defensive strategy and putting cooling water on the

  6   fire or adjacent tank cars is that the cooling water can

  7   carry the oil into adjacent water bodies?

  8      A.   That would be a concern.  That would also be a

  9   concern when applying foam as well.  Not only where the

 10   product is but are you making it worse by providing an

 11   avenue for it to spread.

 12      Q.   And in your testimony you state, don't you, that

 13   non-intervention may be the best strategy for the first

 14   several hours of an incident?

 15      A.   That is correct.

 16      Q.   With respect to the fire protection system at

 17   the terminal itself, you understand that the -- there's

 18   three foam suppression systems at three locations; one

 19   is the rail unloading area, railcar unloading area, one

 20   is the storage tank area, and one is the marine

 21   terminal?

 22      A.   That's my understanding, yes, sir.

 23      Q.   And at each of those locations the system design

 24   relies on a single diesel fire pump to supplement the

 25   city water system?
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  1      A.   That's my understanding, yes, sir.

  2      Q.   Did you review the fire protection assessment

  3   that is Exhibit 3124?

  4      A.   Is that the assessment by Poole?

  5      Q.   Yes.

  6      A.   Yes, I have reviewed that.

  7      Q.   And that assessment characterizes the reliance

  8   on single fire pumps as being very risky, doesn't it?

  9      A.   I don't recall his exact statement.

 10      Q.   Isn't it true that as we sit here today, no one

 11   has determined if the city water supply system can

 12   provide sufficient water as sufficient pressure to

 13   operate the foam fire suppression systems at the

 14   terminal?

 15      A.   I don't know if that's been done, sir.  I'm not

 16   aware of it.

 17      Q.   For communities along the rail route between the

 18   Bakken fields and the terminal, is it important for them

 19   to conduct an assessment of the capabilities to respond

 20   to an oil train fire?

 21      A.   If those communities currently have crude oil

 22   traffic flowing through them, I think it would be very

 23   prudent for them to take that preplanning activity.

 24      Q.   Are you aware of what an emergency response gap

 25   analysis is?
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  1      A.   I am.

  2      Q.   Have you reviewed the Draft Environmental Impact

  3   Statement for this project?

  4      A.   I have.

  5      Q.   Is there any gap analysis in that document?

  6               MR. KISIELIUS:  Your Honor, I'm going to

  7   object.  We're straying into the Draft DEIS territory

  8   again.

  9               JUDGE NOBLE:  We are.  I don't know what,

 10   Mr. Potter, you were getting at, but perhaps you could

 11   rephrase the question.  I'm going to sustain the

 12   objection.

 13   BY MR. POTTER:

 14      Q.   Are you aware of anyone having to perform a gap

 15   analysis of emergency response with respect to this

 16   project?

 17      A.   I believe that that's a portion of what

 18   Mr. Hildebrand conducted in his review of the facility's

 19   response capability and the City's response capability.

 20   The extent and formality of that analysis beyond what is

 21   in his testimony I'm not familiar with.

 22      Q.   And so other than that, you're not familiar with

 23   any gap analysis having been done?

 24      A.   From testimony that I've reviewed from Vancouver

 25   fire officials, or possibly they were retired gentlemen,
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  1   in their statements it appeared to me that they have

  2   made some form of assessment of what the capabilities

  3   are.

  4      Q.   Who has?

  5      A.   I would like to review the testimony of the

  6   gentleman that I reviewed -- I would like to review the

  7   testimony of the gentleman that submitted.

  8      Q.   Do you know the person's name?  If you have

  9   something that you can refer to help you, that's fine,

 10   but I just want to be sure that it's something that's

 11   been introduced in this proceeding.

 12      A.   I don't see a listing here.  I do recall

 13   reviewing testimony, I believe it was from a retired

 14   battalion chief from the City of Vancouver.  I don't see

 15   it here and I don't have access to it at this moment.

 16      Q.   Okay.  In your prefiled testimony you made a

 17   statement that a fireball from a heat-induced tear can

 18   cause major impact to the immediate area but the

 19   long-term impact is negligible.

 20           Do you recall making that statement?

 21      A.   I do.

 22      Q.   Was the long-term impact to Lac-Megantic

 23   negligible?

 24      A.   No, sir, it was not.

 25               MR. POTTER:  I have no further questions.
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  1               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Potter, before you go, I

  2   just took a look at the status of the exhibits.

  3   According to the previous list I had, which was in

  4   order, and most of the exhibits that you listed as being

  5   ones that you're going to move to admit have already

  6   been admitted.  Those are my notes.

  7               MR. POTTER:  Thank you, Your Honor.

  8               JUDGE NOBLE:  Except for a couple of them,

  9   and I didn't know whether my notes were perhaps not up

 10   to date.  I think you mentioned, in your e-mail you

 11   mentioned 3039 which is the YouTube video, and another

 12   one.  And I thought you said 3049, but perhaps you said

 13   3040.

 14               MR. POTTER:  What I ended up doing, Your

 15   Honor, is I did not -- I stopped referring to any

 16   exhibit numbers related to videos based on your ruling,

 17   so there will be some of those numbers that I just

 18   didn't use in this examination.

 19               JUDGE NOBLE:  Okay.  And that 3023 and

 20   3024 --

 21               MR. POTTER:  Videos.

 22               JUDGE NOBLE:  Videos, okay.  And 3122, same

 23   thing?  We can take care of this later.  I just thought

 24   maybe my names maybe were incorrect and I wanted to fix

 25   that.
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  1               MR. POTTER:  3122 I did not use.

  2               JUDGE NOBLE:  Thank you, Mr. Potter.

  3               Is there any other cross-examination of

  4   Mr. Rhoads?  Redirect?

  5                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION

  6   BY MR. KISIELIUS:

  7      Q.   Mr. Rhoads, one question for you.

  8           Are all the scenarios and risks that Mr. Potter

  9   just talked to you about, are they currently risks on

 10   the rail line right now with or without this facility?

 11      A.   They are.

 12               MR. KISIELIUS:  No further questions.

 13               JUDGE NOBLE:  Council questions?

 14               Mr. Stone.  I knew there would be some.

 15               MR. STONE:  Good afternoon, Mr. Rhoads.

 16               I was interested in the testimony regarding

 17   the analysis that was done for the City of Spokane with

 18   respect to their preparedness for a train accident, and

 19   there may or may not have been one for the City of

 20   Vancouver, I wasn't clear on that.

 21               I'm interested in the fire companies and the

 22   fire districts in between those two cities along the

 23   train route.  If what Mr. Potter referred to as gap

 24   analyses had been done, in other words, analysis of the

 25   capacities of those fire departments and fire districts
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  1   to respond to a train accident, when I say "capacity" I

  2   mean people, equipment, training, mutual aid agreements,

  3   with respect to your expertise in this area, would it be

  4   a big undertaking to do a gap analysis of each one of

  5   those fire districts and fire companies or is it

  6   something doable within the scope of this proposal?

  7               THE WITNESS:  I believe that in its most

  8   basic form that gap analysis, sir, would take the form

  9   as I discussed in the pre-incident, pre-emergency

 10   planning.  And that is to take an honest look at where

 11   the rail lines are in our community, what the exposures

 12   are, what our current resources are, what our mutual aid

 13   agreements are, what is the full extent of resources

 14   that we have available, what can we do.  That in its

 15   most basic form, sir, is a gap analysis between what our

 16   risks are and what our ability to respond to that risks

 17   are.

 18               But to your -- the genesis of your question,

 19   would that be a difficult thing to do, I don't believe

 20   that it would, sir.

 21               MR. STONE:  I'm guessing how many fire

 22   organizations there are along the route, maybe 15, 20 at

 23   the most.  So given that number, I think you're saying

 24   that it is something that's very reasonable to be done,

 25   be performed.  And you said that the process for doing
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  1   that, the preplanning, is well known.

  2               So I guess I'm wondering, has it been done

  3   and could it be done for the entire rail route?

  4               THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir, I believe it could.

  5   I think that maybe an interesting and innovative way to

  6   approach this, rather than -- well, let me say an

  7   interesting and innovative way to approach this would be

  8   to possibly have some training on how to have the

  9   pre-event -- (Court reporter interruption.)  Some

 10   pre-event or pre-incident or pre-emergency planning,

 11   some templates around what a local plan should look like

 12   and what it should include with some of the key

 13   questions.

 14               If you held something like that for a group

 15   representative from all the jurisdictions, they could go

 16   back and begin to do that work on their own.  So I think

 17   it very well could be done.  It would not be an

 18   extremely huge task, sir.

 19               MR. STONE:  Okay, thank you.

 20               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Shafer?

 21               MR. SHAFER:  Mr. Rhoads, thank you very much

 22   for your testimony today.  I have one question, and

 23   again this is another one where I hate to ask this but I

 24   think I need to.

 25               In terms of the evacuation, and let's
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  1   suppose -- although this may be an unlikely scenario but

  2   a possible scenario, in a worst-case spill event with an

  3   explosion, if that were to occur in the most highly

  4   dense area within a city where that density was closest

  5   to the tracks, does your modeling or in your judgment do

  6   you see fatalities with that, and if so, what kind of

  7   magnitude?  Is it tens, is it hundreds?  What do you see

  8   there?

  9               THE WITNESS:  My modeling, sir, looked at

 10   the number of residents, population within that area.

 11   My modeling did not include thermal effects and the

 12   distances of those effects.  So I have not done modeling

 13   to assess potential casualties and what those numbers

 14   would be.  I don't have that, sir.

 15               MR. SHAFER:  Okay.  Might you have

 16   information where plans were done or modeling was done,

 17   not necessarily with this project but other project

 18   areas where modeling or planning was done, and then

 19   there was an event that did result in casualties, say,

 20   that was not forthcoming from your previous modeling or

 21   planning of that project?

 22               THE WITNESS:  I'm not aware of any, sir.  I

 23   mean, there could have been.  I'm not familiar with

 24   that.

 25               MR. SHAFER:  All right, thank you.
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  1               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Snodgrass?

  2               MR. SNODGRASS:  Good afternoon.  A couple of

  3   questions regarding evacuation.

  4               Would an evacuating vehicle of a home

  5   adjacent to the tracks, would that be sufficient to

  6   ignite a fire, essentially?

  7               THE WITNESS:  The source of an evacuating

  8   vehicle being an ignition source that ignites a fire,

  9   that vehicle would almost have to be in a pool of

 10   spilled product in order for that to happen.  The

 11   product is released.  It will have a degree of

 12   vaporization, that is, a certain amount of vapors will

 13   come on.  You have to have the right concentration.

 14   It's referred to as a lower explosive limit.  Very

 15   similar to a carburetor on a lawnmower, if you don't

 16   have the right fuel-to-air mix the lawnmower won't

 17   start.  So in this case you have to have enough vapors

 18   in a concentration above the lower explosive limit for

 19   that ignition source to cause a fire.  And that would be

 20   localized flash that would involve that spilled

 21   material.

 22               So to your question, could it cause an

 23   ignition source, yes, if that vehicle was directly in or

 24   extremely close proximity to the spilled product.

 25               MR. SNODGRASS:  I guess how close would be
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  1   extremely close?  If a house is, let's say, 50 feet away

  2   from the railcar?

  3               THE WITNESS:  I would not anticipate 50 feet

  4   away.  And the reason that I say that, sir, is because

  5   it's an unconfined area, it's open to the atmosphere.

  6   The vapors would not have an opportunity to accumulate

  7   and build up to that level.  If we were saying three

  8   feet away, one foot away, I would say it's possible.  At

  9   50 feet away, I would believe that with air monitoring

 10   equipment we would identify no vapors in the air.

 11               MR. SNODGRASS:  Stepping away -- still with

 12   the evacuation but stepping away from the immediate fire

 13   issue, are there best practices or rules of thumb for

 14   the number that -- this is sort of a traffic question --

 15   the number of evacuees who could be safely evacuated

 16   through a single weight load without some likelihood of

 17   accidents with people rushing to get out and so on?

 18               THE WITNESS:  Sir, traffic is not my area of

 19   expertise.  I'm not familiar with any studies that work

 20   around that.

 21               MR. SNODGRASS:  Okay.  Turning to the foam

 22   question.  You mentioned two -- you cited two instances

 23   where foam was not used and you said the outcome was

 24   successful.

 25               THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.
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  1               MR. SNODGRASS:  I'm going to guess the

  2   percentage terms of the larger list, and, you know, just

  3   for illustration purposes let's take the 24 cases that

  4   have been cited.

  5               How many of those was foam applied on?

  6               THE WITNESS:  This, sir, is a very rough

  7   estimate.  My analysis did not include that granularity.

  8   I would say safely 50 percent.  One of the things that I

  9   find interesting is it seems East Coast railroads are

 10   less likely to use foam and it seems that more of the

 11   Western roads use foam more frequently.  And I'm not

 12   exactly sure of why that is.

 13               MR. SNODGRASS:  With a -- and I guess sort

 14   of turning particularly to the Fall Bridge because it

 15   would be the section through Vancouver and count as in

 16   in Washougal, would a non-interventionist approach, let

 17   it burn, if you will, for a one-car, just using that

 18   example of a one-car derailment and fire, how long

 19   without foam would it take to put that out, ballpark?

 20               THE WITNESS:  The length of time for a fire

 21   to consume itself is largely given to the surface area

 22   of the pool fire.  For example, ethanol, which is cited

 23   in a number of instances, ethanol has a burn rate that a

 24   one-inch pool of ethanol, regardless of surface area,

 25   one-inch depth will consume itself in six minutes.
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  1   Crude oil is very analogous and, in fact, may actually

  2   be a little quicker.

  3               So to your question, the pool, the depth of

  4   the pool, is the deciding factor.  If we just let it

  5   burn, how quick it's going to burn down.  So depending

  6   upon how much -- for one car spread out over a, let's

  7   say a 30 by 30 area where it's a foot deep, it may burn

  8   for a couple hours.  Spread out over 100 by 100 where

  9   it's two inches deep, it may burn itself out in under an

 10   hour.  But it will consume itself very rapidly if

 11   allowed to burn.

 12               MR. SNODGRASS:  Okay.  That's all I have.

 13   Thank you very much.

 14               JUDGE NOBLE:  Anyone to my right?  My left?

 15   Questions?

 16               Mr. Siemann?

 17               MR. SIEMANN:  Good afternoon and thanks for

 18   being here today.

 19               THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

 20               MR. SIEMANN:  You mentioned the 117s and how

 21   they would respond in a pool fire.  How would the 117Rs

 22   respond in a pool fire?  Similarly or differently?

 23               THE WITNESS:  Well, the 117Rs with the

 24   addition of thermal protection and with the blanket, the

 25   thermal protection should provide the same level, that



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 2173

                            RHOADS

  1   is, 100 minutes of a pool fire or 30 minutes of a torch

  2   type fire.  We're really measuring what the heat

  3   transmission is through that thermal blanket through the

  4   tank car shell into the product.  So from a thermal

  5   protection, with that as a retrofit, I would say a

  6   thermal should perform the same a 117, a regular 117 new

  7   built.

  8               MR. SIEMANN:  And so all 117Rs would have

  9   that thermal protection?

 10               THE WITNESS:  That's my understanding,

 11   that's correct.

 12               MR. SIEMANN:  A second question.  You

 13   described the emergency responder response guidebook.

 14   Does every emergency responder have access to that or

 15   have one?  It seemed like important to understand what

 16   you're dealing with, but we're talking about a lot of

 17   perhaps rural volunteer fire departments responding.

 18               Do they have access to this?

 19               THE WITNESS:  Again, sir, I can't speak for

 20   Washington because I'm not sure of how they were

 21   distributed.  My experience in Virginia, we literally,

 22   even in very rural counties, we asked the emergency

 23   management agency of each county how many fire trucks,

 24   how many police officers they had, and that's the number

 25   that we supplied to them.
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  1               But it's very interesting to note that in

  2   today's technology, the DOT Emergency Response Guidebook

  3   is downloadable as an app, and it's an interactive app,

  4   so even at any moment the smartphone can have the

  5   Emergency Response Guidebook on their phone.  DOT makes

  6   tens of thousands of the ERGs available to communities,

  7   and they should be distributed either through your state

  8   fire training or through your emergency management

  9   agency.

 10               MR. SIEMANN:  So in your experience at least

 11   in Virginia, does everybody's rig actually carry one?

 12               THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.  It's very common.

 13               MR. SIEMANN:  In your prefiled testimony you

 14   mentioned something about flammable vapors and the fact

 15   that responders can use product-appropriate air

 16   monitoring instruments to identify the levels and

 17   locations of flammable vapors.

 18               THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

 19               MR. SIEMANN:  Would these rural departments,

 20   volunteer departments, would they likely have these

 21   kinds of instruments?

 22               THE WITNESS:  It would also depend, sir, on

 23   what their other response exposures were.  For example,

 24   if a rural department had a propane facility or a high

 25   degree of propane use within their jurisdiction, they



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 2175

                            RHOADS

  1   very well may have a combustible gas indicator.  That's

  2   the device that I'm referring to that would be suitable.

  3               If it was a jurisdiction where they had a

  4   petroleum terminal existing or a lot of petroleum

  5   distribution infrastructure, they may have one.  The

  6   price on that technology has come down remarkably to the

  7   point that there are combustible gas detectors which are

  8   $500 which don't require calibration, which are almost

  9   disposable after three years.  It's not an extremely

 10   expensive piece of response equipment.

 11               In terms of your question, would every

 12   jurisdiction have one, probably not.  Would it be

 13   uncommon to find a volunteer rural department with one,

 14   it would be uncommon that they would have one.  It's a

 15   piece of equipment that's readily available.

 16               MR. SIEMANN:  I'm not sure you can answer

 17   this but I'm just curious.  Who pays for emergency

 18   response, for example, at the -- like if there was a

 19   large event at the site or along the rail line, do you

 20   know who pays for the emergency response?

 21               THE WITNESS:  Based upon my experience with

 22   CSX, the rail carrier that I worked with, is CSX would

 23   reimburse the emergency response community for their

 24   time, for any expenditures that they made in terms of

 25   foam or absorbents or diesel fuel to run their equipment
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  1   or things like that.  The railroad would work with the

  2   community to make them whole after an incident.

  3               MR. SIEMANN:  Thanks very much.

  4               JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other questions to my

  5   left?  I have a question.

  6               THE WITNESS:  Yes, Your Honor.

  7               JUDGE NOBLE:  Do you have that -- you had a

  8   discussion about the BLEVE kind of fireball and one of

  9   the council members asked about the strategy of just

 10   letting it burn.

 11               How do you factor wind into that

 12   calculation?

 13               THE WITNESS:  Wind into the calculation of

 14   whether we would let it burn or not?

 15               JUDGE NOBLE:  Along the Columbia River

 16   Gorge.  Is wind a factor?  Do you have some way of

 17   calculating that?

 18               THE WITNESS:  Well, I think that wind could

 19   do a couple different things for the incident, and some

 20   of them would be in the positive category and some would

 21   be in the negative.  I think that wind may help move a

 22   smoke plume possibly away from a community or away from

 23   an area.  The wind may help to disperse the smoke.  In

 24   other conditions the wind may move smoke towards a

 25   threatened area and cause concern there.
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  1               But in terms of a BLEVE or let it burn, the

  2   wind factor, I think, would be more in terms of where it

  3   would take the smoke plume to and what exposures could

  4   be potentially be impacted.  In terms of how the wind

  5   would speed, potentially a heat-induced tear or speed,

  6   the burn, I don't think that the wind would be that

  7   great of a factor.

  8               JUDGE NOBLE:  So do you consider the

  9   possibility of wildfires being increased or is that not

 10   your area of expertise?

 11               THE WITNESS:  Well, a wildfire associated

 12   with a large event, I would consider the rail-wildland

 13   interface as an exposure.  And when I say an exposure,

 14   I'm thinking of everything that is nearby that can be

 15   touched.  The river could be a potential exposure, and

 16   there's mechanisms I would take to control that

 17   exposure.  If there were homes or other occupancies,

 18   that's an exposure.  There's activities I would take to

 19   prevent that.  If it was forest or grasslands that could

 20   be impacted by that fire, that would be an exposure, and

 21   I may take measures there to spray the area, to cool the

 22   area to try to prevent a wildfire from starting.

 23               Wildfire very easily could occur after a

 24   large fireball type of event, but I believe that it

 25   would be very kind of just a subsequent thing you'd have
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  1   to deal with that the fireball to me would be the much

  2   larger immediate event than the subsequent wildfire.

  3   You would be thinking about what are my exposures and

  4   how do I protect those.

  5               JUDGE NOBLE:  Thank you.

  6               Any questions based upon council questions?

  7               MR. POTTER:  No.

  8                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION

  9   BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 10      Q.   Just one, Mr. Rhoads.  You in your testimony

 11   said the defensive or let it burn approach shouldn't be

 12   considered the same thing as a do nothing strategy.

 13           Can you expand on that a little bit more?  What

 14   actually is a defensive strategy?  Are you standing and

 15   watching a fire burn?

 16      A.   You're letting the fire burn, but at the same

 17   time, I think this goes to the judge's question about

 18   wildfire, I'm going to -- where I would recommend that

 19   the incident commander look at the entire bubble, if you

 20   will, while we're letting the fire burn what else could

 21   be impacted and exposed and are we taking steps not to

 22   put the fire out but to protect those other exposures.

 23   That would very be much an active component of the

 24   response.

 25               MR. KISIELIUS:  Thank you.  No further
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  1   questions.

  2               JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.  Thank you very

  3   much for your testimony this afternoon, Mr. Rhoads.

  4   It's been a long day for you.  I appreciate it, council

  5   appreciates it.  You are excused as a witness.

  6               THE WITNESS:  Thank you very much.

  7               JUDGE NOBLE:  It's time for a break.  We'll

  8   be off the record until 3:35.

  9               (Recess taken from 3:20 p.m. to 3:39 p.m.)

 10               MR. JOHNSON:  Applicant calls Brian Dunn.

 11   Mr. Dunn, if you can remain standing so you can be

 12   sworn.

 13               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Dunn, would you raise your

 14   right hand, please.

 15                          BRIAN DUNN,

 16      having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

 17               JUDGE NOBLE:  You may proceed, Mr. Johnson.

 18               MR. JOHNSON:  Thank you.

 19                      DIRECT EXAMINATION

 20   BY MR. JOHNSON:

 21      Q.   Mr. Dunn, can you state your full name for the

 22   record and spell it for the court reporter.

 23      A.   Sure.  My name is Brian, B-r-i-a-n, D-u-n-n.

 24      Q.   All right, thank you.  And, Mr. Dunn, you filed

 25   prefiled testimony in this matter; is that correct?
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  1      A.   Yes, I did.

  2      Q.   And can you just briefly describe your current

  3   employment and area of expertise for the council.

  4      A.   Sure.  I'm currently employed with Kittleson &

  5   Associates in Portland, Oregon.  It's a transportation

  6   engineering and planning firm.  I help manage our

  7   development services market area for the Portland

  8   office.  I have about 22 years of experience in

  9   transportation planning and traffic engineering helping

 10   to prepare plans for land development projects that

 11   range from all types of land uses from institutional,

 12   industrial, to residential, mixed-use and commercial.

 13      Q.   And your CV was attached to your prefiled

 14   testimony; is that right?

 15      A.   That's correct.

 16               MR. JOHNSON:  Okay.  And for council's

 17   information that's Exhibit 0302, a TSS exhibit.

 18   BY MR. JOHNSON:

 19      Q.   Did you provide a traffic impact analysis as

 20   part of the application for site certification for the

 21   Vancouver Energy Terminal?

 22      A.   Yes, I did.

 23               MR. JOHNSON:  And again, for the council's

 24   benefit, that's Exhibit 1 beginning at Page 6221.

 25   BY MR. JOHNSON:
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  1      Q.   What was the focus of that traffic impact

  2   analysis?

  3      A.   So the traffic impact analysis was a focus on

  4   the impacts to the surface street system surrounding the

  5   Vancouver Energy facility at the Port property.  It

  6   focused not only the traffic impacts of the permanent

  7   operation of the facility but also during construction.

  8           And it included an evaluation of transportation

  9   and safety impacts, operational impacts to intersections

 10   and roads that were not only on the Port property on the

 11   site itself but also including city streets and a

 12   highway, an adjacent highway which is maintained by the

 13   Washington State Department of Transportation.

 14      Q.   Okay.  Can you just describe your conclusions,

 15   your primary conclusions as a result of that analysis?

 16      A.   Yeah.  My primary conclusion was that the

 17   surface street system could handle and had adequate

 18   capacity to handle the additional traffic from the

 19   facility and could also handle the additional traffic

 20   loads, temporary traffic loads during the construction

 21   of the facility.

 22      Q.   All right.  And did you identify any necessary

 23   or recommended traffic mitigation?

 24      A.   We did.  We recommended some minor treatments

 25   mainly to address several existing situations; an
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  1   additional posted speed sign, additional striping in one

  2   location, we also made a recommendation to modify the

  3   traffic control at one intersection on the city street.

  4   Those changes were really to bring those roads or those

  5   intersections to more of a current standard that would

  6   be commensurate with the Manual on Uniform Traffic

  7   Control Devices or to meet sight distance standards

  8   which is mandated by AASHTO standards, or the green book

  9   as many refer to.  (Court reporter interruption.)  The

 10   green book.

 11           Yes, and so our recommendations I think were

 12   minor in nature, and we made those recommendations in

 13   our report.

 14      Q.   All right.  And after completing your traffic

 15   impact analysis, did you perform any other traffic

 16   studies?

 17      A.   Yes.  I also prepared an at-grade traffic

 18   analysis for the facility along the -- focusing mainly

 19   on the Gorge line from the Vancouver Energy facility out

 20   past -- as far as the City of Spokane, Spokane Valley.

 21               MR. JOHNSON:  Ms. Mastro, could you pull up

 22   Exhibit 114, please.

 23   BY MR. JOHNSON:

 24      Q.   While we're doing that, why did you prepare

 25   additional rail crossing analysis?
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  1      A.   The reason for preparing the rail crossing

  2   analysis was to try to understand more from a

  3   quantitative standpoint what could be the potential

  4   impacts of a oil unit train from this facility compared

  5   to current conditions at these rail crossings.

  6           So the focus of that study was really looking at

  7   both current conditions, how do these at-grade crossings

  8   operate today with the current rail traffic, with

  9   adjacent or intersecting traffic volumes.  And the study

 10   was pretty comprehensive.  And we had also a methodology

 11   for how do we screen, how do we determine the locations

 12   to look at.  We didn't look at every single crossing but

 13   we did limit them to crossings that had daily traffic

 14   flows of 2,500 ADT or higher.

 15      Q.   Okay.  And why did -- well, first of all, what's

 16   ADT?

 17      A.   So ADT stands for average daily traffic.  It's

 18   typically the traffic you would see on a mid weekday

 19   over a 24-hour period.

 20      Q.   Okay.  And why did you pick the 2,500 limit?

 21      A.   We chose that threshold because I think it

 22   represents a roadway or a class of roadway that really

 23   functions more as like maybe a collector or an arterial

 24   roadway if the volumes are at that level or higher.

 25   Volumes that are below that level typically represent
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  1   like a local city street or perhaps a private drive or

  2   private road with low volume.

  3           And it was our idea to select that threshold

  4   because anything at that level or above we believe has

  5   the amount of traffic that could potentially create

  6   meaningful delays and meaningful vehicle queues as a

  7   result of a train crossing.

  8      Q.   Okay.  And why is evaluating queueing capacity

  9   and/or efficiencies relating to streets as a result of a

 10   train passing, why is that important?

 11      A.   So we think delays at crossings are important,

 12   and those delays transfer into vehicle queues which

 13   develop as a result of those delays.  We think vehicle

 14   queueing is very important from a safety standpoint, not

 15   necessarily for drivers that are queueing up at the

 16   crossing but really what is happening with those queues

 17   as they develop and perhaps spill back into adjacent

 18   intersections or other areas beyond the crossing itself.

 19      Q.   And do you look at adjacent aggregate crossings

 20   as well?

 21      A.   Yes, we did.  We also -- as part of the existing

 22   conditions analysis, we looked at an inventory of not

 23   just what other at-grade crossings are nearby the

 24   locations that we evaluated but also grade-separated

 25   locations that may be in the same vicinity or in the
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  1   same city.

  2      Q.   Okay.  And why is that important?  Why is it

  3   important to look at grade-separated crossings versus

  4   at-grade crossings?

  5      A.   For two reasons.  Number one, we wanted to get

  6   an understand of if there were other viable alternatives

  7   that drivers may have, typical drivers, that they may

  8   have for a crossing that is currently closed from a

  9   train going by.  Do drivers who perhaps commute through

 10   this area or live in this area have an understanding of

 11   another route that they could use and deviate from the

 12   course that they're on.

 13           Another reason is also to understand, from

 14   perhaps an emergency response standpoint, is to

 15   understand what alternative routes do responders have.

 16   Are there at-grade or grade-separated interchanges

 17   nearby that could be a viable route.  One of the tests

 18   that we did do in the study was to look at how much

 19   train delay is occurring just under current conditions

 20   versus how long does it take a driver literally to get

 21   to the other side of the tracks.

 22      Q.   Okay.  And I want to get to that analysis here

 23   in a minute.

 24           First of all, in terms of on-street queueing

 25   capacity under existing conditions, what was your
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  1   conclusion?

  2      A.   Our conclusion was that for the ten locations

  3   that we did evaluate, that at seven of those locations

  4   there was adequate storage and adequate queueing space

  5   to accommodate drivers under current conditions.  There

  6   were three locations where we found, and these were at

  7   crossings in -- one in Washougal, one and two in Spokane

  8   Valley, where current crossing closures are creating a

  9   situation during the peak hours when traffic is at its

 10   highest levels, that these queues do develop and they

 11   spill back into an adjacent signalized intersection.

 12      Q.   Can you pull Page 2 of that report.  And I'm

 13   going to ask you a pretty small -- you have a book in

 14   front of you that has a copy of your report in it.  You

 15   might want to turn to this page.

 16      A.   Okay.

 17      Q.   Okay, you have it there?  And can you just

 18   explain to the council what that table represents?

 19      A.   Sure.  This table is really a kind of a brief

 20   summary, if you will, of our overall findings at the ten

 21   crossings that we evaluated.  I think the two pieces of

 22   important information, I think, that you can see from

 23   this table are -- excuse me, in columns -- in the fourth

 24   column here -- sorry, in the third column.  It is the

 25   fourth column.
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  1      Q.   I'm just going to interrupt for a minute just so

  2   the council understands that you're pointing with a

  3   laser pointer at the exhibit there.

  4      A.   In Column 4, this is going back to my previous

  5   response here, that there were three locations where we

  6   found that under current conditions there are vehicle

  7   queues that can develop up to and beyond the adjacent

  8   intersection that's nearby.  And those are the three

  9   locations, one at 32nd Street and Washougal crossing,

 10   North Park Road and North Pines Road in Spokane Valley.

 11           The other piece of information that is key from

 12   this table is the second to last column which is really

 13   getting into more of a comparison now of future

 14   conditions with looking only at proposed facility unit

 15   trains and what are the impacts of these unit trains at

 16   each of these crossings.  And only in one instance did

 17   we find that the unit trains would result in higher

 18   delays at the crossing itself.  But at this delay in

 19   question here is that West A Street in Pasco, and that

 20   location has sufficient queueing -- or I'm sorry, lane

 21   storage to accommodate the queues, even the longer

 22   queues that may result from the proposed facility

 23   trains.

 24      Q.   Okay.  And could you turn to Page 10 of that

 25   exhibit, please.  Actually, before you do that, could
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  1   you scroll up so that we can see the footnotes at the

  2   bottom.  Other way, sorry, down.

  3           There's a footnote there with two asterisks.  Do

  4   you see that?

  5      A.   Yes, I do.

  6      Q.   And can you just read that maybe for the benefit

  7   of those who can't read it maybe from the exhibit in

  8   front of you?

  9      A.   Yes.  These two asterisks pertain to the three

 10   crossings that are located in Cheney.  There are three

 11   at-grade crossings about a mile apart.  This bullet or

 12   these two asterisks are basically saying that there are

 13   other at-grade crossings nearby unless emergency closure

 14   affects all adjacent grade crossings.

 15           In this case, this bullet is assuming that there

 16   is a train stopped and is long enough to block all three

 17   crossings in Cheney.  And under our analysis, we were

 18   looking -- trying to look at either side of the rail

 19   line to see are there any other at-grade or

 20   grade-separated crossings nearby.  Couldn't find any.

 21   But there is a circuitous route around through another

 22   town nearby resulting in what we estimated would be

 23   about a 30-minute drive to get around.

 24               MR. JOHNSON:  Now, Ms. Mastro, could you go

 25   to Page 11, please.
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  1   BY MR. JOHNSON:

  2      Q.   And I realize this chart begins actually on Page

  3   10, but maybe you can describe the columns.  I'd like

  4   you to maybe expand on your discussion of the Cheney

  5   intersections and referring you specifically to the, I

  6   guess it's the third row under Cheney there on that

  7   page.  Could you just explain what that represents.

  8      A.   Yeah.  In this table the third row for the three

  9   crossings in Cheney, at each of the at-grade crossings,

 10   this table is a summary of what other at-grade or

 11   grade-separated crossings are closest in either

 12   direction.  And what we found is that because these

 13   three intersections are roughly one mile apart maximum,

 14   5,280 feet, that what we were trying to show here is

 15   that if there is a train that is perhaps like an oil

 16   unit train and if it is up to 7,800 feet in length, that

 17   conceivably if it stopped at all three locations, they

 18   could all be blocked at the same time.

 19      Q.   Okay.  And that would then require that traffic

 20   trying to cross would go to the crossing in the city of

 21   Marshall to the north?

 22      A.   That was the intent here of this summary.

 23      Q.   Okay.  And again, is this the main line?

 24      A.   This is the main line.  There are multiple

 25   lines, I think, in the town of Cheney.  At least at
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  1   these at-grade crossings there are multiple tracks.

  2      Q.   Okay.  And if you could scroll down, please.  A

  3   little bit more.  There you go.

  4           Okay.  So the second full paragraph there where

  5   you start to say in Cheney it is conceivable that one or

  6   more of the at-grade crossings in the city could be

  7   blocked, did you consider the likelihood of that

  8   happening?

  9      A.   We did not consider the likelihood of a train

 10   stopping at that exact location.

 11      Q.   All right.  And you reference an emergency.

 12   What would an emergency be?

 13      A.   Well, I guess in this case potentially a

 14   derailment as an emergency stop.

 15      Q.   Okay.  And were you present here this afternoon

 16   when Mr. Rhoads was testifying about the eleven

 17   derailments?

 18      A.   I was, I was.  I heard his testimony, and it was

 19   pretty clear to me that the protocol in the case of an

 20   emergency or derailment is that the train decouples at a

 21   specific point.  And if that is the case, I could see

 22   how at least one or more at-grade crossings could be

 23   kept open even in an emergency situation in Cheney.

 24      Q.   Okay.  And then that would eliminate the need to

 25   go to Marshall?
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  1      A.   It would.

  2      Q.   Okay, thank you.

  3           Did you consider the impact on emergency

  4   responders in areas with existing at-grade crossings?

  5      A.   We did.  We reached out to the four

  6   jurisdictions that we did our evaluation, we did receive

  7   responses from two of them, just to understand what the

  8   protocol is for emergency response vehicles.  And the

  9   consensus that we found from both agencies is as an

 10   emergency response vehicle is dispatched and if they do

 11   encounter a train at an at-grade crossing, they

 12   immediately call dispatch to have another vehicle

 13   dispatched to respond at the same time while they

 14   continue to try to get to their location.  So that's the

 15   protocol that we found from the two agencies.

 16           Besides that, we also did look at, and I think I

 17   did mention earlier, we looked at some estimated travel

 18   times for each of those locations using various

 19   alternative routes.

 20      Q.   Okay.  I'd like to draw your attention now to

 21   some of the other witnesses who have commented on

 22   traffic-related issues.  And the testimony I'll refer to

 23   is in the book in front of you, so if you need to turn

 24   to it and look at it, you should feel free to do that.

 25           Did you review the prefiled testimony submitted
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  1   by Dr. Frank James?

  2      A.   Yes, I did.

  3      Q.   Okay.  And do you recognize Mr. James as an

  4   expert in the field of traffic impact assessments?

  5      A.   No, I do not.  I believe he's a medical

  6   practitioner.

  7      Q.   Dr. James provides comments regarding delays in

  8   vehicle traffic and potential emergency response as a

  9   result of trains related to this project, that is,

 10   trains that will serve this project.

 11           In your opinion, do you agree with this comment?

 12      A.   No, I do not.

 13      Q.   Why not?

 14      A.   I believe that one of the primary comments made

 15   by Mr. James is that the oil unit trains represent an

 16   additional burden on the system, simply that these are

 17   going to increase the number of trains going down this

 18   corridor, which is -- as we've heard previous testimony

 19   from BNSF that that's really an oversimplification and

 20   that the additional trains or the trains associated with

 21   this facility are part of the natural and the normal

 22   fluctuations of traffic on this line.

 23           So to say that these trains would pose an

 24   increased burden on the system in terms of delays I

 25   think is a -- is not a true statement.
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  1      Q.   Okay.  Anything else about unit trains that

  2   would make you disagree with Dr. James?

  3      A.   Can you elaborate further?

  4      Q.   Well, I just wondered if there's anything else

  5   about the fact that these are unit trains as opposed to

  6   other kinds of trains that might --

  7      A.   Yeah.  Based on other testimony, I think also

  8   from Mr. Hack and I think from Tesoro, that there's

  9   been, I think, evidence submitted in the record that

 10   says these unit trains, while they may be -- they may

 11   have some length to them, up to maybe 7,800 feet, that

 12   they are not inconsistent with other trains that are on

 13   this corridor, and so that they would operate not

 14   entirely different than the trains that are already on

 15   this line.

 16           We also understand that there's certain speeds

 17   that are adhered to by these trains, not just set by

 18   the -- you know, required by the federal organization

 19   but also elected by BNSF in terms of type of train

 20   that's used on this corridor.

 21      Q.   Okay.  Dr. James testified about the project

 22   adding up to 10 to 15 minutes to emergency response

 23   times specifically.

 24           Do you agree with his conclusion?

 25      A.   No.  I don't know where he developed that
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  1   information.

  2      Q.   Okay.  And is it in any way consistent with the

  3   feedback that you received from emergency response

  4   organizations?

  5      A.   As far as increased response times from oil unit

  6   trains, no.

  7      Q.   Okay.  Mr. David Wechner also submitted prefiled

  8   testimony.  Did you have an opportunity to review his

  9   testimony?

 10      A.   Yes, I did.

 11      Q.   And as I asked about Dr. James, do you recognize

 12   Mr. Wechner as an expert in the field of traffic impact

 13   assessment?

 14      A.   No, I do not.  I believe his field is in

 15   environmental and planning.

 16      Q.   Okay.  And you may recall Mr. Wechner provided

 17   testimony regarding the impact of the Vancouver Energy

 18   project on rail traffic and its effect on at-grade

 19   crossings in the City of Vancouver at specific

 20   locations, including an area called the East Old

 21   Evergreen Highway neighborhood and in the vicinity of

 22   the Waterfront Development project and Riverview Gateway

 23   area.

 24      A.   Uh-huh.

 25      Q.   What do you conclude about his testimony?
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  1      A.   My conclusions are that the proposed facility

  2   unit trains would not have an increased impact at those

  3   locations.  I'll go through each one.

  4           For the River Green [sic] community, which I

  5   believe is the residential subdivision that is south of,

  6   I think it's off of 139th Avenue, this is a community

  7   that has only one access point between it and the

  8   adjacent public street that exits out of that location.

  9   There is an at-grade crossing there.  It has modern

 10   gates, electrified gates, signing and striping.  I

 11   believe it also has some queue management measures in

 12   place with some raised medians to control traffic.  And

 13   this is a location, I think, that where the rail line

 14   historically, it's been there for some time and that

 15   this subdivision was built, you know, after the railroad

 16   was established.

 17           If I take my conclusions from my analysis that

 18   the proposed facility unit trains are not going to take

 19   longer to cross than what's currently on this line, then

 20   my conclusion is that there's no increased impact from

 21   the oil unit trains.

 22      Q.   Okay.  And I'm sorry, I think when you started

 23   to answer my question you said the River Green.  I think

 24   you may have meant --

 25      A.   I meant East Evergreen.
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  1      Q.   Yeah.

  2      A.   East Evergreen, sorry.

  3      Q.   Just to correct.

  4      A.   The second location, I think, was the

  5   Waterfront --

  6      Q.   Correct.

  7      A.   -- Development that you referenced, which is the

  8   location just east of, I believe, I-5 south of the rail

  9   line which is targeted for a large mixed-use office

 10   development activity.  And Mr. Wechner's comments

 11   pertain, again, to limited access in this area.

 12           Based on my observations of Google Earth or

 13   general maps that are in the record such as like Ryan

 14   Lopossa's transportation map, there are multiple

 15   crossings at this waterfront -- planned waterfront park.

 16   There's actually three separate grade-separated

 17   crossings, I believe they're all under-crossings under

 18   the rail line into the downtown area from that location.

 19               MR. JOHNSON:  You just referenced an

 20   exhibit, so can you pull up 3015, please.

 21   BY MR. JOHNSON:

 22      Q.   And while we're getting that, you just

 23   referenced Ryan Lopossa's testimony.  You reviewed his

 24   testimony as well?

 25      A.   I did.
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  1      Q.   And he -- again, he identified various at-grade

  2   railroad crossings in the City of Vancouver.

  3           There we go.  Is this the exhibit you were

  4   referring to?

  5      A.   Yes, it is the exhibit.

  6      Q.   And if we can bring it in a little closer.  I

  7   don't know if you can get it to a point -- and then if

  8   you can just describe -- pretty fine detail there, but

  9   if you can generally describe what you were referring

 10   to.

 11      A.   So the Waterfront Development site I believe is

 12   in this area just west of I-5 to the south side of the

 13   rail line.  There are three grade-separated crossings

 14   between that development site and the downtown area.

 15               MR. MOSS:  Excuse me.  Could the witness use

 16   that map so that we can all see?

 17               THE WITNESS:  Sure.

 18               MR. MOSS:  Thank you.

 19               MR. JOHNSON:  Then if you could scroll down,

 20   I think he's referring to an area at the bottom of the

 21   map.  There we go.

 22               THE WITNESS:  That's correct.  Down here

 23   west of I-5 along the waterfront.

 24   BY MR. JOHNSON:

 25      Q.   Okay.  And we'll keep that up, if we could,
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  1   because I think the witness might want to refer to it

  2   again.

  3           How about the testimony of Mr. Joe Molina; have

  4   you reviewed that?

  5      A.   Yes.

  6      Q.   Mr. Molina referred to the homes where the only

  7   access to ingress and egress are across the existing

  8   railroad tracks, and expresses concerns regarding gate

  9   downtimes.

 10      A.   Uh-huh.

 11      Q.   What's your understanding of those areas?

 12      A.   Well, I believe most of the areas Mr. Molina was

 13   referring to are private accesses to either individual

 14   single-family homes in this area.  I believe it may also

 15   contain the same neighborhood that I was speaking to

 16   earlier, the East Evergreen neighborhood, which has

 17   maybe approximately 140 or so homes in that area.  Most

 18   of these locations are fed by an adjacent street,

 19   Evergreen Road or Columbia Way.  But most of these

 20   locations, I think what he's getting at is that there's

 21   only one point of access.

 22           And what I know to be true about modern

 23   developments, new subdivisions, is that when you have a

 24   project that has potentially only one access point, you

 25   know, agency codes usually restrict that.  Or you either



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 2199

                        JOHNSON / DUNN

  1   have to provide sprinklers to your project for to meet

  2   the fire safety codes, or you have to find a way to get

  3   a second access, if you can, for emergency purposes.

  4      Q.   Okay.  And is this the neighborhood you said

  5   that was primarily constructed after the railroad was

  6   built?

  7      A.   I've looked at Google Earth using the historical

  8   imagery and found that that neighborhood was built

  9   around 1990, which was well after, I think, when the

 10   railroad was established.

 11      Q.   And the impacts on these at-grade crossings, are

 12   those impacts unique to the rail traffic associated with

 13   the proposed Vancouver Energy Terminal?

 14      A.   I don't believe so.  I think there's no

 15   increased impact from the oil unit trains.

 16      Q.   Okay.  And do you know if -- and you mentioned

 17   modern development.  Again, are there building code

 18   requirements or other issues that are associated with

 19   developments that are constructed with only single

 20   access across a railroad line?

 21      A.   Not that I'm aware of.  Typical codes, they have

 22   thresholds established for when you have a certain

 23   number of, say, residential units that at a certain

 24   point you do need a secondary access.  Otherwise, you

 25   can seek an exception.  Perhaps you choose to install
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  1   sprinklers or something that can meet the fire safety

  2   codes.

  3      Q.   Okay.  How about the testimony of Mr. Dan

  4   Monaghan; did you review that?

  5      A.   Yes, I did.

  6      Q.   Okay.  And Mr. Monaghan also expressed concerns

  7   about how the project may affect local vehicle traffic

  8   delay, but in the context of the area of Washougal.

  9           Can you respond to his concerns as he outlines

 10   them in his testimony?

 11      A.   Yes.  We did -- part of our analysis did address

 12   three crossings in that -- in the City of Washougal.  I

 13   think Mr. Monaghan was referring to one of them.

 14               MR. JOHNSON:  Okay.  And could you pull up

 15   Exhibit 0218, Ms. Mastro.  And this is an exhibit that

 16   there was an outstanding objection to.  During the break

 17   I conferred with Ms. Boyles and she agreed to its

 18   admission, but I'll let her speak for herself.

 19               MS. BOYLES:  That is correct.

 20               MR. JOHNSON:  So I'd move for the admission

 21   of Exhibit 0218 TSS.

 22               JUDGE NOBLE:  0218 will be admitted.

 23               MR. JOHNSON:  If you could, Ms. Mastro, do

 24   some of your magic and maybe bring this in a little

 25   closer so we can see it.
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  1   BY MR. JOHNSON:

  2      Q.   While she's doing that -- there we go.  If you

  3   could just explain to the council what this represents.

  4      A.   Sure.  This was an aerial photo that we prepared

  5   to show not only the three at-grade crossings that we

  6   did an evaluation of but also of all at-grade and

  7   grade-separated crossings in the City of Washougal and

  8   also extending west of the town.  So I'll use my pen

  9   here and circle the three locations that we did

 10   evaluate.

 11           I believe one is 3rd Street and 6th Street, here

 12   and here, and the other location, I think, is a little

 13   but further off to the right which is 32nd Street, right

 14   there.  This map is intended to show a few things; that

 15   there are other at-grade crossings in this corridor and

 16   there's also this grade-separated crossing in the

 17   downtown area called Washougal River Road.

 18           If you proceed west of town there are two other

 19   grade-separated crossings that are accessible either by

 20   SR-14 or another city street from Washougal.

 21           And at the extreme east end of town, even

 22   further on the map to the right, there's another

 23   grade-separated crossing location down here.

 24      Q.   And just for clarification, what's the

 25   significance of the color there?
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  1      A.   Grade-separated is green and at-grade is yellow.

  2      Q.   Okay.  And I'm sorry if I cut you off.

  3      A.   So I think Mr. Monaghan focused a lot on the

  4   32nd Street crossing which was a location that we did

  5   our evaluation of.  Our findings were that this is one

  6   of the intersections where we found that queueing can

  7   extend up to the signal that's nearby.  But we also

  8   found at the same time that the oil unit trains are not

  9   going to impose any increased delay at this crossing at

 10   32nd.

 11           There are, at least when we did our inventory of

 12   all these crossings, we looked at gate crossing times.

 13   We measured intersecting vehicular volumes, train

 14   frequencies.  We also did an inventory of are there any

 15   access management measures in place.  There are -- at

 16   this location there are raised medians on both

 17   approaches to this intersection.  And the signal to the

 18   north, the one that I was referring to earlier where

 19   queues had the potential to spill back, that signal has

 20   what's called preemptive signal phasing.  So it's tied

 21   in with the train crossing, knows when a train is going

 22   by and can adjust the phasing so that traffic flows in

 23   one direction or both directions along the parallel

 24   street.

 25           And the reason I mentioned this also is that the
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  1   City has in their capital improvement plan some

  2   way-finding measures that they're going to implement to

  3   alert drivers about 32nd Street and the fact that

  4   Washougal River Road can be a viable alternative for

  5   commuters in the city.

  6      Q.   And in your opinion, do drivers generally react

  7   to those kinds of measures and adjust their behavior

  8   accordingly?

  9      A.   Yes, they can.  You get like changeable message

 10   signs or advance message signs that tell you if a route

 11   is quicker or slower than another route, they will

 12   adhere to that and adjust.

 13      Q.   All right.  I'd like to now turn your attention

 14   to the testimony of the Vancouver city manager, Mr. Eric

 15   Holmes.  Did you review his testimony?

 16      A.   I did.

 17      Q.   And I think Mr. Holmes's testimony is included

 18   in exhibit -- or Tab 1 of your book there in front of

 19   you.

 20           Mr. Holmes, on Page 6, testifies about the

 21   Riverview Gateway subarea, and again I think you

 22   referred to that earlier.  And he states, "There's a

 23   quarry in this area, which has a single at-grade private

 24   railroad crossing.  Semitrailers have been known to have

 25   difficulty making the crossing."
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  1           Do you have an opinion about that statement?

  2      A.   I did.  When I read this I looked into where

  3   these quarry sites are located, and what I discovered is

  4   there are two quarries.  They are out at, I believe,

  5   162nd Avenue, but they're on the north side of SR 14.

  6   And so these quarry sites, which I think are also

  7   targeted for future development, they have access to the

  8   state highway.  And they're north of the rail line so

  9   there's no physical crossing with the rail line to these

 10   quarry sites.

 11           There was the additional location, I believe

 12   it's a logging business, and that might be, I think,

 13   what the next sentence is referring to is the logging

 14   business that is south of the highway, south of the

 15   railroad tracks along the river, where there is an

 16   at-grade crossing to this logging business.

 17      Q.   Okay.  And did you assess the ability of the

 18   logging vehicles associated with the logging business to

 19   ingress and egress across the tracks?

 20      A.   The only assessment I can make is that there's

 21   one point of access to their business, it's a private

 22   crossing.  It does have modern protective devices,

 23   meaning it has an electrified gate and advance warning

 24   signs.  I also could see from aerial imagery that there

 25   is room for stacking, because these are oftentimes
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  1   trucks going in or out, that they have stacking on both

  2   sides of the crossing so that people can queue up in

  3   advance of the gate being down.

  4           What I also saw from the imagery is that the

  5   crossing does require that trucks make a turn to enter

  6   and a turn to get out.

  7      Q.   Okay.  So could you just briefly summarize again

  8   for the council your conclusions resulting from the

  9   crossing analysis that you performed?

 10      A.   Sure.  So for the locations that we screened,

 11   the ten locations, our findings were that the oil unit

 12   trains would not pose any increased delays at these

 13   crossings based on the operational characteristics of

 14   the trains, the speeds that are required of these trains

 15   in the corridors, and the length of these trains.

 16           In our comparison of the oil unit train delays

 17   and vehicle queue assessments to current conditions, we

 18   found there was no increased burden on the system.

 19   There was one location where we found that vehicle

 20   queues would be slightly longer, but that's at that

 21   location in Pasco.  There's adequate lane storage to

 22   accommodate queues.

 23           And that was the overall finding of our study.

 24               MR. JOHNSON:  Thank you.

 25               Nothing further, Your Honor.
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  1               JUDGE NOBLE:  Cross-examination?

  2                       CROSS-EXAMINATION

  3   BY MR. POTTER:

  4      Q.   Mr. Dunn, I'm Bronson Potter.  I represent the

  5   City of Vancouver.

  6      A.   Good afternoon.

  7      Q.   Good afternoon.

  8           Aren't Spokane and Vancouver the two largest

  9   cities along the BNSF Columbia Gorge rail line between

 10   North Dakota and the terminal?

 11      A.   I believe so.  I did read Vancouver was the

 12   largest city.

 13      Q.   It's the fourth largest in the state and Spokane

 14   is the third largest.

 15           But your at-grade crossing analysis didn't

 16   include analysis of any crossings in either Spokane or

 17   Vancouver, did it?

 18      A.   Not in Spokane but in Spokane Valley, and not in

 19   Vancouver.

 20      Q.   You did analysis of ten crossings; correct?

 21      A.   That's correct.

 22      Q.   And Spokane Valley is not Spokane, is it?

 23      A.   No, it is not.

 24      Q.   In your analysis you didn't measure the actual

 25   length of the vehicle queueing that was occurring at the
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  1   crossings, did you?

  2      A.   We did not measure them but we had video

  3   surveillance done where we could go and monitor those.

  4      Q.   So you made estimates?

  5      A.   That's correct.

  6      Q.   And the video surveillance was two days of

  7   surveillance?

  8      A.   Correct.

  9      Q.   Did the video include any oil trains going

 10   through these crossings?

 11      A.   I believe it included all trains which include

 12   oil trains that may be going by.

 13      Q.   Your analysis didn't use the actual speed of oil

 14   trains to calculate the delay or that they would cause

 15   when you -- I think you came up with a three-minute and

 16   23-second delay time?

 17      A.   We did not use actual speeds of the trains.  We

 18   did not record them.  We did use estimates of speeds

 19   based on the information developed by RailTech.

 20      Q.   So, and that was the maximum permissible speeds

 21   according to BNSF policy?

 22      A.   Yes, or that were required outside of BNSF.

 23      Q.   Well --

 24      A.   The minimum speed.  There were two competing

 25   speed limits.  We chose the lesser.
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  1      Q.   So with respect to Washougal, you picked, I

  2   believe, 35 miles per hour?

  3      A.   I believe so.

  4      Q.   And that was based on the BNSF policy?

  5      A.   Yes.

  6      Q.   So in your analysis, I think there were three

  7   criteria that you applied.  One was whether or not

  8   there's adequate queueing space to hold vehicles during

  9   the delay.  The second one was whether the, I'll call it

 10   facility-related oil trains would cause delay that

 11   exceeded the maximum delay occurring today at the

 12   crossings?

 13      A.   Uh-huh.

 14      Q.   Okay.  And then the third was whether or not

 15   there's an alternate route that drivers could take?

 16      A.   That's correct.

 17      Q.   And if one of those was satisfied, was it your

 18   opinion that the impact was not significant or adverse?

 19      A.   For the first two criteria, the comparison of

 20   proposed facility train delays versus current delays, if

 21   there was no increase then we -- my decision was that

 22   there was no impact, no increased impact, regardless of

 23   alternative routes being available.

 24      Q.   What if there was an increase but there was

 25   sufficient queueing?  Was your opinion then that there
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  1   was not a significant impact?

  2      A.   That's correct.  That was one of our

  3   conclusions --

  4      Q.   So -- sorry.

  5      A.   -- as in Pasco.

  6      Q.   So if you pass either test, sufficient queueing

  7   or you don't exceed the current maximum delay, the

  8   impact is not significant?

  9      A.   That's correct.

 10      Q.   In your analysis, was the longest delay caused

 11   by existing train traffic that was caused by an oil

 12   train?

 13      A.   I don't know if I can answer that question.  I

 14   did not look to see if the longest delay was caused by

 15   an oil train, but we do have measurement of number of

 16   cars in each of the incidents.  So if it was an oil unit

 17   train, we could tell if there were 100-plus cars in that

 18   chain, potentially it could be an oil train.

 19      Q.   But as you sit here today, you don't know one

 20   way or the other?

 21      A.   No.

 22      Q.   I reviewed -- I guess it's closest to Vancouver,

 23   so your Washougal crossing analysis.  So again, you took

 24   35 miles an hour, based on the BNSF policy, and a train

 25   length of 7,800 feet; correct?
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  1      A.   That's correct.

  2      Q.   And that's what came up to the three-minute and

  3   22-second delay time?

  4      A.   That's correct.

  5      Q.   So is that just given that speed and that

  6   length, that's the amount of time it would take that

  7   train to go by a crossing?

  8      A.   We also accounted for the gate operations.

  9      Q.   So the gate coming down and gate going up?

 10      A.   That's correct.

 11      Q.   What about deceleration as you're approaching

 12   the gate coming down?  Did you include a delay for that?

 13      A.   No.  We assumed that there was a constant rate

 14   of speed of the train.

 15      Q.   Okay.  And when the gate goes up, did you

 16   include any delay for re-acceleration to the speed

 17   limit?

 18      A.   No.

 19      Q.   Did you review the gate downtime analysis that

 20   was part of the Draft Environmental Impact Statement?

 21      A.   The gate downtime analysis as part of the DEIS?

 22               MR. JOHNSON:  Your Honor, I'm going to

 23   object at this point.  In fact, I think this could be

 24   one of the exhibits we need to discuss this afternoon.

 25   I think it's proprietary and subject to your DEIS
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  1   ruling, which is why I didn't ask questions about it.

  2   We're trying to toe the line here on your ruling.

  3               JUDGE NOBLE:  I appreciate that.

  4               Well, where were you going with this

  5   question, Mr. Potter?

  6               MR. POTTER:  There's alternate analysis of

  7   delay that's included in the gate downtime analysis.

  8   And Mr. Dunn's here offering opinions on that and I want

  9   to examine him about other analysis that's been done.

 10               JUDGE NOBLE:  Is it part of an exhibit

 11   that's been admitted?

 12               MR. POTTER:  I don't believe it has, Your

 13   Honor.  I didn't realize that there was an objection to

 14   it.

 15               MR. JOHNSON:  Well, because I think it's one

 16   of the exhibits that you offered.  Was it recently?

 17               MR. POTTER:  Correct.

 18               MR. JOHNSON:  So we haven't gotten to it

 19   yet.

 20               JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there a way we could get to

 21   it now?  What's the number?

 22               MR. JOHNSON:  It's 3130, Your Honor.  It's

 23   3130, Your Honor, it's Appendix N to the DEIS.  And this

 24   would be one that I think Ms. Reed has put into the

 25   record for you, but it's subject to further review
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  1   because we haven't gotten to it yet.

  2               JUDGE NOBLE:  Subject to further foundation?

  3               MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, Your Honor.  It's on the

  4   list of exhibits that we need to go -- that we intended

  5   to go through this afternoon.  It wasn't on the original

  6   list.  So the problem with it is that it is part of the

  7   DEIS, and I believe it was -- I mean, it's the same

  8   problem we've been having with these other DEIS

  9   exhibits.  And so --

 10               JUDGE NOBLE:  But many of them have been

 11   admitted if they were an independent product of the

 12   witness and not expressing critique of the draft DEIS.

 13   Many of them have these reports --

 14               MR. JOHNSON:  I mean, I think that's

 15   specifically the testimony Mr. Potter is trying to

 16   elicit is a critique of what's in the DEIS from the

 17   witness, and that's the problem.

 18               JUDGE NOBLE:  I haven't seen the exhibit so

 19   I don't know if I can respond to that.  But the problem

 20   is that it's not in the record yet, and I don't -- we'll

 21   have to have that discussion.  And this witness can't be

 22   the witness, I guess, to lay a foundation for the

 23   exhibit.

 24               Ms. Reed wants to argue about this.

 25               MS. REED:  Well, I just wanted to respond in
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  1   that we offered this because we felt it was squarely

  2   within your ruling that issues that related to the DEIS

  3   but were not about the accuracy of the DEIS could be

  4   admitted if it was relevant to an expert's opinion.  And

  5   so that was the context in which we offered it.  We were

  6   not offering it to argue about the DEIS.

  7               JUDGE NOBLE:  I understand that, but there's

  8   been -- I guess there's an objection to that exhibit.

  9               MR. JOHNSON:  There is, Your Honor, based on

 10   your ruling.  So I mean, it's part of the DEIS.

 11               MR. POTTER:  The ruling was that there would

 12   be technical reports that are part of the DEIS that

 13   would be admitted, but this is one of them.

 14               MR. JOHNSON:  But not if it's proprietary to

 15   EFSEC, and I think that's where we're at.

 16               MS. REED:  Proprietary doesn't --

 17               JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.  It hasn't been

 18   admitted and this witness is not going to be able to lay

 19   a foundation for it and there's been an objection.  I've

 20   allowed all the exhibits that have been agreed to even

 21   though they were also in the draft DEIS as long as they

 22   weren't critiques of the draft DEIS.

 23               That's the problem with this exhibit is that

 24   it's objected to and so you would have to lay a

 25   foundation for it, and I don't think this witness can do
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  1   that.  Possibly another witness can.

  2               MR. POTTER:  I think one of the rulings was

  3   we could not call as witnesses consultants of council,

  4   so it's a little tough to lay a foundation when you

  5   can't do that.

  6               JUDGE NOBLE:  Well, you don't have the

  7   person here who created that analysis and that report,

  8   as I understand it.  And the other exhibits that have

  9   been admitted like that were exhibits prepared by the

 10   witnesses.  And there was also agreement that they could

 11   be admitted.  And we don't have either one of those

 12   conditions here.  So I'm going to sustain the objection

 13   at this time.  That doesn't mean that you can't present

 14   a witness or one of the other parties could present a

 15   witness to try again on that exhibit.

 16   BY MR. POTTER:

 17      Q.   So your calculation of the delay time was three

 18   minutes and 23 seconds?

 19      A.   In the Washougal area?

 20      Q.   Yeah.

 21      A.   I think that's correct.

 22      Q.   Okay.  Can you explain why your analysis of the

 23   6th Street, you assume a delay time of two minutes and

 24   32 seconds, Page 22 of your report?

 25      A.   The delay time -- are you talking about current
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  1   delay or unit train delays?

  2      Q.   Unit train delay.

  3      A.   It would have to be a function, then, of the

  4   speed that we selected for that location, that crossing.

  5      Q.   Are you at Page 22 of your report?  If you go to

  6   the very bottom there, it says, "Based on the assumed

  7   unit oil train metrics and speed and current gate

  8   operation, a proposed facility unit train is estimated

  9   to block the 6th Street crossing for a duration of two

 10   minutes and 32 seconds."

 11      A.   I'm looking at the tables prior to that, so I'd

 12   have to check the calculations on that.  But if it says

 13   two minutes, 32 seconds, that's what our estimate is for

 14   the oil unit train.

 15      Q.   So did the facility unit train get shorter or

 16   did it go faster than 35?

 17      A.   I'd have to check my calculations on that.  So I

 18   don't have an answer for you on that, why that number

 19   may be different than the other two.

 20      Q.   If you assume it's going 35 and it's 7,800 feet

 21   long, that calculation is wrong, isn't it?

 22      A.   If you're going 35 miles an hour?

 23      Q.   Yes.

 24      A.   And 7,800 feet in length?

 25      Q.   Correct.
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  1      A.   It's not consistent with the other two.  That

  2   number would be different.

  3      Q.   Is that another way of saying wrong?

  4               MR. JOHNSON:  Objection.  Asked and

  5   answered.

  6   BY MR. POTTER:

  7      Q.   If you use the three-minute and 23-second --

  8               JUDGE NOBLE:  Are you withdrawing the

  9   question and asking another one?

 10               MR. POTTER:  No, I'm not.

 11               JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.  Overruled.

 12   BY MR. POTTER:

 13      Q.   If you did use the three-minute and 23-second

 14   delay time for 6th Street, it would then exceed the

 15   maximum of existing train length?

 16      A.   It would not exceed the maximum time because I

 17   believe the maximum time is four minutes and five

 18   seconds.

 19      Q.   Was there a difference in southbound and

 20   northbound, for northbound?

 21      A.   There is a difference.

 22      Q.   So it would exceed the delay for northbound;

 23   right?

 24      A.   It would exceed it for the northbound but not

 25   the southbound, correct.
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  1      Q.   So would the fact that it would exceed the limit

  2   for northbound change your opinion about its

  3   significance?

  4      A.   It may not.  I'm looking at the prior table to

  5   where we use that information to develop what the queue

  6   lengths would be for that location northbound, and I'm

  7   seeing there still is additional available queue storage

  8   so there's additional storage available.

  9      Q.   So even if it's worse than the worst, as long as

 10   there's queueing it's okay?

 11      A.   I believe so, for stacking vehicles safely.

 12      Q.   With respect to the 32nd Street crossing, there

 13   you acknowledge that there's inadequate queueing space

 14   today for southbound traffic during the maximum delay?

 15      A.   That's correct.

 16      Q.   So is this where there's a phased interface for

 17   the signaling?

 18      A.   That's correct.  There's signal preemption at

 19   the adjacent signal.

 20      Q.   Does the fact that the queueing would back up to

 21   the intersection and beyond be significant?

 22      A.   The intersection is quite close so the

 23   spill-back does happen.  And it can extend to a number

 24   of different approaches at that signal both for the

 25   westbound left turn, eastbound right turn, and
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  1   southbound through.

  2      Q.   Your analysis also included, with respect to the

  3   ten crossings that you looked at, a review of the

  4   alternate routes available to the railroad crossings?

  5      A.   That's correct.

  6               MR. POTTER:  I believe Exhibit 3014, which

  7   was the list of crossings in Vancouver attached to

  8   Mr. Lopossa's testimony, has been admitted?

  9               JUDGE NOBLE:  My note indicates that --

 10   well, I don't have a note about whether or not it's been

 11   admitted.  It's on your list of ones that would be

 12   offered today.

 13               MR. JOHNSON:  Your Honor, I believe it's

 14   been admitted.

 15               MR. POTTER:  I'd move to admit.

 16               JUDGE NOBLE:  Well, let me just tell you

 17   that my exhibit list is behind because there was a

 18   technical problem and so I'm working on last week's

 19   exhibit list.  So I'll take your word for it, thank you.

 20   BY MR. POTTER:

 21      Q.   Mr. Dunn, can you tell us, what alternative

 22   route is available to avoid the crossing of Vancouver at

 23   the Steamboat Springs development that has an average

 24   daily traffic count of 1,660 vehicles?

 25      A.   I believe at that location, which is -- which
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  1   number is it on the map?  We have 27 crossings listed in

  2   the exhibit.  I'm trying to find the one that says

  3   Steamboat Springs.  Silver Springs.  Well, I've seen the

  4   list.  There was another exhibit that had estimated ADTs

  5   for the crossings.

  6      Q.   Right.  That's 3014.

  7      A.   And that particular location you were saying has

  8   1,600 ADT?

  9      Q.   Right.

 10      A.   So we did not look at that location.  It's below

 11   the 2,500 ADT that we used as a threshold for whether

 12   there could be meaningful delays and queues that are

 13   triggered.

 14      Q.   So you didn't look at it, you're not aware of

 15   any alternative route?

 16      A.   I'm not aware of any alternative route.  We did

 17   not evaluate it with our study.

 18      Q.   You did mention the SDS lumber mill that's

 19   located to the south of the railroad tracks?

 20      A.   That's correct.

 21      Q.   And there's no alternative route for that

 22   location, is there?

 23      A.   No.  I think there's sole access at-grade.

 24      Q.   And with respect to the Wintler Park, did you

 25   look at it at all?
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  1      A.   I'm not familiar with Wintler Park location.

  2      Q.   Do you know how many crossings in Vancouver the

  3   private railroad crossing or public crossing is the only

  4   means of ingress or egress to the properties south of

  5   the tracks?

  6      A.   Well, I'm seeing 27 on the exhibit of public and

  7   private crossings in the City of Vancouver.

  8      Q.   Right.  That's the total crossings.  Do you know

  9   how many of those are the only means of ingress and

 10   egress to the property to the south?

 11      A.   No.  I imagine there's quite a few given that

 12   many of these private driveways lead to a single-family

 13   residence or a small grouping of homes.

 14      Q.   You talked in your testimony about modern

 15   development codes would require a second access or

 16   sprinkler systems.

 17           Is it your testimony that the homes in the East

 18   Evergreen area all have sprinkler systems because they

 19   only have one means of access?

 20      A.   No.  I think what I'm referring to is that those

 21   communities may have been built after the rail line was

 22   established perhaps prior to when those codes were

 23   developed.

 24      Q.   Right, over a century ago.  So I guess the

 25   significance of the modern development standards
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  1   requiring the sprinkler system is what?

  2      A.   I can't speculate on when those codes were

  3   developed.

  4      Q.   You used a term in your testimony, "level of

  5   service."  With respect to traffic analysis, what is a

  6   level of service?

  7      A.   Sure.  For the analysis of traffic flow, we in

  8   our profession use a term called "level of service" or

  9   LOS.  And it's a mechanism that was developed by the --

 10   within the highway capacity manual which is produced by

 11   the National -- sorry, Federal Highways Administration.

 12           So level of service is essentially almost like a

 13   report card, A through F, A being light demand, plenty

 14   of capacity, good flow, to level of service F which is

 15   failure or excessive delays.  And in our field we have

 16   developed a number of different level of service

 17   criteria for -- which apply to traffic signals and

 18   stop-controlled intersections or even yield-controlled

 19   intersections and roundabouts.

 20      Q.   So for a signalized intersection, a delay of

 21   over 80 seconds is level of service F; correct?

 22      A.   That's correct.

 23      Q.   And for an unsignalized intersection, a delay of

 24   over 50 seconds is an LOS F; correct?

 25      A.   That's correct.
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  1      Q.   Kittleson & Associates prepares traffic impact

  2   analysis for development proposals in Vancouver, doesn't

  3   it?

  4      A.   Yes, we do.

  5      Q.   And in Vancouver, if a development that's being

  6   proposed would cause an intersection to experience or

  7   roll into LOS F, that's a failure, isn't it?

  8      A.   That's correct.

  9      Q.   And the proposal, the development proposal would

 10   either have to mitigate that to avoid the LOS F or be

 11   denied?

 12      A.   That sounds like a true statement.

 13      Q.   Okay.  Isn't it true in this case that the

 14   three-minute and 23-second delay caused by the unit

 15   trains is more than twice the LOS F, F for a signalized

 16   intersection?

 17      A.   That's a true statement.

 18      Q.   When you prepare a traffic impact analysis for a

 19   development proposal, you prepare an existing condition

 20   of the traffic condition without the proposed

 21   development?

 22      A.   That's correct.

 23      Q.   And then you prepare an operating year baseline

 24   that's the existing traffic plus traffic generated by

 25   the proposed developer?
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  1      A.   That's correct.

  2      Q.   And then don't you prepare a future buildout

  3   traffic analysis that includes the increase of volume

  4   due to growth?

  5      A.   From the development itself or from --

  6      Q.   No, just background growth in the city.

  7      A.   Typically we do produce a background analysis of

  8   what conditions would be like in the future without the

  9   development.

 10      Q.   All right.  And even with the development, don't

 11   you do a five-year and ten-year future buildout

 12   analysis?

 13      A.   Not necessarily.

 14      Q.   In this case you didn't do any analysis with

 15   respect to the queueing of the crossings that you looked

 16   at for future growth and population, did you?

 17      A.   No.

 18      Q.   So even though there may be sufficient queueing

 19   today, you're not able to say if there's going to be

 20   sufficient queueing in five or ten years?

 21      A.   Not with this analysis.

 22               MR. POTTER:  Thank you.  That's all I have.

 23               JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other cross-examination of

 24   Mr. Dunn?  Redirect?

 25   ///



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 2224

                             DUNN

  1                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION

  2   BY MR. JOHNSON:

  3      Q.   Mr. Dunn, with regard to the ten intersections

  4   that you analyzed, was that a function of the 2,500 ADT

  5   baseline that you established?

  6      A.   That's correct.

  7      Q.   Okay.

  8               MR. JOHNSON:  Nothing further, Your Honor.

  9               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Potter, before you go, I

 10   want to make sure I have the number of the exhibits that

 11   we had discussion about.  You had communicated that you

 12   were going to be offering 3014 today.

 13               MR. POTTER:  Well, 3014 was the one that we

 14   talked about that we think is admitted.  If it's not

 15   I'll move at this time for its admission.

 16               JUDGE NOBLE:  I will check on that to make

 17   sure.  But the exhibit that you offered and it was not

 18   admitted with your argument, I want to make sure I have

 19   the number for that.

 20               MR. POTTER:  That's 3130.

 21               JUDGE NOBLE:  3130, all right, thank you.

 22               All right, Mr. Dunn, thank you very much for

 23   your testimony.  You are excused as a witness -- oh,

 24   that's right.  All right.  To my right, are there

 25   council questions?
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  1               Mr. Snodgrass?

  2               MR. SNODGRASS:  Good afternoon.  Thank you

  3   for your testimony.

  4               I understand that you testified, I think you

  5   saw you for the prior witness, so I'll ask a question

  6   that I asked him.  And that was about -- he indicated

  7   traffic was not his expertise, and that was regarding

  8   evacuations.

  9               Is it either within your analysis or the

 10   scope of a traffic engineer and so on, are you aware of

 11   any kind of analysis or information on evacuations

 12   through -- most of these at-grade crossings I understand

 13   were two-lane road or one in and out.  At what levels

 14   that works and doesn't, and by "works and doesn't" I

 15   don't necessarily mean somebody might sway over the line

 16   a little bit but where there's a serious chance of an

 17   accident -- (Court reporter interruption.)  I will go

 18   slower, though.

 19               Are you aware of any analysis at all on at

 20   what point evacuations through a pinch point like that

 21   work, meaning that people can get in and out and at what

 22   point they don't?

 23               THE WITNESS:  No, I'm not aware.

 24               MR. SNODGRASS:  The other -- another measure

 25   at least to my knowledge of traffic overall is vehicle
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  1   hours of delays for systems or other individual

  2   projects.  But for the sake of -- let's say for the sake

  3   of argument this project adds four additional unit

  4   trains beyond the current level.

  5               And so in the ten intersections that you

  6   looked at, do you have a figure of what vehicle hours or

  7   vehicle minutes or however you want to express that of

  8   delay is created by the additional four?

  9               THE WITNESS:  I did not calculate the hours

 10   of the vehicle delay associated with these crossings.

 11               MR. SNODGRASS:  Okay.  And I'm sure it's in

 12   the record, I can't remember where.  How many crossings

 13   are there, public and private, throughout the rail

 14   corridor?

 15               THE WITNESS:  I'm not aware of how many

 16   there are total.

 17               MR. SNODGRASS:  And I guess lastly, just I'm

 18   trying to get my head around the issue of the four

 19   trains not adding to the total.  Just to kind of

 20   illustrate with an example, the days that you looked at

 21   I assume were relatively representative, not highly

 22   unusual, as best you could determine.  So in 6th Street

 23   Washougal, it looks like, if I counted right, 27 or 28

 24   trains westbound.  Wouldn't adding four to that increase

 25   the total by about 15 percent?
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  1               THE WITNESS:  If you were adding four, yes.

  2               MR. SNODGRASS:  Okay.  So there had earlier

  3   been testimony, I think it was from BNSF, that there

  4   would be no displacement of trains.  So how would the

  5   four additional trains serving this project, how would

  6   that not represent some sort of an addition?

  7               THE WITNESS:  It sounds like because four

  8   oil unit trains could already be within that total that

  9   you started with.  Because this is one commodity, some

 10   of those other trains could have been carrying another

 11   commodity and on another day it's a different commodity.

 12               The testimony I heard from BNSF was that

 13   this -- you know, that the rail corridor has a

 14   fluctuation of traffic levels and that this project is

 15   within that fluctuation of seasonal traffic and annual

 16   traffic.

 17               MR. SNODGRASS:  But unless there's a

 18   displacement, wouldn't it represent an issue?

 19               THE WITNESS:  Well, I'm not -- I don't

 20   maintain the BNSF rail line, they manage the line

 21   themselves.  But from what I understand, they manage the

 22   trains in their corridor according to their plan, and

 23   there are many factors I think that go into that plan on

 24   how they manage traffic levels.

 25               MR. SNODGRASS:  And not being a little bit
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  1   more familiar with traffic analysis and regulations and

  2   so forth, I'm not an expert like yourself, is there any

  3   jurisdiction in which you, Kittleson, would do business

  4   in which you would -- particularly in Washington where

  5   there's concurrency regulations, where if you're

  6   increasing the traffic at an intersection by about 15

  7   percent but the increase was still within the

  8   seasonality range, it would still -- there may be some

  9   discussion about which is the appropriate baseline, but

 10   that it would still be not regulated as additional

 11   traffic?

 12               Have you ever encountered that

 13   professionally?

 14               THE WITNESS:  I've encountered analyses

 15   performed where we do baseline counts, we do a count for

 16   seasonal fluctuations.

 17               MR. SNODGRASS:  But where the jurisdiction

 18   regulating it sets the fact that as long as you're

 19   within the seasonal fluctuation, the amount of

 20   additional traffic, which isn't -- everyone agrees what

 21   that might be and whatever example -- wasn't represented

 22   initially?

 23               THE WITNESS:  In the area of traffic and

 24   vehicular traffic, that sounds like a reasonable

 25   statement.
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  1               MR. SNODGRASS:  Okay.  Nothing further,

  2   thank you.

  3               JUDGE NOBLE:  Other questions?

  4               Mr. Stone?

  5               MR. STONE:  Good afternoon.

  6               Did your traffic impact analysis include the

  7   return route of these unit oil trains?

  8               THE WITNESS:  The traffic analysis for

  9   at-grade intersections only accounted for the Gorge

 10   line.

 11               MR. STONE:  So the state Department of

 12   Transportation has identified 26 operationally sensitive

 13   at-grade crossings along this rail route.

 14               Did you include those in your consideration?

 15               THE WITNESS:  No, we did not.  We screened

 16   for the roadways that had certain volume thresholds,

 17   intersecting traffic volumes.

 18               MR. STONE:  And that was the 2,500 ADT?

 19               THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

 20               MR. STONE:  So you're saying that none of

 21   these crossings of this railroad on the state highway,

 22   none of those exceeded 2,500 ADT?

 23               THE WITNESS:  I don't believe so, if they're

 24   at-grade.

 25               MR. STONE:  Did your analysis include
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  1   impacts of unit oil trains to passenger rail operations

  2   in the state of Washington?

  3               THE WITNESS:  No.

  4               MR. STONE:  That's all I have.

  5               JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other questions to my

  6   right?  To my left?

  7               Mr. Moss?

  8               MR. MOSS:  Good afternoon.

  9               You used the turn of phrase "no meaningful

 10   delay" in describing your general conclusions at the

 11   outset of your testimony today.  At least that's the

 12   phrase I wrote down.

 13               Is that your general conclusion, that the

 14   unit oil trains, the addition of these trains, terminal

 15   trains would cause no meaningful delay?

 16               THE WITNESS:  No.  "No increased delay" is

 17   probably the more correct statement, except at one

 18   location out of the ten.

 19               MR. MOSS:  Okay.  Let me just ask, focusing

 20   on Cheney, apparently you recognize there is a

 21   possibility of those three crossings being blocked

 22   simultaneously.

 23               Do you consider a 30-minute drive to an

 24   alternative location to be a viable alternative for

 25   motorists?
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  1               THE WITNESS:  If it's the only alternative,

  2   that's the only alternative to drive around to get back

  3   to downtown Cheney on the northwest side of the tracks.

  4   In light of the testimony that I've heard from

  5   Mr. Rhoads here earlier today, it sounds like that would

  6   not be the case in the event of an emergency or

  7   derailment; that the train engineer decouples the train

  8   as a first priority and moves the train out of the area,

  9   which tells me that one of those three crossings in

 10   Cheney would reopen, one or more of them.

 11               MR. MOSS:  But do you know how long it would

 12   take for the engineer to decouple cars and move that

 13   train?

 14               THE WITNESS:  I do not.

 15               MR. MOSS:  Okay.  You talk about something

 16   in the approximate range of a three-minute delay for a

 17   queue at a crossing on either one of these trains; is

 18   that right?

 19               THE WITNESS:  I think in Washougal that was

 20   the estimates that we were coming up with.

 21               MR. MOSS:  Okay.  Well, what I'm wondering

 22   is, would that be a three-minute delay for everybody in

 23   the queue or just the lead car in the queue?

 24               THE WITNESS:  Just the lead car.

 25               MR. MOSS:  And so if there were 50 cars
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  1   backed up, do you have any idea of what the delay would

  2   be for number 49?

  3               THE WITNESS:  If they're just arriving, it

  4   would be a matter of how fast the queue dissipates in

  5   front of them.

  6               MR. MOSS:  So it would take five minutes?

  7               THE WITNESS:  It's a function of how long

  8   the queue is in front.

  9               MR. MOSS:  Now, in terms of first

 10   responders, ambulances, fire, police, do I understand

 11   you correctly that you disagreed with other testimony in

 12   this proceeding that there might be I think ten-minute

 13   delay was the reference you used, you disagreed with

 14   that on the basis that you heard from two out of four

 15   first responders you questioned that there wouldn't be

 16   any such delays?

 17               THE WITNESS:  Well, I think the information

 18   that we presented in our analysis also looked at what

 19   our alternative travel times for other routes.  And for

 20   our analysis, if you take Cheney out of it which we

 21   thought was a 30-minute drive around, those other

 22   locations, seven of them, based on our estimates of

 23   drive time, travel speed, hitting signals or stop signs

 24   along the way to get to the exact opposite side of the

 25   tracks, was 5 to 13 minutes.  That's what our analysis
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  1   indicated.  So if a vehicle or an ambulance or fire

  2   truck is trying to get to the other side of the at-grade

  3   crossing that's blocked, that's approximately how much

  4   time it would take to go around.

  5               But my other point is that we don't feel

  6   we're adding trains to these crossings and, therefore,

  7   we're not adding more burden to the system in the event

  8   of an emergency response.  That they're already

  9   encountering these instances today, they have to

 10   negotiate their way around these crossings for normal --

 11   or, sorry, current rail traffic.

 12               MR. MOSS:  You collected data over 48 hours.

 13   What time of year?

 14               THE WITNESS:  The date in there was earlier

 15   this year.  I would say it was in the spring.  I don't

 16   have the month exactly.

 17               MR. MOSS:  You mentioned the significance of

 18   seasonal and annual variations in train traffic, that's

 19   why I'm asking when was it.  It would make a difference,

 20   wouldn't it?

 21               THE WITNESS:  There's really two factors.

 22   The train fluctuations but also for traffic.  We did

 23   make sure that we did these counts when there was a

 24   normal traffic pattern going on, meaning schools were in

 25   session.  We counted during the middle of the week,



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 2234

                             DUNN

  1   which is like a Tuesday, Wednesday or Thursday and

  2   instead of electing to do either a weekend or a Monday

  3   or Friday when vehicular traffic patterns can vary quite

  4   a bit.

  5               MR. MOSS:  Don't train traffic patterns vary

  6   quite a bit over the course of a year as well?

  7               THE WITNESS:  I'm not aware of the

  8   fluctuations in train traffic over the course of a year.

  9               MR. MOSS:  You did give some testimony about

 10   your understanding of the dynamic nature of the system

 11   as testified to by an earlier witness from BNSF?

 12               THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  And I think I'm

 13   referring to that testimony, not mine.

 14               MR. MOSS:  Okay.  You don't have any

 15   independent knowledge of that?

 16               THE WITNESS:  No.

 17               MR. MOSS:  Okay.  Getting back to a question

 18   that I think Mr. Snodgrass asked, he pointed out that we

 19   have testimony in the proceeding, in fact, I think it

 20   was from that same BNSF witness, Ms. Kaitala, that there

 21   would be no displacement of current rail traffic, yet

 22   there would be 28 additional trains per week as a result

 23   of this facility.

 24               Now, while that may fluctuate day-to-day,

 25   over the course of a longer period of time, that means
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  1   more trains added to the train traffic in Washington,

  2   doesn't it?

  3               THE WITNESS:  I can't answer that.

  4               MR. MOSS:  Okay.  You testified, in fact, it

  5   came up more than once, concerning the fact that the

  6   railroad was built before some of the development around

  7   it.  Why is that significant?

  8               THE WITNESS:  I think the point is that some

  9   of these residential households have private driveways

 10   or accesses that only have one crossing the rail line.

 11   And my point being is that many of these developments --

 12   sorry, developments that have multiple residences and

 13   might have more vehicular traffic, they were developed

 14   after the rail line was sustained but made perhaps prior

 15   to when codes required either a secondary access or

 16   perhaps sprinklers in their households.

 17               MR. MOSS:  Does there need to be some

 18   accommodation made, then, to account for the change

 19   that's taken place historically where those neighbors

 20   exist as you describe them?

 21               THE WITNESS:  I can't speak to that.  I'm

 22   not a building code specialist.

 23               MR. MOSS:  Okay, all right.  I think that's

 24   all I have for you.  Thank you very much.

 25               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Rossman?
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  1               MR. ROSSMAN:  Thank you for your testimony

  2   today.

  3               I'm struggling a little bit with this

  4   conversation around delays, and I'm wondering if you can

  5   succinctly define the word "delay" as you've used it in

  6   this report.

  7               THE WITNESS:  Yeah, so "delay" in this

  8   report is reflecting the delay that drivers would

  9   experience as they wait at an at-grade crossing for a

 10   train event.

 11               MR. ROSSMAN:  So it's not dependent on the

 12   amount of time they would have waited relative to a

 13   different train or anything of that nature, it's simply

 14   the amount of time that they wait at that crossing is

 15   what the word "delay" means?

 16               THE WITNESS:  In this case, yes.

 17               MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  And I think you

 18   discussed significant or insignificant delays in this

 19   report.  Is that right?

 20               THE WITNESS:  Insignificant or significant

 21   delays?

 22               MR. ROSSMAN:  Yeah.

 23               THE WITNESS:  I don't know if we

 24   characterized delays as significant or not.  Do you have

 25   a specific reference?



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 2237

                             DUNN

  1               MR. ROSSMAN:  Yeah.  Just, I mean, one

  2   example would be on the page that is marked Page 18 of

  3   the exhibit, second to last paragraph, "Therefore,

  4   proposed facility unit oil trains represent a lower or

  5   insignificant, but not adverse, impact on delays and

  6   queues as compared to current rail crossing conditions."

  7               So I think you're referring to the impact of

  8   the project on the delays as significant or

  9   insignificant?

 10               THE WITNESS:  Well, I guess in this case

 11   "insignificant" meaning that the delays were less for an

 12   oil unit train.

 13               MR. ROSSMAN:  Is there some external sort of

 14   standard or guideline that informs your determination of

 15   significant versus insignificant there?

 16               THE WITNESS:  There's no criteria or rating

 17   system for at-grade crossing to rate something if it's

 18   significant or not.  There was an attempt earlier to try

 19   to tie the world of vehicular traffic and level of

 20   service with railroad operations and delay at railroad

 21   crossings, but they're not connected.  Their criteria is

 22   well established for vehicular traffic at intersections

 23   and long roadway segments, but there's nothing in the

 24   highway capacity manual that has a rating system

 25   established for rail crossings and delays at rail
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  1   crossings for motorists.

  2               MR. ROSSMAN:  So how did you -- what

  3   determines whether something is significant or

  4   insignificant?

  5               THE WITNESS:  I guess in this case if we saw

  6   that the delays increased by oil unit trains, if those

  7   delays go up, that there's potential for a significant

  8   effect.  And the secondary tool that we use was to look

  9   at how did the queues develop as a result of those

 10   delays.  Are they meaningful?  Are they excessive?  Do

 11   they get longer?  Do they -- would the oil unit trains

 12   cause those queues to get so long that there's not

 13   enough available storage for those vehicles?

 14               MR. ROSSMAN:  And is that analysis of the

 15   relation between the delay and the queue length, is that

 16   based on some guideline or regulatory standard?

 17               THE WITNESS:  No, it was based on

 18   assumptions of vehicle length and -- vehicle length.

 19               MR. ROSSMAN:  Have you done an analysis like

 20   this of changes in rail traffic before?

 21               THE WITNESS:  Not like this one.

 22               MR. ROSSMAN:  Are you familiar with other --

 23               THE WITNESS:  No.

 24               MR. ROSSMAN:  I guess I'm wondering what

 25   factors went into the scoping decisions.  And
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  1   particularly I'm wondering about the 2,500 threshold for

  2   average daily trips; is that right?

  3               THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.

  4               MR. ROSSMAN:  That would seem a thing that

  5   would, in terms of its relative significance, depend

  6   very much on sort of the size of the community.  I would

  7   wonder, it seems like your -- am I right that -- like I

  8   can tell that that was just a term as a threshold for

  9   the entire corridor; is that right?

 10               THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

 11               MR. ROSSMAN:  So a community that had a few

 12   hundred people couldn't enter into consideration in

 13   this?

 14               THE WITNESS:  We did look at the three

 15   crossings in Cheney, and none of those crossings had

 16   2,500 ADT or higher.  We did add those three because of

 17   the purported impact on the crossings in that city so we

 18   elected to have those three crossings in.  The other

 19   seven, I believe one of them was still below 2,500, but

 20   we looked at seven others that were at that level or

 21   higher.

 22               MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  Thank you very much.

 23               JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other questions to my

 24   left?

 25               Could I just ask you to expound on the
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  1   concept of available storage.  Why is that important to

  2   the person trying to get across the track while they're

  3   being blocked by any train?

  4               THE WITNESS:  So the factor of addressing

  5   available storage is not necessarily for a driver

  6   attempting to get across, it's looking at the space

  7   available to drivers as they are waiting at a crossing.

  8   As those vehicles stack up when the gates go down, what

  9   happens to that queue once it develops to its full

 10   potential?  Is there enough lane storage on that roadway

 11   segment to accommodate those drivers?  Or perhaps is

 12   there a major intersection nearby, a signalized

 13   intersection where those queues may spill back into that

 14   intersection and cause potentially safety issues.

 15   Because there are other movements occurring at that

 16   signal than just the drivers trying to get on to this

 17   particular road.

 18               JUDGE NOBLE:  All right, thank you.

 19               Questions based upon council questions?

 20               MR. POTTER:  I don't have any.

 21               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Johnson?

 22                     REDIRECT EXAMINATION

 23   BY MR. JOHNSON:

 24      Q.   You may have answered this already, but

 25   Mr. Snodgrass asked you to compare the way you measure
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  1   the increase in delay for other types of projects, and

  2   Mr. Potter, I think, asked you more precisely about

  3   level of service impacts.

  4           In your experience, is it usual to measure

  5   impacts from rail on intersections in the same way that

  6   you measure impacts on intersections produced by vehicle

  7   traffic from a project?

  8      A.   No.

  9      Q.   Okay.  And with regard to the same issue, even

 10   if it were, the delays you spoke of or the level of

 11   service that you spoke of, that's a measure of current

 12   impact, is that not --

 13      A.   Can you ask the question again?

 14      Q.   Sorry about that.

 15           So to the extent that you provided some

 16   testimony about level of service, even though it's

 17   apples and oranges, those impacts that you spoke to are

 18   impacts currently, they're not impacts related to rail

 19   traffic from the project; correct?

 20      A.   Correct.

 21               MR. JOHNSON:  Nothing further.

 22               JUDGE NOBLE:  Thank you.  I have one

 23   question for you.

 24               Mr. Potter, 3130, again, I think I made an

 25   assumption that Mr. Dunn was not the author of that
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  2   some reason on my computer, so I just want to make sure

  3   before I excuse him as a witness.

  4               MR. POTTER:  He is not the author.

  5               JUDGE NOBLE:  All right, thank you.

  6               Mr. Dunn, thank you for your testimony

  7   today.  You are excused as a witness.

  8               THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

  9               JUDGE NOBLE:  Do you have any further

 10   witnesses, Mr. Johnson, Mr. Derr, Mr. Kisielius?

 11               MR. JOHNSON:  Your Honor, this would

 12   conclude our case-in-chief, if you will, with the

 13   exception of Mr. Barkan who we're reserving.  We will be

 14   reserving the remainder of our time to apply to

 15   cross-examination of the opposing party witnesses as

 16   well as rebuttal at the end of their case.  But we'll

 17   check to find out what the count is as of this

 18   afternoon.  I'm not sure where we're at on that.

 19               JUDGE NOBLE:  So with the exception of

 20   Mr. Barkan, do you rest your case?

 21               MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, Your Honor, we rest at

 22   this point, with the exception of Mr. Barkan.

 23               JUDGE NOBLE:  Thank you.

 24               Well, as I understand it, the opponents are

 25   going to be beginning their case tomorrow morning and



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 2243

  1   we're almost at the end of the day.

  2               And so is there anything that we need to do

  3   before we address the exhibits?  And we don't need to do

  4   that in the presence of council so we'll have just a

  5   five-minute recess before we do that.  But is there

  6   anything we need to do on the record before council

  7   leaves?

  8               MR. KISIELIUS:  Witnesses for tomorrow.

  9               JUDGE NOBLE:  Oh, right, witnesses for

 10   tomorrow.

 11               MS. BOYLES:  We would anticipate doing the

 12   prerecorded testimony of Ms. Susan Harvey.  She's on oil

 13   spill risk response and planning.  I'm sorry.  The

 14   prerecorded testimony of Ms. Susan Harvey on oil spill

 15   risk response and planning, followed by Mr. Lopossa who

 16   is transportation manager for the City of Vancouver on

 17   rail crossings and traffic delays, followed by

 18   Mr. Appleton who is the Mosier fire chief to talk about

 19   the Mosier accident.

 20               JUDGE NOBLE:  And as I remember, only Ms.

 21   Harvey has prefiled testimony; is that right?

 22               MS. BOYLES:  She is the only one that has

 23   prerecorded testimony.  She has the prefiled testimony

 24   and then she has her prerecorded testimony.

 25               JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.
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  1               MR. POTTER:  Lopossa has prefiled testimony.

  2               JUDGE NOBLE:  All right, thank you.

  3               Anything else we need to do on the record

  4   before council leaves?  Thank you.  We're off the

  5   record.

  6               (Recess taken from 5:06 p.m. to 5:18 p.m.)

  7               JUDGE NOBLE:  Parties, let's have a look at

  8   these exhibits.  Mr. Potter, aren't these your exhibits?

  9   Do you have a mic?

 10               MS. BOYLES:  They are, Your Honor.  I'm

 11   taking over -- no.

 12               We have two from the other day that were the

 13   Washington State Rail Plan and another report that I've

 14   since provided to Mr. Derr and Mr. Johnson, and so we

 15   can do those faster and let those get out of the way

 16   faster.

 17               JUDGE NOBLE:  Good.  What are the numbers?

 18               MS. BOYLES:  So that was 5630.

 19               JUDGE NOBLE:  And?

 20               MS. BOYLES:  And 5631.  We have sent them to

 21   Ms. Mastro.  And I believe there is no objection to

 22   5630, but there is an objection to 5631.

 23               MR. JOHNSON:  Correct.

 24               JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.  So I don't have a

 25   5630 on my list yet.  But 5630 will be admitted.
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  1               Ms. Mastro, do you have that 5630 is

  2   admitted?

  3               MS. MASTRO:  Yes, Your Honor.

  4               JUDGE NOBLE:  And 5631, could you just tell

  5   me what that is?

  6               MS. BOYLES:  Yes.  The 5630 is the

  7   Washington State Rail Plan.

  8               JUDGE NOBLE:  Right.

  9               MS. BOYLES:  And 5631 is a report done by a

 10   different rail traffic -- an analyst called Heavy

 11   Traffic Still Ahead, which discusses the Washington

 12   State Rail Plan and specifically discusses the oil train

 13   traffic, and so is a good summary of what this much

 14   larger state rail plan says about oil train traffic in

 15   particular.

 16               JUDGE NOBLE:  And there's an objection to

 17   that.  Could I hear the nature of the objection?

 18               MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, Your Honor.  First of

 19   all, I guess I just wanted to clarify, since there are a

 20   number of these, are we actually going to take up

 21   objections on each one or are we going to do like we did

 22   before; get the list, get the ones that we don't object

 23   to admitted, and then take up the objections later?

 24               JUDGE NOBLE:  That would be the proper way

 25   to do it.  I don't even know what witness would be
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  1   sponsoring this, if any.

  2               MS. BOYLES:  These in particular came the

  3   other day in response to council questions.  I offered

  4   them and then you all wanted to look at them.  I can't

  5   recall the witness's name.  It was Ms. Kaitala.  So

  6   these have already been -- they're pending, in my view.

  7               JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.  I'll look at 5631

  8   again.  So they've already been discussed in the course

  9   of the testimony.

 10               MR. JOHNSON:  Well, no, they've been offered

 11   in response to some of her testimony but they haven't --

 12   there's been no foundation laid for them.  I disagree

 13   with Ms. Boyles' characterization of the exhibits that

 14   we do have an objection to for a number of reasons.  And

 15   that's why I asked the question about are we going to

 16   take up each objection now.

 17               So I don't want us leaving thinking somehow

 18   they've already been discussed such that a foundation

 19   has been laid.  And, frankly, that's one of my bases for

 20   objecting is there isn't a foundation for that exhibit,

 21   so.

 22               JUDGE NOBLE:  Right, I got it.  So we won't

 23   be able to deal with that one at this time.

 24               MS. BOYLES:  I'm sorry, Your Honor.

 25               JUDGE NOBLE:  That's all right.
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  1               We have some information about that but it

  2   seems insufficient as to foundation at this time.  And I

  3   don't know whether you'd be able to lay a foundation

  4   with another witness, but I don't feel that I can rule

  5   on it yet.

  6               MS. BOYLES:  Okay.  We'll leave that one

  7   pending, Your Honor.  Thank you.

  8               JUDGE NOBLE:  So now we have Mr. Potter's

  9   exhibits?

 10               MS. CARTER:  May I ask, can we have some

 11   exhibits that don't have -- well, they currently have

 12   objections but they were attached to some direct

 13   testimony, prefiled direct testimony that we had -- and

 14   I talked to both counsel and they have agreed, they're

 15   Google map depictions of treaty fishing access sites,

 16   and they're Exhibits 5221 to 5251.  And I just wanted to

 17   get those admitted.

 18               JUDGE NOBLE:  So every number, 5221 through

 19   5251 and all the numbers in between.

 20               MS. CARTER:  Exactly.

 21               JUDGE NOBLE:  And it's my understanding from

 22   what you just said there's no objection.

 23               Mr. Johnson, is there an objection to those

 24   exhibits?

 25               MR. JOHNSON:  Your Honor, I don't believe
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  1   so, but Mr. Bartz and I are both double checking.  Just

  2   give us 30 seconds.

  3               No objection, Your Honor.

  4               JUDGE NOBLE:  Exhibits 5221 through 5251 are

  5   all admitted.

  6               MS. CARTER:  Thank you.

  7               JUDGE NOBLE:  Now, what do we have next?

  8               MR. HALLVIK:  Taylor Hallvik with Clark

  9   County.  And I have very similar housekeeping kind of

 10   exhibit matter to follow up on with the exhibits we were

 11   just -- the kind of exhibits we were just talking about

 12   which were attached to prefiled testimony.  Originally

 13   these are CVs, and Clark County has now offered them as

 14   separate exhibits for your earlier rulings, and we've

 15   circulated them to everybody and there's no objection to

 16   their entry.  And so I would offer those at this time.

 17               JUDGE NOBLE:  What are their numbers?

 18               MR. HALLVIK:  They are 2012 and 2013.

 19               JUDGE NOBLE:  And it's obvious which witness

 20   they go with?

 21               MR. HALLVIK:  Yes.  And I'll clarify for the

 22   record.  2012 is the CV of Dr. Eric Peterson, and

 23   Exhibit Number 2013 is CV of Richard Bishop.

 24               JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there any objection to

 25   Exhibits 2012 and 2013?
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  1               MR. JOHNSON:  No, Your Honor.

  2               JUDGE NOBLE:  Exhibits 2012 and 2013 are

  3   admitted.

  4               MR. HALLVIK:  Thank you, Your Honor.

  5               JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Potter, I think you're

  6   next.

  7               MS. REED:  Your Honor, I'm going to be

  8   discussing it primarily.

  9               JUDGE NOBLE:  All right, Ms. Reed.

 10               MS. REED:  So our additional exhibits start

 11   with 2123 which is a problem versus response timeline

 12   that is contained in Mr. Hildebrand's prefiled direct

 13   testimony.  We provided this because it's a clearer page

 14   version of the figure that appears in his testimony.  We

 15   thought it would be easier for parties to see.  So this

 16   is already embedded within prefiled testimony.

 17               JUDGE NOBLE:  The Exhibit 2123, I don't have

 18   a note as to what party objected to it.  The Port had

 19   objected to the previous exhibit, but does the Port have

 20   any objection to this Exhibit 2123?

 21               MR. BARTZ:  It's 3123, Your Honor.

 22               JUDGE NOBLE:  Excuse me.

 23               MR. BARTZ:  These all came to us last

 24   Thursday.

 25               JUDGE NOBLE:  Yes.
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  1               MR. BARTZ:  And so that's probably why

  2   there's not a caught-up list.  So 3123, there's no

  3   objection.

  4               JUDGE NOBLE:  3123.  Sorry, I misspoke a

  5   moment ago.  No objection.

  6               And any objection from Tesoro?

  7               MR. JOHNSON:  Again, Your Honor, as

  8   Mr. Bartz said, part of our objection is the late filing

  9   of exhibits because these weren't included in the

 10   exhibit exchange.  So when we get to objections, that's

 11   going to be one of the bases for a number of these.  I

 12   won't comment on every one and there's no objection to

 13   3123.

 14               JUDGE NOBLE:  3123 will be admitted.  And

 15   the remedy for the late filing would be just to have a

 16   little bit more time to analyze them.

 17               MR. JOHNSON:  I understand.  And again,

 18   there are other different layers of objection to some of

 19   these, so we should probably --

 20               JUDGE NOBLE:  There always are.

 21               MR. JOHNSON:  We should probably take them

 22   up as they are offered or whatever.

 23               JUDGE NOBLE:  Yes.  So some we'll be able to

 24   get admitted tonight and others we'll just have to do in

 25   course.



Hearing - Volume 9 In Re:  Application 2013-01 Tesoro Savage Vancouver Energy Distribution Terminal

BUELL REALTIME REPORTING, LLC 206 287 9066 Page: 2251

  1               Ms. Reed, what's the next one?

  2               MS. REED:  The next one is Exhibit Number

  3   3124 which is the August 10, 2015 Prior Protection

  4   Assessment Report for the proposed project.  It is

  5   Appendix B to the DEIS.  It is relevant to the

  6   discussions of fire safety and was relied upon by one of

  7   our experts, Chief Molina, and he would be the

  8   sponsoring witness for that.

  9               JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3124?

 10               MR. BARTZ:  Dave Bartz for the Port of

 11   Vancouver, Your Honor.  Yes, there's an objection by

 12   both the applicant and the Port because it's a DEIS.

 13   We're really trying to figure out when the DEIS comes in

 14   and when it doesn't.  This piece doesn't look like it

 15   should come in, so that's why we're objecting.

 16               JUDGE NOBLE:  I should give better guidance

 17   about that.  The problem is, of course, as I said, the

 18   DEIS, this isn't an appeal of that, and so criticisms of

 19   the DEIS, although they come in occasionally in the

 20   course of testimony and in some of the exhibits, that

 21   will not be considered as substantive evidence because

 22   there's no issue about the draft DEIS.  But many or most

 23   of these witnesses have participated in that process and

 24   so their products have been part of the DEIS, and I've

 25   said that that is acceptable and it's the basis of their
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  1   testimony with relation to the things that are at issue

  2   here.

  3               MR. BARTZ:  Just briefly, Your Honor, this

  4   doesn't fit, though.  So when they want to try to put it

  5   in, we'll talk about it then and it will probably be a

  6   lot clearer.

  7               JUDGE NOBLE:  Right, okay, it will.  And

  8   I'll be actually able to look at the exhibit.

  9               MS. REED:  Your Honor, if I could just

 10   address the timeliness issue with respect to this issue.

 11   With respect to this exhibit particularly, when we

 12   provided our exhibit list and determined what exhibits

 13   we would be using, we had anticipated that pursuant to

 14   the parties' stipulation that the DEIS would be an

 15   exhibit, so we had not gone through and specifically

 16   designated portions of the DEIS.  We subsequently did

 17   that and tried to only pick those that we really needed.

 18   So that's why this was late.

 19               MR. JOHNSON:  And, Your Honor, I'm not --

 20   this doesn't fall into that category of objection.  I

 21   would request that we move through these because there

 22   are several.  If Ms. Reed could give the number, a brief

 23   description of what it is, we can say objection or no

 24   objection and move on.  That's my recommendation.

 25               JUDGE NOBLE:  We can.  I didn't hear that as
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  1   one of the layers of objection that Mr. Johnson was

  2   raising about this one.

  3               MS. REED:  Okay.

  4               JUDGE NOBLE:  And I understand, I understand

  5   that about the timeliness.  And I think people will be

  6   reasonable about that.  But there still has to be time

  7   to evaluate it as an exhibit.

  8               MS. REED:  Sure.

  9               JUDGE NOBLE:  So let's move to, is 3125 the

 10   next exhibit?

 11               MS. REED:  Yes, it is, Your Honor.  It's the

 12   June 23, 2016 Federal Railroad Administration

 13   Preliminary Factual Findings Report for Mosier, Oregon.

 14               JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3125?

 15               MR. BARTZ:  There's no objection as long as

 16   we have your representation it's complete.  I haven't

 17   been able to check its completeness.

 18               MS. REED:  It is complete.  We have checked

 19   a couple of different sources.

 20               MR. BARTZ:  There's no objection, Your

 21   Honor.

 22               JUDGE NOBLE:  3125 will be admitted.

 23               Is the next one 3126?

 24               MS. REED:  Yes.  Exhibit 3126 is the

 25   February 17, 2016 NTSB Locomotive Event Recorder Report
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  1   for Heimdal, North Dakota.  And the sponsoring witness

  2   on that would be Mr. Chipkevich who is scheduled to

  3   testify late tomorrow or Wednesday.

  4               JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to

  5   Exhibit 3126?

  6               MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.

  7               JUDGE NOBLE:  So you can make your record

  8   tomorrow about the foundation and reoffer it and I'll

  9   rule on it then.  And we'll hear the whole argument

 10   about it.

 11               MS. REED:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 12               Exhibit 3127 is the April 14, 2016 NTSB

 13   Hazardous Materials Group Factual Report from Heimdal,

 14   North Dakota.

 15               JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3127?

 16               MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.

 17               MS. REED:  And, likewise, Exhibit 3128 is

 18   the May 6, 2015 NTSB Mechanical Group Factual Report

 19   from Heimdal, North Dakota.

 20               JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3128?

 21               MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.

 22               MS. REED:  Your Honor, Exhibit 3129 are

 23   derailment pictures from Heimdal, North Dakota,

 24   contained in a presentation.

 25               JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3129?
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  1               MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.

  2               MS. REED:  Exhibit 3130 is the November 2015

  3   Gate Downtime Analysis calculations for the proposed

  4   facility which are Appendix N to the DEIS, and I believe

  5   we discussed those earlier.

  6               JUDGE NOBLE:  Yes.  3131?

  7               MS. REED:  Is the Port of Vancouver map of

  8   turnout or switch locations from the BNSF main line.

  9   And, Your Honor, we worked with the applicant and the

 10   Port on this, and believe that they do not have an

 11   objection.

 12               MR. JOHNSON:  That's correct, no objection.

 13               JUDGE NOBLE:  Exhibit 3131 will be admitted.

 14               MS. REED:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 15               Exhibit 3132 is the June 3, 2016 photographs

 16   snapshots of the rail accident site in Mosier, Oregon.

 17               MR. JOHNSON:  No objection.

 18               JUDGE NOBLE:  3132 will be admitted.

 19               MS. REED:  Exhibit 3133, the South Dakota

 20   September 19, 2015 Accident NTSB Track and Bridge

 21   Factual Report.

 22               JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3133?

 23               MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.

 24               MS. REED:  Exhibit 3134 is the South Dakota

 25   Operations Accident Factual Report.
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  1               JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3134?

  2               MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.

  3               MS. REED:  Your Honor, Exhibit 3135 is a map

  4   of the Mosier fire district.

  5               JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3135?

  6               MR. JOHNSON:  We just got this e-mail to us

  7   while we were wrapping up testimony this afternoon.  And

  8   there very well may not be, but given what you just said

  9   about needing more time being the remedy, perhaps we can

 10   look at it and we can work with the City tomorrow to

 11   respond.

 12               JUDGE NOBLE:  So at this time you don't have

 13   an objection but you don't not have an objection.  So

 14   all those exhibits for which there was an objection,

 15   they will not be admitted at this time subject to

 16   further testimony and foundation.

 17               MS. REED:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 18               JUDGE NOBLE:  Thank you.  Thank you for

 19   staying late.

 20               Is there anything else that we need to on or

 21   off the record before we adjourn for today?

 22               MR. BARTZ:  Just one more thing, Your Honor.

 23   I heard Mr. Potter suggest Mr. Chipkevich might be

 24   fourth in line.  We heard about three witnesses and

 25   that's a potential fourth for tomorrow.  I didn't know
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  1   if there were any others that were in the on-deck

  2   circle, so to speak.

  3               JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other witnesses on deck?

  4               MR. POTTER:  There are not, Your Honor.

  5               JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.  Well, thanks very

  6   much for this clarification.  We're keeping up with you,

  7   and hopefully the computers will work better tomorrow.

  8   Good night, all.  We're adjourned.

  9               (Proceedings adjourned at 5:37 p.m.)
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  1                     C E R T I F I C A T E

  2

  3   STATE OF WASHINGTON  )
                       ) ss.

  4   COUNTY OF SNOHOMISH  )

  5

  6          THIS IS TO CERTIFY that I, Diane Rugh, Certified

  7   Court Reporter in and for the State of Washington,

  8   residing at Snohomish, reported the within and foregoing

  9   testimony; said testimony being taken before me as a

 10   Certified Court Reporter on the date herein set forth;

 11   that the witness was first by me duly sworn; that said

 12   examination was taken by me in shorthand and thereafter

 13   under my supervision transcribed, and that same is a

 14   full, true and correct record of the testimony of said

 15   witness, including all questions, answers and

 16   objections, if any, of counsel, to the best of my

 17   ability.

 18          I further certify that I am not a relative,

 19   employee, attorney, counsel of any of the parties; nor

 20   am I financially interested in the outcome of the cause.

 21          IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have set my hand this _____

 22   day of ____________________, 2016.

 23

 24
                       DIANE RUGH, RPR, RMR, CRR, CCR

 25                        CCR NO. 2399
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 01                         PROCEEDINGS

     

 02              JUDGE NOBLE:  Good morning.  We are back on

     

 03  the record.  Before the State of Washington Energy

     

 04  Facility Citing Council, Case No. 15-001, matter of

     

 05  Application Number 2013-01, Tesoro Savage LLC, Vancouver

     

 06  Energy Distribution Terminal.

     

 07              Are the parties ready to proceed this

     

 08  morning?

     

 09              MR. DERR:  Yes, Your Honor.

     

 10              JUDGE NOBLE:  You may call your first

     

 11  witness for the day.

     

 12              MR. DERR:  Thank you, Your Honor.  The

     

 13  applicant would like to call Mr. Keith Casey.

     

 14  

     

 15                        KEITH CASEY,

     

 16     having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

     

 17  

     

 18                     DIRECT EXAMINATION

     

 19  BY MR. DERR:

     

 20     Q.   Mr. Casey, could you first state your name and

     

 21  spell it for the court reporter.

     

 22     A.   Yes.  My name is Keith Michael Casey, K-e-i-t-h,

     

 23  C-a-s-e-y.

     

 24     Q.   Thank you.  And I'll reiterate, we have a court

     

 25  reporter here today so you may occasionally get asked to
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 01  speak into the mic or to speak more slowly, so she's

     

 02  trying to take down everything.

     

 03          Mr. Casey, as you probably know, there have been

     

 04  a series of questions about sort of the management of

     

 05  Vancouver Energy or the joint venture, so I'm going to

     

 06  ask you a few additional questions and then there will

     

 07  be an opportunity for the intervenors to ask you

     

 08  questions and an opportunity for the council to ask you

     

 09  questions.  So let's start with some background.

     

 10          Can you please describe your position with

     

 11  Tesoro and how that fits within the overall company

     

 12  management structure?

     

 13     A.   Yes, I can.  I'm the Executive Vice President of

     

 14  Operations.  I'm part of the executive team for Tesoro;

     

 15  I report directly to the Chief Executive Officer of

     

 16  Tesoro.  And I'm accountable in my position for all of

     

 17  operations, anywhere where we have people and assets,

     

 18  whether that be refining, logistics, marketing,

     

 19  environmental health and safety, and supply chain

     

 20  activities.

     

 21     Q.   Thank you.  And how long have you been at

     

 22  Tesoro?

     

 23     A.   I've been at Tesoro for just over three years.

     

 24     Q.   And what has been your involvement with the

     

 25  Vancouver Energy Terminal?
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 01     A.   So I've been involved with the Vancouver Energy

     

 02  project since inception and been part of the management

     

 03  community since inception.

     

 04     Q.   I'd like to start with some questions that were

     

 05  asked the last couple of weeks about the purpose of the

     

 06  project.

     

 07          Why did Vancouver Energy decide to proceed with

     

 08  this project?

     

 09     A.   So the -- I'd say the industrial logic of this

     

 10  project, the premise is this is a fantastic port

     

 11  facility, been in business for over a hundred years.

     

 12  And the opportunity to build a state-of-the-art

     

 13  crude-by-rail marine transport facility was requested by

     

 14  the Port.  Logistically makes quite a bit of sense due

     

 15  to the geography and the proximity to North American

     

 16  crudes.  The facility, again, is very unique with the

     

 17  construction within the port for the loop track rail.

     

 18          And then from a customer standpoint or a from a

     

 19  demand standpoint, it fulfills the need for the West

     

 20  Coast refining centers to be able to access North

     

 21  American crudes and be able to competitively provide

     

 22  transportation fields to our customers.

     

 23     Q.   What about refineries in Washington; is it

     

 24  expected that this terminal will serve those refineries

     

 25  as well?
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 01     A.   Yes, it is.  So all refineries in the West Coast

     

 02  will benefit from this facility.  Refineries in the

     

 03  state of Washington will benefit from having available

     

 04  access or increased access to North American crudes to

     

 05  the refining centers in Washington state; as well as

     

 06  from a macro level, any time you unlock access to

     

 07  additional North American crudes into the market,

     

 08  because the West Coast all functions as a market, it

     

 09  increases the availability of those feedstocks which

     

 10  benefits all of the manufacturers.

     

 11     Q.   We heard testimony in the last couple of weeks

     

 12  that the Anacortes refinery, the Tesoro refinery in

     

 13  Anacortes, already has a rail unloading facility.

     

 14          Can you comment about the capacity of that

     

 15  unloading facility and whether that facility can

     

 16  adequately serve the Anacortes refinery?

     

 17     A.   Yes, I can.  So the Anacortes facility is

     

 18  120,000-barrel-per-day refinery, and as part of that, in

     

 19  I believe it was September of 2012, we opened up crude

     

 20  rail unloading facility, so just going on four years

     

 21  it's been in operation.  That has a capacity of about

     

 22  50,000 barrels a day of capacity at that facility.  And

     

 23  we could use additional North American crudes into

     

 24  Anacortes.  You can see 50 from 120 is 70,000 barrels,

     

 25  and other crudes are running at that facility on a
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 01  normal basis.

     

 02     Q.   What about the other current supplies for the

     

 03  Anacortes refinery?  Aren't they coming from Alaska and

     

 04  California?  Isn't that adequate?

     

 05     A.   So I think it's been probably previously

     

 06  discussed, I haven't read all the testimony, but when

     

 07  you stand back from a macro crude supply, both

     

 08  California and Alaskan production has been declining

     

 09  over time and continues to decline and it's projected to

     

 10  continue to decline over time.  And so as those crude

     

 11  availabilities have become more limited, there's been an

     

 12  increasing amount of foreign crudes that have been

     

 13  brought in to fulfill the need; crudes from West Africa

     

 14  and crudes from the Middle East, crudes from Russia,

     

 15  crudes from Canada, and crudes from other areas to

     

 16  fulfill that need.

     

 17     Q.   What about sulfur fuel standards?  What can you

     

 18  tell us about sulfur fuel standards and how that impacts

     

 19  the need for these sources of crude?

     

 20     A.   Yeah, so it's an interesting point, because as

     

 21  we talked about, what are the needs for crude oil in the

     

 22  West Coast manufacturing centers, there's the phenomenon

     

 23  from crude about the availability of the crudes and

     

 24  where they're coming from and as fields are decaying in

     

 25  production and what fields are coming into availability.
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 01  So that's one dynamic.

     

 02          The second dynamic takes place on the product

     

 03  side, so we're making -- we're taking these crude oils

     

 04  and we're processing them to make gasoline and

     

 05  distillates, which is diesel as well as jet fuel, it's

     

 06  all part of the transportation fuel dynamic.  And as

     

 07  standards for, as your example, sulfur, the amount of

     

 08  sulfur that's contained in those products continue to

     

 09  sharpen or lessen so that we can lessen the

     

 10  environmental impact of fuels, it's necessary to modify

     

 11  the configuration of the refineries as well as seek

     

 12  crude oils that have less sulfur or less heavy

     

 13  materials.

     

 14          So the two simple examples of changes that will

     

 15  take place in the next five years is Tier 3 gasoline

     

 16  will come into place -- (Court reporter interruption.)

     

 17  Tier 3 gasoline requirement -- thank you -- will take

     

 18  place, which is going to require the reduction of sulfur

     

 19  in gasoline to 10 parts per million on a corporate

     

 20  average basis.  So to be able to meet that standard,

     

 21  there's either additional hydro treating capacity that's

     

 22  necessary to remove the sulfur from the process but

     

 23  there's also the ability or the desire to have lower

     

 24  sulfur crude oils so then there's less of that sulfur

     

 25  that you need to remove.  Many of the mid-continent
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 01  crudes and North American crudes have that lower sulfur

     

 02  in the crude itself so that's an advantage for those

     

 03  crudes getting into the system.

     

 04          Another important change that's going to take

     

 05  place, particularly within the state of Washington,

     

 06  because there's a significant amount of shipping trade

     

 07  that takes place within the state and around, is the

     

 08  IMO, which is the International Marine Organization, as

     

 09  a MARPOL spec, it's called, which is going to reduce the

     

 10  amount of sulfur in bunker oil or fuel oils for ships so

     

 11  that it decreases the emissions from the ships.  And

     

 12  that's a very significant reduction which is going to,

     

 13  again, force the reduction in the sulfur for that fuel

     

 14  which goes back into both refinery capability to remove

     

 15  and extract that sulfur as well as the feedstocks, the

     

 16  crude oils, and the content of the sulfur there.

     

 17          So in general, as a theme, and I know this is a

     

 18  long answer, lower sulfur feedstocks such as those

     

 19  within the mid-continent will have increasing value to

     

 20  Washington state refineries and refineries in the West

     

 21  Coast over the course of time as we continue to work to

     

 22  deliver cleaner, safe and reliable transportation fuels.

     

 23     Q.   And the MARPOL fuels that you described, are

     

 24  those products that are produced at the refineries in

     

 25  Washington as well?
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 01     A.   They are, yes.  It's pretty significant, as I

     

 02  said.  With the amount of shipping activity that takes

     

 03  place in this state, it's a pretty significant line in

     

 04  the distillates businesses.

     

 05     Q.   So I want to ask a more precise geographic

     

 06  benefit question.  There were several questions in the

     

 07  last week or two about whether the crude oil passing

     

 08  through the Vancouver Energy Terminal is expected to

     

 09  benefit Eastern Washington as distinguished from Western

     

 10  Washington.  What would --

     

 11              MS. BRIMMER:  Your Honor, I'm going to

     

 12  object.  We're in a line of questioning that was not

     

 13  disclosed and it was not our understanding of what

     

 14  Mr. Casey was going to address.  We're once again in a

     

 15  situation where we've got a witness that was not

     

 16  disclosed.  At the end of the first week we were told

     

 17  Mr. Casey would be brought in to address some specific

     

 18  questions from the council which had been asked of

     

 19  Mr. Larrabee about corporate structure and liability

     

 20  issues of the limited liability company, who owns what.

     

 21              We have him testifying to economic issues,

     

 22  market issues, supply issues, which they've already got

     

 23  a witness that's done.  We have a witness that was

     

 24  prepared to respond to that person.  They're building

     

 25  their case as they go.  This is an additional example of
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 01  they apparently weren't quite ready and now they're

     

 02  bringing in witnesses that were not previously disclosed

     

 03  to talk about these things.

     

 04              MR. DERR:  Your Honor, if I might respond.

     

 05  These were all within the questions that were asked by

     

 06  council of the various witnesses that led to an offer to

     

 07  bring a member of the management committee to speak to

     

 08  council.  And it was not just questions of Mr. Larrabee

     

 09  that were -- at least our understanding was Mr. Casey

     

 10  was to respond to, there were questions of insurance,

     

 11  there were questions of what is the function of and the

     

 12  reason for this project.

     

 13              And Mr. Casey is an undisclosed witness

     

 14  because we didn't know until last week that the council

     

 15  wanted us to bring an executive from the management

     

 16  company to speak to them.  And so we brought Mr. Casey

     

 17  here to talk about the questions I've asked as well as

     

 18  all the questions that Ms. Brimmer has identified.

     

 19              MS. BRIMMER:  Your Honor, we can go to the

     

 20  transcript to see exactly what was represented, but I

     

 21  don't recall the council requesting Mr. Casey's

     

 22  presence.  In fact, counsel for the proponent is who

     

 23  suggested bringing Mr. Casey and who specifically

     

 24  identified the financial structure issues.

     

 25              JUDGE NOBLE:  No need to go to the
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 01  transcripts.  I remember.  I think I remember accurately

     

 02  that Mr. Casey was described as a witness who was going

     

 03  to describe the corporate structure, and I don't

     

 04  remember him being described as the witness that was

     

 05  going to go much beyond that.

     

 06              Now, the remedy for this problem, it's a

     

 07  failure of discovery, essentially.  The remedy is for

     

 08  the opponents to be able to have an opportunity to

     

 09  question this witness before this testimony.  And that's

     

 10  not possible for the testimony he's already given, but I

     

 11  think they still need to have an opportunity to question

     

 12  this witness.  And so I would like his testimony to be

     

 13  interrupted to give the opponents an opportunity to

     

 14  question this witness and also to bring an additional

     

 15  witness to rebut or testify about the additional matters

     

 16  that are being brought up in his testimony.

     

 17              MR. DERR:  Your Honor, if I may respond

     

 18  briefly.

     

 19              We have not done depositions of any witness

     

 20  in this proceeding so we haven't had preliminary

     

 21  questioning of any witness in this proceeding.  I guess

     

 22  I'm not clear what would be the nature of the

     

 23  questioning other than cross-examination, which I

     

 24  expect, of this witness who flew in specifically this

     

 25  morning to address the council.

�1997

                            DERR / CASEY

     

     

     

 01              JUDGE NOBLE:  As I understood it, and I

     

 02  didn't get too much in the weeds of your discovery

     

 03  practice, but I did encourage informal discovery and I

     

 04  understood that that what was taking place, and I don't

     

 05  know how in-depth that discovery was.  But that's the

     

 06  remedy for this kind of a problem for a witness who's

     

 07  testifying about something that's a surprise to the

     

 08  other side and that they were not able to prepare for.

     

 09              And so I would like to interrupt this

     

 10  witness's testimony and give the opponents an

     

 11  opportunity to talk with this witness with you present,

     

 12  of course.

     

 13              MR. DERR:  So I guess I need to understand

     

 14  logistics.  You want us to terminate the proceedings now

     

 15  and take a break for questioning and then come back for

     

 16  cross-examination?

     

 17              JUDGE NOBLE:  No.  Well --

     

 18              MR. DERR:  We're about to move to responding

     

 19  to corporate structure and insurance, which is what I

     

 20  thought and -- in fact, I asked my last question on the

     

 21  explanation of why the entity is pursuing this project.

     

 22              JUDGE NOBLE:  Right.  You can proceed with

     

 23  the questioning on that limited area, but you still have

     

 24  to make this witness available to the opponents so that

     

 25  they can talk with him about the testimony he's already
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 01  given where this representation, that that was a

     

 02  surprise.  And then we'll proceed with another witness

     

 03  and you'll be able to bring Mr. Casey back if that's

     

 04  what you want to do.

     

 05              MR. DERR:  Okay.  Well, maybe I'll proceed

     

 06  and then I can ask more questions about what comes after

     

 07  this next.  Mr. Casey is prepared to answer some

     

 08  questions about governance, about assets, about

     

 09  insurance, which it's my understanding that was the

     

 10  reason to bring him.

     

 11              JUDGE NOBLE:  Yes.

     

 12              MR. DERR:  If the intervenors are going to

     

 13  object to that line of questioning as well, I guess I'd

     

 14  like to know that before I go down this path.

     

 15              JUDGE NOBLE:  I'm not hearing an objection

     

 16  to that because that is what the council was asking and

     

 17  that's what I understood Mr. Casey was here to testify

     

 18  about.  He was called as a corporate witness.  And so

     

 19  you may proceed on that basis but not into these other

     

 20  matters that appear to have been a surprise to the

     

 21  opponents.  And you need to make this witness available

     

 22  to them to talk with them and do a little bit of

     

 23  informal discovery.

     

 24              You have other counsel with you.  I hope

     

 25  that you'll be able to -- we won't have a break in the
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 01  proceedings.  I think one of your colleagues can attend

     

 02  that questioning.  And that's all assuming that the

     

 03  opponents have some questions for this witness, which I

     

 04  assume they do.

     

 05              MR. DERR:  Yes, Your Honor.  And we have

     

 06  actually -- Mr. Kisielius will be addressing the next

     

 07  witness, so if you want us to take some time right after

     

 08  Mr. Casey has finished his direct, we can do that.

     

 09              JUDGE NOBLE:  Please do.  And then update me

     

 10  on what has been decided.  I'd like the opponents to

     

 11  update me on what has been decided about how you want to

     

 12  proceed with this witness.

     

 13              MS. BRIMMER:  Thank you, Your Honor.

     

 14  BY MR. DERR:

     

 15     Q.   Mr. Casey, let's turn to some questions about

     

 16  the structure of the joint venture, what's called Tesoro

     

 17  Savage Petroleum Terminal LLC.  We've also referred to

     

 18  it as Vancouver Energy or the joint venture, and its

     

 19  governance.

     

 20          First, can you describe why the Vancouver

     

 21  Energy, the joint venture was formed?

     

 22     A.   Yes.  In response to the request for proposal by

     

 23  the Port to develop a crude-by-rail marine transport

     

 24  facility at the Port, we evaluated the strengths, our

     

 25  strengths as well as our partners' strengths, and
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 01  decided that ourselves in conjunction with Savage

     

 02  Services, developing this project jointly would be the

     

 03  most appropriate response for the RFQ.  And so we

     

 04  created the joint venture between the two companies

     

 05  expressly for the purpose of this facility.

     

 06     Q.   Again, I believe you said this, but if you could

     

 07  just restate, who were the owners of the joint venture?

     

 08     A.   The owners of the joint venture are Tesoro

     

 09  Refining and Marketing Company and Savage Services.

     

 10     Q.   And why was Vancouver Energy formed as a

     

 11  Delaware LLC?

     

 12     A.   So my understanding is that -- and I'm not an

     

 13  expert in corporate structures; however, Delaware is

     

 14  very renowned as a state that has very established and

     

 15  for a long period of time corporate law and corporate

     

 16  structures, and many, many corporations are established

     

 17  in Delaware for that reason.

     

 18     Q.   And who is on the management committee?

     

 19     A.   The management committee, there's -- from the

     

 20  Savage Services there's two gentlemen, Nathan Savage and

     

 21  Curtis Dowd, both executives with Savage Services.  And

     

 22  then from Tesoro there's myself and Brian Sullivan who

     

 23  is our Vice President of Corporate Affairs.

     

 24     Q.   And does the LLC have by-laws or other operating

     

 25  documents that govern?
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 01     A.   Yes, we do have a set of by-laws and operating

     

 02  documents we operate under.

     

 03     Q.   And how does the management committee function

     

 04  as compared to a board of directors in a corporation?

     

 05     A.   So it's analogous to a board of directors in

     

 06  that we meet quarterly.  When you think about the

     

 07  management committee's accountability is for the

     

 08  strategic objectives of the company, and we meet

     

 09  quarterly and review budgeting, strategic objectives,

     

 10  contracting and so forth.  Mostly since the facility

     

 11  does not exist now, we've been talking about permit

     

 12  process and engineering design.  And then the day-to-day

     

 13  activities will be the accountability of the general

     

 14  manager of the joint venture.

     

 15     Q.   And how are decisions made by the management

     

 16  committee?

     

 17     A.   The decisions are largely made by consensus, so

     

 18  we find a lot of alignment in what we're trying to

     

 19  accomplish within this company.  And there is within our

     

 20  operating agreements provisions for when you need to

     

 21  vote and whether it requires a majority or a super

     

 22  majority.  And there's also a conflict resolution

     

 23  process there in case we were unable to meet agreement

     

 24  with consensus.

     

 25     Q.   Mr. Casey, I believe you stated a minute ago
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 01  that you have a general manager in the management

     

 02  committee.  I'd like to ask you some questions about the

     

 03  role of the general manager at that facility.

     

 04          First, the general manager, is that Jared

     

 05  Larrabee?

     

 06     A.   That is correct.

     

 07     Q.   And can you describe Mr. Larrabee's authority

     

 08  over terminal operations?  Will he have authority over

     

 09  all terminal operations?

     

 10     A.   The general manager, Jared, will have complete

     

 11  authority over terminal operations.  You think about

     

 12  accountability, the management committee is accountable

     

 13  for more of the strategic objectives of the company.

     

 14  Jared, the general manager, has full accountability for

     

 15  day-to-day operations and all the activities that take

     

 16  place within the facility.

     

 17     Q.   Will that include authority over the rail

     

 18  unloading operations?

     

 19     A.   That includes the rail unloading operations,

     

 20  yes.

     

 21     Q.   And how about the marine vessel operations?

     

 22     A.   It included some marine vessel operations as

     

 23  well.

     

 24     Q.   Will there be any other activity that occurs in

     

 25  the operation of the terminal that Mr. Larrabee does not
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 01  have authority over?

     

 02     A.   No.

     

 03     Q.   How about Captain Bayer?  When he testified he

     

 04  described some of the maritime operations and

     

 05  responsibilities including who makes decisions about

     

 06  when a vessel can depart.  Will Mr. Larrabee have

     

 07  authority over those decisions?

     

 08     A.   No.  I'm not familiar with what Captain Bayer,

     

 09  all the details of his testimony have been.  But in

     

 10  general, on the marine transportation side, the Coast

     

 11  Guard and the pilots and others have authority for

     

 12  managing vessel traffic, and they have the ultimate

     

 13  authority, so Jared cannot -- or nobody can override

     

 14  their decisions about marine traffic.  They have the

     

 15  ultimate authority.

     

 16     Q.   Will Mr. Larrabee have authority to enter and

     

 17  administer all contracts including contracts to run the

     

 18  operation of the terminal?

     

 19     A.   Yes, he will.

     

 20     Q.   And how about decisions about whether to accept

     

 21  a shipment of crude that does not meet the vapor

     

 22  pressure standards?

     

 23     A.   Yes, he will.

     

 24     Q.   Would that even apply to oil that's owned by

     

 25  Tesoro?
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 01     A.   Yes, he will.

     

 02     Q.   Will Mr. Larrabee be an employee of Vancouver

     

 03  Energy or will he continue as an employee of Savage?

     

 04     A.   I believe Jared is a seconded employee -- (Court

     

 05  reporter interruption.)  Seconded.  And I don't know how

     

 06  to spell that, I'm sorry.  But he's an employee of

     

 07  Savage but he is, in essence, loaned to the joint

     

 08  venture and operates on behalf of that.  The management

     

 09  committee will do his performance reviews and he is

     

 10  fully accountable for the day-to-day operation.

     

 11     Q.   So if Mr. Larrabee will remain a Savage

     

 12  employee, will that affect his authority over the

     

 13  terminal operations?

     

 14     A.   None whatsoever.

     

 15     Q.   How about Tesoro or Savage as separate

     

 16  companies; will they have any role at the terminal?

     

 17     A.   It's anticipated that Tesoro will be a customer

     

 18  of the facility but no role in directing day-to-day

     

 19  operations.  Savage as a company will probably have a

     

 20  service agreement for the employees that will handle the

     

 21  rail unloading, the management of the tank facilities.

     

 22  And it's anticipated that Tesoro, with our expertise at

     

 23  marine operations, will have a service agreement with

     

 24  the joint venture to handle the marine aspects of the

     

 25  terminal facility, all under Jared's instruction.
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 01     Q.   And if Tesoro and Savage enter these service or

     

 02  operating agreements, will those agreements address the

     

 03  care, custody, and control over the products that they

     

 04  handle?

     

 05     A.   Absolutely.  It's absolutely vital through all

     

 06  processes and all places within the complete supply

     

 07  chain care, custody, and control is in place, very

     

 08  vibrant and clear, as well as proper insurance and

     

 09  indemnities.

     

 10     Q.   Will those contracts clearly address handoff of

     

 11  care so that there's no gaps in coverage?

     

 12     A.   Absolutely.  Absolutely no gaps in coverage

     

 13  through the entire supply chain.

     

 14     Q.   And you mentioned, I believe briefly, insurance

     

 15  indemnification provisions.

     

 16          Can you describe a little bit more of what you

     

 17  would anticipate in those service contracts?

     

 18     A.   So importantly, the joint venture will have its

     

 19  own insurance policy for the activities of the facility.

     

 20  I believe council's already heard about the nature of

     

 21  that policy.

     

 22          In addition, any services that would be provided

     

 23  by Savage or by Tesoro, or for that matter any other

     

 24  contractor that works at the facility, will have to have

     

 25  appropriate insurance and indemnification for any work
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 01  activities that they're performing at the site.

     

 02     Q.   I'm going to come back to more questions on that

     

 03  in a minute but a couple more on operations.

     

 04          Who has authority to stop the operation if

     

 05  there's a safety issue?

     

 06     A.   Just a great point of alignment between

     

 07  ourselves and Savage, every person at the site has stop

     

 08  work authority.  And it's a constant theme throughout

     

 09  all of our operations and Savage's operations that no

     

 10  matter what your role in the organization, contractor or

     

 11  employee or where you come from, if you see something

     

 12  that's unsafe or if you have a question or concern about

     

 13  the actions that are taking place, you have the

     

 14  authority, actually we talk about it being an

     

 15  obligation, to stop that work and make sure it's

     

 16  appropriately elevated, resolved, before you can safely

     

 17  go on.

     

 18     Q.   So does the management committee have the

     

 19  authority to overrule the general manager, Mr. Larrabee,

     

 20  on terminal operational issues?

     

 21     A.   So I'd say day-to-day terminal operations,

     

 22  they're completely within the general manager's

     

 23  authority.  I understand your question.  I'm sorry,

     

 24  there's a fly up here.

     

 25          But from the respect of the management committee
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 01  is if we felt that for some reason the general manager

     

 02  was not acting in a safe and responsible manner or

     

 03  leading the troops in prosecuting his authority to make

     

 04  sure things are going -- (Court reporter interruption.)

     

 05  Prosecuting, acting on his authority and making sure

     

 06  that stop work authority is throughout the organization,

     

 07  if we felt he wasn't doing that appropriately, the

     

 08  management committee can remove him.

     

 09     Q.   Thank you.  I want to ask you some questions now

     

 10  about the assets and the insurance expectations for

     

 11  Vancouver Energy.

     

 12          Can you briefly describe the joint venture

     

 13  assets sort of both in the present circumstances and

     

 14  what you expect once the terminal is permitted,

     

 15  constructed, and operating?

     

 16     A.   Okay.  So presently I'd say the terminal is not

     

 17  constructed or in operation.  The assets would be the

     

 18  least that we have at the port, the ability to develop

     

 19  this potential project.

     

 20          Once the facility is constructed and in

     

 21  operations, when you think about assets, and you'll have

     

 22  all the assets that have been constructed, the six

     

 23  tanks, the unloading barn, and the improvements to the

     

 24  wharf facilities which are in the neighborhood of, I

     

 25  believe, $200 million, you'll still have the lease and
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 01  then you'll have the revenues from the customers that

     

 02  are bringing crude oil through the facility and contract

     

 03  arrangements with those within service of the facility.

     

 04     Q.   What is Vancouver Energy's plan for financing

     

 05  terminal facility construction?

     

 06     A.   So we plan to use equity.  There's no plans for

     

 07  any debt.

     

 08     Q.   No debt --

     

 09     A.   No debt.

     

 10     Q.   -- no secured debt at all?

     

 11     A.   No secured debt plan.

     

 12     Q.   What about management committee's plans for

     

 13  insurance or other financial assurances for terminal

     

 14  operations; what are your plans in that regard?

     

 15     A.   So again, the facility itself, the joint venture

     

 16  for the terminal operations will have its own insurance

     

 17  policy.  And we rely both -- Savage Services has

     

 18  insurance experts that help do analysis for the

     

 19  insurance requirements, we as Tesoro have our experts as

     

 20  well that do this for our companies, and those two

     

 21  experts will come together and do the appropriate

     

 22  analysis.

     

 23          With all insurance policies there's, I think,

     

 24  minimums, there's minimum insurance levels stated in the

     

 25  lease.  I believe in the State of Washington, if I'm
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 01  correct, there's some role that the Department of

     

 02  Ecology will play in what's an appropriate insurance

     

 03  analysis.  And then within that we will get a

     

 04  recommendation from our people for the insurance for the

     

 05  facility, for the joint venture.

     

 06     Q.   And so let me go down that path a minute.  What

     

 07  happens -- you get this recommendation from your

     

 08  insurance team, Tesoro and Savage.  What happens at the

     

 09  management committee?

     

 10     A.   Management committee will discuss the

     

 11  recommendation and approve it.  You hire experts for a

     

 12  reason.  They're very versed in this and understand the

     

 13  appropriate insurance levels that are necessary.  And

     

 14  we'll approve their recommendation.

     

 15     Q.   Are there any plans to self-insure the

     

 16  obligations?

     

 17     A.   No plans to self-insure.  There is typically

     

 18  within these policies some sort of deductible and so you

     

 19  could say that's self-insurance, but no plans to

     

 20  self-insure anything of any significance.

     

 21     Q.   You mentioned earlier that it's possible or even

     

 22  likely that Tesoro might enter a service contract and

     

 23  Savage might enter a service contract with the joint

     

 24  venture to perform services and that they would have

     

 25  insurance.
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 01          Would those insurance coverages be in addition

     

 02  to the joint venture's coverage?

     

 03     A.   That's correct, they would be in addition.  And,

     

 04  likewise, anybody that was to do work at the facility,

     

 05  they have to have their own insurance independent of the

     

 06  joint venture, any contractor or service provider.

     

 07  (Court reporter interruption.)  Or service provider.

     

 08     Q.   We're getting the beeps on the court reporter

     

 09  too.

     

 10              All right.  Ms. Hollingsed, who was Savage's

     

 11  insurance risk manager, testified last week.  She

     

 12  described what was called a conservative approach to the

     

 13  liability insurance coverage typically procuring

     

 14  insurance coverage in amounts above similar operations.

     

 15              Can you comment about the joint venture's

     

 16  expectations in that regard?

     

 17     A.   Yes.  That's our expectation.  We'll take a

     

 18  conservative approach and typically above the

     

 19  requirements.

     

 20     Q.   And there were questions about the relative size

     

 21  of this facility.  For purposes of evaluating comparable

     

 22  insurance coverage, in your mind how does the size of

     

 23  the project compare with other crude oil storage and

     

 24  loading facilities around the country for setting

     

 25  insurance?
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 01     A.   In my experience this would be a small to medium

     

 02  size facility.  When you think nationally about crude

     

 03  oil storage and terminaling operations, there's quite a

     

 04  few that are substantially larger.  And, yeah, I think 2

     

 05  million barrels of storage, just over 2 million barrels

     

 06  of storage this would be on the small to medium size.

     

 07     Q.   Thank you.  Ms. Hollingsed also described

     

 08  various coverages, exclusions, and endorsements for

     

 09  liability insurance including optional coverage for

     

 10  things like terrorism.

     

 11          Will Vancouver Energy agree to purchase

     

 12  endorsements for things like that?

     

 13     A.   Again, our teams are going to recommend which

     

 14  endorsements are necessary and prudent for this facility

     

 15  and I anticipate the management committee is going to

     

 16  follow the recommendation and approve that.  I can't

     

 17  speak to the specifics since it's kind of a hypothetical

     

 18  at this point.

     

 19     Q.   There was a question of Captain Bayer about

     

 20  Jones Act vessels -- (Court reporter interruption.) --

     

 21  and whether Jones Act vessels will call on the facility.

     

 22          What's your view of whether Jones Act vessels

     

 23  will be calling at this facility?

     

 24              MS. BRIMMER:  Your Honor, again, that seems

     

 25  to be beyond the financial structure of the company.
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 01              MR. DERR:  I'll withdraw that question.

     

 02  BY MR. DERR:

     

 03     Q.   And there have been several questions about

     

 04  project commitments and what is the company's and the

     

 05  management committee's solution on various project

     

 06  commitments like tank cars.

     

 07          Can you describe how the management committee

     

 08  use its commitments and obligations for this project?

     

 09              MS. BRIMMER:  Again, Your Honor, tank cars

     

 10  is not part of the financial structure of the company.

     

 11              MR. DERR:  I'm asking a general question

     

 12  about commitments.  Tank cars is one example.  Council

     

 13  has asked questions -- parties have asked questions,

     

 14  will the commitments change and where are the

     

 15  commitments.  Mr. Casey is one of four members of the

     

 16  management committee who will be making those decisions.

     

 17              JUDGE NOBLE:  The objection is overruled.

     

 18  The question is allowed.

     

 19  BY MR. DERR:

     

 20     Q.   You can answer the question.

     

 21     A.   Okay.  So the commitments we make and continue

     

 22  to make to this facility will be in regards, and I think

     

 23  through tank cars are an example.

     

 24          So when we first -- when this facility was first

     

 25  contemplated by the Port and the joint venture, there
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 01  was not a federal tank car standard.  And Tesoro had a

     

 02  history of, in our fleet, getting the latest and

     

 03  greatest available cars for tank cars.  As we have

     

 04  learned more and worked to improve rail safety with all

     

 05  the partners that are involved in the supply chain,

     

 06  things have changed and improved up to and including a

     

 07  federal railcar standard which is now published.

     

 08          And so our intent as the joint venture, when you

     

 09  think about this in the course of the next 20 years, is

     

 10  we will continue to improve the standards by which this

     

 11  facility and the supply chain is able to safely and

     

 12  efficiently and reliably function, and so that is our

     

 13  intent.  Safety technology, like all technologies,

     

 14  continues to advance, and it's not a stagnant theme.

     

 15  And it will be our intent to continue to improve those

     

 16  standards over time for this facility.

     

 17     Q.   Would that apply to things beyond tank cars?

     

 18     A.   It applies to everything at this facility.  We

     

 19  continually throughout our operations, and when I say

     

 20  "we" I'm talking about this is another example where we

     

 21  have alignment with Savage as a partner, we continue to

     

 22  seek, whether it's training practices or facility

     

 23  technologies and safety systems, continue to seek and

     

 24  understand what's the best available technology, and

     

 25  evaluate and implement that with appropriate time
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 01  limits.

     

 02     Q.   And if this EFSEC council were to identify items

     

 03  that were needed as conditions of approval or through

     

 04  its environmental review, are those examples of

     

 05  additional commitments?

     

 06     A.   Those are examples of additional commitments

     

 07  that we would certainly evaluate and take into

     

 08  consideration and make those improvements.

     

 09              MR. DERR:  Thank you.  I have no further

     

 10  questions.

     

 11              JUDGE NOBLE:  Cross-examination.

     

 12  

     

 13                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

     

 14  BY MS. BRIMMER:

     

 15     Q.   Mr. Casey, good morning.  My name is Janette

     

 16  Brimmer, I'm with EarthJustice and I represent a number

     

 17  of the intervenor organizations in this matter.  I just

     

 18  want to again clarify the terms and the identities here,

     

 19  so I just want to go into a little bit of that.  You've

     

 20  referred to the joint venture.

     

 21          To be absolutely clear, I want to make sure I

     

 22  get the name right.  That is Tesoro Savage Petroleum

     

 23  Terminal Limited Liability Company; correct?

     

 24     A.   I believe that's correct.

     

 25     Q.   And the d/b/a is Vancouver Energy; correct?
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 01     A.   Doing business as Vancouver Energy, yes, ma'am.

     

 02     Q.   Okay.  And the limited liability company is a

     

 03  joint venture between Tesoro Refining and Marketing

     

 04  Limited Liability Company and Savage Companies; right?

     

 05     A.   It's a joint venture between Tesoro and Savage

     

 06  Services, correct.

     

 07     Q.   Well, when we say Tesoro, I just want to make

     

 08  sure we get the right Tesoro entity.  It's Tesoro

     

 09  Refining and Marketing Company, LLC; right?

     

 10     A.   I believe that's correct, yes.

     

 11     Q.   Okay.  And that is a subsidiary of Tesoro

     

 12  Corporation; right?

     

 13     A.   I believe that's correct, yes.

     

 14     Q.   Okay.  And I think you also -- I believe you

     

 15  hold positions with Tesoro Logistics Limited

     

 16  Partnership, also a subsidiary of Tesoro Corporation;

     

 17  right?

     

 18     A.   Correct.

     

 19     Q.   Okay.  And then I think there's one other Tesoro

     

 20  entity so I just want to be clear.  There's someone

     

 21  called Tesoro Companies, Inc.  Are they involved at all

     

 22  in this limited liability company that is going to be

     

 23  Vancouver Energy?

     

 24     A.   I'm not familiar with any involvement.

     

 25     Q.   Okay.  I want to make sure that members of the
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 01  council -- some members of the council I'm sure are

     

 02  familiar with this but I just want to make sure.

     

 03          Is it a correct description of a limited

     

 04  liability company to say that the business structure

     

 05  combines the benefits of a passthrough taxation like you

     

 06  would have in a partnership with the limited liability

     

 07  of a corporation?  In other words, there's that point of

     

 08  limiting liability but the tax benefits flow through and

     

 09  flow up; is that right?

     

 10     A.   I wouldn't be able to answer with specificity

     

 11  the detail of the corporate structure and the benefits.

     

 12  There is some taxation considerations as well as

     

 13  management considerations between the various

     

 14  structures.  So I'm not an expert to testify as what's

     

 15  the, I guess, flow-through of taxes, if you will.

     

 16     Q.   But at the same time, one of the important

     

 17  benefits of an LLC is that shield on liability so that

     

 18  the liability all stays down at the LLC; right?

     

 19     A.   The liability is with the company, and that's

     

 20  important for the respect of making sure that, as this

     

 21  company will have its own insurance company -- insurance

     

 22  policy and liabilities, it's doing business.  The intent

     

 23  for us was, as I said, and this is very common, two

     

 24  companies, Savage Services and Tesoro, coming together

     

 25  to form a company and utilizing their strengths to be
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 01  successful together.

     

 02     Q.   I want to make sure I understand your answer.

     

 03  When you say "the company," when I was talking about

     

 04  keeping liability all in one place and having a shield,

     

 05  "the company" is Tesoro Savage Petroleum Terminal LLC;

     

 06  right?

     

 07     A.   The partnership, yes.

     

 08     Q.   Am I correct in assuming that Tesoro Savage

     

 09  Petroleum Terminal LLC will not own hard assets like

     

 10  tank cars, for example?

     

 11     A.   No, you're not correct in assuming that, because

     

 12  the hard assets at the facility will be owned by the

     

 13  company.

     

 14     Q.   So the company will own tank cars?

     

 15     A.   Not tank cars, but you said "hard assets like

     

 16  tank cars."  Hard assets at the facility within the

     

 17  terminal will be owned by the company.

     

 18     Q.   Okay.  So I think we've heard that that would be

     

 19  the oil storage tanks and any buildings that are

     

 20  constructed, and I think you also said improvements to

     

 21  the wharfs; right?

     

 22     A.   As well as the rail unloading facility.

     

 23     Q.   Well, when you say a rail unloading facility,

     

 24  the track is already there, so are you talking about the

     

 25  additional structures that are needed to pump out the
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 01  oil and send it to the storage tanks?  Is that what

     

 02  you're referring to?

     

 03     A.   That's correct.  It's commonly referred to as

     

 04  the unloading barn.  It's a structure that the trains

     

 05  pull into and it has an unloading facilities and the

     

 06  piping to get it to tankage.

     

 07     Q.   And I think you had said that those will not be

     

 08  encumbered by a bank loan.  And that causes me to ask,

     

 09  how is the limited liability company being funded right

     

 10  now since there's no revenue stream?

     

 11     A.   The limit liability company is being funded by

     

 12  partner contributions.

     

 13     Q.   So how does that work?  Is there just a regular

     

 14  monthly -- I don't know what to call it -- stipend or

     

 15  infusion of cash?  How do the funds make it into

     

 16  Vancouver Energy right now?

     

 17     A.   So from the management-based standpoint, as I

     

 18  said, that's one of the roles of the management

     

 19  committee.  So our quarterly meetings, we review the

     

 20  financial needs for the coming quarter, and we look

     

 21  at -- not only do we look at what has been spent and

     

 22  making a projection of what will be spent, and then

     

 23  there is a call to the partners for capital

     

 24  contribution.  I can't speak to how that works on

     

 25  Savage's side, but on Tesoro's side I have the authority

�2019

                           BRIMMER / CASEY

     

     

     

 01  to authorize the capital contribution to the joint

     

 02  venture.

     

 03     Q.   So you don't need additional action by Tesoro

     

 04  executives or board to do that?

     

 05     A.   No, ma'am.  I am the Tesoro executive that does

     

 06  that.

     

 07     Q.   And I would assume that the funding of all of

     

 08  the construction for the facility will occur the same

     

 09  way?

     

 10     A.   That is our intent.

     

 11     Q.   So then how do the parent companies get paid

     

 12  back?  Or do they not get paid back for the funding that

     

 13  is going in now and for construction?  Do they take a

     

 14  lien, for example?

     

 15     A.   No.  The facility will generate a revenue once

     

 16  it's up in operation and in business, and that will be

     

 17  distributed back to the partners.

     

 18     Q.   So when you referred to equity, is that some

     

 19  future equity that will be left with Vancouver Energy or

     

 20  will all of the revenue in the future be distributed to

     

 21  the partners?

     

 22     A.   So you're asking a question about a level of

     

 23  detail we have not gotten to, and I believe some of that

     

 24  may be business confidential.  So I can't answer

     

 25  specifically that question.
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 01     Q.   You testified during direct concerning the

     

 02  arrangement where Mr. Larrabee, by way of example, is, I

     

 03  think you said on loan to the limited liability company.

     

 04  Do you recall that?

     

 05     A.   He's a Savage employee that is seconded into the

     

 06  joint venture.

     

 07     Q.   And I think a layperson's description was "on

     

 08  loan"?

     

 09     A.   On loan, correct.

     

 10     Q.   Is his salary paid, then, by the limited

     

 11  liability company or is it paid by Savage?

     

 12     A.   His salary is actually paid by Savage but is

     

 13  part of the joint venture.  So he's -- his expense is

     

 14  the only part of the joint venture expense of a paid

     

 15  employee, I believe.

     

 16     Q.   And then I think you said that it would be

     

 17  Savage employees working through a contract between

     

 18  Savage and the limited liability company that would be

     

 19  doing the operation of the terminal such as the train

     

 20  unloading and those kinds of things; right?

     

 21     A.   It is anticipated there will be a service

     

 22  agreement for Savage Services and their employees to do

     

 23  the rail unloading and tank management, correct.

     

 24     Q.   So, similarly, they will be paid by Savage and

     

 25  then Savage gets reimbursed by, what, funds from the
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 01  limited liability company?  Is that how that works?

     

 02     A.   So again, a level of detail and specificity that

     

 03  has not been resolved yet since the terminal is not in

     

 04  operation.

     

 05     Q.   Let me ask a more general question.

     

 06          Is it anticipated that the limited liability

     

 07  company will have any employees that are employees of

     

 08  that company?

     

 09     A.   So typically when you do a service agreement,

     

 10  just to make sure it's square from a high level, is

     

 11  Savage Services, those employees who are doing that

     

 12  work, will get paid by the joint venture to perform

     

 13  those services and then they would handle payroll for

     

 14  their employees to do that.  Just like any other service

     

 15  contractor or provider, they're contracted for a service

     

 16  to be paid for by the joint venture.  The joint venture

     

 17  is getting the money to pay for those services by

     

 18  performing the service at the facility and the people

     

 19  that are paying for the availability of the terminal

     

 20  services.

     

 21     Q.   So it's a two-way arm's length contract between

     

 22  the terminal company and, for example, Savage?

     

 23     A.   There will be a contract that's -- it's

     

 24  anticipated there will be a contract between Savage and

     

 25  joint venture, yes.
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 01     Q.   So I think that causes me to turn, then, to the

     

 02  insurance.

     

 03          So we've heard a lot about how the limited

     

 04  liability company will have insurance policies in its

     

 05  name to cover everything from property damage to

     

 06  liability.  Anything I'm missing there?

     

 07     A.   So again, our experts will recommend all the

     

 08  insurance that are appropriate for this level of

     

 09  operation for the terminal facility.

     

 10     Q.   So let me back up a bit.

     

 11          So there's some minimum insurance obligations in

     

 12  the lease with the Port; correct?

     

 13     A.   I believe that's correct.

     

 14     Q.   And the testimony from witnesses so far,

     

 15  including you, I think, has been that there's an

     

 16  expectation that the limited liability company will

     

 17  purchase insurance in excess of the minimums required in

     

 18  the lease?

     

 19     A.   That is correct.

     

 20     Q.   And that will be based on recommendations of

     

 21  experts?

     

 22     A.   Of our internal experts.  And they're also

     

 23  working with, as I understand, this Department of

     

 24  Ecology or the State has some studies that they do about

     

 25  appropriate insurance limits as well, and it's all
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 01  factored into the recommendation.

     

 02     Q.   And then that decision, thumbs up or down, on

     

 03  those recommendations is made by the management

     

 04  committee?

     

 05     A.   It would thumbs up by the management committee,

     

 06  yes.

     

 07     Q.   Are you saying it would be thumbs up no matter

     

 08  what the recommendation is?

     

 09     A.   What I'm saying is we hire experts to manage

     

 10  this space and understand these areas very well, and

     

 11  they make a recommendation.  And it's likely going to be

     

 12  approved by the management, very likely.

     

 13     Q.   Similar to the funding questions, are you

     

 14  authorized to make that decision on behalf of the Tesoro

     

 15  parent companies?  In other words, do you require any

     

 16  additional board or executive action at Tesoro for that?

     

 17     A.   So that's a great question and I don't have the

     

 18  levels of authority memorized for insurance purposes.

     

 19  Our treasurer, who works with our chief financial

     

 20  officer and I, review that.  And either I will have the

     

 21  authority or our chief financial officer will have the

     

 22  authority to approve that.

     

 23     Q.   So right now there are some things that you have

     

 24  authority to do and bind the Tesoro parent companies but

     

 25  not all things; is that right?
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 01     A.   It depends on the level.  Again, we're asking a

     

 02  hypothetical.  I have insurance authority to some level

     

 03  I'm just not familiar with today.  And I don't have the

     

 04  hypothetical level that's being requested, so I can't

     

 05  answer specifically if I have that authority.  More than

     

 06  likely I do.

     

 07     Q.   Are the management committee meetings recorded?

     

 08     A.   Yes, they are.  Not recorded like TV recording

     

 09  here, but there's notes taken and memorialized minutes.

     

 10     Q.   You testified during your direct concerning

     

 11  insurance that both Tesoro -- I lose track of names --

     

 12  Tesoro Refining and Marketing Company, the parent or

     

 13  partner company here, and Savage Companies will have

     

 14  insurance and indemnification agreements, and I want to

     

 15  explore exactly what that means.

     

 16          So -- and obviously I'll have you speak to

     

 17  Tesoro Refining and Marketing.  What will they purchase

     

 18  insurance for related to the operation of this terminal?

     

 19     A.   I guess I'll go back to care, custody, and

     

 20  control and making sure there's absolutely no gaps, so I

     

 21  can answer it from Tesoro's perspective.  Very

     

 22  importantly, the joint venture will have, as we've

     

 23  talked about, a very appropriate and conservative

     

 24  insurance program for all activities of the joint

     

 25  venture.  Independently of anything else that Tesoro or
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 01  Savage or any other partner will do, that policy will

     

 02  exist.

     

 03          As far as other Tesoro activities, Tesoro as a

     

 04  company has insurance, if you will, and I'll use an

     

 05  example, for our marine liabilities or for other

     

 06  transportation liabilities.  So our personnel who would

     

 07  be doing any marine activities, we would have

     

 08  appropriate insurance and indemnification for any of

     

 09  those marine activities.  That is a Tesoro, as the

     

 10  customer, obligation.  Very different than the joint

     

 11  venture.

     

 12     Q.   So -- and again, I want to make sure I'm

     

 13  following that.  So if Tesoro -- we've heard that some

     

 14  of the oil coming to you will be Tesoro oil; correct?

     

 15     A.   That's correct.  Tesoro is anticipating 60,000

     

 16  barrels a day coming through the facility.

     

 17     Q.   So -- and there will be Tesoro employees working

     

 18  on the marine end of the operation at the terminal?

     

 19     A.   That is correct.

     

 20     Q.   So if the Tesoro employee somehow makes an error

     

 21  or there's a failure of marine equipment when there's

     

 22  that custody and control point that's been talked about

     

 23  where, you know, as it passes the flange between the

     

 24  hose and the ship, custody changes, that's what that

     

 25  insurance is for, if there's some mess-up there or some
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 01  accident there that results in a spill or some other

     

 02  disaster?

     

 03     A.   Yes.  There's two points there.  So not all of

     

 04  the oil that goes through the terminal will be Tesoro

     

 05  oil, right?  As I said, about 60,000 barrels a day.  So

     

 06  for the marine activity of transferring the oil safely

     

 07  onto the marine vessels, Tesoro will have a service

     

 08  level agreement with the joint venture to do that work

     

 09  under the authority of the general manager.

     

 10          Tesoro will have its proper insurance and

     

 11  indemnifications for providing that service to the joint

     

 12  venture as any contractor or consultant would be to a

     

 13  facility.  If it is Tesoro's oil that is being loaded,

     

 14  there is additional insurance policies that Tesoro has

     

 15  for any of its oil activities.

     

 16     Q.   So let's talk about the indemnification

     

 17  agreement.  Does that flow one way or both ways?  In

     

 18  other words, if something happens and Tesoro's insurance

     

 19  for whatever reason has to pay out, are you saying that

     

 20  there's an indemnification potentially back from the

     

 21  limited liability company to Tesoro for that?

     

 22     A.   I don't think I understand your question.  I

     

 23  don't know about the flowing back and forth.

     

 24     Q.   I guess what I'm trying to understand is

     

 25  indemnification agreements are usually -- if I end up
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 01  having to pay, you're going to indemnify me; right?

     

 02  That's the simplest form of an indemnification

     

 03  agreement; right?

     

 04     A.   That is a form, yes.

     

 05     Q.   So what I'm trying to understand is when you

     

 06  said there would be indemnification agreements back and

     

 07  forth between Tesoro and the limited liability company,

     

 08  I'm trying to understand who indemnifies who.  Is it --

     

 09  it's a mutual agreement or is it just that if Tesoro has

     

 10  to pay, the limited liability company will indemnify

     

 11  Tesoro?

     

 12     A.   You're asking a level of specificity I cannot

     

 13  answer.  Tesoro will be insured appropriately for

     

 14  conducting that activity.

     

 15     Q.   Okay.

     

 16              MS. BRIMMER:  I have nothing further, Your

     

 17  Honor.  Thank you.

     

 18              JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there any other

     

 19  cross-examination of this witness?  Rebuttal?  Redirect,

     

 20  rather?

     

 21              MR. DERR:  I just have one.

     

 22  

     

 23                    REDIRECT EXAMINATION

     

 24  BY MR. DERR:

     

 25     Q.   Mr. Casey, you mentioned an Ecology study that
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 01  sets ultimately insurance requirements for this project.

     

 02  If that -- if Ecology does that study and they determine

     

 03  an amount that's inappropriate and EFSEC imposes that

     

 04  insurance amount as a condition of this project

     

 05  operating, not knowing what that number is today, is

     

 06  that a number that the management committee would

     

 07  accept?

     

 08     A.   Yes.  If that's what has been agreed by EFSEC

     

 09  and the State as appropriate insurance, that's the

     

 10  agreed number.

     

 11              MR. DERR:  Thank you.  No further questions.

     

 12              JUDGE NOBLE:  Council questions?

     

 13              Mr. Shafer?

     

 14              MR. SHAFER:  Mr. Casey, thank you very much

     

 15  for your testimony this morning.  One question.

     

 16              You made reference to, if I understood you

     

 17  correctly, that every single employee has the authority

     

 18  for stop work on the facility.  And could you help

     

 19  clarify on that a little bit?  Particularly my question

     

 20  is in regards to, has that ever caused any dispute or

     

 21  confusion either among co-workers or staff or management

     

 22  which may have led to environmental impact or improper

     

 23  function of the facility?

     

 24              THE WITNESS:  Yeah, it's a great question

     

 25  and I'd love to elaborate on that.  And it's actually

�2029

                               CASEY

     

     

     

 01  quite the contrary.

     

 02              I can give and cite numerous examples where

     

 03  contractors have noticed something abnormal, and

     

 04  escalated and said stop the job; operators, maintenance

     

 05  craftsmen, all levels of the organization.  And so the

     

 06  result of this is safer facilities with less potential

     

 07  environmental consequence.

     

 08              Because it's the authority, or as we talked

     

 09  about is an obligation, is now bringing all sets of eyes

     

 10  into the facility saying the most important thing we do

     

 11  is protect people and the environment.  And we have

     

 12  safety tennants that underpin that as well.  And there's

     

 13  always time to do it right, you know, stop work

     

 14  obligation and authority.  The design is intended for

     

 15  everybody to be aligned, is the first and foremost

     

 16  objective.

     

 17              It's a great question.

     

 18              MR. SHAFER:  Let me just clarify on that.

     

 19  So if a -- say a staff level worker is -- sees a

     

 20  situation to stop work.  Does the work immediately stop

     

 21  at that moment?  Is that something that goes immediately

     

 22  to management and then they look at a review?  Is there

     

 23  a decision tree there?  Can you help us --

     

 24              THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  The intent is to

     

 25  immediately stop and then it gets escalated.  So it
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 01  doesn't have to go up and get escalated to see if it

     

 02  gets stopped.  In refining, the example is we talk to

     

 03  our operators all the time, they have complete authority

     

 04  to stabilize, slow down and shut down without calling

     

 05  for permission, complete authority.  So if they see

     

 06  anything that's causing them concern and they have that

     

 07  complete authority.  Now, we'll come in afterwards and

     

 08  review and help them determine appropriate safeguards to

     

 09  reestablish operations, but they're in the moment and

     

 10  they see the hazard, they have complete authority to

     

 11  stop.  And then we can get the appropriate resources in

     

 12  to help alleviate whatever situation was causing the

     

 13  concern.

     

 14              MR. SHAFER:  Thank you.

     

 15              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Stone?

     

 16              MR. STONE:  Good morning, Mr. Casey.

     

 17              The question was asked earlier who will own

     

 18  the tank cars, and I'm not sure I heard the answer.  I

     

 19  understand that oftentimes tank cars aren't actually

     

 20  owned but they're leased.  So will Tesoro Savage's

     

 21  company own or lease the tank cars that will serve this

     

 22  facility?

     

 23              THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Good morning, Mr. Stone.

     

 24              The joint venture is not anticipated to own

     

 25  any railcars.  The railcars are either owned or leased
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 01  by the customers of the terminal, so each of those

     

 02  manages their own fleet and they make the decisions on

     

 03  whether to own or lease as well.  So it's not

     

 04  anticipated that the JV will own any railcars coming to

     

 05  the facilities.

     

 06              However, we did make a commitment that the

     

 07  facility will only accept the DOT-117s, which is the new

     

 08  federal standard cars, into the facility.

     

 09              MR. STONE:  Okay.  So any customers of the

     

 10  facility who want to use it, they'll be made known that

     

 11  only the newer, safer tank cars will be accepted at the

     

 12  facility?

     

 13              THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

     

 14              MR. STONE:  Okay, thank you.

     

 15              JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other questions to my

     

 16  right?  Questions to my left?

     

 17              Mr. Moss?

     

 18              MR. MOSS:  Good morning.

     

 19              THE WITNESS:  Good morning.

     

 20              MR. MOSS:  I wanted to follow up a little

     

 21  bit on the stop work because that's something I'm

     

 22  unfamiliar with.

     

 23              How is that communicated?  If an employee

     

 24  spots something that appears to that employee to be

     

 25  dangerous and that employee believes that work should
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 01  stop, is that communicated throughout the operation, and

     

 02  if so, how?

     

 03              THE WITNESS:  Yeah, so again, great

     

 04  question.

     

 05              Multiple levels of communication there,

     

 06  actually multiple times are repeated.  And even myself

     

 07  as head of operations, in every employee engagement,

     

 08  which I visit all of our facilities at least annually, I

     

 09  reinforce that with all the employees, because they are

     

 10  often looking and saying does the boss really want that

     

 11  to occur.  And so I do that as part of my business.

     

 12              The stop work authority actually starts on

     

 13  day one with employee orientation as part of our

     

 14  training about safe, compliant, and reliable operations

     

 15  and all of us having a role or an obligation in ensuring

     

 16  that's taking place.  And then it's reinforced from

     

 17  weekly safety meetings to monthly safety topics up to

     

 18  and including, as I said, as an executive within the

     

 19  company, I make sure with every interaction I have with

     

 20  employees, we talk about our desire to create an

     

 21  incident and injury-free workplace and stop work

     

 22  authority as an obligation for all of us to hold that

     

 23  intent and act on it.

     

 24              MR. MOSS:  That was helpful.

     

 25              Another aspect of my question was let's say
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 01  I'm an employee working unloading railcars and I see

     

 02  something that I think is amiss there and make this

     

 03  announcement that there should be a stop work.  Does

     

 04  that stop everything at the entire facility or just in

     

 05  that operation that I'm focused on?

     

 06              THE WITNESS:  Again, so it's a very good

     

 07  question, and I think the question to your -- or the

     

 08  answer to your question is a bit complicated so I'll

     

 09  give you two potential scenarios, right.

     

 10              If it's an issue with one car stopping and

     

 11  isolating that car and then backing up and stopping the

     

 12  unloading operations so we can get all this done, would

     

 13  be an example.  If that employee were to notice an issue

     

 14  on the common header which is going to the tanks or one

     

 15  other thing, it will stop the entire operation.  The

     

 16  facility is also designed with, we call it ESDs,

     

 17  emergency shutdown devices, which in our field

     

 18  vernacular is the big red button.  You push the button,

     

 19  it puts the entire facility into a safe state and shuts

     

 20  it down.  Any employee and all employees will be trained

     

 21  on where those are and have the capability to push the

     

 22  big red button and shut down the facility.

     

 23              MR. MOSS:  Thank you.

     

 24              My other question has to do with insurance.

     

 25  You indicated in your testimony that the -- I suppose
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 01  the joint venture or perhaps the parent corporation,

     

 02  there's no plans to self-insure, basically.

     

 03              THE WITNESS:  No, sir.  There is within each

     

 04  of the policies a deductible amount, which is 5 or 10

     

 05  percent of the policy, but no self-insurance.

     

 06              MR. MOSS:  So I was interested in the other

     

 07  end.  Assuming that for some reason the limits of

     

 08  liability of the policies were exceeded by the event in

     

 09  question, what then?

     

 10              THE WITNESS:  So I think all of our effort

     

 11  is to prevent those events from occurring.  If there was

     

 12  an unfortunate situation where all of the insurance, and

     

 13  there's several layers of insurance that come into play

     

 14  here, are expended, I believe ourselves and Savage

     

 15  Services, the joint venture, would work to do the right

     

 16  thing as much as we can to alleviate that situation.

     

 17              It's hard for me in a hypothetical situation

     

 18  to give you an affirmative answer to that, but we are

     

 19  very much committed to make sure that the right things

     

 20  occur within the communities we operate.

     

 21              MR. MOSS:  Thank you very much.  That's all

     

 22  I have for you.

     

 23              JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other questions to my

     

 24  left?

     

 25              Mr. Rossman?
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 01              MR. ROSSMAN:  Yeah, thank you very much for

     

 02  your testimony and coming here today.  I have some

     

 03  questions on the financial assurances and liability and

     

 04  when you talk about operations.

     

 05              So my understanding from previous testimony

     

 06  and from some of the opening briefs there would be on

     

 07  the order of 700 million to a billion dollars of

     

 08  financial assurances needed for the oil as it was coming

     

 09  down the rail and somewhere on the order of a billion

     

 10  dollars of financial assurances needed for the vessel

     

 11  from the point that it leaves the terminal.  But I

     

 12  understand from the lease we're looking so far at

     

 13  somewhere in the neighborhood of $40 million of

     

 14  assurances that are required and then through the course

     

 15  of studies there may be some additional amount

     

 16  determined.

     

 17              Is that all right so far, to your

     

 18  understanding, at least as far as what's going on with

     

 19  this facility's insurance?

     

 20              THE WITNESS:  Yeah, I haven't reviewed all

     

 21  the testimony to understand all the details, but it

     

 22  sounds appropriate.

     

 23              MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  And we also heard

     

 24  testimony about, I believe, some similar facilities in

     

 25  California had an insurance cap of 330 million.
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 01              Are you familiar at all with that or?

     

 02              THE WITNESS:  No, we do do business in

     

 03  California, but I'm not familiar with any of the caps

     

 04  that are on the facilities there.  Like I said, an

     

 05  example, the least we would consider that minimum

     

 06  requirement.  The State is going to help address what is

     

 07  an appropriate requirement.  We anticipate our experts

     

 08  will look at if there's even additional coverage beyond

     

 09  the State recommendation for the facility.

     

 10              MR. ROSSMAN:  What about as to like other

     

 11  Tesoro facilities?  You mentioned on direct examination

     

 12  that you saw this as a small to medium size storage

     

 13  facility overall.  Does Tesoro have larger storage

     

 14  facilities than this?

     

 15              THE WITNESS:  Yes.  In each of our

     

 16  refineries we have a tank and wharf, in our coastal

     

 17  refineries.  Our mid-continent refineries do not have

     

 18  wharf, obviously.  But so we have tankage, and it's

     

 19  typically in the, let's say 4- to 8 million-barrel

     

 20  capacity of those operations.  Then there's extremely

     

 21  large terminals, predominantly in the Gulf Coast or in

     

 22  Oklahoma, that have upwards of 80 to 90 million barrels

     

 23  of capacity.

     

 24              MR. ROSSMAN:  So recognizing that presumably

     

 25  the insurance requirements of a refinery will be
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 01  different from just a transfer facility, do you have any

     

 02  idea of the insurance amounts of large Tesoro storage

     

 03  facilities?

     

 04              THE WITNESS:  So I do not have all the

     

 05  specifics, but we have very significant -- as I said,

     

 06  we've got insurance experts work for our treasurer, and

     

 07  we've got very significant insurance policies for all of

     

 08  our operations which includes both the refining

     

 09  processes and refineries as well as any of the handling

     

 10  of materials, feedstocks or products around those

     

 11  refineries and logistics operations.

     

 12              MR. ROSSMAN:  But you don't know the amount

     

 13  or the order of magnitude?

     

 14              THE WITNESS:  I do not know the exact order

     

 15  of magnitude or amount, no, I don't.

     

 16              MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  What about as to Tesoro

     

 17  employees who will be working on the site under a

     

 18  service contract with Vancouver Energy; you mentioned

     

 19  that they would have insurance.  Do you know the amounts

     

 20  and types of coverage for that insurance?

     

 21              THE WITNESS:  No, I don't.  Again, since the

     

 22  facility is not in operation yet, we have not determined

     

 23  that.

     

 24              MR. ROSSMAN:  Would the intention be for

     

 25  those that just have the types of insurance that would
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 01  cover sort of a general liability, or is it also -- my

     

 02  understanding is that there are additional environmental

     

 03  pollution insurances that are required.  Do you have a

     

 04  sense of whether the Tesoro employees would have those

     

 05  types of insurance?

     

 06              THE WITNESS:  Yes.  My sense is that they

     

 07  will be intended -- it's intended that they'll have all

     

 08  the appropriate coverages for the type of work that they

     

 09  are performing, which would be general liabilities as

     

 10  well as any kind of pollution policies that would be

     

 11  necessary for that work.

     

 12              MR. ROSSMAN:  So the intention is that

     

 13  Tesoro employees onsite would be independently insured

     

 14  by Tesoro Corporation or one of the Tesoro Corporations

     

 15  other than Vancouver Energy for their direct liability

     

 16  and also environmental damages that their work caused?

     

 17              THE WITNESS:  For any service agreement,

     

 18  it's no different than any other contractor performing

     

 19  work at a facility.  They have to have appropriate

     

 20  insurance for the work they're conducting at the

     

 21  facility.  And that would be the intent for Savage and

     

 22  Tesoro employees conducting work at that facility.

     

 23              MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  And I do some

     

 24  contracting for the State, and thinking about

     

 25  indemnification, our contracts, the boilerplate has our
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 01  contractee indemnifying us as the State for work, and

     

 02  that makes sense to me in that it sort of reduces our

     

 03  level of risk to have that level of indemnification.

     

 04              But you don't know which entities -- you

     

 05  don't know whether Vancouver Energy would be

     

 06  indemnifying the Tesoro employees onsite or Tesoro would

     

 07  be indemnifying Vancouver Energy; is that correct?

     

 08              THE WITNESS:  Yeah, number one, I'm not

     

 09  familiar with those details.  Number two, these haven't

     

 10  been all resolved yet and brought to recommendation by

     

 11  our expert, so I can't really speak to that.

     

 12              MR. ROSSMAN:  At the Tesoro facility in

     

 13  Anacortes, Savage operates a terminal there; is that

     

 14  right?

     

 15              THE WITNESS:  That's correct, Savage

     

 16  operates there.

     

 17              MR. ROSSMAN:  Would you say the agreements

     

 18  between Savage and Tesoro are similar in nature,

     

 19  generally speaking, to what are likely to be in place at

     

 20  Vancouver Energy in terms of those kinds of service

     

 21  agreement onsite?

     

 22              THE WITNESS:  Yeah, I haven't reviewed them

     

 23  in detail, but they're likely similar in nature for that

     

 24  service.

     

 25              MR. ROSSMAN:  Do you have any sense of how
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 01  the indemnifications and insurance work --

     

 02              THE WITNESS:  I do not.

     

 03              MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  So going back to my

     

 04  original question.

     

 05              Recognizing that Ecology maybe has a study

     

 06  in the work and recognizing that your experts and

     

 07  Savage's experts are going to be thinking about how to

     

 08  price risk, it intuitively seems to me that if we have

     

 09  somewhere on the order of a billion dollars of risk at

     

 10  the rail and somewhere on the order of a billion dollars

     

 11  of insurance on the vessel, that we should have

     

 12  somewhere on the order of a billion dollars of insurance

     

 13  at the facility.

     

 14              And I recognize that you don't have the

     

 15  details on what the rail or vessel insurance is, but do

     

 16  you have a sense from your position whether Tesoro and

     

 17  Vancouver Energy would have a problem taking in the

     

 18  range of a billion dollars of insurance at this

     

 19  facility?

     

 20              THE WITNESS:  Yeah, so the joint venture,

     

 21  Vancouver Energy has -- from what I know from our

     

 22  experts, has no concerns with getting appropriate

     

 23  insurance for the magnitude that you're discussing for

     

 24  the insurance at this facility.

     

 25              MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  So just to be clear, is
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 01  a billion dollars in the range of what you consider

     

 02  appropriate insurance pending future study?

     

 03              THE WITNESS:  Again, I can't determine

     

 04  appropriateness of what the number is going to be.  I'll

     

 05  be relying on those experts to work with Ecology and

     

 06  understand what their numbers and recommendations are.

     

 07  But a billion dollars of coverage is -- I can't even

     

 08  judge whether that's appropriate or not.

     

 09              MR. ROSSMAN:  Would that make sense if

     

 10  that's comparable to other Tesoro facilities?

     

 11              THE WITNESS:  I do not have any sense of

     

 12  comps.

     

 13              MR. ROSSMAN:  Let's see if I have any other

     

 14  questions.

     

 15              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Rossman, do you mind if I

     

 16  ask a question while you're looking?

     

 17              MR. ROSSMAN:  Please.  Thank you.

     

 18              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Casey, I just have a quick

     

 19  question about the assets of the joint venture.  I think

     

 20  the testimony was that the assets of the joint venture

     

 21  are the lease, the constructed improvements, which are

     

 22  worth around 200 million, I think was the figure, and

     

 23  revenues.  But then later in your testimony you said

     

 24  that the revenues are going to be Tesoro, just Tesoro.

     

 25  Tesoro and Savage?
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 01              THE WITNESS:  No.  So typically when two

     

 02  companies form a joint venture, the profits of that

     

 03  company has some payment back to the partners, and so

     

 04  it's anticipated there will be -- this is a

     

 05  profit-making enterprise and some portion of those

     

 06  profits will be going back to the owners of the company.

     

 07              JUDGE NOBLE:  I'm not questioning that.  I'm

     

 08  just saying that those are not really assets of the

     

 09  joint venture, they're assets of the parent companies;

     

 10  right?  Revenue is not much of an asset.

     

 11              THE WITNESS:  So typically when you create a

     

 12  company as a partnership, the revenue that's generated

     

 13  from executing that business comes into account, and

     

 14  then there's some agreement about how much and when does

     

 15  any of those profits go back to the owners themselves.

     

 16  For the period of time it's in the joint venture it is

     

 17  an asset of the joint venture.

     

 18              JUDGE NOBLE:  I understand that, but if

     

 19  something were to go wrong, the joint venture's assets

     

 20  would have to cover any amounts over and above the

     

 21  insurance payment to pay for damages.  And the testimony

     

 22  that you gave, I think, was that the joint venture's

     

 23  assets are the lease, the constructed improvements, and

     

 24  revenues, so I didn't get a sense that there was much in

     

 25  the way of revenues that could be considered an asset of
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 01  the joint venture; is that correct?

     

 02              THE WITNESS:  Yeah, it's a difficult

     

 03  question, again because we're not in operation, since I

     

 04  can't give you a cash flow or a balance sheet of what

     

 05  would be on the asset ledger.  The contracts themselves

     

 06  have some value, too, for the facility to be able to

     

 07  move through to have it be a viable business.  So

     

 08  difficult for me to answer your question with the

     

 09  specificity I think that you're looking for.

     

 10              JUDGE NOBLE:  No, I'm not looking for any

     

 11  specificity above the revenues or how much they would

     

 12  be, I'm just saying that they are not really part of the

     

 13  assets of the joint venture.

     

 14              THE WITNESS:  Well, they are until they get

     

 15  dividended back to the parents and at what level, right.

     

 16  And that hasn't been all agreed yet because, again, we

     

 17  don't have the commercial construct in place.  So there

     

 18  have been times that they are on the joint venture

     

 19  paperwork.  Then the joint venture, if an incident were

     

 20  to occur at that point in time, they are assets of the

     

 21  joint venture because it has not been dividended back.

     

 22              Does that make sense?

     

 23              JUDGE NOBLE:  That makes sense, thank you.

     

 24              Mr. Rossman, did you find any other

     

 25  questions?
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 01              MR. ROSSMAN:  Just a couple.

     

 02              In terms of the commitment that Tesoro has

     

 03  for part of the throughput of the facility, I heard

     

 04  testimony earlier that was 60,000 barrels; is that

     

 05  right?

     

 06              THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

     

 07              MR. ROSSMAN:  Have contracts been executed

     

 08  as to that commitment or is that just a conceptual

     

 09  commitment at this point?

     

 10              THE WITNESS:  Progress has not been executed

     

 11  yet because we don't have a facility in place yet, so we

     

 12  haven't been able to do the full economic analysis.

     

 13              MR. ROSSMAN:  Are there any contracts in

     

 14  place presently between Vancouver Energy and Tesoro

     

 15  Corporation?

     

 16              THE WITNESS:  I'm not aware of any contracts

     

 17  in place between the joint venture and Tesoro.  You

     

 18  know, we have the joint venture agreement which

     

 19  theoretically is a contract.

     

 20              MR. ROSSMAN:  That's an agreement between

     

 21  Tesoro and Savage?

     

 22              THE WITNESS:  And Savage, to create the

     

 23  joint venture.  I'm not aware of any other contracts

     

 24  that are between the joint venture and Tesoro.

     

 25              MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  And that 60,000 barrels
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 01  of throughput, is that in any particular Tesoro

     

 02  refinery?

     

 03              THE WITNESS:  Our refineries in the PNW and

     

 04  the West Coast.  Pacific Northwest, sorry.

     

 05              MR. ROSSMAN:  So to the extent that those

     

 06  would serve Anacortes, how would the oil proceed from

     

 07  the facility to Anacortes?  Have you made any

     

 08  arrangements for that?

     

 09              THE WITNESS:  So we have our marine group

     

 10  that handles all the movements of both crude oil and

     

 11  feedstocks along the West Coast.  And that's where those

     

 12  arrangements will be made.

     

 13              MR. ROSSMAN:  Thanks very much.  No further

     

 14  questions.

     

 15              JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other council questions?

     

 16              Mr. Siemann?

     

 17              MR. SIEMANN:  Thank you.  Good morning and

     

 18  thank you for being here this morning.  So I have just a

     

 19  couple of questions.

     

 20              I wanted to ask about the stop work order.

     

 21  And I'm interested more in the practical application of

     

 22  it rather than the theoretical application.  And as I

     

 23  understand it, the Tesoro facility in Anacortes

     

 24  experienced an explosion some years ago.

     

 25              Was there a stop work order that was in
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 01  place there, that opportunity for stop work by any

     

 02  employee?

     

 03              THE WITNESS:  I'd like to -- I will answer

     

 04  your question directly but I want to give you some

     

 05  context here.

     

 06              Very relevant to the safety culture, I

     

 07  think, is the facility that is a terminal facility in

     

 08  Vancouver today, this operated 30 years without injury

     

 09  or incident, as well as the crude rail unloading

     

 10  facility in Anacortes going on four years with 70

     

 11  million barrels without incident.

     

 12              To your point specifically, there was a

     

 13  tragic incident at our Anacortes refinery in 2010.  The

     

 14  root of that incident was a metallurgical failure in an

     

 15  otherwise unknown industry phenomenon called high

     

 16  temperature hydrogen attack.  And it was well for -- for

     

 17  30 years there was what was called a Nelson curve.  And

     

 18  forgive me if I get too detailed in this description,

     

 19  but it's important because these Nelson curves have been

     

 20  in place for a lot of times, that said if you have this

     

 21  partial pressure and this temperature you should not be

     

 22  susceptible to high temperature hydrogen attack.

     

 23              That incident became the first of the plots

     

 24  in many decades where a metallurgical failure could take

     

 25  place.  It was a tragic incident and it caused the life
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 01  of seven of our employees, and it was a sad day for us.

     

 02  I was not part of the company at the time, I'm not

     

 03  dissuading any accountability.  Stop work authority was

     

 04  in place at the time.  That would not have been an

     

 05  unsafe act.  That was a heat exchanger that had been in

     

 06  service with a failure mechanism in it that nobody could

     

 07  see until, unfortunately, those employees were around it

     

 08  when it released.

     

 09              It's my belief that had the employees

     

 10  thought it was unsafe or any part of that operation or

     

 11  had a -- good example of where an engineer can do stop

     

 12  work authority, had an engineer suspected during the

     

 13  corrosion review that this failure mechanism was

     

 14  possible, they had the authority to stop that.

     

 15  Unfortunately, it was not known to anybody in the

     

 16  industry at the time.

     

 17              So that was immediately shared throughout

     

 18  industry.  And the entire industry, I can tell you from

     

 19  my experience, and I said I wasn't with the company at

     

 20  the time, I was the recipient of the Tesoro

     

 21  investigation that came out very early in the process,

     

 22  well before most of the other investigations.  And I

     

 23  went and slowed down and did additional inspections and

     

 24  spent millions and millions of dollars correcting my

     

 25  units in another company because of what happened at
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 01  that incident.  So it's a very different scenario.

     

 02              But the stop work, I would anticipate if an

     

 03  engineer is in a corrosion review and identifies, boy,

     

 04  that doesn't seem right, that would be stop work to say,

     

 05  hey, let's do further study, let's do further testing,

     

 06  let's shut down or slow down this piece of equipment

     

 07  because I found something.  So it does apply.

     

 08              Does that make sense?

     

 09              MR. SIEMANN:  It does, thank you.  I

     

 10  appreciate that.  Second question revolves around

     

 11  insurance.  There's a few questions around this.

     

 12              This idea that you have coverage and you

     

 13  have assets, but if you have an event at the facility

     

 14  that exceeds those -- that coverage and those assets in

     

 15  terms of cost and damage, what happens then?  Can you

     

 16  foresee a situation in which the state or county or city

     

 17  or communities are left holding some of the financial

     

 18  cost because of that event, because it exceeds the

     

 19  coverage and the assets of the joint venture?

     

 20              THE WITNESS:  Yes.  Obviously that's our

     

 21  intent is that situation will never occur.  First and

     

 22  foremost, we put all our efforts into prevention and

     

 23  litigation measures working jointly with the rail,

     

 24  working with our facility, and then with each about the

     

 25  railcar safety that we talked about, all members of the
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 01  supply chain.  And when I talk about safety not being

     

 02  stagnant, you need to continuously focus in improving

     

 03  that so we can drive that zero incidence.

     

 04              Now, if there is an incident, there's

     

 05  mitigation measures and layers of protection in staging

     

 06  of equipment and having Current Busters technology

     

 07  available for anybody that has any incidents on the

     

 08  river, so on and so forth.  Our levels of mitigation is

     

 09  to minimize the potential consequence, minimizing

     

 10  consequence.  And then the payment for that is, as you

     

 11  said, insurance policies, and that's where we come to

     

 12  that care, custody, and control and making sure that

     

 13  everybody has -- there's absolutely no gaps and we have

     

 14  appropriate coverage for every point in that supply

     

 15  chain so that communities or others are not left in a

     

 16  bad position in this accident.  So that's the intent.

     

 17              MR. SIEMANN:  I understand that that's the

     

 18  intent.  I guess my question is still, how can we be

     

 19  assured of that?  And the example that's been offered in

     

 20  previous testimony goes back to the incident in Canada

     

 21  in which the short line railroad did not have sufficient

     

 22  coverage, did not have sufficient assets, so filed for

     

 23  bankruptcy and walked away.

     

 24              And what I'm interested in is, how do we

     

 25  ensure that that does not happen here and that the joint
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 01  venture does not file for bankruptcy and walks away,

     

 02  leaving the parent companies unscathed, I suppose?

     

 03              THE WITNESS:  It's obviously a difficult

     

 04  question to answer with complete certainty since, again,

     

 05  we're talking about a hypothetical.  But I can tell you

     

 06  both Savage Services and ourselves, our company, has

     

 07  great integrity and we work to do the right thing, so

     

 08  it's more than an intent.  We will work very hard to

     

 09  make sure that it is executed throughout the supply

     

 10  chain, there's care, custody, and control, and the

     

 11  appropriate levels of insurance.

     

 12              I can't offer an ultimate guarantee that if

     

 13  all of those things don't work and it's somebody else's

     

 14  liability that the joint venture or the corporation is

     

 15  going to step in.  It's not appropriate for me to be

     

 16  able to offer that level of guarantee.

     

 17              MR. SIEMANN:  No further questions.

     

 18              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Rossman, did you have

     

 19  another question?

     

 20              MR. ROSSMAN:  That answered it.

     

 21              JUDGE NOBLE:  I think that's all the council

     

 22  questions.

     

 23              Counsel questions based on council

     

 24  questions?

     

 25  ///
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 01                     RECROSS-EXAMINATION

     

 02  BY MS. BRIMMER:

     

 03     Q.   Mr. Casey, in response to some questions from

     

 04  Council Member Rossman, you talked about some other

     

 05  Tesoro facilities.  Are there any other exclusively

     

 06  crude-by-rail transloading facilities like the one we're

     

 07  talking about here in Vancouver that Tesoro has in a

     

 08  similar situation in terms of size, the fact that it

     

 09  just transloads crude-by-rail, and that it's on a major

     

 10  river like the Columbia and major wildlife like the

     

 11  Columbia, any others that are like that?

     

 12     A.   So our crude-by-rail facility in Anacortes,

     

 13  Washington, that's rated at 50,000 barrels a day is

     

 14  right on a bay so it's an environmentally sensitive

     

 15  area.  So that operation is the only other operation

     

 16  that is somewhat analogous but not of the size and scale

     

 17  of the proposed facility.

     

 18     Q.   You testified in response to -- and forgive me,

     

 19  I think it was one of Mr. Rossman's questions but I

     

 20  might be in error.  But you talked about the 60,000

     

 21  barrels is anticipated to be Tesoro oil that will be

     

 22  transloaded through the facility.

     

 23          You said some of that would go to the Pacific

     

 24  Northwest refineries and some would go down the coast to

     

 25  California; is that accurate?
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 01     A.   That's correct.

     

 02     Q.   And so just to be clear about how this is going

     

 03  to work and how it comes in, Anacortes already has some

     

 04  crude-by-rail; right?

     

 05     A.   That's correct.  They have 50,000 barrels a day

     

 06  capability.

     

 07     Q.   So this oil would come into the terminal by

     

 08  train, it would be unloaded at the terminal, it would be

     

 09  stored, and then it would be loaded out to tankers, go

     

 10  out the Columbia River, turn right, go up to Puget

     

 11  Sound, travel to Anacortes, unload at the dock, and be

     

 12  supplied to that refinery?  That's how that would work;

     

 13  right?

     

 14     A.   Yes.

     

 15     Q.   And are you aware of the long-standing federal

     

 16  limitations on the amount of oil that can be shipped

     

 17  into Puget Sound?

     

 18     A.   Yes, I am, if you're referring to the Magnuson

     

 19  Act.

     

 20     Q.   Yes.

     

 21          I also want to ask a little bit of follow-up to

     

 22  questions from Council Member Siemann on the unfortunate

     

 23  incident at Tesoro in 2010.  Tesoro was found --

     

 24              MR. DERR:  Your Honor, I'm going to object

     

 25  to this.  And, again, I'm in a dilemma where it's
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 01  difficult to object to council questions, but I'm going

     

 02  to object to both relevance for this proceeding and to

     

 03  Mr. Brimmer's point at the beginning of his testimony.

     

 04  This was to address structure of the joint venture,

     

 05  assets and insurance.

     

 06              MS. BRIMMER:  I won't ask it, that's fine.

     

 07              JUDGE NOBLE:  The question has been

     

 08  withdrawn.

     

 09              MS. BRIMMER:  No further questions, thank

     

 10  you.

     

 11              JUDGE NOBLE:  Are there any other questions

     

 12  from opponents based on the council's questions?

     

 13  

     

 14                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

     

 15  BY MR. POTTER:

     

 16     Q.   Good morning, Mr. Casey.

     

 17     A.   Good morning.

     

 18     Q.   I'm Bronson Potter, I represent the City of

     

 19  Vancouver.

     

 20          In both your direct and in your answers to

     

 21  council member questions, you made reference to the

     

 22  commitment to only accept 117s at the facility.

     

 23     A.   That's correct.

     

 24     Q.   In Mr. Larrabee's testimony he said that the

     

 25  form of that commitment would take -- it would be
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 01  contractual terms in the contracts between Vancouver

     

 02  Energy and the customer sending oil to the facility.

     

 03          Is that your understanding?

     

 04     A.   It's my understanding that that's how it is

     

 05  anticipated to be executed.

     

 06     Q.   Do you understand that the applicant in this

     

 07  proceeding has taken the position that the State of

     

 08  Washington does not have the authority to regulate

     

 09  railroad transportation of crude oil?

     

 10     A.   I'm not sure I understand your question.

     

 11     Q.   I'm asking you whether you understand that

     

 12  Vancouver Energy is of the position that the State of

     

 13  Washington does not have the legal authority to regulate

     

 14  how oil is transported on railroads.

     

 15     A.   Yes.  I'm not an expert, but I know that there's

     

 16  federal regulation and commerce law that talks about the

     

 17  movements in goods.  So I think we've probably

     

 18  reaffirmed whatever is legally in place between federal

     

 19  and state governments.

     

 20     Q.   So with respect to the commitment on 117s, is

     

 21  this commitment one that is voluntarily self-imposed by

     

 22  Vancouver Energy as opposed to something that you would

     

 23  accept as a regulatory condition?

     

 24     A.   Well, this is a commitment to meet the federal

     

 25  standard which has a timeframe for implementation.  So
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 01  our commitment is to say we're going to meet the federal

     

 02  standard now with all the cars coming into the facility.

     

 03  But it is based on the federal standard.

     

 04     Q.   Well, the testimony has been that the 111s and

     

 05  the 1232s that are not retrofitted will not be accepted

     

 06  at the facility during the phaseout schedule.

     

 07          Is that your understanding?

     

 08     A.   Yes, that's correct.  The commitment is that the

     

 09  federal standard is now published, there is no question

     

 10  about when it will be.  And our commitment is when this

     

 11  facility opens up, railcars will meet that federal

     

 12  standard.

     

 13     Q.   And what I want to have clear is the manner in

     

 14  which this commitment will take place.

     

 15          So the question is, it sounds like you're going

     

 16  a little bit beyond the federal standard in that you

     

 17  will not accept 111s and 1232s during the phaseout

     

 18  schedule?

     

 19     A.   Yes.  We're saying the federal standard is

     

 20  immediately in effect for this facility, and so -- and

     

 21  the ability to manage the phaseout within the rest of

     

 22  your fleet, it can happen elsewhere, but for this

     

 23  facility, it will be the federal standard.

     

 24     Q.   Okay.  And will you accept that as a regulatory

     

 25  condition imposed by the State of Washington?
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 01     A.   So we've made that commitment.  So if the EFSEC

     

 02  or council were to say, yes, we want you to memorialize

     

 03  that decision, we would be glad to memorialize that

     

 04  decision.

     

 05     Q.   And a condition of your permit for this

     

 06  facility?

     

 07     A.   That's correct.

     

 08              MR. POTTER:  Okay, thank you.

     

 09              JUDGE NOBLE:  Thank you, Mr. Potter.

     

 10              Are there any other questions from the

     

 11  opponents' side?

     

 12              Questions from Mr. Derr?

     

 13  

     

 14                     DIRECT EXAMINATION

     

 15  BY MR. DERR:

     

 16     Q.   Mr. Casey, just one.

     

 17          I'm going to try to go back to the discussion

     

 18  about indemnifications and which way it goes.  So let me

     

 19  pose to you, if I may, a hypothetical scenario to see if

     

 20  that helps you answer the question of who would

     

 21  indemnify whom.

     

 22          So if the oil were being loaded by Tesoro

     

 23  employees under a service contract on a marine vessel

     

 24  and there were to be negligence, there were to be an

     

 25  incident, and I realize that doesn't happen, but ride

�2057

                            DERR / CASEY

     

     

     

 01  with me that suppose that were to happen.

     

 02          Would you expect in that scenario under the

     

 03  service contract that Tesoro, because of its employee's

     

 04  negligence performing the marine loading operation,

     

 05  would indemnify the JV if they're found liable?

     

 06     A.   Yes.  Tesoro would take accountability in this

     

 07  situation, yes.

     

 08     Q.   So in that case, that's a scenario where --

     

 09     A.   That's a scenario where -- (Court reporter

     

 10  interruption.)

     

 11     Q.   We're talking over each other so we've got to do

     

 12  it one at a time.

     

 13          So that's a scenario where Tesoro would

     

 14  indemnify the JV?

     

 15     A.   Yes, sir.

     

 16              MR. DERR:  Thank you.  No further questions.

     

 17              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Casey, thank you for your

     

 18  testimony.  You're not excused as a witness, though.  I

     

 19  think there may be some questions for you.  Mr. Derr and

     

 20  some opponent's counsel may want to talk with you.  It's

     

 21  possible you may come back for more testimony.

     

 22              MR. DERR:  Your Honor, if I might, I have

     

 23  some questions about the scope of that.  I'm not sure we

     

 24  need to do it on the record with council members

     

 25  present, although I'm happy to do that if you prefer,
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 01  but I need to have better understanding of whether this

     

 02  is now a deposition of Mr. Casey on anything or on

     

 03  solely the topics which were the first three or four

     

 04  questions of his testimony that counsel objected to.

     

 05              I'd like to understand what the scope of

     

 06  that is and I'd like to understand how we do it, whether

     

 07  that's a private conversation, is that a court-reported

     

 08  conversation.  I'd like to know what's expected.

     

 09              JUDGE NOBLE:  Right.  I am not ordering that

     

 10  there be a deposition of this witness.  I'm just

     

 11  reaffirming the original intention that there be

     

 12  informal discovery between the parties, and it seems to

     

 13  have not quite taken place in this instance with regard

     

 14  to those first questions you were asking, that line of

     

 15  questioning.

     

 16              It would be my intention that the

     

 17  questioning of this witness should extend only to --

     

 18  would have extended only to what the expected testimony

     

 19  was going to be in general areas of inquiry.  So I don't

     

 20  think there should be wide-ranging questioning on this

     

 21  witness.  If you have problems I think we can take care

     

 22  of it off the record and come back in.  We need to

     

 23  proceed with the next witness.  Why don't you informally

     

 24  without a court reporter meet in a room and give the

     

 25  opponent side the opportunity to ask whatever questions
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 01  they deem appropriate.  If you think they're not

     

 02  appropriate or going beyond what this order is, then you

     

 03  can come back in and we'll resolve it then.  I'm hoping

     

 04  you'll be able to --

     

 05              MR. DERR:  And, again, just so I'm clear, so

     

 06  it's that first set of questions --

     

 07              JUDGE NOBLE:  Yes.

     

 08              MR. DERR:  It's not additional questions on

     

 09  insurance, assets, et cetera, it's just that first set?

     

 10              JUDGE NOBLE:  There have been -- yes.  There

     

 11  have been questions about insurance and assets and

     

 12  there's been the opportunity to cross-examine on those

     

 13  matters.  So it was what I viewed as the surprise aspect

     

 14  of the extent of the testimony at the beginning of his

     

 15  testimony here today that seemed to surprised the

     

 16  opponents, and the normal remedy for that is additional

     

 17  informal discovery.

     

 18              MR. DERR:  All right, thank you.

     

 19              JUDGE NOBLE:  Are there questions on the

     

 20  opponent side about this?

     

 21              MS. BRIMMER:  No, Your Honor.

     

 22              JUDGE NOBLE:  All right, good.  So we'll

     

 23  proceed to the next witness.

     

 24              Actually, it's a good time for a break.  So

     

 25  we will be in recess for 15 minutes until 11:05.
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 01              (Recess taken from 10:51 a.m. to 11:09 a.m.)

 02              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Johnson, would you call

 03  your next witness.

 04              MR. JOHNSON:  I'm sorry, just briefly, we

 05  have resolved with opposing counsel the issues related

 06  to Mr. Casey's testimony, and at this point I think

 07  we've agreed he won't need to be recalled.

 08              MS. BRIMMER:  That's correct, Your Honor.

 09  They're going to supply a little bit of additional

 10  information to us that we requested.  And then we just

 11  agreed that opponents can have some additional latitude

 12  in their case as necessary to address the issue rather

 13  than giving an informal deposition or recalling

 14  Mr. Casey.

 15              JUDGE NOBLE:  Excellent.  Thank you for your

 16  efforts.  Thank you.

 17              Mr. Johnson, would you call your next

 18  witness.

 19              MR. KISIELIUS:  Your Honor, I'll be

 20  questioning the next witness.

 21              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Kisielius, sorry.

 22              MR. KISIELIUS:  That's okay.  The applicant

 23  would like to call Greg Rhoads.

 24                        GREG RHOADS,

 25     having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:
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 01                     DIRECT EXAMINATION

 02  BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 03     Q.   Mr. Rhoads, could you please state and spell

 04  your name for the record.

 05     A.   My name is Greg Rhoads.  G-r-e-g, last name

 06  R-h-o-a-d-s.

 07     Q.   And can you describe your occupation?

 08     A.   I'm the president and principal consultant for

 09  Greg Rhoads and Associates, Incorporated.

 10     Q.   And what types of projects do you and your firm

 11  work on?

 12     A.   We're a full-service health safety environmental

 13  consulting company.  We specialize in projects for the

 14  chemical refining and transportation sectors.

 15     Q.   Okay.  And digging into that in a little bit

 16  more detail, do you work with railroads?

 17     A.   We do.  We work with rail carriers, we work with

 18  bulk motor carriers, trucks.  We work at chemical

 19  plants, terminal facilities, refineries, those type of

 20  activities.

 21     Q.   How about local governments?

 22     A.   We do provide that service.  Oftentimes

 23  associated with our other projects we're called upon to

 24  deliver training to local emergency response groups.  I

 25  also, separate from my industrial work, I do work with
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 01  municipal governments for emergency response planning to

 02  hazardous materials incidents.

 03     Q.   Thank you.  And before your time with Greg

 04  Rhoads and Associates, what other emergency response

 05  experience do you have?

 06     A.   I entered the emergency response profession in

 07  1977 as a volunteer firefighter/EMT in Pennsylvania.

 08  Subsequently I was with Prince Georges County Fire and

 09  Rescue in metropolitan Washington D.C. as a

 10  firefighter/EMT, and also a member of the county's

 11  hazardous materials response team.

 12          After I left PG County, I was a state hazardous

 13  materials response officer for the Commonwealth of

 14  Virginia with what was then the Department of Emergency

 15  Services.  Currently that agency is called the Virginia

 16  Department of Emergency Management.  During my time with

 17  Emergency Services, as I said, I was hired as a

 18  hazardous materials officer.  I was promoted to the

 19  response supervisor for HAZMAT response throughout the

 20  Commonwealth of Virginia.

 21          After my time with Virginia, I was employed by

 22  CSX Transportation, a major Class 1 rail carrier in the

 23  East Coast.  I was hired as a hazardous materials

 24  manager charged with hazardous materials response to

 25  rail incidents within a six-state area.  I was promoted
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 01  to senior manager where I had response -- oversight for

 02  our entire system.  And ultimately I served as the

 03  director of chemical safety for CSX.

 04     Q.   Do you have any rail operational experience

 05  beyond the HAZMAT-specific piece you just described?

 06     A.   I do.  During my initial assignment in the field

 07  in Richmond, Virginia, as a hazardous materials manager,

 08  I was covered by the operating rules.  That's the set of

 09  safety rules and operational rules that govern the

 10  movement of trains throughout the system.  I was

 11  involved in teaching operational rules classes to

 12  engineers and conductors and I was qualified as a

 13  transportation officer.

 14     Q.   How about, have you published any books or

 15  articles in your area of expertise?

 16     A.   I have.  My primary publication is the Emergency

 17  Responder's Guide to Railroad Incidents, published in

 18  2007 by Red Hat Publishing.  Associated with that

 19  publication was an instructor's package and

 20  instructional package for use by local emergency

 21  responders.  I've written articles and pieces in the

 22  trade press for rail and chemical operations.

 23     Q.   We're going to get into the topic of first

 24  responder training, so just to -- have you been involved

 25  in any training of first responders directly?
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 01     A.   Yes, extensively.  One of my clients is a Class

 02  1 rail carrier.  I'm one of their lead instructors for

 03  providing outreach training throughout their system to

 04  local emergency responders including response to crude

 05  oil incidents.  Again, as I said, a portion of my

 06  business is also providing training associated with

 07  client projects.  I've been involved with the design,

 08  construction, and startup of several bulk unit train

 09  facilities that involved crude oil and ethanol, and we

 10  provided training to emergency responders in those

 11  communities.

 12     Q.   Okay.  And in preparation for your testimony

 13  today, have you had the chance to review the prefiled

 14  testimony of the intervenor witnesses on the topic of

 15  rail safety and facility safety?

 16     A.   I have.  I have reviewed a number of prefiled

 17  testimonies.  The most applicable documents that I've

 18  reviewed are the prefile of Michael Hildebrand on behalf

 19  of the City of Vancouver, Michael Hildebrand on the

 20  behalf of the City of Spokane.  I've reviewed

 21  Mr. Chipkevich's testimony, I've reviewed Dr. Millar's

 22  testimony extensively.  I've reviewed testimony from the

 23  Sheriff of Clark County, from several of the tribal

 24  witnesses.  I've reviewed information from the BakerRisk

 25  report.  I've looked at information supplied by
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 01  Vancouver Energy on the design of their facility.  I've

 02  reviewed the fire protection report that was done.

 03          There are a number of others, but I'm sorry, off

 04  the top of my head I can't speak to them.

 05     Q.   And, Mr. Rhoads, did you yourself present

 06  prefiled written testimony?

 07     A.   I did.

 08              MR. DERR:  And for the council's benefit,

 09  Mr. Rhoads' CV is Exhibit 353.

 10  BY MR. DERR:

 11     Q.   I want to start with some overarching questions

 12  about the regulatory framework.  I believe there's some

 13  intervenor testimony about the adequacy of that

 14  regulatory framework governing rail transportation.  So

 15  I'd like you to start, if you could, with a brief

 16  overview kind of at a higher level of the regulatory

 17  framework that governs the transportation of hazardous

 18  materials by rail.

 19     A.   Okay.  The regulatory framework for

 20  transportation of hazardous materials is quite

 21  extensive.  It is housed within the U.S. Department of

 22  Transportation.  Within the U.S. Department of

 23  Transportation there are different agencies assigned

 24  with components of transportation regulations.

 25          Kind of the overarching umbrella organization or
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 01  agency, if you will, is the Pipeline Hazardous Materials

 02  Safety Administration, or PHMSA, P-H-M-S-A.  PHMSA is

 03  charged with developing regulations with regard to the

 04  classification of materials as a hazardous material and

 05  then subsequently classification into one of the nine

 06  DOT hazard classes.

 07          PHMSA promulgates the regulations regarding

 08  development of shipping documents, proper shipping

 09  descriptions, proper classification of materials, how

 10  they're described, and the various modes of

 11  transcription.  Placarding requirements are promulgated

 12  by PHMSA as are marking container specifications from

 13  five-gallon pails through tank trucks through railcars

 14  are promulgated by PHMSA.

 15          Within each mode of transportation, the

 16  Department of Transportation has specific agencies set

 17  up.  For rail transportation, that's overseen by the

 18  Federal Railroad Administration.  The Federal Railroad

 19  Administration is charged with overall rail safety.

 20  That's a broader topic than just hazardous materials,

 21  but it ties in to the hazardous materials issue in terms

 22  of their regulations for track and engineering

 23  specifications.  There are requirements for track

 24  inspections, there are requirements for signaling and

 25  communication, for mode of power, that is, locomotives
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 01  for the operation of the trains over the tracks, as well

 02  as a component that is the hazardous materials portion

 03  by rail.

 04     Q.   And you've mentioned the U.S. Department of

 05  Transportation component.  Is there a Department of

 06  Homeland Services component to the regulation of

 07  hazardous materials?

 08     A.   I think you're referring to the Department of

 09  Homeland Security.

 10     Q.   Sure.  Excuse me.

 11     A.   There is a portion of hazardous materials

 12  transport regulations that are not overseen directly by

 13  DOT.  What you're referring to is the set of regulations

 14  that the Department of Homeland Security has promulgated

 15  in terms of the handling of toxic inhalation of

 16  hazardous materials, TIH, or poison inhalation

 17  materials, PIH explosives, and other types of highly

 18  hazardous materials.

 19          The Department of Homeland Security has

 20  established a definition referred to as a high threat

 21  urban area, HTUA, and they've promulgated regulations

 22  with regard to routing and planning of movement of those

 23  high hazardous materials through the HTUAs.  The

 24  Department of Homeland Security also has regulations in

 25  place regarding the handoff between the shipper, the
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 01  carrier, and then the final consignee of that material.

 02          So that's kind of the extent of DHS's

 03  transportation.

 04     Q.   And is crude oil one of those materials that's

 05  been identified as -- you described TIH, PIH explosives?

 06  Does it fit in that category?

 07     A.   It does not.  Currently it's not on their list.

 08     Q.   How are the regulations you've just described

 09  enforced?

 10     A.   The Federal Railroad Administration has

 11  approximately 400 inspectors that operate nationwide

 12  conducting subject matter-specific inspections.  As I

 13  said, there's locomotive or mode of power inspectors,

 14  there's track inspectors, bridge inspectors, hazardous

 15  materials inspectors, signal inspectors.  So their

 16  inspectors are throughout the rail network conducting a

 17  variety of inspections.  On any given day a large Class

 18  1 rail carrier like CSX may have a dozen or two dozen

 19  inspectors somewhere on their property conducting some

 20  form of inspection.

 21          In many states, states also have rail inspectors

 22  that are inspecting to the federal regulations within

 23  their state.  To my understanding, Washington state does

 24  perform some rail inspections within their jurisdiction.

 25     Q.   So with that regulatory context I want to switch
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 01  to a different topic.  Just again, more for context and

 02  background, there's been some testimony about deliveries

 03  of crude-by-rail as a new phenomenon.  So I want to ask

 04  you more generally, how long have flammable liquids like

 05  crude oil been transported by rail?

 06     A.   Crude oil was actually one of the first

 07  hazardous materials transported in bulk by rail.  With

 08  the discovery of oil in Western Pennsylvania in the

 09  1850s, 1860 timeframe, the crude oil was transported out

 10  of that area by rail to larger metropolitan areas.

 11          Previous to the discovery of oil there and the

 12  use of rail, all liquids that were transported by rail

 13  were shipped basically in wooden barrels.  So because of

 14  that and the volumes that were coming out, railcars or

 15  tank cars were developed to handle that crude oil that

 16  was coming out of Western Pennsylvania, and then used

 17  for illumination.  Prior to the discovery of crude oil

 18  it was whale oil for illumination so it supplanted that.

 19  The crude oil coming out was handled in unit trains, if

 20  you will, at that time of these new type tank cars.

 21     Q.   You mentioned unit trains generally.  How long

 22  have unit trains been used in rail service?

 23     A.   Well, a unit train can describe any train that

 24  has a large block of a single commodity.  So from that

 25  perspective, the railroads have been operating unit
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 01  trains for well over a hundred years in the form of the

 02  coal trains that operate in terms of grain trains.  You

 03  can have a unit train of automobiles, you can have unit

 04  trains of molt sulfur, potash, of a number of

 05  commodities.  Unit train, again, refers to a large block

 06  of a single commodity handled by a train.

 07     Q.   Okay.  How about unit trains used to move

 08  flammable liquids; how long has that been happening?

 09     A.   Well, again, with the amount of crude oil coming

 10  out of the original finds in Western Pennsylvania, we

 11  would be looking at excess of 150 years, we've seen unit

 12  trains of crude oil used extensively during World War II

 13  when marine transportation was unsafe due to global

 14  hostilities.  So throughout the U.S. unit trains were

 15  used to move fuels very commonly.

 16     Q.   Let's focus on rail incidents.  I think there's

 17  a lot of testimony we're going to be talking about over

 18  the next couple of minutes about the ability of first

 19  responders to address an incident, a rail incident.  I

 20  want to start with basic concepts again.

 21          And I know you've described this in your

 22  prefiled testimony, so at a higher level can you

 23  describe the different categories of incidents involving

 24  a tank car that a first responder might need to address?

 25     A.   Sure.  In my testimony I discuss five different
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 01  types of incidents.  The first incident is referred to

 02  as a non-accidental release, or an NAR.  A

 03  non-accidental release represents by number the most

 04  common hazardous materials incident that we see in the

 05  rail industry.  A non-accidental release is a case where

 06  a product is released from a railcar due to some action

 07  other than an accident.  That means the railcar has not

 08  sustained physical damage from an accident, has not been

 09  derailed, a product is released from the car.  And

 10  typically we see that that's from a loose or an

 11  unsecured valve or fitting on the railcar.  Those type

 12  of NAR incidents are most often identified in a yard or

 13  a terminal, they involve small amounts of material being

 14  released, and they can be readily corrected by

 15  tightening the valve or fitting or some other

 16  intervention.

 17          The second type of incident that I discussed is

 18  a grade crossing accident involving a train.  Grade

 19  crossing accident would be those locations where, either

 20  a public crossing or a private crossing where a vehicle

 21  fouls the track.  That means it's within the limits of

 22  the train.  If they foul the track and the train is

 23  coming by, there can be an impact.  The grade crossing

 24  accidents typically do not involve damage to the tank

 25  equipment, it's primarily the locomotives that would be
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 01  involved.

 02          You could have a crossing accident that would

 03  lead to the third type of incident that I discuss, and

 04  that is a derailment without a release.  This would be a

 05  case of where the railcar or a number of railcars could

 06  come off of the rail, that is, the wheel-rail interface

 07  is interrupted, the railcar derails.  We could see the

 08  railcar remaining in what we call an upright and in-line

 09  type of orientation where no mechanical damage has

 10  occurred to the tank itself, no release of product.

 11          The fourth type of category that we talked about

 12  is a derailment with a release.  And in that type of

 13  derailment we would see the railcar leaving the

 14  rail-wheel interface.  The car may be overturned, it may

 15  be upside down or in a number of conditions.  And as a

 16  result of the derailment, product may be released from

 17  the car either from a loss of integrity of the tank due

 18  to a puncture or loss of integrity due to a valve or

 19  fitting.  In that case we could have product spilled on

 20  the ground but not necessarily have a fire.  All

 21  derailments with crude oil do not necessarily involve

 22  fire.  A derailment with a release with no ignition

 23  source, we would have the environmental spill to deal

 24  with.

 25          The fifth category would be that derailment with
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 01  a release with product out and the product ignited due

 02  to an external ignition source and having a derailment

 03  with release with fire.

 04     Q.   Just to be clear, is the potential for these

 05  types of incidents unique to the trains that are serving

 06  this project?

 07     A.   No, they are not.

 08     Q.   Also in your testimony -- now you've described

 09  the different categories of potential incidents.  You

 10  also described the framework for a response.  And if you

 11  could again at a higher level just summarize, I think

 12  you referred to it as the acronym is the D.E.C.I.D.E

 13  approach to an incident?

 14     A.   In my testimony I discuss use of an emergency

 15  response tool that's used commonly throughout the

 16  hazardous materials response community.  It uses as

 17  acronym the word D.E.C.I.D.E.  The D.E.C.I.D.E. model or

 18  tool is intended to give first responders with a

 19  framework for decision-making and to recognize what it

 20  is that they're dealing with and how they can plan their

 21  response.

 22     Q.   Can you describe what are the steps in the

 23  D.E.C.I.D.E. model?

 24     A.   Sure.  The "D" stands for detect the presence

 25  and quantity of a hazardous material.  That's one of the
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 01  key components is to identify what it is that you're

 02  dealing with and how much of it that you have facing you

 03  in the incident.

 04          The "E" is to estimate likely harm without

 05  intervention, that is, to look at where the incident is

 06  occurring, what the situation is, and what truly are the

 07  risks not only to a community but also to the responders

 08  if you choose to do no intervention.  And I'm going to

 09  stress non-intervention is not being you're not doing

 10  anything, you're taking a more prudent course.

 11          The "C" is to choose your response objectives.

 12  Response objectives always include protection of life

 13  safety, that is, of the community but also of the

 14  responders.  It's protection of the environment, it's

 15  protection of resources and infrastructure, and lastly,

 16  it's to restore the system back to its normal state.  So

 17  choose your objectives.  It always needs to be life

 18  safety first.

 19          The "I" stands for identify your action options,

 20  that is, what is it that you're going to do to support

 21  those objectives.  Is it suppression, is it pooling, is

 22  it evacuation, is it a combination of those things.

 23          The "D" stands for do your best option based

 24  upon the resources that you have available to you and

 25  your community.
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 01          And the "E" is to evaluate your progress

 02  continually towards resolving the incident, always

 03  keeping the objectives in mind of life safety.

 04     Q.   And is this D.E.C.I.D.E. model that you've just

 05  described a widely used tool?

 06     A.   It is widely used.  It was first developed by

 07  Ludwig Benner of the National Transportation Safety

 08  Board back in the '70s.  It's been taught in numerous

 09  classes and it's included in most hazardous materials

 10  texts.

 11     Q.   Okay.  Let's focus on the first "D," the detect

 12  piece.  What are detection clues?  What does a first

 13  responder look to in order to detect the presence of

 14  hazardous materials?

 15     A.   You used the word "clues" and that's exactly the

 16  terminology that we used.  There are a number of

 17  detection clues that we teach responders to look for and

 18  to listen for any hazardous materials incident, not just

 19  an incident like rail.

 20          The first clue that we discuss is occupancy and

 21  location.  And occupancy and location refers to, for

 22  example, if a first responder got a call for an unknown

 23  medical emergency and an exterminator.  The occupancy

 24  clue would be that there's pesticides at that type of

 25  facility so they should be thinking about the
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 01  possibility of exposure of pesticides at that location.

 02          If they got a call for an incident involving a

 03  train at let's say Main Street in a community, they know

 04  that hazardous materials are transported by rail, they

 05  know where the rail is in their community.  So again,

 06  the occupancy and location is a clue to them before they

 07  ever leave the station.

 08          We also instruct another clue is to look at

 09  container shape.  The shape of the container will give

 10  you information about the size of the material, of the

 11  quantity that can be contained.  The shape of the

 12  container can also give you clues about what type of

 13  material you could have.  Is it a pressure type rail

 14  tank car where it would be a propane, an ammonia or some

 15  other type of uncompressed gas.  Is it a liquids tank

 16  car where you would be dealing with a liquid product.

 17  Is it a covered hopper that could be possibly an

 18  oxidizer in a solid form.  So occupancy and location,

 19  container shape.

 20          We then recommend that they look for placards

 21  and labels.  Placards are the large devices, 10 and 3/4

 22  inches square on point, that are required to be on both

 23  sides and both ends of any bulk hazardous materials

 24  shipment.  That's by rail or by truck.  The placard

 25  gives emergency responders a number of informational
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 01  data elements that they can use to determine what it is

 02  they're dealing with.

 03          Subsequent to that is shipping papers.  The

 04  shipping paper example would be the train consist that

 05  would be maintained by both the engineer and the

 06  conductor on the train that would have a listing with

 07  the proper DOT elements of what was in each car in the

 08  train.

 09          Another clue that is -- that we currently have

 10  available, which is relatively new on the scene,

 11  reflects new technology, and that's a program that is

 12  called AskRail.  AskRail is an application that an

 13  emergency responder can get.  You have to sign up

 14  through a rail carrier.  It's downloaded to your

 15  smartphone.  With AskRail, an emergency responder can

 16  get realtime information about what's in each car, so if

 17  they enter the car initial and number, that's the unique

 18  identifier for each railcar in North America, the

 19  responder can see what's in that car.

 20          There's a higher level of access authority that

 21  can be granted to chief officers, to emergency planning

 22  representatives, and that gives them the ability to

 23  enter in, again, a car initial and number, but they can

 24  get the entire consist for a train, where that car is

 25  at.  So again, another detection clue in the toolbox for
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 01  the responder to identify what they're dealing with and

 02  what quantities.

 03     Q.   Does the unit train mode of delivery itself make

 04  this first step any different than a manifest train, for

 05  example?

 06     A.   I believe that it does for a number of reasons.

 07  Again, in a unit train type operation every car in that

 08  train has the same commodity, so to look up each

 09  individual car to see what that car contains would

 10  really be unnecessary, as opposed to a manifest train

 11  which can be made up of a variety of shipments, both

 12  hazardous and non-hazardous commodities.

 13          It's very common practice and currently

 14  allowable that we can have different tank cars with

 15  different commodities in the same train and beside each

 16  other in the train.  So if we had a manifest train that

 17  was involved in an incident, it would be very prudent

 18  for the responders to look up the information on each

 19  individual car to see what that car contained.

 20          It further becomes compounded as a problem if

 21  those cars are breached and if we have that situation

 22  where we have derailment with a release and now we have

 23  potentially different products mixed, both hazardous and

 24  non-hazardous commodities mixing.  The response to that

 25  would be much more complex and difficult.  So a unit
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 01  train is easier to figure out what you're dealing with.

 02     Q.   Okay.

 03              MR. KISIELIUS:  Ms. Mastro, could you please

 04  pull up Exhibit 196.

 05  BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 06     Q.   As she's pulling that up, I think your testimony

 07  and the opponent's testimony refers to the Emergency

 08  Response Guidebook.  Can you describe what that is and

 09  how it helps through the D.E.C.I.D.E. model?

 10     A.   The Emergency Response Guidebook, also referred

 11  to as the DOT book or oftentimes the orange book.  And

 12  I'm sorry, I don't --

 13     Q.   It'll be coming up.  If you want to look at Tab

 14  13.  I should say you've got your testimony, some

 15  exhibits we're going to be referring to, and all of the

 16  opponents' testimony in two binders in front of you.

 17     A.   Okay.

 18     Q.   This particular exhibit is Tab 13.  It's on the

 19  screen now too.

 20     A.   Yes.  The Emergency Response Guidebook, I am

 21  familiar with this and have extensive experience with

 22  this.  The Emergency Response Guidebook was first

 23  published by the Department of Transportation strictly

 24  for U.S. operations or U.S. transportation of hazardous

 25  materials back in the '70s.  It's evolved now to include

�2080

 01  both Transport Canada and the Mexican government, so

 02  it's referred to as the North American Emergency

 03  Response Guidebook.  Again, in the vernacular we call it

 04  the orange book or the DOT book.

 05          The intent was that this document, this book,

 06  would be in every piece of emergency response

 07  experience -- excuse me, every piece of emergency

 08  response equipment or vehicle nationwide.  During my

 09  time with the Virginia Department of Emergency Services,

 10  we were the responsible agency for distributing these.

 11  We in Virginia at that time would distribute over 12,000

 12  of these throughout the Commonwealth.  And again, the

 13  intent was that every fire truck, every law enforcement

 14  vehicle, every rescue vehicle, and in some cases these

 15  were also on Department of Public Works vehicles or

 16  State Highway Department vehicles.

 17          The Emergency Response Guidebook allows someone

 18  to very quickly access information about what the

 19  product is that could be involved in any type of

 20  hazardous materials incident.  And it does that through

 21  a number of ways.

 22     Q.   I think it would be helpful to walk through how

 23  you'd actually use this document, briefly.  So if you

 24  could tell us --

 25     A.   Okay, I'm sorry, I don't have it on the screen
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 01  that I see.

 02     Q.   You might have to turn around.  But you can

 03  also, if you use that book and you use the page numbers

 04  in the bottom right-hand corner --

 05     A.   Okay.

 06     Q.   -- we could have Ms. Mastro advance it to the

 07  right page so we're all looking at the same thing.

 08     A.   So in my testimony about the detection clues, I

 09  discussed placards and container shape.  If you would go

 10  to Page 8, that's EX0196, dash, a whole bunch of 0s, 8.

 11  There you go.

 12          If all the responder could see was a placard,

 13  they could correspond that placard, or in this case --

 14  can you go lower on that page, please?  In the lower

 15  left on that page are flammable liquid placards.  This

 16  would be the type of basic placard that would be on

 17  these crude oil cars, with the exception that the word

 18  "flammable" would not be there.  In that case there

 19  would be a square with a four-digit number.

 20          But if all you could see was a red placard that

 21  had a 3 at the bottom, that would tell a responder that

 22  it's a flammable liquid involved.  And the number 127

 23  that's circled would refer the responder to the

 24  yellow -- or excuse me, not yellow, the orange pages

 25  which provide them with specific response information.
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 01  If all the responder could see was the container

 02  shape -- now if you could pull up 00010.

 03          If all the responder could see was the container

 04  shape like we see here, it would tell them, in this case

 05  the low pressure tank car, that would refer them to

 06  guide 131 which would give them basic response

 07  information.

 08          If the responder could see the four-digit

 09  identification number on the placard, and if you will go

 10  to -- let's go with a 1267 for crude oil.  If you would

 11  go to exhibit, ends in 28, here we have an example of

 12  the yellow pages of the Emergency Response Guidebook.

 13  In the yellow pages, products are listed numerically by

 14  the ID number.  That ID number refers to the United

 15  Nations number, the UN number or the North American

 16  number, NA number for some commodities.  And that's the

 17  four-digit number you see on the center of placards for

 18  hazardous materials that are shipped in bulk.  So we see

 19  for 1267, we see product name is petroleum crude oil,

 20  and it refers the responder to a particular guide

 21  number, in this case guide 128.

 22          Now, you'll notice previously on the placard

 23  page and also on the container shape page, it was

 24  referring to different guides.  As we get more specific

 25  information, the guide becomes more specific that they
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 01  would use.  So if all we knew was the UN number, we'd go

 02  to the yellow pages.

 03          The blue pages work very similarly.  And if you

 04  want to jump to -- for example, if we went to the blue

 05  pages, Page 139, please, we would see -- you're going to

 06  need to scroll down because petroleum crude oil is the

 07  last entry in the left-hand column at the bottom of this

 08  page.  Petroleum crude oil.  So if we knew the UN number

 09  we would go to the yellow pages, if we knew the product

 10  name we'd go to blue pages.  Again, it refers us to

 11  guide 128.

 12          So if we could go to guide 128, which is 196 in

 13  the exhibit, this is an example of information that

 14  would be available for a responder.  There are two pages

 15  of information.  On the left-hand page it starts with

 16  the primary product hazard, and in this case the primary

 17  hazard is fire or explosion.  It's listed as a highly

 18  flammable liquid and gives instructions for how to

 19  respond to that.  There's information about health,

 20  further down public safety, protective clothing,

 21  evacuation.  And then further on the next page, 197, is

 22  more information about what to do for fire, what to do

 23  for a spill or leak, or what to do for first aid.

 24          So the Emergency Response Guidebook is a very

 25  basic tool commonly used throughout U.S., in fact used
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 01  throughout North America, for first responders to

 02  identify what it is they're dealing with and then some

 03  practical guidance on the correct response.

 04     Q.   Okay.  And we're going to get into the details,

 05  I think, of some of these response measures.  I want to

 06  focus on one at the outset, though.

 07          What does guide 128 tell you about the need to

 08  evacuate in response to a crude oil incident?

 09     A.   Guide 128 on Exhibit 196, for a large spill,

 10  downwind evacuation for at least 1,000 feet, again

 11  downwind.  For a fire involving a railcar or tank trunk,

 12  they recommend isolating for a half a mile in all

 13  directions.

 14     Q.   So I noticed when we were looking at the lists

 15  of the different products, that some of them were

 16  highlighted in green.  Is that meant to create a

 17  different approach with respect to evacuations?

 18     A.   Yes, it is.  If we go back to the yellow page

 19  for crude oil, that was Page 28.  So on Page 28, we'll

 20  see in the left-hand column there, there are several

 21  products that are highlighted in green.  Products that

 22  are highlighted in green have been identified as

 23  products that have some pretty significant or severe

 24  health risks.  The green is intended to give a responder

 25  with an immediate clue that it is a material that's
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 01  going to require immediate evacuation before you would

 02  even start looking at the guide.  At the end of the

 03  Emergency Response Guidebook is a table of evacuation

 04  and isolation distances that correspond to those

 05  commodities that are highlighted in green.

 06          So you can see on the Page 28 where we're at,

 07  crude oil is not highlighted in green.  It hasn't been

 08  identified by the DOT as having a high toxicity or an

 09  immediate health risk.  There are other commodities that

 10  are much higher health risks if released that you would

 11  want to begin evacuation for.

 12     Q.   And does that mean the response doesn't involve

 13  evacuation for crude oil?

 14     A.   No.  A response to a crude oil incident may

 15  involve a -- may very well involve an evacuation, as is

 16  recommended in guide 128.  However, evacuation may not

 17  be the first consideration for a responder.  For those

 18  commodities that are highlighted in green, they have a

 19  very low toxicity, and low toxicity means it doesn't

 20  take a whole lot of this chemical, if you're exposed to

 21  it, that would give severe health risks to anybody

 22  exposed.  So for those commodities that are highlighted

 23  in green, you want to begin evacuations very quickly and

 24  immediately.

 25     Q.   Okay.  I think we're going to refer back to this
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 01  as we talk a little bit more about some specific

 02  incidents, but I want to ask you a couple questions

 03  first about rail incident response and preparedness.

 04          So Dr. Millar and several other witnesses talk

 05  about the ability of local responders to prepare for and

 06  respond to a rail incident?

 07          What can emergency responders do in general to

 08  prepare for a rail incident involving release of crude

 09  oil?

 10     A.   I think that one of the first steps that any

 11  community, regardless of your capability, can do is to

 12  undertake that preplanning action.  And part of that

 13  preplanning action is to identify where in your

 14  jurisdiction you have active rail tracks, to identify

 15  where they are, where access points are for you, the

 16  presence of sensitive receptors, whether they be

 17  environmental receptors or public receptors near the

 18  rail tracks.  It's to identify who the rail carrier is

 19  that owns the tracks and has operating authority over

 20  the tracks, how do you get in touch with that rail

 21  operator, what are the 24-hour contacts.

 22          There's an opportunity to reach out and work

 23  with the rail carrier to provide flow study information

 24  on what commodities are going through your jurisdiction,

 25  in what quantities so you could begin to prepare there.
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 01  Looking at your response capability as well as the

 02  response capability of other mutual aid type of

 03  jurisdiction agreements that you have.

 04          So all of that preplanning can help a community

 05  prepare for an incident.  The preplanning includes

 06  consideration of scenarios where you can do a tabletop

 07  scenario with a map or with other resources to say,

 08  okay, what if this event happens in this location; how

 09  are we going to respond, what would we do, who would we

 10  call, what forces or resources could we bring to bear on

 11  this.

 12          So by doing those type of preincident scenarios,

 13  you can identify weaknesses or opportunities for

 14  improvement.  You can also develop some protocols and

 15  establish those decisions of what we're going to focus

 16  on first given an incident and particular location so

 17  you don't have to do that, you know, in the stress of

 18  the incident.

 19     Q.   And do you believe that first responders in

 20  jurisdictions should be taking these steps given the

 21  absence of this project?

 22     A.   I do.

 23     Q.   Let's focus in on the couple of specific

 24  locations.  Have you reviewed -- you said you reviewed

 25  the testimony of Mr. Hildebrand regarding Spokane?
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 01     A.   I have.

 02     Q.   Okay.  Do you recall his testimony about his

 03  work in 2014 in which he evaluated the City's ability to

 04  respond to incidents?

 05     A.   In the prefiled testimony for this case, he

 06  references previous work that he did in 2014.  I have

 07  not seen his work from 2014, I can only go by his

 08  comments in the prefile.  But yes, I did read them.

 09     Q.   And do you recall what he said in 2014 about the

 10  City's ability to respond to an incident?

 11     A.   Based upon his assessment in 2014, he felt that

 12  the City of Spokane had minimal response capability for

 13  a large scale rail incident.

 14     Q.   Okay.  And did Mr. Hildebrand offer the City of

 15  Spokane any ways to improve their response capability?

 16     A.   He did.  As I recall, in his prefiled testimony

 17  there was a list of I believe there was eight

 18  recommendations that were made to the City in 2014.

 19     Q.   Okay.  And do you recall what those were?  If

 20  you need to refer to them there's a binder.  Let me try

 21  to cut to the chase.

 22          Do you know or do you recall whether

 23  Mr. Hildebrand testified to the City's progress towards

 24  those eight recommendations?

 25     A.   In his testimony Mr. Hildebrand said that the
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 01  City had made progress towards all eight and it was

 02  expected that they would complete all of the eight

 03  recommendations in 2016.

 04     Q.   And do you recall of his recommendations, were

 05  there any that were unique to the City?

 06     A.   As I recall, without taking the time to look --

 07     Q.   Feel free, I don't mean to cut you short, if you

 08  need to refresh your recollection.

 09     A.   Of the majority of those recommendations, I do

 10  recall that he discussed an improvement for the -- for

 11  Spokane law enforcement as well as some other agencies

 12  to get some incident management training or what's

 13  referred to as NIMS training, that's National Incident

 14  Management System, used for managing large incidents.

 15  That's a very sound recommendation for any jurisdiction.

 16          He talks about developing a foam logistics plan.

 17  I think that's sound for any jurisdiction.  Two of the

 18  recommendations specifically that stick out that I

 19  thought were very Spokane-specific, one was to upgrade

 20  the capability of their current command vehicle.  I

 21  don't know what the status of that command vehicle was

 22  or is.  He's testified that it's -- the recommendation

 23  has been closed so I have to believe it's been improved.

 24          Many jurisdictions operate without command type

 25  vehicles.  Command posts are established in a number
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 01  different ways and different resources so that may be

 02  very Spokane-specific.  I believe Recommendation 8 was

 03  that the City should look at Spokane being identified as

 04  an alternative state emergency operations center.  I

 05  think that is very Spokane-specific and would not apply

 06  to this specific case.  But the other recommendations

 07  would apply.

 08     Q.   And are his recommendations uniquely necessary

 09  to respond to an incident involving unit trains

 10  traveling to Vancouver Energy?

 11     A.   Those recommendations are sound for any

 12  hazardous materials response.

 13     Q.   Okay.  To your knowledge does Spokane have a

 14  hazardous response team?

 15     A.   I believe they do.

 16     Q.   And I think switching from Mr. Hildebrand for

 17  just a second, Mr. Schaeffer testifies that they only

 18  have -- they have the only Type 2 hazardous materials

 19  response team in the Spokane area.

 20          Does that present any unique problems to

 21  incident response?

 22     A.   The designation of a Type 2 hazardous materials

 23  response team refers to a definition established by FEMA

 24  for response resources.  It defines their capability and

 25  what that response team can do.  I don't believe that
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 01  that includes all of the resources that would be brought

 02  to bear in the event of a rail-centered incident.  I

 03  believe Mr. Schaeffer is referring to municipal

 04  hazardous materials response teams.  That would be those

 05  fielded by a local government like a fire department or

 06  a fire district.

 07          The BNSF has a large operation in Spokane.  It's

 08  my understanding from a review of their prefiled that

 09  the BNSF has a cadre of approximately 200 hazardous

 10  materials responders throughout their network.  I

 11  believe that there are hazardous materials responders

 12  that work in the Spokane facility.  Also, the BNSF

 13  purports to have spill control trailers or fire control

 14  trailers.  I would believe that given that location they

 15  would have that equipment there as well.

 16          So there's other response capabilities beyond

 17  just a municipal Type 2 team.

 18     Q.   Okay.  Sorry I'm jumping around, but going back

 19  to Mr. Hildebrand's testimony, did you have a chance to

 20  review Mr. Hildebrand's scenarios he identified, I think

 21  three locations that he described as especially

 22  vulnerable?

 23     A.   Yes, I have reviewed those.  I've also

 24  personally -- I've visited those sites and looked myself

 25  at those locations.
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 01     Q.   And do you agree with his conclusion that those

 02  three locations are especially vulnerable?

 03     A.   The current rail traffic through the City of

 04  Spokane is through their downtown metropolitan area.

 05  There are structures and residences close to that line

 06  today.  Whether these -- let me say this.  They

 07  currently have exposure to rail traffic today.  I don't

 08  believe that their exposure is significantly different

 09  from any other metropolitan area in the U.S. with train

 10  traffic through the center of town.

 11     Q.   Do you recall his conclusions about Spokane's

 12  ability to handle an incident?

 13     A.   In his testimony, based upon their

 14  implementation of the recommendations, he currently

 15  believes that they have a capable response capability,

 16  it's adequate.

 17     Q.   I want to switch to a different location.

 18              MR. KISIELIUS:  Your Honor, it always seems

 19  to fall on me to have a witness immediately before

 20  lunch.  We have about, I would guess another 40 minutes

 21  with this witness and I'm prepared to continue if that

 22  would be helpful, but I also observe that it's 12:00.

 23  But if you prefer to take a break now or plow through,

 24  we can finish up.

 25              JUDGE NOBLE:  You didn't say how much time
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 01  you've got, it sounds like a bit of time, maybe at least

 02  a half an hour.

 03              MR. KISIELIUS:  I would say 40 minutes.

 04              JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.  Well, we need to

 05  break, then, for lunch.

 06              MR. KISIELIUS:  I was about to switch to a

 07  different topic.

 08              JUDGE NOBLE:  Good.  Then this is a good

 09  time for break.  Sorry for the break in your

 10  testimony --

 11              THE WITNESS:  I understand.

 12              JUDGE NOBLE:  -- but we need to be off the

 13  record.

 14              (Lunch break.)

 15              JUDGE NOBLE:  You may proceed.

 16  BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 17     Q.   Mr. Rhoads, we were just going to switch to a

 18  different geographic vicinity.  I want to ask you some

 19  questions about the City of Vancouver.

 20          Have you reviewed Mr. Hildebrand's testimony

 21  regarding the emergency response capabilities of the

 22  City of Vancouver?

 23     A.   I have.

 24     Q.   To your knowledge, does Vancouver have a

 25  hazardous response team?
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 01     A.   They do.

 02     Q.   And mutual aid agreements?

 03     A.   They do.

 04     Q.   What does -- do you recall what Mr. Hildebrand

 05  describes as the biggest challenge for Vancouver in

 06  responding to a derailment with release and fire?

 07     A.   In Mr. Hildebrand's testimony he uses as a

 08  yardstick for success the ability to respond and to

 09  mount an offensive fire suppression operation and to

 10  extinguish the fire within one hour of the event.

 11     Q.   And in your opinion is adopting an early

 12  offensive strategy always the best course of action or

 13  the objective of every incident response?

 14     A.   No, it would not.

 15     Q.   What would the alternative be?

 16     A.   The emergency response incident commander will

 17  need to perform a size-up of the situation.  That

 18  size-up is to identify the commodities that he has

 19  involved, again referring to the D.E.C.I.D.E. process,

 20  to identify the quantity or an estimation of the amount

 21  of material that is currently involved or the number of

 22  tank cars in the event -- in the case of a rail

 23  incident.  They also need to take into account what the

 24  location of the incident is, what the immediate

 25  exposures would be.  Again, back to the D.E.C.I.D.E.
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 01  model, the choose your response objectives, the life

 02  safety objective being protection of the public and also

 03  of your responders.

 04          It very may well be that the incident commander

 05  makes a decision to adopt a non-intervention strategy.

 06  That non-intervention strategy could involve conducting

 07  evacuations of threatened or exposed population, it

 08  could be to perform a defensive actions like diking,

 09  damming and diverting to be able to stop the flow of

 10  product.  It could include application of cooling water

 11  to exposed tank cars.  There are a number of things that

 12  the incident commander could do other than an offensive

 13  action in this case.  All of them are sound tactics and

 14  have been used successfully.

 15     Q.   So just to be clear, does the fact that a

 16  defensive or non-intervention approach is the best

 17  option, does that mean that emergency response

 18  capability is inadequate?

 19     A.   No, I don't believe that's the case.  In

 20  reviewing crude oil derailment situations, in a number

 21  of locations smaller communities have effectively dealt

 22  with and handled crude oil incident involving spill and

 23  fire using that one hour to extinguish the fire as the

 24  yardstick.  I don't agree with that.  I personally

 25  measure incidents based upon outcomes, not based upon
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 01  the clock, the outcome being have we protected the

 02  responders, have we protected the community.  We can

 03  replace the cars, we can replace the product, but it's

 04  that life safety, and life and health is number one, and

 05  that's the outcome I would use as a measurement.

 06     Q.   Okay.  What about Mr. Hildebrand's testimony

 07  about the need to be able to respond to an incident

 08  entirely on its own?  And we're talking about the City

 09  here.  Do you agree that the City has to be able to

 10  handle an incident entirely on its own?

 11     A.   No, I would not agree with that assessment at

 12  all.  I think particularly of a rail-centric incident,

 13  that there are a number of key stakeholders that need to

 14  be involved in the response and in the developing of the

 15  tactics and strategy necessary to bring the incident to

 16  a successful conclusion.  Those stakeholders may include

 17  mutual aid resources from other jurisdictions, municipal

 18  responders.  It may involve use of other City assets

 19  including public works, law enforcement.  It could

 20  include and should include interactions with the

 21  railroad and their hazardous materials response

 22  capabilities, and also the response contractors that the

 23  railroad will bring for air toxicological monitoring,

 24  for fire suppression, for control.

 25          So there are a number of resources that would be
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 01  brought to bear and not strictly the City fire

 02  department on their own.

 03     Q.   Let me ask you to explain a little bit more the

 04  notion of mutual aid.

 05          What purpose does a mutual aid agreement serve?

 06  Why do jurisdictions do that?

 07     A.   Well, there's an understanding in the emergency

 08  response community that no community can handle

 09  absolutely everything on their own.  Even if we take

 10  hazardous materials off of the equation here,

 11  large-scale fires, multiple-alarm fires may require a

 12  large commitment of resources from any one jurisdiction.

 13  Mutual aid companies could come into the city to form

 14  backfill for stations where those units were used

 15  someplace else on a large fire.

 16          We see mutual aid commonly used in mass casualty

 17  incidents where we have a large number of people who are

 18  injured requiring transportation to medical facilities.

 19  We see mutual aid commonly used for airports and other

 20  mass transit.  If there was a large scale mass casualty

 21  incident that involved Amtrak coming through the city, I

 22  would imagine that there would be mutual aid resources

 23  that could come support the city as part of that fire

 24  rescue EMS component.

 25     Q.   Okay.  Did you have a chance to review

�2098

 01  Mr. Hildebrand's scenarios in the City of Vancouver?  I

 02  think he had identified two locations.

 03     A.   Yes, I did.

 04     Q.   Have you seen those places first-hand?

 05     A.   I have seen them first-hand, yes.

 06     Q.   So let's first talk about the area in the

 07  vicinity of city hall.  Are you familiar with that?

 08     A.   That would be at Phil Arnold and Columbia?

 09     Q.   Yes.  So let me ask you also, are you familiar

 10  with Mr. Guthrie's testimony to the rail infrastructure

 11  in that location?  Did you see the transcript?

 12     A.   I did see the transcript, I did review it, yes.

 13     Q.   Can you recount what protections are in place in

 14  that location?

 15     A.   From a physical standpoint, the design and

 16  construction of that track from the switch coming off of

 17  the BNSF mainline coming down the grade and into the

 18  port, that area was to be protected with a guardrail,

 19  including the area that we're talking about here, that

 20  bridge over that overpass over the top of Columbia.

 21     Q.   And do you recall Mr. Guthrie's testimony about

 22  the speed that the train would be traveling in that

 23  vicinity?

 24     A.   Well, that's the second component.  The

 25  guardrail would be the physical hardware that would be
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 01  in place to help to ensure that if a car did derail in

 02  that location, that it would remain upright and in line

 03  and within the footprint of the ties.  It would not be

 04  on the rail but it would be between the rails and the

 05  ties.  And that's what a guardrail is designed to do and

 06  how it performs.

 07          The second thing that I took away from

 08  Mr. Guthrie's testimony and also based upon my

 09  observation of location, the train will be slowed

 10  considerably when it begins to traverse off of the main

 11  line into that switch into the facility.  With that

 12  10-mile-an-hour speed restriction, the train will be

 13  going much slower than 10 miles an hour, I would

 14  estimate in the 5- to 7-mile-an-hour range, because the

 15  requirement would be that the crew be able to stop the

 16  train in half of the range of vision if the track became

 17  obstructed.  That's a railroad operating rule and

 18  commonly applied in this situation.  So the train will

 19  be going much slower.  That's an operational safety in

 20  addition to the hardware safety of the guardrail.

 21     Q.   And so looking at the scenarios, how likely is a

 22  derailment in that location?

 23     A.   Well, in terms of how likely a derailment is in

 24  that location or how likely it is to be -- the type of

 25  derailment that Mr. Hildebrand describes?
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 01     Q.   Maybe we should talk about both.  A derailment

 02  of any kind.

 03     A.   I think the likelihood for a derailment at that

 04  location is a pretty low probability for a number of

 05  factors.  Again, the speed of the train is going to be

 06  very slow.  The train is going to be traversing that new

 07  switch and into new infrastructure into the port.  So we

 08  have good components, good construction, so we're not

 09  looking at worn issues there -- (Court reporter

 10  interruption.) -- worn, wear, w-o-r-n issues associated

 11  with that track.  So the probability of the derailment I

 12  believe is very low at that location.

 13          Now, the second part of that question, a

 14  derailment of the type that Mr. Hildebrand describes in

 15  his testimony, he describes a derailment where tank cars

 16  leave the track bed, come down over the embankment,

 17  suffer severe mechanical damage, breach, and

 18  subsequently catch on fire.  I don't believe that

 19  Mr. Hildebrand takes into account the guardrail that's

 20  installed on that track and the function of the

 21  guardrail.  I don't believe that he's considered the

 22  speed of the train at that location.

 23          So I find the probability of a derailment to be

 24  very low.  And then a subset of that and even much lower

 25  probability would be the type of derailment that he
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 01  described where a railcar would derail and be

 02  subsequent -- to come down the embankment on the other

 03  side.

 04     Q.   Okay.  With that in mind, I want you to assume

 05  that the derailment that he describes actually does

 06  occur.  And he suggests that an incident like that might

 07  not be approachable for eight to 12 hours.

 08          Do you agree that that would be the case?

 09     A.   Each derailment is a little different.  It's

 10  different based upon the number of cars that are

 11  involved, it's different based upon the final position

 12  of those cars, and it's different based upon the amount

 13  of product that would be released from that derailment.

 14  If it was a derailment as he describes with several cars

 15  losing product, other cars being impinged upon by fire,

 16  I don't necessarily agree that it would be

 17  unapproachable for -- I believe he said eight to 12

 18  hours?

 19     Q.   Correct.

 20     A.   I don't agree with that.  Is it possible?  Yes.

 21  But I don't agree with that statement.

 22     Q.   And what about based on your knowledge of other

 23  derailments in places with maybe fewer resources

 24  available immediately?  Have there been derailments of

 25  that size, that that department's resources have been
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 01  able to approach faster than eight to 12 hours?

 02     A.   I think most recently the derailment in Mosier

 03  showed the capabilities and how the incident could be

 04  safely managed.  In Mosier it's my understanding that

 05  the fire was extinguished within 14 hours, and that's in

 06  a location with minimal resources that required a lot of

 07  additional resources to be brought in.  So it wasn't a

 08  case of that it was unapproachable, it was they didn't

 09  have the resources to begin to make that approach.

 10          I think that in Vancouver with the career fire

 11  department that they have, with the foam that's

 12  available, and with other resources, I believe that an

 13  approach could be made quicker.

 14          In the Norfolk Southern derailment in Columbus,

 15  Ohio, multiple car failures, multiple cars impinged upon

 16  by fire, the fire department was able to completely

 17  extinguish that fire within eight hours of the incident.

 18     Q.   And let me ask you just more generally, because

 19  you've been describing this defensive strategy.

 20          Do you have any concerns about utilizing

 21  something like a defensive strategy in the specific

 22  location that Mr. Hildebrand was identifying?

 23     A.   Again, it's going to be largely dependent upon

 24  conditions that the incident commander finds himself

 25  dealing with.  I believe that in the location that he
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 01  discusses, a defensive strategy could be successfully

 02  employed.  The area forms a natural bowl or depression

 03  on the south side of the track opposite of the Phil

 04  Arnold Roadway that he describes.  I believe that if

 05  cars did leave the track structure, that they would be

 06  more likely to go to the south rather than to the north

 07  simply because they're over on that side of the track

 08  bed, that's where the switch would be, that the rail

 09  roadbed would actually form a barrier between city hall

 10  and the rest of the infrastructure in the incident

 11  location.  So I believe that a defensive strategy could

 12  be successfully employed there.

 13     Q.   He describes a phenomena in this hypothetical

 14  scenario that he's painted, something called a

 15  heat-induced thermal tear.  (Court reporter

 16  interruption.)  Head-induced thermal tear.

 17     A.   We would refer to that as a heat-induced tear,

 18  the "heat" and the "thermal" being redundant.

 19     Q.   Redundant, okay.

 20     A.   So you often see that described as a HIT, an

 21  H-I-T, heat-induced tear.  Yes, I'm familiar with that

 22  phenomenon.

 23     Q.   So -- and are you aware of this project's

 24  commitment to utilize DOT-117 tank cars?

 25     A.   I am.
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 01     Q.   And does the use of DOT-117 tank cars, would

 02  that have any bearing on the likelihood of something

 03  like a heat-induced tear occurring?

 04     A.   A heat-induced tear occurs in a tank car when

 05  that particular car is subjected to long-term heating.

 06  The commodity -- the railcar itself has not breached, it

 07  hasn't relieved itself in any way.  So as that product

 08  is heated, it will naturally expand and build up

 09  pressure.  If that pressure cannot be relieved through

 10  the pressure relief device that's required on all the

 11  cars due to size or due to location of the pressure

 12  relief device being not in the vapor space but in the

 13  liquid space of the car, we've seen a phenomenon where

 14  as that pressure rises in the heat on the car, that the

 15  tank car shell will split open, relieving that pressure

 16  inside.

 17          With the DOT-117 car, a couple things, numerous

 18  safety features are in place to prevent that.  Foremost

 19  would be a thicker tank shell, a tank shell of 9/16ths

 20  as opposed to a 7/16th-inch shell on the current Legacy

 21  DOT-111 tank cars.  We also see on the 117 that there's

 22  thermal protection which would be applied to the outside

 23  of the car.  Most Legacy 111 cars don't have thermal

 24  protection.  So the thermal protection prevents that

 25  transfer of heat from an external source to the tank
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 01  shell itself and ultimately to the product.  We also see

 02  on the DOT-117 tank car a larger pressure relief device

 03  that enables the car to relieve that internal pressure

 04  in a larger capacity of pressure to be able to be

 05  released in a shorter period of time.

 06          All of those taken together in the aggregate

 07  will offer protection against the heat-induced tear

 08  phenomenon.

 09     Q.   Let's switch locations.  I think the other place

 10  that Mr. Hildebrand identifies is the vicinity of Marine

 11  Park.  And I think he suggests that people would be

 12  trapped at that location if there were an incident in

 13  that vicinity.

 14          Do you agree with his testimony?

 15     A.   No, I don't.  From my observation of the Marine

 16  Park area, there are multiple avenues for escape from

 17  that area that are multiple overpasses where the

 18  railroad goes over top of surface streets that would

 19  allow individuals to self-evacuate from that location.

 20     Q.   I want to stay on that topic of evacuation

 21  because there's another witness that testified to

 22  evacuation from city locations, Scott Johnson.

 23  Mr. Johnson used what he described as the 1/2-mile

 24  distance to determine the population that would need to

 25  be evacuated.
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 01          Do you agree with that measure?

 02     A.   Yes.  I believe that through what we've looked

 03  at with the DOT Emergency Response Guide, that a

 04  1/2-mile radius is the industry or recommended distance.

 05     Q.   And how is that 1/2 mile implemented?

 06     A.   Implemented in terms of measure or moving people

 07  from it?  I'm sorry.

 08     Q.   Measured, the first one.

 09     A.   Well, the 1/2 mile in all directions radius is

 10  given as a guideline and a recommendation.  What it

 11  doesn't take into account is topography.  A 1/2 mile in

 12  all directions, that may change based upon weather

 13  conditions, it may change based upon if the product is

 14  flowing and where it's moving to.

 15          I think that 1/2 mile is for a response -- for

 16  the incident commander it's a guideline.  It's at least

 17  a data point that you could overlay a radius on top of a

 18  map and say, okay, if it's within this area, yes, we

 19  want to move these people out, outside of this no.  But

 20  it's not like anyone's out with a range finder or a

 21  measuring tape and saying this is exactly a 1/2 mile,

 22  this is safe, this is unsafe.  That's not done.

 23     Q.   But just to be really simple about it, it's a

 24  radius, then?

 25     A.   It is a radius, yes.
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 01     Q.   So Mr. Johnson testifies that based on his

 02  assessment, drawing that distance out from potential

 03  incident locations, that there could be as many as 7,000

 04  to 13,000 people that would need to be evacuated from a

 05  rail incident.

 06          Did you evaluate potential populations that

 07  would need to be evacuated from a rail incident?

 08     A.   Yes, I did.  I questioned those numbers when I

 09  read that testimony.  I used -- in my evaluation I used

 10  a computer tool that's available from the USEPA, it's

 11  part of the Computer-Aided Management of Emergency

 12  Operations, or the CAMEO program, which is a program

 13  commonly used by emergency responders and planners

 14  throughout the U.S.

 15          A subprogram of CAMEO that's used for emergency

 16  planning is a program called MARPLOT, that's

 17  M-A-R-P-L-O-T.  And MARPLOT stands for the Mapping

 18  Application for Response and Planning of Local

 19  Operational Tasks.  It wouldn't be an EPA program if you

 20  didn't have an acronym to go with it.

 21          So the MARPLOT program allows emergency planners

 22  to identify a point and then to apply radius to whatever

 23  radius you choose.  I chose the 1/2-mile radius in all

 24  directions from a point.  MARPLOT then takes U.S. Census

 25  data information and identifies the populations, the
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 01  residential populations within that radius.

 02          I first performed that analysis and that

 03  modeling using Phil Arnold and Columbia intersection

 04  because Mr. Hildebrand had noted that.  I used that as a

 05  mapping point.  And when I ran a 1/2-mile radius, again

 06  the radius is 1/2 mile to the north, south, east, west,

 07  so the diameter across that area would be a full mile

 08  for that circle.  I found the population in that area as

 09  approximately 1,200 people.

 10          So with that as a starting point, I did

 11  additional modeling going west from that location in

 12  such a way that my radiuses overlapped each other.  And

 13  as I continued east through the City of Vancouver, I

 14  didn't find any area where the population within

 15  1/2 mile of the rail location was greater than 1,400

 16  people.

 17          So the 7,000 to 13,000 number, I'm not sure

 18  where Mr. Johnson, how he achieved that number.  I don't

 19  know if he took all of the different radiuses on the

 20  route and combined them together, but that would be a

 21  false application of the recommendation of 1/2 mile,

 22  because now we have something that's miles long.

 23     Q.   So Mr. Johnson mentions that -- I guess he

 24  focuses in on a couple areas, one of which you started

 25  to talk about.  There was the area in the vicinity of
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 01  Marine Park.  I think Mr. Johnson expresses a concern

 02  about the entire area between the river and Highway 14.

 03          Do you have any concerns about that location

 04  from an evacuation standpoint?

 05     A.   Particularly as we go east from Marine Park,

 06  there are a number of private residents which are on the

 07  south side of the track.  Their primary access point is

 08  a private road crossing to get to their properties.

 09  Access and evacuation would be an issue in those

 10  locations, but several factors come in to play with the

 11  train traffic in that area.

 12          First thing that comes into play is in the event

 13  of a derailment, the operating procedures call for the

 14  train crew to separate their train and to move the

 15  locomotives and as many cars away from the area as safe

 16  to do so.  So that uncoupling of the train will provide

 17  additional access points.

 18          If it would be an event where the locomotives

 19  were involved and couldn't be used, these trains have a

 20  locomotive at the rear, it's called distributed power.

 21  That locomotive could be used to move cars away and to

 22  increase access.

 23          Those locations where there are limited access

 24  points, that would be part of the pre-emergency planning

 25  process that I've discussed earlier.  And the response
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 01  community should be looking at other evacuation means

 02  for that, possibly using marine assets or other

 03  resources for evacuation.

 04     Q.   And is that need to look at that planning piece

 05  specific to this project?

 06     A.   No.  No, it is not.

 07     Q.   He also identifies -- this is Mr. Johnson

 08  again -- a couple other evacuation concerns, and

 09  specifically notes the State School for the Deaf and the

 10  State School for the Blind.

 11          Did you identify those?  Did you look at those

 12  in proximity to the rail line?

 13     A.   I looked at those using currently available

 14  mapping devices.  I did not personally go to either of

 15  those locations.  But using Google Earth and also using

 16  the MARPLOT program, the School for the Deaf, I believe,

 17  is at 611 Grant Boulevard.  That area, that location,

 18  when I took from the closest rail point to the School

 19  for the Deaf at 611 Grant -- or Grand, excuse me.

 20  Grand, not Grant.  At 611 Grand, the distance from the

 21  School for the Deaf to the closest rail point was

 22  approximately 2,300 feet, just within the 1/2-mile

 23  radius.

 24          But what is particularly interesting about that

 25  location is that that lies up-gradient from the tracks,
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 01  so if there was a spill of product there's no way that

 02  it's going to defy gravity to flow uphill.  The storm

 03  drains wouldn't provide a conduit to go uphill.  Rather,

 04  within that 1/2-mile recommendation, again, the

 05  topography comes into play.  It very well may be that

 06  the incident commander makes a decision to

 07  shelter-in-place for that facility.

 08          The School for the Blind at 2214 East 13th

 09  Street, by my calculations, that was at about 4,800 feet

 10  from the closest rail line and well outside of the

 11  1/2-mile recommendation.

 12     Q.   And going back to the School for the Deaf, that

 13  was, you said, within the bounds of the evacuation area.

 14  Where would the incident need to occur in order to have

 15  the school fall within the evacuation area?

 16     A.   It would have to be an incident almost directly

 17  due south.  As you begin to move east or west, that

 18  radius becomes larger, and actually the distance from

 19  the school to the incident becomes further.  So at 2,300

 20  feet, very quickly becomes 1/2 mile.

 21     Q.   Mr. Hildebrand makes a couple recommendations to

 22  the City of Vancouver to improve response capabilities.

 23  Are those uniquely necessary to respond to an incident

 24  involving unit trains traveling to this facility?

 25     A.   No, they're not.
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 01     Q.   And some of his recommendations involve training

 02  and expresses a concern about the ability to maintain

 03  staffing while folks are out at training.

 04          Do all training opportunities require travel

 05  away from the local community?

 06     A.   No, they don't.  There are a number of training

 07  programs and training activities that are currently

 08  available to all emergency responders that don't involve

 09  travel.  One of those type of training activities is

 10  through a program known as TRANSCAER, that's

 11  T-R-A-N-S-C-A-E-R.  That stands for the Transportation

 12  Community Awareness and Emergency Response Program.

 13          TRANSCAER is a joint program between

 14  transportation companies, both rail, marine, and bulk

 15  motor carriers with the chemical and petroleum

 16  industries to bring training out to local responders.

 17  That training can be in the form of classroom or

 18  tabletop type exercises.  It can include field exercises

 19  where TRANSCAER will bring in specialized tank cars that

 20  are constructed so that responders can walk inside of a

 21  tank car to see the valve on the inside.  There's valve

 22  cutaways that are available to discuss how the valves

 23  work, how railcars are constructed.  With the railroads

 24  being involved, they're able to talk about their

 25  emergency response capabilities and the resources that
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 01  they would bring to bear to an incident.  So TRANSCAER

 02  is one type of activity.

 03          Other training that's available, currently

 04  there's a free online training program available from

 05  the Security and Emergency Response Training Center,

 06  SERTC, S-E-R-T-C in Pueblo, Colorado.  SERTC offers

 07  several free online training programs to responders.

 08  One is a crude oil unit train training program, it's

 09  approximately four hours in length.  They offer a

 10  firefighting foam online training program and they offer

 11  a hazardous materials by rail online training program.

 12          Further, through the Department of

 13  Transportation, specifically through PHMSA, there's an

 14  online training program that's available that includes

 15  different modules.  The intent is that an instructor

 16  could use the instructor guide, could use the supporting

 17  class materials, and could teach training at the local

 18  level for responders.

 19              MR. KISIELIUS:  I'm going to ask Ms. Mastro

 20  if you could pull up Exhibit 264, please.

 21  BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 22     Q.   If you want to look at the book instead of the

 23  screen, that's Tab 8.

 24     A.   Okay.

 25     Q.   While we're waiting for that maybe I'll ask you
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 01  to start describing what we will soon be looking at.

 02     A.   What we have in this exhibit, I prepared this.

 03  The first page is the Security Emergency Response

 04  Training Center or SERTC.  This is the course

 05  description for their Flammable Liquids Transported By

 06  Rail Training program.  This shows the course direction

 07  or duration.  It includes -- the comment for the price,

 08  it says no charge to emergency responders.  There's a

 09  description of the training program.  The page on the

 10  screen is what I just described.

 11          The next page is very similar.  Again, it's from

 12  SERTC.  This describes the web-based crude-by-rail

 13  training program, four hours in length, no charge for

 14  emergency responders.  And there's an overview of the

 15  course there.

 16          The next page is U.S. Department of

 17  Transportation's PHMSA training program.  This is the

 18  Transportation Rail Incident Preparedness and Response

 19  Training program.  You can't see it on the screen very

 20  well, but there's the large horizontal picture, and

 21  directly underneath that are thumbnail pictures for --

 22  if you could go back there, please.  Stop.

 23          On the screen, those smaller pictures correspond

 24  with the different training modules that are available

 25  for delivery to local responders.  Again, this is a
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 01  recent training program that was released within the

 02  past year that's available for responders.

 03          The next page, this is an information sheet from

 04  the TRANSCAER website which describes the crude-by-rail

 05  response safety course.

 06          The next page includes contact information for

 07  the TRANSCAER state coordinators.  In this case the

 08  state coordinator is Mr. Overlie from BNSF.  And you'll

 09  see Lind Bingham with AkzoNobel, again highlighting that

 10  TRANSCAER is a joint chemical industry, petroleum

 11  industry, and transportation industry initiative.  So if

 12  a responder is interested in the TRANSCAER training,

 13  they can contact one of these individuals and they could

 14  set something up.

 15              MR. KISIELIUS:  Okay.  And, Ms. Mastro, if

 16  you could pull up 262, please.

 17  BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 18     Q.   And that would be Tab 6 if you want to describe

 19  what we'll be looking at?

 20     A.   What we have here, this is just more information

 21  about the PHMSA Transportation Rail Incident

 22  Preparedness and Response Training Program.

 23  Particularly on the second page, or the back of this

 24  particular exhibit, the How to Use This Program

 25  describes the nine modules and the introduction and how
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 01  local government could -- or the local municipal

 02  response agency could use this to provide training.

 03          I think it would be very prudent as well for the

 04  training course that's delivered at SERTC, the live

 05  course, and also the live course that's taught at Texas

 06  A&M Engineering Extension Facility, or TEX, in College

 07  Station, Texas, a jurisdiction could send a training

 08  officer or another senior officer to those types of

 09  events.  They could bring information back, and a very

 10  effective trainer-to-trainer type of cadre could be

 11  developed in a jurisdiction to provide training.

 12  Everybody doesn't need to go to that training to become

 13  effective.

 14     Q.   All right.  Let me switch subjects to another

 15  topic that Mr. Hildebrand describes.  He says

 16  firefighting foam, that that presents a significant

 17  operational challenge.

 18          Can you just start by explaining how

 19  firefighting foam is used?

 20     A.   Firefighting foam starts with a foam

 21  concentrate.  The foam concentrate is added to water and

 22  agitated so it creates a bubble.  These billions and

 23  billions of bubbles that create foam, they rest on the

 24  surface area of a flammable liquid.  On that surface

 25  area they're acting to isolate or to minimize the amount
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 01  of oxygen or atmospheric air that can come in contact

 02  with that fuel.

 03          If you look at basic fire, we need fuel, we need

 04  an ignition source, and we need oxygen.  And if you

 05  remove any one of those three legs of the fire triangle,

 06  you don't have a fire anymore.  So with foam we're

 07  removing that oxygen and we're smothering the fire.

 08  Foam can also be used to create a barrier to minimize

 09  the amount of vapors that are generated from the

 10  flammable liquid as well.

 11     Q.   So are there times when foam would not be

 12  effective?

 13     A.   Foam is only effective in a two-dimensional fire

 14  environment, that is, a horizontal pool fire.  Foam

 15  works very well if it's flat.  If it's a

 16  three-dimensional fire environment where we have fire

 17  emanating from a valve or from a breach in a tank car or

 18  flowing in any type of manner, foam would not be

 19  effective in controlling that fire.

 20     Q.   And is foam essential, though, to fighting a

 21  fire involving a crude release?

 22     A.   No, it's not.  And I think that's a

 23  misconception by a lot of individuals.  Foam,

 24  firefighting foam, is a tool that's in the responder's

 25  toolbox.  It would not always be effective, it would not
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 01  always be used.  Identification of where your foam

 02  resources are is part of that preplanning.  It can be

 03  very useful in some situations, but absence of foam

 04  doesn't necessarily mean that you can't handle an

 05  incident.

 06          Two specific derailments, which are referenced

 07  by Mr. Chipkevich and Mr. Hildebrand, the Mt. Carbon,

 08  West Virginia, incident on CSX was -- involved a release

 09  with fire.  That incident was successfully managed and

 10  extinguished without any foam being used.  The

 11  Lynchburg, Virginia, derailment, again on CSX, was

 12  successfully extinguished and managed without the use of

 13  foam.  From my reading of information generated from the

 14  Mosier incident, specifically a briefing that was given

 15  by an EPA on-scene coordinator, the amount of foam that

 16  was used in Mosier to control that incident was very

 17  minimal.

 18          So I think that those are three cases where

 19  there was a release of fire and foam was not the

 20  deciding factor in the successful outcome of the

 21  incident.

 22     Q.   Okay.  More generally there's been some

 23  testimony, concern about the, what's been called extreme

 24  secrecy of the rail industry impacting response

 25  measures.
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 01          Do you agree that there's not transparency that

 02  impacts the ability to respond to an incident?

 03     A.   I'm sorry, you kind of lost me in the double

 04  negative at the end of your comment.  But I will say I

 05  certainly would not agree that there's secrecy involving

 06  transportation of hazardous materials by rail between

 07  the railroads and local governments.  I would not agree

 08  with that at all.

 09     Q.   What are some of the steps in place to ensure

 10  that there is that communication between the railroads

 11  and responders?

 12     A.   Well, there are a number.  Some are industry

 13  best practices that are voluntary on the part of the

 14  railroads, and more recently as a result of the FRA

 15  emergency order that are now codified as part of the

 16  regulations.  I'll address first the industry programs.

 17          The rail industry, through its trade

 18  association, the Association of American Railroads,

 19  developed a set of recommended practices for the

 20  handling of hazardous materials, not just crude oil but

 21  hazardous materials that have been in place since the

 22  early 1990s.  That's referred to as the OT-55 circular.

 23  I believe that it's an exhibit in the materials that

 24  have been submitted.

 25     Q.   I'll interrupt you.
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 01              MR. KISIELIUS:  For the council's benefit,

 02  that's Exhibit 263.

 03  BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 04     Q.   Tab 7 in your binder.

 05     A.   Excellent, thank you.

 06          In OT-55, if you turn to Page 2 of the exhibit

 07  that's available, one of the components was the

 08  identification of a key train, and a key train defined

 09  as a train that has 20 or more carloads of hazardous

 10  materials that are listed in an appendices.  There are

 11  operating procedures for the key trains including

 12  maximum speeds, including train meets, that is, when a

 13  key train is meeting another train, one of the trains

 14  has to take a siding to allow the other train to pass.

 15  Key trains will always keep the main; non-key trains

 16  will take the siding to pass.  The spacing of defect

 17  detectors along key routes, again, key routes are

 18  identified in OT-55 based upon the amount of hazardous

 19  materials that are transported.  Yard operating

 20  practices.

 21          But most germane to your question is found in

 22  Section 5 of OT-55, and that recommends and requires the

 23  railroad to become involved in TRANSCAER and to also to

 24  provide communities with flow studies and traffic data

 25  on what they've handled over their railroad or component
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 01  of railroad in the previous year.

 02          In my roles at CSX, I was responsible for

 03  completing traffic flow studies, and I've done well in

 04  excess of a hundred such flow studies for a community

 05  where I provide them with information on what

 06  commodities are flowing through and in what volumes.

 07  And that can help that community effectively prepare

 08  based upon the types of commodities they can expect to

 09  see.  So those are the voluntary programs that the

 10  railroads have done for over 25 years.

 11          More recently the FRA, in one of their emergency

 12  orders, I believe it was DOT OTS [sic] 2014-0067, that

 13  emergency order required rail carriers to make a

 14  notification to the state Emergency Response Commission

 15  where the notification would kick in if they transported

 16  more than a million -- I believe it was gallons, it may

 17  have been barrels, but more than a million gallons of

 18  flammable liquids in unit trains.  That notification was

 19  to be made to the Emergency Response Commission, and

 20  include the routes, the frequencies, the volumes, and

 21  the types of crude oil that would be transported.

 22          So all of that, that doesn't seem like extreme

 23  secrecy.  It seems very transparent process to me.

 24              MR. KISIELIUS:  I don't think we need to

 25  call it up, but just for the council's benefit, the DOT
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 01  Order Number OST-2014-0067 is Exhibit 248.

 02  BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 03     Q.   The other concern that's been expressed by

 04  Dr. Millar, among others, is the cargo associated with

 05  the project is different from anything currently

 06  transported.

 07          Do you agree with that?

 08     A.   Again, I believe that this is a misconception

 09  that is shared by a number of people, including some

 10  people in the emergency response community.

 11          The crude oil that's being transported is

 12  different from a lot of people's preconceived notion of

 13  what crude oil is.  I think most people think of crude

 14  oil as something very thick, very heavy, very viscous,

 15  very syrup-like.  What we're seeing is a crude oil that

 16  flows like water, very similar to the properties of

 17  gasoline.  There have been a number of studies by PHMSA

 18  and also the API and through Sandia National Labs

 19  looking at the crude oil from the Bakken fields.

 20          All of the studies are coalescing around a

 21  common point that the material does meet the definition

 22  of a Class 3 Packing Group 1 flammable liquid, very

 23  similar to a number of products we see in that category

 24  today.

 25     Q.   And is there testing required to demonstrate
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 01  compliance with that classification?

 02     A.   There is.  And again, that was codified and made

 03  a requirement in the emergency order.  That emergency

 04  order I believe was DOT OTS [sic] 2014-0025, but I may

 05  be wrong in that number.  But it was an emergency order

 06  that required testing at the ship points to confirm that

 07  materials were classified correctly.

 08              MR. KISIELIUS:  For the council's benefit,

 09  that's Exhibit 247.

 10  BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 11     Q.   Let's switch and talk a little bit about the

 12  comparison to some of the scenarios that several of the

 13  witnesses point to.

 14          Have you reviewed the list of derailment

 15  incidents in the prefiled testimony of Mr. Chipkevich,

 16  for example?

 17     A.   I have.

 18     Q.   Does that list of incidents demonstrate that

 19  transportation of crude-by-rail is unsafe, in your

 20  opinion?

 21     A.   No, I don't believe that it does.  While those

 22  incidents have occurred and they've been very

 23  unfortunate, I think what they fail to do is to give a

 24  scale of the amount of materials shipped and the full

 25  volume.  It's like a fraction with no denominator.
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 01          If we look at, for example, 2013, and we look at

 02  the incidents that Mr. Chipkevich discusses, there were,

 03  as I recall, 43 cars that were involved in several

 04  incidents, and 43 cars actually breached and lost their

 05  contents.  The denominator in this case for that year,

 06  2013, U.S. railroads handled about 1.2 million shipments

 07  of crude oil and ethanol.  And I say ethanol because

 08  Mr. Chipkevich includes ethanol-type incidents in his

 09  listing of incidents.

 10          So when we look at the incidents which occurred

 11  but we also look at the number of shipments, we're

 12  talking an extremely, extremely low probability that we

 13  would have a car fail during a derailment.  The number

 14  of shipments to me doesn't demonstrate that it's unsafe,

 15  the number of shipments to me shows me how very rare and

 16  infrequent those type of events are.

 17     Q.   Okay.  Let's talk about some of those scenarios

 18  that they described in a little more detail.

 19          First, switching witnesses here, Robert

 20  Blackburn compares to TIH.  And we've heard some

 21  testimony on this topic already, but I'm interested in

 22  your opinion.

 23          Do you believe that the example he uses from

 24  that 2009 DOT report, the derailment involving TIH, is a

 25  fair comparison to a potential incident involving
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 01  crude-by-rail?

 02     A.   No.  I think that's very much an apples and

 03  orange comparison that Mr. Blackburn is making.  I've

 04  read his testimony and I'm familiar with the DOT report

 05  that he cites.

 06          The DOT report that was described as a nightmare

 07  scenario involved a toxic inhalation hazard material, or

 08  a TIH.  To help scale this, a TIH material would be on

 09  the order of anhydrous ammonia or chlorine.  Both of

 10  those products are products that are shipped as a liquid

 11  under pressure.  When they're released from the

 12  container they'll change phase from a liquid phase to a

 13  gas.  That gas, when released, is totally dependent upon

 14  weather conditions and the wind direction and speed.

 15  You can't control a gas once it's out.  It's going to

 16  move, it's going to spread over a wide area.

 17  Populations that are impacted by that product will

 18  exhibit immediate health effects due to that exposure.

 19          Crude oil, on the other hand, is a liquid.  It

 20  does have some flammable vapors, but it doesn't change

 21  state from this liquid to a gas that's dispersed over a

 22  wide area.  It will follow the topography, it will be

 23  governed by gravity, it will always flow downhill.  We

 24  know where it's going.  It's not spreading over a wide,

 25  wide area.  The primary hazard of crude oil is its
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 01  flammable nature, so it spreads over an area; if no

 02  ignition source, no fire, no risk.  Even if you were

 03  exposed to crude oil liquid, it would be a very

 04  localized type of exposure, a dermal exposure, possibly

 05  some inhalation, but not anywhere near the same risk

 06  profile that we would see from a TIH gas.

 07          So since the DOT report was based on a TIH gas

 08  in a populated area, we have total different risk

 09  profiles for the commodities involved, we have different

 10  transport mechanisms for the commodities being involved.

 11  So that's why I don't agree with that being the

 12  yardstick that's used with regard to insurance for this

 13  case.

 14     Q.   The other incident that Mr. Blackburn focuses

 15  on, and actually several witnesses focussed on, is

 16  Lac-Megantic.

 17          Are you familiar with the derailment there?

 18     A.   I am.

 19     Q.   What have you reviewed?

 20     A.   I reviewed the Transport Canada final report of

 21  the incident, I've reviewed several safety advisories

 22  issued by Transport Canada.  I've reviewed information

 23  that has been published by PHMSA and DOT and the FRA.  I

 24  followed this in the trade press as part of my

 25  profession and my field.  I feel that I'm familiar with
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 01  the case.

 02     Q.   So did the Transport Canada identify

 03  contributing factors to that incident?

 04     A.   They did.

 05     Q.   I'm going to ask you to assess whether the

 06  contributing factors they identified are a viable risk

 07  or issue on the route that we're talking about, meaning

 08  along the rail line into the Port of Vancouver.

 09          So if you could just identify what were the

 10  causal factors that the report identifies and then

 11  assess the issue as it pertains to this particular line.

 12     A.   One of the primary causes that was identified by

 13  Transport Canada was a failure to properly secure a

 14  train on a main line track.  The railroad in question,

 15  the MM&A, is a short line railroad, and their method of

 16  operation was that a single-person crew would bring a

 17  train eastward.  When that crew member ran out of his

 18  hours, train crews are limited to a number of hours they

 19  can work, much like a commercial driver's license or

 20  motor carrier, they have to go off duty for a period of

 21  time to get necessary rest.

 22          The method of operation was that they would

 23  leave that train parked on the main line, they would set

 24  air brakes on the locomotive and they would set some

 25  hand brakes on the locomotive, and the train would sit
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 01  unattended for up to 14 hours until the engineer was

 02  rested and could return and continue on his trip.

 03          In the facility that we're discussing here, the

 04  method of operation, the BNSF would not leave a train

 05  unattended on the main line for any length of time.

 06     Q.   Why not?

 07     A.   Due to the volume of traffic that currently is

 08  on this line.  With the coal trains, the unit trains of

 09  grain, other unit trains of crude oil going to other

 10  facilities, if they left a train sitting on the main

 11  line for hours, it would back their system up.  So

 12  operationally, the BNSF would not do that.

 13          But subsequent to Lac-Megantic, the FRA has

 14  established an additional emergency order.  This is

 15  Emergency Order 30 -- 30 or 28, I apologize -- an

 16  emergency order which prohibits unit trains, highly

 17  hazardous flammable trains from being unattended outside

 18  of the yard in any location.  So the operation would be

 19  considerably different in terms of unattended trains.

 20              MR. KISIELIUS:  And for the council's

 21  benefit, the copy of the order is Exhibit 246.

 22  BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 23     Q.   What about brakes?

 24     A.   The incident in Canada, again, the method of

 25  operation was that the engineer would leave a locomotive
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 01  running to provide power for the air compressor on the

 02  locomotive so that air brakes would remain on the train.

 03  He would set a limited number of hand brakes on the

 04  locomotive.

 05          One of the locomotives in the train experienced

 06  a fire.  Local emergency responders came to the scene to

 07  extinguish the fire.  And the locomotive -- they had

 08  been trained that before fighting a locomotive fire that

 09  you shut the locomotive off and you pull the circuit

 10  breakers.  That's a sound response tactic.  They did

 11  that, but when they did that they shut the power down to

 12  all the locomotives, and that stopped the air compressor

 13  from continuing to supply air to the train.

 14          The railroad sent out an employee who was not

 15  familiar with locomotive operations.  He was not aware

 16  that with the engine not running that the air brakes

 17  weren't being continuously charged.  Due to naturally-

 18  occurring air leaks in the train line, the train -- air

 19  would bleed off and that led to the train rolling away.

 20          Again, as part of the emergency order that was

 21  issued regarding trains being left unattended, there are

 22  also requirements that the railroads increase their

 23  training and their operating rules around securement of

 24  trains.  There also is a requirement that if an

 25  emergency responder has been on, under, or around a
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 01  train, it must be inspected by a qualified employee

 02  before the train can continue.

 03          So operationally, a number of differences in how

 04  the trains will be handled here as opposed to there.

 05     Q.   What about grades?  Did the topography of the

 06  vicinity where the train was left unattended play into

 07  the event?

 08     A.   The track grade from where the locomotive was

 09  parked into the center of town would have been

 10  considered a steep grade railroad-wise.  In some cases

 11  it was over a 1 percent grade.  That's considered steep.

 12  The rail route, based upon my inspection, I don't

 13  believe that the grade is 1 percent coming down the line

 14  into the facility.  So I think that topography-wise it's

 15  different.

 16          One of the key things would be in the signal

 17  track.  In the Canadian case, that was not signal

 18  territory that would have been under the control of the

 19  train dispatcher.  Whereas, the line from Spokane to the

 20  facility, from my review it looks like it's at least 90

 21  percent signal territory, including the track coming

 22  into the proposed facility.

 23     Q.   And what difference does that make?

 24     A.   Signal territory means that a train dispatcher

 25  in a remote location can see if something -- if a train
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 01  has moved, if a car has come out onto the track, if the

 02  track's been disturbed.  There's mechanisms that they

 03  can identify what's happening from a remote location and

 04  they're looking at that.  Again, given the volume of

 05  train traffic over this line, a dispatcher is going to

 06  be actively managing those trains and would see an

 07  unintended movement of a train in an area where it

 08  wasn't expected.

 09     Q.   Okay.  So given these differences, how would you

 10  characterize a similarly sized event occurring with

 11  trains traveling to this facility?

 12     A.   I would see it as exceedingly improbable.

 13     Q.   There's another event that you talked about

 14  earlier in your testimony, the incident recently in

 15  Mosier.

 16          Can you describe what you reviewed to become

 17  familiar with that?

 18     A.   One of the primary documents that I used of that

 19  incident was a report issued by the Federal Railroad

 20  Administration.  It was their preliminary factual cause

 21  finding report.

 22          In that report they report that there were four

 23  tank cars that were involved in the fire that lost

 24  product.  According to the report, one tank car was

 25  breached in the tank shell.  Two of the tank cars
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 01  released product due to the bottom outlets being sheared

 02  off and they leaked from the bottom outlet valves.  And

 03  the fourth car leaked due to a melting of the manway

 04  gasket due to fire impingement.  (Court reporter

 05  interruption.)  Manway, m-a-n-w-a-y.

 06     Q.   How did the tank cars that were subjected to the

 07  fire perform?  We had talked earlier about heat-induced

 08  tears.  Were any of those in that event?

 09     A.   Not that I'm aware of.

 10     Q.   Would you be surprised to know that foam was not

 11  used for the first part of the response?

 12     A.   No, I would not be surprised.  Mosier, as I

 13  understand it, is staffed by a volunteer fire

 14  department, smaller resources.  Even if they had 5 to 10

 15  gallons of foam, foam is most typically packaged in

 16  5-gallon pails on individual pieces of fire apparatus.

 17  Even if they had 5 to 10 gallons of foam, they would not

 18  have felt comfortable applying that.  You don't want to

 19  start a foam attack unless you have enough resources to

 20  sustain a foam attack, otherwise you are going to only

 21  half complete the job.  The fire will burn back as the

 22  foam breaks down and you will have wasted that resource.

 23  It's far better to wait until you have enough foam if

 24  you're going to mount that type of attack, until you

 25  have enough foam on hand and you have enough water
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 01  supply to begin that operation.

 02          So in that case, given their location, given

 03  their resources, it may have taken awhile for resources

 04  to be amassed to be able to sustain that attack.

 05     Q.   And what's done in the meantime if you're not

 06  using foam?  Is there other steps that the responders

 07  are taking to address that issue we talked about before,

 08  the heat-induced tear?

 09     A.   Certainly.  You would not -- well, one action

 10  that the responders could take would be to use large

 11  volumes of water to spray onto a car to cool that car to

 12  prevent that car from building that heat, from building

 13  that pressure that would lead to that heat-induced tear.

 14  You would not use foam as part of that operation

 15  because, again, it's three-dimensional, and spraying

 16  foam onto a hot car, the foam will break down

 17  immediately so all you're really doing is spraying

 18  water.  So the water to cool impinged or exposed tank

 19  cars or other structures is a very common technique, and

 20  a prudent one.

 21     Q.   How would you evaluate the effectiveness of the

 22  response to that specific incident?

 23     A.   From my review of the preliminary cause finding

 24  report from the FRA and also in reading comments made by

 25  the EPA on-scene coordinator, there were no fatalities,
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 01  there was no injuries to responders.  The incident was

 02  handled in a timely fashion.  It appears from the

 03  reports that there was good interagency cooperation at

 04  both the state, tribal, and federal levels.  It appears

 05  that there was very strong interaction in the working

 06  relationship between industry responders and municipal

 07  responders.

 08          I would characterize the outcome of that

 09  incident as very good, very positive.

 10     Q.   I have just two more topics and I promise you're

 11  almost done.  I appreciate your endurance here.

 12          There's been some testimony about tank car

 13  retrofits, specifically the ability to retrofit a

 14  DOT-111 or a CPC-1232 to meet tank car specifications.

 15  I'd like to ask you a couple questions about that.

 16          First, I guess, how are you familiar with the

 17  tank car manufacturing industry?

 18     A.   I currently maintain a client who is a

 19  manufacturer of tank cars in numerous facilities in the

 20  United States and Mexico.  My work with this client is

 21  the realm of my health safety and environmental

 22  consulting.  I assist them with the certification of

 23  their safety and environmental performance at several of

 24  the railcar manufacturing facilities.  As a result of

 25  that, I'm interacting with all levels of management and
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 01  with employees.  I'm on the shop floor where they're

 02  assembling and manufacturing the cars.

 03     Q.   And so I want to ask you, there's some concern

 04  about those retrofits.  What's your opinion about

 05  whether a DOT-111, whether the fleet of DOT-111s are

 06  likely to be retrofit to meet the 117 standards?

 07     A.   Well, PHMSA allows the retrofit of the DOT-111

 08  to meet the new requirements.  What we're really seeing

 09  realistically in the real world is that owners of fleets

 10  of DOT-111s are looking at their fleets and they're

 11  looking at the age of those fleets.

 12          For those DOT-111s that are older cars that

 13  would be retired within the next ten years, there's no

 14  economic advantage to pay the price to upgrade those,

 15  upgrade those cars.  It would be more economical for

 16  them to either upgrade their 1232 cars or to just

 17  purchase brand-new 117 cars.

 18          A railcar only has a defined life age-wise and

 19  operationally, like any piece of mechanical equipment.

 20  So while you could by regulation upgrade a DOT-111 car,

 21  it would not make sense to upgrade a 30-year-old car

 22  because it's going to have limited life.  Your resources

 23  would be better spent in purchasing a new car and

 24  getting what you need now and then having that long

 25  operational use out of that asset.
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 01     Q.   We've talked a lot about rail incidents.  I want

 02  to switch now at the end of your testimony here to talk

 03  about the facility incident.  You testified about

 04  potential incident with the facility.  Some of the

 05  opponents' experts have questions about whether local

 06  responders are prepared for addressing an incident

 07  there.  Let's start with planning and preparedness.

 08          Are the planning -- is the planning for an

 09  incident different -- at the facility different than

 10  what it would be to get ready for an incident at the

 11  rail?

 12     A.   Very much so.  In a fixed facility you have home

 13  field advantage.  You know where your access points are,

 14  you know your water supply, you know resource

 15  availability.  That can be developed for transportation

 16  incidents, but you don't know necessarily where in your

 17  jurisdiction an incident could occur.  At a facility you

 18  can do more specific planning.

 19          Also at a fixed facility, the facility may, and

 20  in this case from what I reviewed does, have a number of

 21  fixed safety systems built in as part of it.  So those

 22  are additional resources you have available.  I think

 23  planning for a fixed facility is actually easier than a

 24  transportation incident.

 25     Q.   And then in terms of the actual product
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 01  involved, because of the similarity, are there benefits

 02  there as well?

 03     A.   Well, again, at this facility it's going to

 04  handle one commodity, so that detect phase of

 05  determining what you're dealing with is minimized.

 06  We'll know what's at the facility.  It's the same

 07  commodity.  I don't see it markedly different.

 08     Q.   What unique equipment or personnel are needed to

 09  deal with an incident at the facility as compared to a

 10  rail incident?

 11     A.   Well, at the facility you have a couple

 12  different operating environments.  You have the railcar

 13  unloading area, so same railcar that you would have in

 14  transportation, same product, same commodity.  One

 15  advantage that you would have is that if you had an

 16  incident, it would most likely involve a single car.  So

 17  the commodity -- the quantity of the commodity would be

 18  greatly reduced from multiple cars in possibly a

 19  transportation incident.

 20          You have the pipeline, which is very improbable

 21  for an incident, and then you have the bulk tanks.  The

 22  bulk storage tank area will have in-tank fire

 23  suppression systems and foam.  So the big difference

 24  there would be that responders would need to be familiar

 25  with those tanks and those systems.
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 01     Q.   Okay.  Do you agree with Dr. Millar that the

 02  response to an incident at the facility would be

 03  entirely reliant on local emergency responders?

 04     A.   No.  And again, I think we've kind of hit upon

 05  this earlier.  I think it would be very short-sighted of

 06  the emergency response community to not take into

 07  account other resources available in terms of outside

 08  response contractors that could be employed by Tesoro

 09  Savage, outside cleanup companies, outside use of mutual

 10  aid foam, possibly the railroad would participate

 11  depending upon the type of incident.

 12          So again, there's a number of stakeholders who

 13  would be involved in that response.

 14     Q.   Mr. Hildebrand touches on a similar topic and

 15  notes that the response to a major incident at the

 16  facility would require 60 percent of the on-duty

 17  firefighters from the City.

 18          Is that, in your mind, unusual or problematic?

 19     A.   I would not see that that would be unusual.  If

 20  there was a large incident at the facility, I would

 21  imagine that a large percentage of the City's resources

 22  would respond.  And again, that's where backfilling

 23  through mutual aid companies or resources to staff the

 24  stations and the other emergency response needs of the

 25  City would be employed.
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 01     Q.   So there's a specific concern that

 02  Mr. Hildebrand raises about the use of some of the

 03  onsite response equipment.  He talks about the use of a

 04  single diesel fire pump in each zone and suggested

 05  that's inadequate.

 06          Do you agree with his assessment?

 07     A.   No, I don't.  I would maybe share that view if

 08  the facility had one pump to cover all of the areas, but

 09  the multiple fire protection systems, each system has

 10  its own pump.  The use of a diesel fire pump is a very

 11  common practice in industrial facilities.  I think given

 12  that, in my review of the plans, in each location where

 13  there is a fire pump downstream of the fire pump that is

 14  on the discharge side of the pump where you're supplied

 15  the foam headers and suppression systems, there are

 16  what's referred to as the fire department connection

 17  where there's the ability for the fire department to

 18  connect a fire engine with their pump to augment or to

 19  supply pressure if that pump fails.  So there is a

 20  redundancy building.  I don't have a concern with a

 21  single pump per system.

 22     Q.   Okay.  We've heard a lot of testimony and

 23  questions about issues or events related to a large

 24  seismic event.  And I know you're not a seismic expert.

 25     A.   Correct.
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 01     Q.   So I'm just going to ask you to focus on the

 02  rail unloading area and assume that there's an event

 03  that causes a derailment in that vicinity during

 04  unloading activities.

 05          Are you concerned that that situation could

 06  yield an uncontrolled fire event?

 07     A.   No, I'm not.  And again, I want to stress that

 08  I'm not a geologist or a seismologist, that's not my

 09  area of expertise.  But in my work with fixed facilities

 10  where we are unloading unit trains of flammable liquids,

 11  we do consider during our risk analysis the unintended

 12  movement of a railcar while it's being offloaded.  So I

 13  think there is some degree of analogy here between that

 14  car moving due to something else or due to it moving

 15  during an earthquake.

 16          And regardless of what causes the car to move,

 17  one of the key safety features in this is use of dry

 18  disconnect hoses.  Those hoses essentially have valves,

 19  spring-loaded valves at each end, so if the hose becomes

 20  disconnected from the railcar, the railcar side and the

 21  truck side seal themselves so there's no leaks there.

 22          So if there was a seismic event that was of a

 23  magnitude that it caused the car to move such that the

 24  dry brake hose would disconnect, we would have

 25  securement of the product through both the hose and the
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 01  railcar.  If that event further was of a magnitude that

 02  it caused the car to derail, again, there would be a

 03  kind of a spectrum of things.  The car could just derail

 04  and remain upright in line, the car could derail and

 05  roll over.  If we saw the car roll over, I think that

 06  it's very unlikely that we would have a release from the

 07  car due to the fact that we don't have that car

 08  impacting, we don't have a high degree of kinetic energy

 09  like we would possibly see during a derailment type

 10  event.  Is it possible there could be a release from a

 11  car?  Well, if we topple over a hundred of them

 12  possibly, but I don't think it would be a case of where

 13  each and every car would suffer any type of release.

 14          So to your question regarding a large scale fire

 15  release, I don't see that as a very high probable event.

 16     Q.   Let's focus on evacuation in the event of a

 17  facility incident.  There's some testimony raising

 18  concerns about the evacuation of Jail Work Release

 19  Center in the event of an incident at the facility.

 20          Do you have any concerns with the ability to

 21  evacuate the Jail Work Center in the event of a facility

 22  incident?

 23     A.   I've reviewed the location of that facility both

 24  topography-wise and as well as a personal inspection.  I

 25  have not been inside of that facility, I've observed it
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 01  from outside the fence line.

 02          I don't agree that an automatic evacuation of

 03  that facility would necessarily be the best course of

 04  action.  There's a very common tactic that's used for

 05  sensitive type occupancies like nursing homes,

 06  hospitals, correctional facilities that's referred to as

 07  shelter-in-place.  Shelter-in-place means that you shut

 08  off the air intakes and windows and other sources of

 09  outside air and you stay where you are at until the

 10  incident is deemed safe.

 11          I think in terms of the exposure of that

 12  facility from a thermal event from the railcar unloading

 13  facility I think is very, very unlikely.  The distances

 14  that it is from the closest railcar unloading point, I

 15  don't believe that the thermal loading on that structure

 16  would be significant that would require evacuation.  I

 17  don't believe that it would be prudent to take people

 18  out through necessarily a smoke plume from that

 19  jurisdiction -- or from that location, so

 20  shelter-in-place may be a good tactic.

 21          In the event that they decide that an evacuation

 22  is required, from my review of the area, there's

 23  numerous evacuation points.  I believe it's Harborside

 24  Drive which runs east and west closest to the river,

 25  they could take that in an east or west fashion to
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 01  evacuate from that area.

     

 02     Q.   Mr. Johnson's testimony raises concerns about

     

 03  evacuation of the Fruit Valley neighborhood.

     

 04          Were you able to do a similar exercise that you

     

 05  were describing earlier about evacuation radius from the

     

 06  facility?

     

 07     A.   Yes, I did.  The facility -- the northeast

     

 08  corner of the tank farm area by my modeling shows that

     

 09  it's about 3,200 feet to the closest resident from the

     

 10  corner of the tank farm area.  That's in excess of the

     

 11  1/2-mile evacuation recommendation in the DOT ERG.

     

 12     Q.   I just want to conclude by asking you based on

     

 13  everything that you reviewed from the intervenor's

     

 14  witnesses, is there anything in there that causes you to

     

 15  change the opinions you provided in writing before the

     

 16  hearing?

     

 17     A.   No, there is not.

     

 18              MR. KISIELIUS:  No further questions.

     

 19              JUDGE NOBLE:  Cross-examination?

     

 20                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

     

 21  BY MR. POTTER:

     

 22     Q.   Good afternoon.

     

 23     A.   Good afternoon, sir.

     

 24     Q.   I'm Bronson Potter and I represent the City of

     

 25  Vancouver.
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 01          In your prefiled testimony you described PHMSA,

     

 02  P-H-M-S-A, as being active in the regulation of the

     

 03  transportation of crude oil and you state that USDOT has

     

 04  the ability to take prompt action.

     

 05          Isn't it true that those agencies took over four

     

 06  years to develop the Enhanced Tankcar Standard Final

     

 07  Rule after the time that the Association of American

     

 08  Railroads petitioned for rule making?

     

 09     A.   That's correct.

     

 10              MR. POTTER:  Your Honor, I understand that

     

 11  stipulated exhibits have been admitted?

     

 12              JUDGE NOBLE:  Well, they have, most of them.

     

 13  You have some additional exhibits, though, that have

     

 14  been listed in a document that I have starting with

     

 15  3060.  Is that what you're thinking?

     

 16              MR. POTTER:  No.  I just want to refer to

     

 17  one that has previously been provided to all parties and

     

 18  has been stipulated to, Exhibit 3087.

     

 19              JUDGE NOBLE:  It's probably been admitted

     

 20  but I'll check that.  Mr. Potter, would you say the

     

 21  number again?

     

 22              MR. POTTER:  3087, Congressional Research

     

 23  Service Report on the U.S. Rail Transportation of Crude

     

 24  Oil.

     

 25              JUDGE NOBLE:  Well, I have a new list.
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 01              MR. KISIELIUS:  Your Honor, if it would

     

 02  help, according to our list, that has been admitted.

     

 03              JUDGE NOBLE:  Good.  I'll take your word for

     

 04  it, thank you.

     

 05  BY MR. POTTER:

     

 06     Q.   So I'd like to refer to a statement from that

     

 07  report and just ask you, Mr. Rhoads, whether or not you

     

 08  agree with this statement:  Unit trains of crude oil

     

 09  concentrate a large amount of potentially

     

 10  environmentally harmful and flammable material

     

 11  increasing the probability that should an accident

     

 12  occur, large fires and explosions could result.

     

 13          Do you agree with that statement?

     

 14     A.   I think that the key in that statement is the

     

 15  "coulds" and "mays."

     

 16     Q.   Okay.  Also, Exhibit 3085, another stipulated

     

 17  exhibit.  This one is the Emerging Risks Task Force.

     

 18  This report states, Tar sand oils and their derivatives

     

 19  in Bakken crude represent new and unique challenges to

     

 20  oil spill preparation and the response community in the

     

 21  Northwest.  Owing to their unique characteristics, the

     

 22  relatively recent increase in volume shipped to new

     

 23  areas within the Northwest via new routes and

     

 24  transportation methods.

     

 25          Do you agree with that statement?
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 01     A.   No, I do not.

     

 02     Q.   You state that there are 400 FRA inspectors in

     

 03  the nation?

     

 04     A.   That's correct.

     

 05     Q.   How many in Washington?

     

 06     A.   I don't know the answer to that question.

     

 07     Q.   How many miles of track are in Washington?

     

 08     A.   I don't know the answer to that question.

     

 09     Q.   Isn't it true that just prior to the Mosier

     

 10  derailment on June 3rd of this year, that there had been

     

 11  multiple inspections of the track within the previous

     

 12  six months?

     

 13     A.   That information was mentioned in the -- that

     

 14  was reported in the FRA preliminary cause finding

     

 15  report, yes, sir.

     

 16     Q.   With respect to the ERG guidance 128, isn't it

     

 17  true that if a railcar is involved in a fire, that not

     

 18  only is isolation recommended but evacuation within the

     

 19  1/2 mile from the derailed car?

     

 20     A.   That is recommended in 128, that's correct, sir.

     

 21     Q.   And 128 also provides that if multiple cars are

     

 22  involved, a greater evacuation distance should be

     

 23  considered; correct?

     

 24     A.   That's what it states, that's correct.

     

 25     Q.   With respect to the DOT-117, that's a fairly new
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 01  standard to build railcars to; correct?  (Court reporter

     

 02  interruption.)  Build railcars to?

     

 03     A.   I would not agree with that characterization.

     

 04     Q.   When was the rule adopted?

     

 05     A.   The rule was adopted May 1st of 2015.

     

 06     Q.   Okay.  Isn't it true that we've had limited

     

 07  experience with 117s being involved in derailments to

     

 08  date?

     

 09     A.   We've had limited experience with the DOT-117

     

 10  but not limited experience with a tank car that is a

     

 11  thickness of 9/16ths.  We've been constructing cars of

     

 12  that thickness for quite some time.  We do not have --

     

 13  it's not new to have full height head shields.  It's not

     

 14  new to have enclosed valves and fittings within

     

 15  protective hazards.

     

 16     Q.   Those are for pressurized cars?

     

 17     A.   Those are used for pressurized cars, yes.

     

 18     Q.   The 117Rs, the retrofitted either 111s or 1232s,

     

 19  would still have a tank wall that is not constructed to

     

 20  the 117 new standard; correct?  They're not 9/16ths?

     

 21     A.   That is correct.  They would remain at the

     

 22  7/16th-inch thickness of their original construction.

     

 23     Q.   With respect to Mr. Blackburn's testimony, you

     

 24  pointed out that the incident that he referred to had a

     

 25  commodity that involved a toxic inhalation hazard;

�2148

                           POTTER / RHOADS

     

     

     

 01  correct?

     

 02     A.   I did, yes.

     

 03     Q.   And that you didn't think that that was

     

 04  comparable to crude oil because crude oil is not a TIH

     

 05  commodity?

     

 06     A.   Not only because the DOT classification that it

     

 07  is not a TIH, but its chemical and physical properties

     

 08  are not similar to a gaseous product.

     

 09     Q.   But if you had a fire of smoke and a plume, that

     

 10  could present a hazard to people who would inhale that?

     

 11     A.   Not to the same immediacy -- it would not have

     

 12  the same immediate toxic effects that you would inhaling

     

 13  a TIH product.

     

 14     Q.   But there would be an inhalation concern,

     

 15  wouldn't there?

     

 16     A.   I would say there would be a health risk via

     

 17  inhalation.  I wouldn't necessarily characterize it as

     

 18  an inhalation hazard.

     

 19     Q.   With respect to the Mosier derailment, isn't it

     

 20  true that in combatting that fire they depleted the

     

 21  aquifer in Mosier?

     

 22     A.   I believe that in combating that fire, that

     

 23  there were -- that the water demands on the water supply

     

 24  available to hydrants was not able to be maintained.

     

 25     Q.   They exhausted it, didn't they?
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 01     A.   I believe that's correct.

     

 02     Q.   And the sewer system was offline for how long?

     

 03     A.   I can't speak to that, sir.

     

 04     Q.   Do you know how long Highway 4 was shut down?

     

 05     A.   I do not.

     

 06     Q.   Mr. Hildebrand in his testimony does not state

     

 07  that Vancouver Fire Department should only rely on its

     

 08  own resources, does he?

     

 09     A.   No.  Specifically in their discussion of the

     

 10  foam stockpile, he references outside foam supply.

     

 11     Q.   And with respect to mutual aid, he doesn't say

     

 12  that the Vancouver Fire Department would refuse mutual

     

 13  aid, does he?

     

 14     A.   No.  They currently have -- as I understand it,

     

 15  they currently have mutual aid agreements in place.

     

 16     Q.   What are the limitations on that mutual aid, as

     

 17  you understand them?

     

 18     A.   Well, I believe that a jurisdiction will supply

     

 19  resources to a neighboring jurisdiction to a point but

     

 20  not necessarily totally deplete their own resources in

     

 21  order to protect another jurisdiction.

     

 22     Q.   Aren't most of the other fire districts in Clark

     

 23  County rural fire districts depending on volunteers?

     

 24     A.   That's my understanding, yes, sir.

     

 25     Q.   And with respect to Portland Fire and Rescue,
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 01  their mutual aid agreement with Vancouver provides that

     

 02  their response to a hazardous materials incident is

     

 03  optional, doesn't it?

     

 04     A.   I believe that's correct.

     

 05     Q.   In your testimony you state that a spill from a

     

 06  large number of tank cars is an extremely remote

     

 07  possibility.

     

 08          What do you mean by "a large number of tank

     

 09  cars"?

     

 10     A.   I believe that on the order that we saw in

     

 11  Lac-Megantic, that the 67 or 63 cars, I think that's

     

 12  extremely low probability.  In the derailments that

     

 13  Mr. Chipkevich and Mr. Hildebrand cite, we have not seen

     

 14  anything on that order of magnitude of 60 cars

     

 15  releasing.

     

 16     Q.   Well, are you referring -- their scenarios don't

     

 17  use 63 or 67 cars as being involved in breaching, do

     

 18  they?

     

 19     A.   No.  Their scenarios are typically under ten

     

 20  cars.

     

 21     Q.   How would you characterize the size of the

     

 22  Mosier derailment and fire?

     

 23     A.   Characterize using what measurement, sir?

     

 24     Q.   In terms of size.  I mean, in your testimony you

     

 25  talked about large number of cars.  Mosier is four.  Is
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 01  that a small incident?

     

 02     A.   Without a doubt, a release of product with a

     

 03  fire and other cars potentially impinged upon, that's a

     

 04  serious incident and needs to be taken very serious, and

     

 05  is.  In terms of a large derailment, I would consider

     

 06  that a serious derailment but more on the small side.

     

 07     Q.   Okay.  So in reference to Mosier, serious but on

     

 08  the small side?

     

 09     A.   That would be my opinion, yes, sir.

     

 10              MR. POTTER:  Your Honor, I'd like to admit

     

 11  at this time Exhibit 3039 which is a video of the Mosier

     

 12  fire.  It's two minutes in length.

     

 13              MR. KISIELIUS:  Your Honor, I'm going to

     

 14  object.  There's been -- this is one of the City's

     

 15  exhibits.  It hasn't been admitted.  There's been no

     

 16  witness to sponsor it.  It's a YouTube video that

     

 17  they've pulled.  At the very least they need a witness

     

 18  to authenticate or talk about it.  There's been no offer

     

 19  into evidence.

     

 20              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Potter?

     

 21              MR. POTTER:  Your Honor, the witness has

     

 22  characterized the fire.  I think it's appropriate that

     

 23  the council be allowed to view a video of the actual

     

 24  fire itself.  We have both 3039, which is a YouTube, and

     

 25  3040 which is an NBC video report.
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 01              MR. KISIELIUS:  Your Honor, if I may

     

 02  respond?

     

 03              JUDGE NOBLE:  Certainly.

     

 04              MR. KISIELIUS:  The whole point of having a

     

 05  witness testify to it as it's being offered for

     

 06  admission is so that it can be confirmed if this is even

     

 07  the same fire or not.  This is his exhibit for his

     

 08  witnesses to speak to.  Our witness has not testified to

     

 09  it.

     

 10              JUDGE NOBLE:  I'm ready to rule.  I sustain

     

 11  the objection.  You need to have a sponsoring witness

     

 12  and then offer it -- reoffer it at that time once you

     

 13  can lay a foundation for it.  I understand there are two

     

 14  videos?

     

 15              MR. POTTER:  Correct.

     

 16              JUDGE NOBLE:  So the objection is sustained

     

 17  at this time.

     

 18  BY MR. POTTER:

     

 19     Q.   You reviewed Mr. Chipkevich's list of

     

 20  derailments?

     

 21     A.   I did.

     

 22     Q.   And isn't it true that that includes 24

     

 23  derailments of unit trains with either crude oil or

     

 24  ethanol with an average of 13 tank cars releasing

     

 25  product?
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 01     A.   I believe that's correct.

     

 02     Q.   The Exhibit 3058 is the PHMSA Draft Regulatory

     

 03  Impact Analysis which has been previously admitted.

     

 04  That report predicts that there will be between 12 to 15

     

 05  unit train derailments per year for the next 20 years.

     

 06          Do you dispute that finding?

     

 07     A.   I would.

     

 08     Q.   Based on?

     

 09     A.   I've seen amazing safety advances in the past 20

     

 10  years.  I anticipate we'll continue to see continuing

     

 11  technology advances in the next 20 years.  I cannot

     

 12  predict the number of incidents that will occur in the

     

 13  next 20 years.  Based upon the industry trends that I've

     

 14  witnessed since 2000, I consider that it will continue

     

 15  to go down.

     

 16     Q.   Have you reviewed the PHMSA impact analysis?

     

 17     A.   I have not.

     

 18     Q.   In a derailment with release, what are the

     

 19  possible sources of ignition of the crude oil?

     

 20     A.   As the railcars derail and impact each other or

     

 21  impact rail or other infrastructure, metal striking

     

 22  metal, metal striking particular types of rock, could

     

 23  lead to sparks which could be an ignition source.

     

 24  Depending upon the area where it derails, possible

     

 25  downed power lines could be a source of ignition.  I
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 01  think that potential motor vehicle driving through a

     

 02  spill area could be a source of ignition.  I think that

     

 03  there are a number of sources that could ignite.

     

 04     Q.   And the emergency response itself could

     

 05  introduce sources of ignition, couldn't it?

     

 06     A.   If a responder drove through or was smoking or

     

 07  use of electronic equipment in an area of high vapors,

     

 08  they could introduce ignition sources.

     

 09     Q.   In your prefiled testimony you provided

     

 10  testimony that distinguished between fireballs and BLEVE

     

 11  events?

     

 12     A.   That's correct.

     

 13     Q.   And do I understand you correctly that a BLEVE

     

 14  event is probably considered to be an explosion?

     

 15     A.   A BLEVE event has two distinct components to it.

     

 16  The one component is where the container comes apart.  I

     

 17  would characterize that as an explosion.  The container

     

 18  comes apart and pieces are projected from the area.

     

 19          The secondary event after a BLEVE, as the

     

 20  container fails, the product that's inside is now

     

 21  released and may ignite into a fireball.  I would not

     

 22  characterize that second event in the same category as

     

 23  an explosion.

     

 24     Q.   I would like to have Exhibit 3008, which is the

     

 25  attachment exhibit to Mr. Hildebrand's testimony,
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 01  displayed, and specifically Pages 4 and 5 of that

     

 02  exhibit which are pictures of fire events.  So if we

     

 03  could scroll down to Pages 4 and 5.

     

 04     A.   Sorry, do I have that exhibit?

     

 05     Q.   I don't know.  There's a picture of it on the

     

 06  screen.  I don't know what's been provided, Mr. Rhoads.

     

 07              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Rhoads, those screens

     

 08  behind you might be closer if you want to look.

     

 09              MR. POTTER:  If you could scroll down just a

     

 10  little bit more, please.

     

 11  BY MR. POTTER:

     

 12     Q.   So this is a photograph, 2011 derailment at

     

 13  Arcadia, Ohio.  Can you tell us if this is a fireball or

     

 14  a BLEVE explosion?

     

 15     A.   Based upon the information provided, I cannot

     

 16  say if there was a BLEVE of the container prior to this

     

 17  ignition of this cloud.  I can't make that assertion

     

 18  just based on this photograph.

     

 19     Q.   All right.  Well, is this a photograph of the

     

 20  fireball?

     

 21     A.   I would classify that as a fireball, yes, sir.

     

 22     Q.   Okay.  Then if we could scroll down again,

     

 23  please.  So this is a photo of a fire from a derailment

     

 24  in Galena, Illinois.  Again, is this a fireball?

     

 25     A.   I would classify this as a fireball, yes.
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 01     Q.   All right.  Scroll down some more, please.  And

     

 02  just a little bit more.

     

 03          What about this photograph, fireball?

     

 04     A.   Again, based upon what's available only in this

     

 05  photograph, I would say yes.

     

 06     Q.   Okay.  And I believe there's one more.  Or maybe

     

 07  we're at the end.  Okay, thank you.

     

 08          How large can a fireball, or I think you used

     

 09  the term "radiant heat zone" in your testimony, how

     

 10  large can that be from a derailment event?

     

 11     A.   Well, sir, it would depend upon the volume of

     

 12  the car.  It would depend upon the type of commodity

     

 13  that was involved.

     

 14     Q.   So do you know if it was a single car of Bakken

     

 15  crude oil?

     

 16     A.   A single car of Bakken crude oil, the radiant

     

 17  heat energy area I would put at maybe 2,000 feet.

     

 18     Q.   And what do we mean by "radiant heat area"?

     

 19     A.   Typically the injury to unprotected skin is what

     

 20  we're looking at, is the amount of kilowatts of energy

     

 21  per centimeter of skin over a two-second exposure rate.

     

 22     Q.   And how long can that same type of event a

     

 23  fireball last?

     

 24     A.   Well, a fireball can last, again depending on

     

 25  the amount of fuel but we'll go with your example of a
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 01  single car, 10 to 20 seconds.

     

 02     Q.   And without putting precise numbers on it, but

     

 03  is it fair to assume more cars, larger potential for

     

 04  fireball, longer it could last?

     

 05     A.   I'm not sure I would completely agree with that

     

 06  characterization.  I would agree that there would be an

     

 07  increase in distance, but it is not necessarily linear,

     

 08  that is, one car is 2,000 feet, two cars is 4 and so on,

     

 09  because we're dealing with a ball radius.  So there is

     

 10  an increase but it's not necessarily a multiple of the

     

 11  number of cars.

     

 12          Also, based -- if we're assuming that all of the

     

 13  fireballs occur at the same time, it's not

     

 14  necessarily -- I don't necessarily agree that the length

     

 15  of the time of the fireball to be consumed would

     

 16  necessarily be longer.  It could, but not necessarily.

     

 17     Q.   So on the issue of the limitation of foam to

     

 18  suppress fires of crude oil, you described the

     

 19  two-dimensional fire.  Is that a flat, horizontal fire?

     

 20     A.   That's correct, sir.

     

 21     Q.   So typically a pool fire?

     

 22     A.   That would be correct.

     

 23     Q.   And the three-dimensional fire could be either a

     

 24  structure or a tank car itself?

     

 25     A.   That's correct.
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 01     Q.   And the foam is not effective for fighting the

     

 02  three-dimensional fire?

     

 03     A.   Generally that's accepted industry practice,

     

 04  yes, sir.

     

 05     Q.   And another limitation is that the foam has to

     

 06  be reapplied during the course of the response; is that

     

 07  correct?

     

 08     A.   Foam will -- again, due to the characteristics

     

 09  of what foam is, foam is a bubble.  Foam is a collection

     

 10  of a billion bubbles in a foam blanket.  The foam can be

     

 11  affected by heat, it can be affected by wind.  It will

     

 12  naturally break down.  So to maintain a foam blanket,

     

 13  foam would have to be reapplied at intervals.

     

 14     Q.   And so part of the challenge of the response is

     

 15  having enough foam transported to the scene to be able

     

 16  to reapply it throughout the event?

     

 17              MR. KISIELIUS:  Your Honor, I'm going to

     

 18  object.  Is he asking questions or is he testifying?

     

 19              JUDGE NOBLE:  I heard that as a question.

     

 20  Overruled.

     

 21              THE WITNESS:  Foam may be applied for a

     

 22  period of time post-extinguishment, until the fuel is

     

 23  removed.  Again, one of the key components is to control

     

 24  the ignition sources, so if you had a pool of flammable

     

 25  liquids, you would not automatically necessarily
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 01  continue to apply foam to that.  You may find that

     

 02  through atmospheric monitoring that you are under the

     

 03  flammable limits for any type of ignition, you can

     

 04  control ignition sources on the scene, and you may use

     

 05  other mechanical removal means to control the fuel in

     

 06  the pool, to contain it.

     

 07  BY MR. POTTER:

     

 08     Q.   But in making the initial decision on how to

     

 09  attack the fire and if you're considering the use of

     

 10  foam, it's the consideration that you have to have

     

 11  enough foam to apply it once and then repeat the

     

 12  application, isn't that true?

     

 13     A.   There would be -- if it was an active fire it

     

 14  would not be a case of the fire's out, we're done with

     

 15  foam, put it away.  The foam would be reapplied until

     

 16  you had control of the situation, again, to monitor the

     

 17  levels of flammable vapors in the air and to control

     

 18  ignition sources in the air.

     

 19     Q.   Can you characterize -- or excuse me, clarify

     

 20  for us the difference between a defensive strategy and a

     

 21  non-intervention strategy in fighting a crude oil fire?

     

 22     A.   If I had to draw a distinction there, sir, a

     

 23  defensive action may be to apply cooling water to a

     

 24  tank.  A non-intervention strategy may be that we don't

     

 25  enter to do anything like that, we put our resources
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 01  towards isolating and evacuating people from the area.

     

 02     Q.   And let the fire burn itself out?

     

 03     A.   Correct.

     

 04     Q.   Isn't it true that one of the risks or concerns

     

 05  of a defensive strategy and putting cooling water on the

     

 06  fire or adjacent tank cars is that the cooling water can

     

 07  carry the oil into adjacent water bodies?

     

 08     A.   That would be a concern.  That would also be a

     

 09  concern when applying foam as well.  Not only where the

     

 10  product is but are you making it worse by providing an

     

 11  avenue for it to spread.

     

 12     Q.   And in your testimony you state, don't you, that

     

 13  non-intervention may be the best strategy for the first

     

 14  several hours of an incident?

     

 15     A.   That is correct.

     

 16     Q.   With respect to the fire protection system at

     

 17  the terminal itself, you understand that the -- there's

     

 18  three foam suppression systems at three locations; one

     

 19  is the rail unloading area, railcar unloading area, one

     

 20  is the storage tank area, and one is the marine

     

 21  terminal?

     

 22     A.   That's my understanding, yes, sir.

     

 23     Q.   And at each of those locations the system design

     

 24  relies on a single diesel fire pump to supplement the

     

 25  city water system?
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 01     A.   That's my understanding, yes, sir.

     

 02     Q.   Did you review the fire protection assessment

     

 03  that is Exhibit 3124?

     

 04     A.   Is that the assessment by Poole?

     

 05     Q.   Yes.

     

 06     A.   Yes, I have reviewed that.

     

 07     Q.   And that assessment characterizes the reliance

     

 08  on single fire pumps as being very risky, doesn't it?

     

 09     A.   I don't recall his exact statement.

     

 10     Q.   Isn't it true that as we sit here today, no one

     

 11  has determined if the city water supply system can

     

 12  provide sufficient water as sufficient pressure to

     

 13  operate the foam fire suppression systems at the

     

 14  terminal?

     

 15     A.   I don't know if that's been done, sir.  I'm not

     

 16  aware of it.

     

 17     Q.   For communities along the rail route between the

     

 18  Bakken fields and the terminal, is it important for them

     

 19  to conduct an assessment of the capabilities to respond

     

 20  to an oil train fire?

     

 21     A.   If those communities currently have crude oil

     

 22  traffic flowing through them, I think it would be very

     

 23  prudent for them to take that preplanning activity.

     

 24     Q.   Are you aware of what an emergency response gap

     

 25  analysis is?
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 01     A.   I am.

     

 02     Q.   Have you reviewed the Draft Environmental Impact

     

 03  Statement for this project?

     

 04     A.   I have.

     

 05     Q.   Is there any gap analysis in that document?

     

 06              MR. KISIELIUS:  Your Honor, I'm going to

     

 07  object.  We're straying into the Draft DEIS territory

     

 08  again.

     

 09              JUDGE NOBLE:  We are.  I don't know what,

     

 10  Mr. Potter, you were getting at, but perhaps you could

     

 11  rephrase the question.  I'm going to sustain the

     

 12  objection.

     

 13  BY MR. POTTER:

     

 14     Q.   Are you aware of anyone having to perform a gap

     

 15  analysis of emergency response with respect to this

     

 16  project?

     

 17     A.   I believe that that's a portion of what

     

 18  Mr. Hildebrand conducted in his review of the facility's

     

 19  response capability and the City's response capability.

     

 20  The extent and formality of that analysis beyond what is

     

 21  in his testimony I'm not familiar with.

     

 22     Q.   And so other than that, you're not familiar with

     

 23  any gap analysis having been done?

     

 24     A.   From testimony that I've reviewed from Vancouver

     

 25  fire officials, or possibly they were retired gentlemen,

�2163

                           POTTER / RHOADS

     

     

     

 01  in their statements it appeared to me that they have

     

 02  made some form of assessment of what the capabilities

     

 03  are.

     

 04     Q.   Who has?

     

 05     A.   I would like to review the testimony of the

     

 06  gentleman that I reviewed -- I would like to review the

     

 07  testimony of the gentleman that submitted.

     

 08     Q.   Do you know the person's name?  If you have

     

 09  something that you can refer to help you, that's fine,

     

 10  but I just want to be sure that it's something that's

     

 11  been introduced in this proceeding.

     

 12     A.   I don't see a listing here.  I do recall

     

 13  reviewing testimony, I believe it was from a retired

     

 14  battalion chief from the City of Vancouver.  I don't see

     

 15  it here and I don't have access to it at this moment.

     

 16     Q.   Okay.  In your prefiled testimony you made a

     

 17  statement that a fireball from a heat-induced tear can

     

 18  cause major impact to the immediate area but the

     

 19  long-term impact is negligible.

     

 20          Do you recall making that statement?

     

 21     A.   I do.

     

 22     Q.   Was the long-term impact to Lac-Megantic

     

 23  negligible?

     

 24     A.   No, sir, it was not.

     

 25              MR. POTTER:  I have no further questions.
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 01              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Potter, before you go, I

     

 02  just took a look at the status of the exhibits.

     

 03  According to the previous list I had, which was in

     

 04  order, and most of the exhibits that you listed as being

     

 05  ones that you're going to move to admit have already

     

 06  been admitted.  Those are my notes.

     

 07              MR. POTTER:  Thank you, Your Honor.

     

 08              JUDGE NOBLE:  Except for a couple of them,

     

 09  and I didn't know whether my notes were perhaps not up

     

 10  to date.  I think you mentioned, in your e-mail you

     

 11  mentioned 3039 which is the YouTube video, and another

     

 12  one.  And I thought you said 3049, but perhaps you said

     

 13  3040.

     

 14              MR. POTTER:  What I ended up doing, Your

     

 15  Honor, is I did not -- I stopped referring to any

     

 16  exhibit numbers related to videos based on your ruling,

     

 17  so there will be some of those numbers that I just

     

 18  didn't use in this examination.

     

 19              JUDGE NOBLE:  Okay.  And that 3023 and

     

 20  3024 --

     

 21              MR. POTTER:  Videos.

     

 22              JUDGE NOBLE:  Videos, okay.  And 3122, same

     

 23  thing?  We can take care of this later.  I just thought

     

 24  maybe my names maybe were incorrect and I wanted to fix

     

 25  that.
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 01              MR. POTTER:  3122 I did not use.

     

 02              JUDGE NOBLE:  Thank you, Mr. Potter.

     

 03              Is there any other cross-examination of

     

 04  Mr. Rhoads?  Redirect?

     

 05                    REDIRECT EXAMINATION

     

 06  BY MR. KISIELIUS:

     

 07     Q.   Mr. Rhoads, one question for you.

     

 08          Are all the scenarios and risks that Mr. Potter

     

 09  just talked to you about, are they currently risks on

     

 10  the rail line right now with or without this facility?

     

 11     A.   They are.

     

 12              MR. KISIELIUS:  No further questions.

     

 13              JUDGE NOBLE:  Council questions?

     

 14              Mr. Stone.  I knew there would be some.

     

 15              MR. STONE:  Good afternoon, Mr. Rhoads.

     

 16              I was interested in the testimony regarding

     

 17  the analysis that was done for the City of Spokane with

     

 18  respect to their preparedness for a train accident, and

     

 19  there may or may not have been one for the City of

     

 20  Vancouver, I wasn't clear on that.

     

 21              I'm interested in the fire companies and the

     

 22  fire districts in between those two cities along the

     

 23  train route.  If what Mr. Potter referred to as gap

     

 24  analyses had been done, in other words, analysis of the

     

 25  capacities of those fire departments and fire districts
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 01  to respond to a train accident, when I say "capacity" I

     

 02  mean people, equipment, training, mutual aid agreements,

     

 03  with respect to your expertise in this area, would it be

     

 04  a big undertaking to do a gap analysis of each one of

     

 05  those fire districts and fire companies or is it

     

 06  something doable within the scope of this proposal?

     

 07              THE WITNESS:  I believe that in its most

     

 08  basic form that gap analysis, sir, would take the form

     

 09  as I discussed in the pre-incident, pre-emergency

     

 10  planning.  And that is to take an honest look at where

     

 11  the rail lines are in our community, what the exposures

     

 12  are, what our current resources are, what our mutual aid

     

 13  agreements are, what is the full extent of resources

     

 14  that we have available, what can we do.  That in its

     

 15  most basic form, sir, is a gap analysis between what our

     

 16  risks are and what our ability to respond to that risks

     

 17  are.

     

 18              But to your -- the genesis of your question,

     

 19  would that be a difficult thing to do, I don't believe

     

 20  that it would, sir.

     

 21              MR. STONE:  I'm guessing how many fire

     

 22  organizations there are along the route, maybe 15, 20 at

     

 23  the most.  So given that number, I think you're saying

     

 24  that it is something that's very reasonable to be done,

     

 25  be performed.  And you said that the process for doing
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 01  that, the preplanning, is well known.

     

 02              So I guess I'm wondering, has it been done

     

 03  and could it be done for the entire rail route?

     

 04              THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir, I believe it could.

     

 05  I think that maybe an interesting and innovative way to

     

 06  approach this, rather than -- well, let me say an

     

 07  interesting and innovative way to approach this would be

     

 08  to possibly have some training on how to have the

     

 09  pre-event -- (Court reporter interruption.)  Some

     

 10  pre-event or pre-incident or pre-emergency planning,

     

 11  some templates around what a local plan should look like

     

 12  and what it should include with some of the key

     

 13  questions.

     

 14              If you held something like that for a group

     

 15  representative from all the jurisdictions, they could go

     

 16  back and begin to do that work on their own.  So I think

     

 17  it very well could be done.  It would not be an

     

 18  extremely huge task, sir.

     

 19              MR. STONE:  Okay, thank you.

     

 20              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Shafer?

     

 21              MR. SHAFER:  Mr. Rhoads, thank you very much

     

 22  for your testimony today.  I have one question, and

     

 23  again this is another one where I hate to ask this but I

     

 24  think I need to.

     

 25              In terms of the evacuation, and let's

�2168

                               RHOADS

     

     

     

 01  suppose -- although this may be an unlikely scenario but

     

 02  a possible scenario, in a worst-case spill event with an

     

 03  explosion, if that were to occur in the most highly

     

 04  dense area within a city where that density was closest

     

 05  to the tracks, does your modeling or in your judgment do

     

 06  you see fatalities with that, and if so, what kind of

     

 07  magnitude?  Is it tens, is it hundreds?  What do you see

     

 08  there?

     

 09              THE WITNESS:  My modeling, sir, looked at

     

 10  the number of residents, population within that area.

     

 11  My modeling did not include thermal effects and the

     

 12  distances of those effects.  So I have not done modeling

     

 13  to assess potential casualties and what those numbers

     

 14  would be.  I don't have that, sir.

     

 15              MR. SHAFER:  Okay.  Might you have

     

 16  information where plans were done or modeling was done,

     

 17  not necessarily with this project but other project

     

 18  areas where modeling or planning was done, and then

     

 19  there was an event that did result in casualties, say,

     

 20  that was not forthcoming from your previous modeling or

     

 21  planning of that project?

     

 22              THE WITNESS:  I'm not aware of any, sir.  I

     

 23  mean, there could have been.  I'm not familiar with

     

 24  that.

     

 25              MR. SHAFER:  All right, thank you.
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 01              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Snodgrass?

     

 02              MR. SNODGRASS:  Good afternoon.  A couple of

     

 03  questions regarding evacuation.

     

 04              Would an evacuating vehicle of a home

     

 05  adjacent to the tracks, would that be sufficient to

     

 06  ignite a fire, essentially?

     

 07              THE WITNESS:  The source of an evacuating

     

 08  vehicle being an ignition source that ignites a fire,

     

 09  that vehicle would almost have to be in a pool of

     

 10  spilled product in order for that to happen.  The

     

 11  product is released.  It will have a degree of

     

 12  vaporization, that is, a certain amount of vapors will

     

 13  come on.  You have to have the right concentration.

     

 14  It's referred to as a lower explosive limit.  Very

     

 15  similar to a carburetor on a lawnmower, if you don't

     

 16  have the right fuel-to-air mix the lawnmower won't

     

 17  start.  So in this case you have to have enough vapors

     

 18  in a concentration above the lower explosive limit for

     

 19  that ignition source to cause a fire.  And that would be

     

 20  localized flash that would involve that spilled

     

 21  material.

     

 22              So to your question, could it cause an

     

 23  ignition source, yes, if that vehicle was directly in or

     

 24  extremely close proximity to the spilled product.

     

 25              MR. SNODGRASS:  I guess how close would be
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 01  extremely close?  If a house is, let's say, 50 feet away

     

 02  from the railcar?

     

 03              THE WITNESS:  I would not anticipate 50 feet

     

 04  away.  And the reason that I say that, sir, is because

     

 05  it's an unconfined area, it's open to the atmosphere.

     

 06  The vapors would not have an opportunity to accumulate

     

 07  and build up to that level.  If we were saying three

     

 08  feet away, one foot away, I would say it's possible.  At

     

 09  50 feet away, I would believe that with air monitoring

     

 10  equipment we would identify no vapors in the air.

     

 11              MR. SNODGRASS:  Stepping away -- still with

     

 12  the evacuation but stepping away from the immediate fire

     

 13  issue, are there best practices or rules of thumb for

     

 14  the number that -- this is sort of a traffic question --

     

 15  the number of evacuees who could be safely evacuated

     

 16  through a single weight load without some likelihood of

     

 17  accidents with people rushing to get out and so on?

     

 18              THE WITNESS:  Sir, traffic is not my area of

     

 19  expertise.  I'm not familiar with any studies that work

     

 20  around that.

     

 21              MR. SNODGRASS:  Okay.  Turning to the foam

     

 22  question.  You mentioned two -- you cited two instances

     

 23  where foam was not used and you said the outcome was

     

 24  successful.

     

 25              THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.
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 01              MR. SNODGRASS:  I'm going to guess the

     

 02  percentage terms of the larger list, and, you know, just

     

 03  for illustration purposes let's take the 24 cases that

     

 04  have been cited.

     

 05              How many of those was foam applied on?

     

 06              THE WITNESS:  This, sir, is a very rough

     

 07  estimate.  My analysis did not include that granularity.

     

 08  I would say safely 50 percent.  One of the things that I

     

 09  find interesting is it seems East Coast railroads are

     

 10  less likely to use foam and it seems that more of the

     

 11  Western roads use foam more frequently.  And I'm not

     

 12  exactly sure of why that is.

     

 13              MR. SNODGRASS:  With a -- and I guess sort

     

 14  of turning particularly to the Fall Bridge because it

     

 15  would be the section through Vancouver and count as in

     

 16  in Washougal, would a non-interventionist approach, let

     

 17  it burn, if you will, for a one-car, just using that

     

 18  example of a one-car derailment and fire, how long

     

 19  without foam would it take to put that out, ballpark?

     

 20              THE WITNESS:  The length of time for a fire

     

 21  to consume itself is largely given to the surface area

     

 22  of the pool fire.  For example, ethanol, which is cited

     

 23  in a number of instances, ethanol has a burn rate that a

     

 24  one-inch pool of ethanol, regardless of surface area,

     

 25  one-inch depth will consume itself in six minutes.
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 01  Crude oil is very analogous and, in fact, may actually

     

 02  be a little quicker.

     

 03              So to your question, the pool, the depth of

     

 04  the pool, is the deciding factor.  If we just let it

     

 05  burn, how quick it's going to burn down.  So depending

     

 06  upon how much -- for one car spread out over a, let's

     

 07  say a 30 by 30 area where it's a foot deep, it may burn

     

 08  for a couple hours.  Spread out over 100 by 100 where

     

 09  it's two inches deep, it may burn itself out in under an

     

 10  hour.  But it will consume itself very rapidly if

     

 11  allowed to burn.

     

 12              MR. SNODGRASS:  Okay.  That's all I have.

     

 13  Thank you very much.

     

 14              JUDGE NOBLE:  Anyone to my right?  My left?

     

 15  Questions?

     

 16              Mr. Siemann?

     

 17              MR. SIEMANN:  Good afternoon and thanks for

     

 18  being here today.

     

 19              THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

     

 20              MR. SIEMANN:  You mentioned the 117s and how

     

 21  they would respond in a pool fire.  How would the 117Rs

     

 22  respond in a pool fire?  Similarly or differently?

     

 23              THE WITNESS:  Well, the 117Rs with the

     

 24  addition of thermal protection and with the blanket, the

     

 25  thermal protection should provide the same level, that
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 01  is, 100 minutes of a pool fire or 30 minutes of a torch

     

 02  type fire.  We're really measuring what the heat

     

 03  transmission is through that thermal blanket through the

     

 04  tank car shell into the product.  So from a thermal

     

 05  protection, with that as a retrofit, I would say a

     

 06  thermal should perform the same a 117, a regular 117 new

     

 07  built.

     

 08              MR. SIEMANN:  And so all 117Rs would have

     

 09  that thermal protection?

     

 10              THE WITNESS:  That's my understanding,

     

 11  that's correct.

     

 12              MR. SIEMANN:  A second question.  You

     

 13  described the emergency responder response guidebook.

     

 14  Does every emergency responder have access to that or

     

 15  have one?  It seemed like important to understand what

     

 16  you're dealing with, but we're talking about a lot of

     

 17  perhaps rural volunteer fire departments responding.

     

 18              Do they have access to this?

     

 19              THE WITNESS:  Again, sir, I can't speak for

     

 20  Washington because I'm not sure of how they were

     

 21  distributed.  My experience in Virginia, we literally,

     

 22  even in very rural counties, we asked the emergency

     

 23  management agency of each county how many fire trucks,

     

 24  how many police officers they had, and that's the number

     

 25  that we supplied to them.
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 01              But it's very interesting to note that in

     

 02  today's technology, the DOT Emergency Response Guidebook

     

 03  is downloadable as an app, and it's an interactive app,

     

 04  so even at any moment the smartphone can have the

     

 05  Emergency Response Guidebook on their phone.  DOT makes

     

 06  tens of thousands of the ERGs available to communities,

     

 07  and they should be distributed either through your state

     

 08  fire training or through your emergency management

     

 09  agency.

     

 10              MR. SIEMANN:  So in your experience at least

     

 11  in Virginia, does everybody's rig actually carry one?

     

 12              THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.  It's very common.

     

 13              MR. SIEMANN:  In your prefiled testimony you

     

 14  mentioned something about flammable vapors and the fact

     

 15  that responders can use product-appropriate air

     

 16  monitoring instruments to identify the levels and

     

 17  locations of flammable vapors.

     

 18              THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

     

 19              MR. SIEMANN:  Would these rural departments,

     

 20  volunteer departments, would they likely have these

     

 21  kinds of instruments?

     

 22              THE WITNESS:  It would also depend, sir, on

     

 23  what their other response exposures were.  For example,

     

 24  if a rural department had a propane facility or a high

     

 25  degree of propane use within their jurisdiction, they

�2175

                               RHOADS

     

     

     

 01  very well may have a combustible gas indicator.  That's

     

 02  the device that I'm referring to that would be suitable.

     

 03              If it was a jurisdiction where they had a

     

 04  petroleum terminal existing or a lot of petroleum

     

 05  distribution infrastructure, they may have one.  The

     

 06  price on that technology has come down remarkably to the

     

 07  point that there are combustible gas detectors which are

     

 08  $500 which don't require calibration, which are almost

     

 09  disposable after three years.  It's not an extremely

     

 10  expensive piece of response equipment.

     

 11              In terms of your question, would every

     

 12  jurisdiction have one, probably not.  Would it be

     

 13  uncommon to find a volunteer rural department with one,

     

 14  it would be uncommon that they would have one.  It's a

     

 15  piece of equipment that's readily available.

     

 16              MR. SIEMANN:  I'm not sure you can answer

     

 17  this but I'm just curious.  Who pays for emergency

     

 18  response, for example, at the -- like if there was a

     

 19  large event at the site or along the rail line, do you

     

 20  know who pays for the emergency response?

     

 21              THE WITNESS:  Based upon my experience with

     

 22  CSX, the rail carrier that I worked with, is CSX would

     

 23  reimburse the emergency response community for their

     

 24  time, for any expenditures that they made in terms of

     

 25  foam or absorbents or diesel fuel to run their equipment
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 01  or things like that.  The railroad would work with the

     

 02  community to make them whole after an incident.

     

 03              MR. SIEMANN:  Thanks very much.

     

 04              JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other questions to my

     

 05  left?  I have a question.

     

 06              THE WITNESS:  Yes, Your Honor.

     

 07              JUDGE NOBLE:  Do you have that -- you had a

     

 08  discussion about the BLEVE kind of fireball and one of

     

 09  the council members asked about the strategy of just

     

 10  letting it burn.

     

 11              How do you factor wind into that

     

 12  calculation?

     

 13              THE WITNESS:  Wind into the calculation of

     

 14  whether we would let it burn or not?

     

 15              JUDGE NOBLE:  Along the Columbia River

     

 16  Gorge.  Is wind a factor?  Do you have some way of

     

 17  calculating that?

     

 18              THE WITNESS:  Well, I think that wind could

     

 19  do a couple different things for the incident, and some

     

 20  of them would be in the positive category and some would

     

 21  be in the negative.  I think that wind may help move a

     

 22  smoke plume possibly away from a community or away from

     

 23  an area.  The wind may help to disperse the smoke.  In

     

 24  other conditions the wind may move smoke towards a

     

 25  threatened area and cause concern there.
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 01              But in terms of a BLEVE or let it burn, the

 02  wind factor, I think, would be more in terms of where it

 03  would take the smoke plume to and what exposures could

 04  be potentially be impacted.  In terms of how the wind

 05  would speed, potentially a heat-induced tear or speed,

 06  the burn, I don't think that the wind would be that

 07  great of a factor.

 08              JUDGE NOBLE:  So do you consider the

 09  possibility of wildfires being increased or is that not

 10  your area of expertise?

 11              THE WITNESS:  Well, a wildfire associated

 12  with a large event, I would consider the rail-wildland

 13  interface as an exposure.  And when I say an exposure,

 14  I'm thinking of everything that is nearby that can be

 15  touched.  The river could be a potential exposure, and

 16  there's mechanisms I would take to control that

 17  exposure.  If there were homes or other occupancies,

 18  that's an exposure.  There's activities I would take to

 19  prevent that.  If it was forest or grasslands that could

 20  be impacted by that fire, that would be an exposure, and

 21  I may take measures there to spray the area, to cool the

 22  area to try to prevent a wildfire from starting.

 23              Wildfire very easily could occur after a

 24  large fireball type of event, but I believe that it

 25  would be very kind of just a subsequent thing you'd have
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 01  to deal with that the fireball to me would be the much

 02  larger immediate event than the subsequent wildfire.

 03  You would be thinking about what are my exposures and

 04  how do I protect those.

 05              JUDGE NOBLE:  Thank you.

 06              Any questions based upon council questions?

 07              MR. POTTER:  No.

 08                    REDIRECT EXAMINATION

 09  BY MR. KISIELIUS:

 10     Q.   Just one, Mr. Rhoads.  You in your testimony

 11  said the defensive or let it burn approach shouldn't be

 12  considered the same thing as a do nothing strategy.

 13          Can you expand on that a little bit more?  What

 14  actually is a defensive strategy?  Are you standing and

 15  watching a fire burn?

 16     A.   You're letting the fire burn, but at the same

 17  time, I think this goes to the judge's question about

 18  wildfire, I'm going to -- where I would recommend that

 19  the incident commander look at the entire bubble, if you

 20  will, while we're letting the fire burn what else could

 21  be impacted and exposed and are we taking steps not to

 22  put the fire out but to protect those other exposures.

 23  That would very be much an active component of the

 24  response.

 25              MR. KISIELIUS:  Thank you.  No further
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 01  questions.

     

 02              JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.  Thank you very

     

 03  much for your testimony this afternoon, Mr. Rhoads.

     

 04  It's been a long day for you.  I appreciate it, council

     

 05  appreciates it.  You are excused as a witness.

     

 06              THE WITNESS:  Thank you very much.

     

 07              JUDGE NOBLE:  It's time for a break.  We'll

     

 08  be off the record until 3:35.

     

 09              (Recess taken from 3:20 p.m. to 3:39 p.m.)

     

 10              MR. JOHNSON:  Applicant calls Brian Dunn.

     

 11  Mr. Dunn, if you can remain standing so you can be

     

 12  sworn.

     

 13              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Dunn, would you raise your

     

 14  right hand, please.

     

 15                         BRIAN DUNN,

     

 16     having been first duly sworn, testified as follows:

     

 17              JUDGE NOBLE:  You may proceed, Mr. Johnson.

     

 18              MR. JOHNSON:  Thank you.

     

 19                     DIRECT EXAMINATION

     

 20  BY MR. JOHNSON:

     

 21     Q.   Mr. Dunn, can you state your full name for the

     

 22  record and spell it for the court reporter.

     

 23     A.   Sure.  My name is Brian, B-r-i-a-n, D-u-n-n.

     

 24     Q.   All right, thank you.  And, Mr. Dunn, you filed

     

 25  prefiled testimony in this matter; is that correct?
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 01     A.   Yes, I did.

     

 02     Q.   And can you just briefly describe your current

     

 03  employment and area of expertise for the council.

     

 04     A.   Sure.  I'm currently employed with Kittleson &

     

 05  Associates in Portland, Oregon.  It's a transportation

     

 06  engineering and planning firm.  I help manage our

     

 07  development services market area for the Portland

     

 08  office.  I have about 22 years of experience in

     

 09  transportation planning and traffic engineering helping

     

 10  to prepare plans for land development projects that

     

 11  range from all types of land uses from institutional,

     

 12  industrial, to residential, mixed-use and commercial.

     

 13     Q.   And your CV was attached to your prefiled

     

 14  testimony; is that right?

     

 15     A.   That's correct.

     

 16              MR. JOHNSON:  Okay.  And for council's

     

 17  information that's Exhibit 0302, a TSS exhibit.

     

 18  BY MR. JOHNSON:

     

 19     Q.   Did you provide a traffic impact analysis as

     

 20  part of the application for site certification for the

     

 21  Vancouver Energy Terminal?

     

 22     A.   Yes, I did.

     

 23              MR. JOHNSON:  And again, for the council's

     

 24  benefit, that's Exhibit 1 beginning at Page 6221.

     

 25  BY MR. JOHNSON:
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 01     Q.   What was the focus of that traffic impact

     

 02  analysis?

     

 03     A.   So the traffic impact analysis was a focus on

     

 04  the impacts to the surface street system surrounding the

     

 05  Vancouver Energy facility at the Port property.  It

     

 06  focused not only the traffic impacts of the permanent

     

 07  operation of the facility but also during construction.

     

 08          And it included an evaluation of transportation

     

 09  and safety impacts, operational impacts to intersections

     

 10  and roads that were not only on the Port property on the

     

 11  site itself but also including city streets and a

     

 12  highway, an adjacent highway which is maintained by the

     

 13  Washington State Department of Transportation.

     

 14     Q.   Okay.  Can you just describe your conclusions,

     

 15  your primary conclusions as a result of that analysis?

     

 16     A.   Yeah.  My primary conclusion was that the

     

 17  surface street system could handle and had adequate

     

 18  capacity to handle the additional traffic from the

     

 19  facility and could also handle the additional traffic

     

 20  loads, temporary traffic loads during the construction

     

 21  of the facility.

     

 22     Q.   All right.  And did you identify any necessary

     

 23  or recommended traffic mitigation?

     

 24     A.   We did.  We recommended some minor treatments

     

 25  mainly to address several existing situations; an
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 01  additional posted speed sign, additional striping in one

     

 02  location, we also made a recommendation to modify the

     

 03  traffic control at one intersection on the city street.

     

 04  Those changes were really to bring those roads or those

     

 05  intersections to more of a current standard that would

     

 06  be commensurate with the Manual on Uniform Traffic

     

 07  Control Devices or to meet sight distance standards

     

 08  which is mandated by AASHTO standards, or the green book

     

 09  as many refer to.  (Court reporter interruption.)  The

     

 10  green book.

     

 11          Yes, and so our recommendations I think were

     

 12  minor in nature, and we made those recommendations in

     

 13  our report.

     

 14     Q.   All right.  And after completing your traffic

     

 15  impact analysis, did you perform any other traffic

     

 16  studies?

     

 17     A.   Yes.  I also prepared an at-grade traffic

     

 18  analysis for the facility along the -- focusing mainly

     

 19  on the Gorge line from the Vancouver Energy facility out

     

 20  past -- as far as the City of Spokane, Spokane Valley.

     

 21              MR. JOHNSON:  Ms. Mastro, could you pull up

     

 22  Exhibit 114, please.

     

 23  BY MR. JOHNSON:

     

 24     Q.   While we're doing that, why did you prepare

     

 25  additional rail crossing analysis?
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 01     A.   The reason for preparing the rail crossing

     

 02  analysis was to try to understand more from a

     

 03  quantitative standpoint what could be the potential

     

 04  impacts of a oil unit train from this facility compared

     

 05  to current conditions at these rail crossings.

     

 06          So the focus of that study was really looking at

     

 07  both current conditions, how do these at-grade crossings

     

 08  operate today with the current rail traffic, with

     

 09  adjacent or intersecting traffic volumes.  And the study

     

 10  was pretty comprehensive.  And we had also a methodology

     

 11  for how do we screen, how do we determine the locations

     

 12  to look at.  We didn't look at every single crossing but

     

 13  we did limit them to crossings that had daily traffic

     

 14  flows of 2,500 ADT or higher.

     

 15     Q.   Okay.  And why did -- well, first of all, what's

     

 16  ADT?

     

 17     A.   So ADT stands for average daily traffic.  It's

     

 18  typically the traffic you would see on a mid weekday

     

 19  over a 24-hour period.

     

 20     Q.   Okay.  And why did you pick the 2,500 limit?

     

 21     A.   We chose that threshold because I think it

     

 22  represents a roadway or a class of roadway that really

     

 23  functions more as like maybe a collector or an arterial

     

 24  roadway if the volumes are at that level or higher.

     

 25  Volumes that are below that level typically represent
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 01  like a local city street or perhaps a private drive or

     

 02  private road with low volume.

     

 03          And it was our idea to select that threshold

     

 04  because anything at that level or above we believe has

     

 05  the amount of traffic that could potentially create

     

 06  meaningful delays and meaningful vehicle queues as a

     

 07  result of a train crossing.

     

 08     Q.   Okay.  And why is evaluating queueing capacity

     

 09  and/or efficiencies relating to streets as a result of a

     

 10  train passing, why is that important?

     

 11     A.   So we think delays at crossings are important,

     

 12  and those delays transfer into vehicle queues which

     

 13  develop as a result of those delays.  We think vehicle

     

 14  queueing is very important from a safety standpoint, not

     

 15  necessarily for drivers that are queueing up at the

     

 16  crossing but really what is happening with those queues

     

 17  as they develop and perhaps spill back into adjacent

     

 18  intersections or other areas beyond the crossing itself.

     

 19     Q.   And do you look at adjacent aggregate crossings

     

 20  as well?

     

 21     A.   Yes, we did.  We also -- as part of the existing

     

 22  conditions analysis, we looked at an inventory of not

     

 23  just what other at-grade crossings are nearby the

     

 24  locations that we evaluated but also grade-separated

     

 25  locations that may be in the same vicinity or in the
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 01  same city.

     

 02     Q.   Okay.  And why is that important?  Why is it

     

 03  important to look at grade-separated crossings versus

     

 04  at-grade crossings?

     

 05     A.   For two reasons.  Number one, we wanted to get

     

 06  an understand of if there were other viable alternatives

     

 07  that drivers may have, typical drivers, that they may

     

 08  have for a crossing that is currently closed from a

     

 09  train going by.  Do drivers who perhaps commute through

     

 10  this area or live in this area have an understanding of

     

 11  another route that they could use and deviate from the

     

 12  course that they're on.

     

 13          Another reason is also to understand, from

     

 14  perhaps an emergency response standpoint, is to

     

 15  understand what alternative routes do responders have.

     

 16  Are there at-grade or grade-separated interchanges

     

 17  nearby that could be a viable route.  One of the tests

     

 18  that we did do in the study was to look at how much

     

 19  train delay is occurring just under current conditions

     

 20  versus how long does it take a driver literally to get

     

 21  to the other side of the tracks.

     

 22     Q.   Okay.  And I want to get to that analysis here

     

 23  in a minute.

     

 24          First of all, in terms of on-street queueing

     

 25  capacity under existing conditions, what was your
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 01  conclusion?

     

 02     A.   Our conclusion was that for the ten locations

     

 03  that we did evaluate, that at seven of those locations

     

 04  there was adequate storage and adequate queueing space

     

 05  to accommodate drivers under current conditions.  There

     

 06  were three locations where we found, and these were at

     

 07  crossings in -- one in Washougal, one and two in Spokane

     

 08  Valley, where current crossing closures are creating a

     

 09  situation during the peak hours when traffic is at its

     

 10  highest levels, that these queues do develop and they

     

 11  spill back into an adjacent signalized intersection.

     

 12     Q.   Can you pull Page 2 of that report.  And I'm

     

 13  going to ask you a pretty small -- you have a book in

     

 14  front of you that has a copy of your report in it.  You

     

 15  might want to turn to this page.

     

 16     A.   Okay.

     

 17     Q.   Okay, you have it there?  And can you just

     

 18  explain to the council what that table represents?

     

 19     A.   Sure.  This table is really a kind of a brief

     

 20  summary, if you will, of our overall findings at the ten

     

 21  crossings that we evaluated.  I think the two pieces of

     

 22  important information, I think, that you can see from

     

 23  this table are -- excuse me, in columns -- in the fourth

     

 24  column here -- sorry, in the third column.  It is the

     

 25  fourth column.
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 01     Q.   I'm just going to interrupt for a minute just so

     

 02  the council understands that you're pointing with a

     

 03  laser pointer at the exhibit there.

     

 04     A.   In Column 4, this is going back to my previous

     

 05  response here, that there were three locations where we

     

 06  found that under current conditions there are vehicle

     

 07  queues that can develop up to and beyond the adjacent

     

 08  intersection that's nearby.  And those are the three

     

 09  locations, one at 32nd Street and Washougal crossing,

     

 10  North Park Road and North Pines Road in Spokane Valley.

     

 11          The other piece of information that is key from

     

 12  this table is the second to last column which is really

     

 13  getting into more of a comparison now of future

     

 14  conditions with looking only at proposed facility unit

     

 15  trains and what are the impacts of these unit trains at

     

 16  each of these crossings.  And only in one instance did

     

 17  we find that the unit trains would result in higher

     

 18  delays at the crossing itself.  But at this delay in

     

 19  question here is that West A Street in Pasco, and that

     

 20  location has sufficient queueing -- or I'm sorry, lane

     

 21  storage to accommodate the queues, even the longer

     

 22  queues that may result from the proposed facility

     

 23  trains.

     

 24     Q.   Okay.  And could you turn to Page 10 of that

     

 25  exhibit, please.  Actually, before you do that, could
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 01  you scroll up so that we can see the footnotes at the

     

 02  bottom.  Other way, sorry, down.

     

 03          There's a footnote there with two asterisks.  Do

     

 04  you see that?

     

 05     A.   Yes, I do.

     

 06     Q.   And can you just read that maybe for the benefit

     

 07  of those who can't read it maybe from the exhibit in

     

 08  front of you?

     

 09     A.   Yes.  These two asterisks pertain to the three

     

 10  crossings that are located in Cheney.  There are three

     

 11  at-grade crossings about a mile apart.  This bullet or

     

 12  these two asterisks are basically saying that there are

     

 13  other at-grade crossings nearby unless emergency closure

     

 14  affects all adjacent grade crossings.

     

 15          In this case, this bullet is assuming that there

     

 16  is a train stopped and is long enough to block all three

     

 17  crossings in Cheney.  And under our analysis, we were

     

 18  looking -- trying to look at either side of the rail

     

 19  line to see are there any other at-grade or

     

 20  grade-separated crossings nearby.  Couldn't find any.

     

 21  But there is a circuitous route around through another

     

 22  town nearby resulting in what we estimated would be

     

 23  about a 30-minute drive to get around.

     

 24              MR. JOHNSON:  Now, Ms. Mastro, could you go

     

 25  to Page 11, please.
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 01  BY MR. JOHNSON:

     

 02     Q.   And I realize this chart begins actually on Page

     

 03  10, but maybe you can describe the columns.  I'd like

     

 04  you to maybe expand on your discussion of the Cheney

     

 05  intersections and referring you specifically to the, I

     

 06  guess it's the third row under Cheney there on that

     

 07  page.  Could you just explain what that represents.

     

 08     A.   Yeah.  In this table the third row for the three

     

 09  crossings in Cheney, at each of the at-grade crossings,

     

 10  this table is a summary of what other at-grade or

     

 11  grade-separated crossings are closest in either

     

 12  direction.  And what we found is that because these

     

 13  three intersections are roughly one mile apart maximum,

     

 14  5,280 feet, that what we were trying to show here is

     

 15  that if there is a train that is perhaps like an oil

     

 16  unit train and if it is up to 7,800 feet in length, that

     

 17  conceivably if it stopped at all three locations, they

     

 18  could all be blocked at the same time.

     

 19     Q.   Okay.  And that would then require that traffic

     

 20  trying to cross would go to the crossing in the city of

     

 21  Marshall to the north?

     

 22     A.   That was the intent here of this summary.

     

 23     Q.   Okay.  And again, is this the main line?

     

 24     A.   This is the main line.  There are multiple

     

 25  lines, I think, in the town of Cheney.  At least at
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 01  these at-grade crossings there are multiple tracks.

     

 02     Q.   Okay.  And if you could scroll down, please.  A

     

 03  little bit more.  There you go.

     

 04          Okay.  So the second full paragraph there where

     

 05  you start to say in Cheney it is conceivable that one or

     

 06  more of the at-grade crossings in the city could be

     

 07  blocked, did you consider the likelihood of that

     

 08  happening?

     

 09     A.   We did not consider the likelihood of a train

     

 10  stopping at that exact location.

     

 11     Q.   All right.  And you reference an emergency.

     

 12  What would an emergency be?

     

 13     A.   Well, I guess in this case potentially a

     

 14  derailment as an emergency stop.

     

 15     Q.   Okay.  And were you present here this afternoon

     

 16  when Mr. Rhoads was testifying about the eleven

     

 17  derailments?

     

 18     A.   I was, I was.  I heard his testimony, and it was

     

 19  pretty clear to me that the protocol in the case of an

     

 20  emergency or derailment is that the train decouples at a

     

 21  specific point.  And if that is the case, I could see

     

 22  how at least one or more at-grade crossings could be

     

 23  kept open even in an emergency situation in Cheney.

     

 24     Q.   Okay.  And then that would eliminate the need to

     

 25  go to Marshall?
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 01     A.   It would.

     

 02     Q.   Okay, thank you.

     

 03          Did you consider the impact on emergency

     

 04  responders in areas with existing at-grade crossings?

     

 05     A.   We did.  We reached out to the four

     

 06  jurisdictions that we did our evaluation, we did receive

     

 07  responses from two of them, just to understand what the

     

 08  protocol is for emergency response vehicles.  And the

     

 09  consensus that we found from both agencies is as an

     

 10  emergency response vehicle is dispatched and if they do

     

 11  encounter a train at an at-grade crossing, they

     

 12  immediately call dispatch to have another vehicle

     

 13  dispatched to respond at the same time while they

     

 14  continue to try to get to their location.  So that's the

     

 15  protocol that we found from the two agencies.

     

 16          Besides that, we also did look at, and I think I

     

 17  did mention earlier, we looked at some estimated travel

     

 18  times for each of those locations using various

     

 19  alternative routes.

     

 20     Q.   Okay.  I'd like to draw your attention now to

     

 21  some of the other witnesses who have commented on

     

 22  traffic-related issues.  And the testimony I'll refer to

     

 23  is in the book in front of you, so if you need to turn

     

 24  to it and look at it, you should feel free to do that.

     

 25          Did you review the prefiled testimony submitted
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 01  by Dr. Frank James?

     

 02     A.   Yes, I did.

     

 03     Q.   Okay.  And do you recognize Mr. James as an

     

 04  expert in the field of traffic impact assessments?

     

 05     A.   No, I do not.  I believe he's a medical

     

 06  practitioner.

     

 07     Q.   Dr. James provides comments regarding delays in

     

 08  vehicle traffic and potential emergency response as a

     

 09  result of trains related to this project, that is,

     

 10  trains that will serve this project.

     

 11          In your opinion, do you agree with this comment?

     

 12     A.   No, I do not.

     

 13     Q.   Why not?

     

 14     A.   I believe that one of the primary comments made

     

 15  by Mr. James is that the oil unit trains represent an

     

 16  additional burden on the system, simply that these are

     

 17  going to increase the number of trains going down this

     

 18  corridor, which is -- as we've heard previous testimony

     

 19  from BNSF that that's really an oversimplification and

     

 20  that the additional trains or the trains associated with

     

 21  this facility are part of the natural and the normal

     

 22  fluctuations of traffic on this line.

     

 23          So to say that these trains would pose an

     

 24  increased burden on the system in terms of delays I

     

 25  think is a -- is not a true statement.
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 01     Q.   Okay.  Anything else about unit trains that

     

 02  would make you disagree with Dr. James?

     

 03     A.   Can you elaborate further?

     

 04     Q.   Well, I just wondered if there's anything else

     

 05  about the fact that these are unit trains as opposed to

     

 06  other kinds of trains that might --

     

 07     A.   Yeah.  Based on other testimony, I think also

     

 08  from Mr. Hack and I think from Tesoro, that there's

     

 09  been, I think, evidence submitted in the record that

     

 10  says these unit trains, while they may be -- they may

     

 11  have some length to them, up to maybe 7,800 feet, that

     

 12  they are not inconsistent with other trains that are on

     

 13  this corridor, and so that they would operate not

     

 14  entirely different than the trains that are already on

     

 15  this line.

     

 16          We also understand that there's certain speeds

     

 17  that are adhered to by these trains, not just set by

     

 18  the -- you know, required by the federal organization

     

 19  but also elected by BNSF in terms of type of train

     

 20  that's used on this corridor.

     

 21     Q.   Okay.  Dr. James testified about the project

     

 22  adding up to 10 to 15 minutes to emergency response

     

 23  times specifically.

     

 24          Do you agree with his conclusion?

     

 25     A.   No.  I don't know where he developed that
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 01  information.

     

 02     Q.   Okay.  And is it in any way consistent with the

     

 03  feedback that you received from emergency response

     

 04  organizations?

     

 05     A.   As far as increased response times from oil unit

     

 06  trains, no.

     

 07     Q.   Okay.  Mr. David Wechner also submitted prefiled

     

 08  testimony.  Did you have an opportunity to review his

     

 09  testimony?

     

 10     A.   Yes, I did.

     

 11     Q.   And as I asked about Dr. James, do you recognize

     

 12  Mr. Wechner as an expert in the field of traffic impact

     

 13  assessment?

     

 14     A.   No, I do not.  I believe his field is in

     

 15  environmental and planning.

     

 16     Q.   Okay.  And you may recall Mr. Wechner provided

     

 17  testimony regarding the impact of the Vancouver Energy

     

 18  project on rail traffic and its effect on at-grade

     

 19  crossings in the City of Vancouver at specific

     

 20  locations, including an area called the East Old

     

 21  Evergreen Highway neighborhood and in the vicinity of

     

 22  the Waterfront Development project and Riverview Gateway

     

 23  area.

     

 24     A.   Uh-huh.

     

 25     Q.   What do you conclude about his testimony?
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 01     A.   My conclusions are that the proposed facility

     

 02  unit trains would not have an increased impact at those

     

 03  locations.  I'll go through each one.

     

 04          For the River Green [sic] community, which I

     

 05  believe is the residential subdivision that is south of,

     

 06  I think it's off of 139th Avenue, this is a community

     

 07  that has only one access point between it and the

     

 08  adjacent public street that exits out of that location.

     

 09  There is an at-grade crossing there.  It has modern

     

 10  gates, electrified gates, signing and striping.  I

     

 11  believe it also has some queue management measures in

     

 12  place with some raised medians to control traffic.  And

     

 13  this is a location, I think, that where the rail line

     

 14  historically, it's been there for some time and that

     

 15  this subdivision was built, you know, after the railroad

     

 16  was established.

     

 17          If I take my conclusions from my analysis that

     

 18  the proposed facility unit trains are not going to take

     

 19  longer to cross than what's currently on this line, then

     

 20  my conclusion is that there's no increased impact from

     

 21  the oil unit trains.

     

 22     Q.   Okay.  And I'm sorry, I think when you started

     

 23  to answer my question you said the River Green.  I think

     

 24  you may have meant --

     

 25     A.   I meant East Evergreen.
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 01     Q.   Yeah.

     

 02     A.   East Evergreen, sorry.

     

 03     Q.   Just to correct.

     

 04     A.   The second location, I think, was the

     

 05  Waterfront --

     

 06     Q.   Correct.

     

 07     A.   -- Development that you referenced, which is the

     

 08  location just east of, I believe, I-5 south of the rail

     

 09  line which is targeted for a large mixed-use office

     

 10  development activity.  And Mr. Wechner's comments

     

 11  pertain, again, to limited access in this area.

     

 12          Based on my observations of Google Earth or

     

 13  general maps that are in the record such as like Ryan

     

 14  Lopossa's transportation map, there are multiple

     

 15  crossings at this waterfront -- planned waterfront park.

     

 16  There's actually three separate grade-separated

     

 17  crossings, I believe they're all under-crossings under

     

 18  the rail line into the downtown area from that location.

     

 19              MR. JOHNSON:  You just referenced an

     

 20  exhibit, so can you pull up 3015, please.

     

 21  BY MR. JOHNSON:

     

 22     Q.   And while we're getting that, you just

     

 23  referenced Ryan Lopossa's testimony.  You reviewed his

     

 24  testimony as well?

     

 25     A.   I did.
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 01     Q.   And he -- again, he identified various at-grade

     

 02  railroad crossings in the City of Vancouver.

     

 03          There we go.  Is this the exhibit you were

     

 04  referring to?

     

 05     A.   Yes, it is the exhibit.

     

 06     Q.   And if we can bring it in a little closer.  I

     

 07  don't know if you can get it to a point -- and then if

     

 08  you can just describe -- pretty fine detail there, but

     

 09  if you can generally describe what you were referring

     

 10  to.

     

 11     A.   So the Waterfront Development site I believe is

     

 12  in this area just west of I-5 to the south side of the

     

 13  rail line.  There are three grade-separated crossings

     

 14  between that development site and the downtown area.

     

 15              MR. MOSS:  Excuse me.  Could the witness use

     

 16  that map so that we can all see?

     

 17              THE WITNESS:  Sure.

     

 18              MR. MOSS:  Thank you.

     

 19              MR. JOHNSON:  Then if you could scroll down,

     

 20  I think he's referring to an area at the bottom of the

     

 21  map.  There we go.

     

 22              THE WITNESS:  That's correct.  Down here

     

 23  west of I-5 along the waterfront.

     

 24  BY MR. JOHNSON:

     

 25     Q.   Okay.  And we'll keep that up, if we could,
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 01  because I think the witness might want to refer to it

     

 02  again.

     

 03          How about the testimony of Mr. Joe Molina; have

     

 04  you reviewed that?

     

 05     A.   Yes.

     

 06     Q.   Mr. Molina referred to the homes where the only

     

 07  access to ingress and egress are across the existing

     

 08  railroad tracks, and expresses concerns regarding gate

     

 09  downtimes.

     

 10     A.   Uh-huh.

     

 11     Q.   What's your understanding of those areas?

     

 12     A.   Well, I believe most of the areas Mr. Molina was

     

 13  referring to are private accesses to either individual

     

 14  single-family homes in this area.  I believe it may also

     

 15  contain the same neighborhood that I was speaking to

     

 16  earlier, the East Evergreen neighborhood, which has

     

 17  maybe approximately 140 or so homes in that area.  Most

     

 18  of these locations are fed by an adjacent street,

     

 19  Evergreen Road or Columbia Way.  But most of these

     

 20  locations, I think what he's getting at is that there's

     

 21  only one point of access.

     

 22          And what I know to be true about modern

     

 23  developments, new subdivisions, is that when you have a

     

 24  project that has potentially only one access point, you

     

 25  know, agency codes usually restrict that.  Or you either
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 01  have to provide sprinklers to your project for to meet

     

 02  the fire safety codes, or you have to find a way to get

     

 03  a second access, if you can, for emergency purposes.

     

 04     Q.   Okay.  And is this the neighborhood you said

     

 05  that was primarily constructed after the railroad was

     

 06  built?

     

 07     A.   I've looked at Google Earth using the historical

     

 08  imagery and found that that neighborhood was built

     

 09  around 1990, which was well after, I think, when the

     

 10  railroad was established.

     

 11     Q.   And the impacts on these at-grade crossings, are

     

 12  those impacts unique to the rail traffic associated with

     

 13  the proposed Vancouver Energy Terminal?

     

 14     A.   I don't believe so.  I think there's no

     

 15  increased impact from the oil unit trains.

     

 16     Q.   Okay.  And do you know if -- and you mentioned

     

 17  modern development.  Again, are there building code

     

 18  requirements or other issues that are associated with

     

 19  developments that are constructed with only single

     

 20  access across a railroad line?

     

 21     A.   Not that I'm aware of.  Typical codes, they have

     

 22  thresholds established for when you have a certain

     

 23  number of, say, residential units that at a certain

     

 24  point you do need a secondary access.  Otherwise, you

     

 25  can seek an exception.  Perhaps you choose to install
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 01  sprinklers or something that can meet the fire safety

     

 02  codes.

     

 03     Q.   Okay.  How about the testimony of Mr. Dan

     

 04  Monaghan; did you review that?

     

 05     A.   Yes, I did.

     

 06     Q.   Okay.  And Mr. Monaghan also expressed concerns

     

 07  about how the project may affect local vehicle traffic

     

 08  delay, but in the context of the area of Washougal.

     

 09          Can you respond to his concerns as he outlines

     

 10  them in his testimony?

     

 11     A.   Yes.  We did -- part of our analysis did address

     

 12  three crossings in that -- in the City of Washougal.  I

     

 13  think Mr. Monaghan was referring to one of them.

     

 14              MR. JOHNSON:  Okay.  And could you pull up

     

 15  Exhibit 0218, Ms. Mastro.  And this is an exhibit that

     

 16  there was an outstanding objection to.  During the break

     

 17  I conferred with Ms. Boyles and she agreed to its

     

 18  admission, but I'll let her speak for herself.

     

 19              MS. BOYLES:  That is correct.

     

 20              MR. JOHNSON:  So I'd move for the admission

     

 21  of Exhibit 0218 TSS.

     

 22              JUDGE NOBLE:  0218 will be admitted.

     

 23              MR. JOHNSON:  If you could, Ms. Mastro, do

     

 24  some of your magic and maybe bring this in a little

     

 25  closer so we can see it.
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 01  BY MR. JOHNSON:

     

 02     Q.   While she's doing that -- there we go.  If you

     

 03  could just explain to the council what this represents.

     

 04     A.   Sure.  This was an aerial photo that we prepared

     

 05  to show not only the three at-grade crossings that we

     

 06  did an evaluation of but also of all at-grade and

     

 07  grade-separated crossings in the City of Washougal and

     

 08  also extending west of the town.  So I'll use my pen

     

 09  here and circle the three locations that we did

     

 10  evaluate.

     

 11          I believe one is 3rd Street and 6th Street, here

     

 12  and here, and the other location, I think, is a little

     

 13  but further off to the right which is 32nd Street, right

     

 14  there.  This map is intended to show a few things; that

     

 15  there are other at-grade crossings in this corridor and

     

 16  there's also this grade-separated crossing in the

     

 17  downtown area called Washougal River Road.

     

 18          If you proceed west of town there are two other

     

 19  grade-separated crossings that are accessible either by

     

 20  SR-14 or another city street from Washougal.

     

 21          And at the extreme east end of town, even

     

 22  further on the map to the right, there's another

     

 23  grade-separated crossing location down here.

     

 24     Q.   And just for clarification, what's the

     

 25  significance of the color there?

�2202

                           JOHNSON / DUNN

     

     

     

 01     A.   Grade-separated is green and at-grade is yellow.

     

 02     Q.   Okay.  And I'm sorry if I cut you off.

     

 03     A.   So I think Mr. Monaghan focused a lot on the

     

 04  32nd Street crossing which was a location that we did

     

 05  our evaluation of.  Our findings were that this is one

     

 06  of the intersections where we found that queueing can

     

 07  extend up to the signal that's nearby.  But we also

     

 08  found at the same time that the oil unit trains are not

     

 09  going to impose any increased delay at this crossing at

     

 10  32nd.

     

 11          There are, at least when we did our inventory of

     

 12  all these crossings, we looked at gate crossing times.

     

 13  We measured intersecting vehicular volumes, train

     

 14  frequencies.  We also did an inventory of are there any

     

 15  access management measures in place.  There are -- at

     

 16  this location there are raised medians on both

     

 17  approaches to this intersection.  And the signal to the

     

 18  north, the one that I was referring to earlier where

     

 19  queues had the potential to spill back, that signal has

     

 20  what's called preemptive signal phasing.  So it's tied

     

 21  in with the train crossing, knows when a train is going

     

 22  by and can adjust the phasing so that traffic flows in

     

 23  one direction or both directions along the parallel

     

 24  street.

     

 25          And the reason I mentioned this also is that the
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 01  City has in their capital improvement plan some

     

 02  way-finding measures that they're going to implement to

     

 03  alert drivers about 32nd Street and the fact that

     

 04  Washougal River Road can be a viable alternative for

     

 05  commuters in the city.

     

 06     Q.   And in your opinion, do drivers generally react

     

 07  to those kinds of measures and adjust their behavior

     

 08  accordingly?

     

 09     A.   Yes, they can.  You get like changeable message

     

 10  signs or advance message signs that tell you if a route

     

 11  is quicker or slower than another route, they will

     

 12  adhere to that and adjust.

     

 13     Q.   All right.  I'd like to now turn your attention

     

 14  to the testimony of the Vancouver city manager, Mr. Eric

     

 15  Holmes.  Did you review his testimony?

     

 16     A.   I did.

     

 17     Q.   And I think Mr. Holmes's testimony is included

     

 18  in exhibit -- or Tab 1 of your book there in front of

     

 19  you.

     

 20          Mr. Holmes, on Page 6, testifies about the

     

 21  Riverview Gateway subarea, and again I think you

     

 22  referred to that earlier.  And he states, "There's a

     

 23  quarry in this area, which has a single at-grade private

     

 24  railroad crossing.  Semitrailers have been known to have

     

 25  difficulty making the crossing."
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 01          Do you have an opinion about that statement?

     

 02     A.   I did.  When I read this I looked into where

     

 03  these quarry sites are located, and what I discovered is

     

 04  there are two quarries.  They are out at, I believe,

     

 05  162nd Avenue, but they're on the north side of SR 14.

     

 06  And so these quarry sites, which I think are also

     

 07  targeted for future development, they have access to the

     

 08  state highway.  And they're north of the rail line so

     

 09  there's no physical crossing with the rail line to these

     

 10  quarry sites.

     

 11          There was the additional location, I believe

     

 12  it's a logging business, and that might be, I think,

     

 13  what the next sentence is referring to is the logging

     

 14  business that is south of the highway, south of the

     

 15  railroad tracks along the river, where there is an

     

 16  at-grade crossing to this logging business.

     

 17     Q.   Okay.  And did you assess the ability of the

     

 18  logging vehicles associated with the logging business to

     

 19  ingress and egress across the tracks?

     

 20     A.   The only assessment I can make is that there's

     

 21  one point of access to their business, it's a private

     

 22  crossing.  It does have modern protective devices,

     

 23  meaning it has an electrified gate and advance warning

     

 24  signs.  I also could see from aerial imagery that there

     

 25  is room for stacking, because these are oftentimes
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 01  trucks going in or out, that they have stacking on both

     

 02  sides of the crossing so that people can queue up in

     

 03  advance of the gate being down.

     

 04          What I also saw from the imagery is that the

     

 05  crossing does require that trucks make a turn to enter

     

 06  and a turn to get out.

     

 07     Q.   Okay.  So could you just briefly summarize again

     

 08  for the council your conclusions resulting from the

     

 09  crossing analysis that you performed?

     

 10     A.   Sure.  So for the locations that we screened,

     

 11  the ten locations, our findings were that the oil unit

     

 12  trains would not pose any increased delays at these

     

 13  crossings based on the operational characteristics of

     

 14  the trains, the speeds that are required of these trains

     

 15  in the corridors, and the length of these trains.

     

 16          In our comparison of the oil unit train delays

     

 17  and vehicle queue assessments to current conditions, we

     

 18  found there was no increased burden on the system.

     

 19  There was one location where we found that vehicle

     

 20  queues would be slightly longer, but that's at that

     

 21  location in Pasco.  There's adequate lane storage to

     

 22  accommodate queues.

     

 23          And that was the overall finding of our study.

     

 24              MR. JOHNSON:  Thank you.

     

 25              Nothing further, Your Honor.
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 01              JUDGE NOBLE:  Cross-examination?

     

 02                      CROSS-EXAMINATION

     

 03  BY MR. POTTER:

     

 04     Q.   Mr. Dunn, I'm Bronson Potter.  I represent the

     

 05  City of Vancouver.

     

 06     A.   Good afternoon.

     

 07     Q.   Good afternoon.

     

 08          Aren't Spokane and Vancouver the two largest

     

 09  cities along the BNSF Columbia Gorge rail line between

     

 10  North Dakota and the terminal?

     

 11     A.   I believe so.  I did read Vancouver was the

     

 12  largest city.

     

 13     Q.   It's the fourth largest in the state and Spokane

     

 14  is the third largest.

     

 15          But your at-grade crossing analysis didn't

     

 16  include analysis of any crossings in either Spokane or

     

 17  Vancouver, did it?

     

 18     A.   Not in Spokane but in Spokane Valley, and not in

     

 19  Vancouver.

     

 20     Q.   You did analysis of ten crossings; correct?

     

 21     A.   That's correct.

     

 22     Q.   And Spokane Valley is not Spokane, is it?

     

 23     A.   No, it is not.

     

 24     Q.   In your analysis you didn't measure the actual

     

 25  length of the vehicle queueing that was occurring at the
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 01  crossings, did you?

     

 02     A.   We did not measure them but we had video

     

 03  surveillance done where we could go and monitor those.

     

 04     Q.   So you made estimates?

     

 05     A.   That's correct.

     

 06     Q.   And the video surveillance was two days of

     

 07  surveillance?

     

 08     A.   Correct.

     

 09     Q.   Did the video include any oil trains going

     

 10  through these crossings?

     

 11     A.   I believe it included all trains which include

     

 12  oil trains that may be going by.

     

 13     Q.   Your analysis didn't use the actual speed of oil

     

 14  trains to calculate the delay or that they would cause

     

 15  when you -- I think you came up with a three-minute and

     

 16  23-second delay time?

     

 17     A.   We did not use actual speeds of the trains.  We

     

 18  did not record them.  We did use estimates of speeds

     

 19  based on the information developed by RailTech.

     

 20     Q.   So, and that was the maximum permissible speeds

     

 21  according to BNSF policy?

     

 22     A.   Yes, or that were required outside of BNSF.

     

 23     Q.   Well --

     

 24     A.   The minimum speed.  There were two competing

     

 25  speed limits.  We chose the lesser.
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 01     Q.   So with respect to Washougal, you picked, I

     

 02  believe, 35 miles per hour?

     

 03     A.   I believe so.

     

 04     Q.   And that was based on the BNSF policy?

     

 05     A.   Yes.

     

 06     Q.   So in your analysis, I think there were three

     

 07  criteria that you applied.  One was whether or not

     

 08  there's adequate queueing space to hold vehicles during

     

 09  the delay.  The second one was whether the, I'll call it

     

 10  facility-related oil trains would cause delay that

     

 11  exceeded the maximum delay occurring today at the

     

 12  crossings?

     

 13     A.   Uh-huh.

     

 14     Q.   Okay.  And then the third was whether or not

     

 15  there's an alternate route that drivers could take?

     

 16     A.   That's correct.

     

 17     Q.   And if one of those was satisfied, was it your

     

 18  opinion that the impact was not significant or adverse?

     

 19     A.   For the first two criteria, the comparison of

     

 20  proposed facility train delays versus current delays, if

     

 21  there was no increase then we -- my decision was that

     

 22  there was no impact, no increased impact, regardless of

     

 23  alternative routes being available.

     

 24     Q.   What if there was an increase but there was

     

 25  sufficient queueing?  Was your opinion then that there
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 01  was not a significant impact?

     

 02     A.   That's correct.  That was one of our

     

 03  conclusions --

     

 04     Q.   So -- sorry.

     

 05     A.   -- as in Pasco.

     

 06     Q.   So if you pass either test, sufficient queueing

     

 07  or you don't exceed the current maximum delay, the

     

 08  impact is not significant?

     

 09     A.   That's correct.

     

 10     Q.   In your analysis, was the longest delay caused

     

 11  by existing train traffic that was caused by an oil

     

 12  train?

     

 13     A.   I don't know if I can answer that question.  I

     

 14  did not look to see if the longest delay was caused by

     

 15  an oil train, but we do have measurement of number of

     

 16  cars in each of the incidents.  So if it was an oil unit

     

 17  train, we could tell if there were 100-plus cars in that

     

 18  chain, potentially it could be an oil train.

     

 19     Q.   But as you sit here today, you don't know one

     

 20  way or the other?

     

 21     A.   No.

     

 22     Q.   I reviewed -- I guess it's closest to Vancouver,

     

 23  so your Washougal crossing analysis.  So again, you took

     

 24  35 miles an hour, based on the BNSF policy, and a train

     

 25  length of 7,800 feet; correct?
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 01     A.   That's correct.

     

 02     Q.   And that's what came up to the three-minute and

     

 03  22-second delay time?

     

 04     A.   That's correct.

     

 05     Q.   So is that just given that speed and that

     

 06  length, that's the amount of time it would take that

     

 07  train to go by a crossing?

     

 08     A.   We also accounted for the gate operations.

     

 09     Q.   So the gate coming down and gate going up?

     

 10     A.   That's correct.

     

 11     Q.   What about deceleration as you're approaching

     

 12  the gate coming down?  Did you include a delay for that?

     

 13     A.   No.  We assumed that there was a constant rate

     

 14  of speed of the train.

     

 15     Q.   Okay.  And when the gate goes up, did you

     

 16  include any delay for re-acceleration to the speed

     

 17  limit?

     

 18     A.   No.

     

 19     Q.   Did you review the gate downtime analysis that

     

 20  was part of the Draft Environmental Impact Statement?

     

 21     A.   The gate downtime analysis as part of the DEIS?

     

 22              MR. JOHNSON:  Your Honor, I'm going to

     

 23  object at this point.  In fact, I think this could be

     

 24  one of the exhibits we need to discuss this afternoon.

     

 25  I think it's proprietary and subject to your DEIS
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 01  ruling, which is why I didn't ask questions about it.

     

 02  We're trying to toe the line here on your ruling.

     

 03              JUDGE NOBLE:  I appreciate that.

     

 04              Well, where were you going with this

     

 05  question, Mr. Potter?

     

 06              MR. POTTER:  There's alternate analysis of

     

 07  delay that's included in the gate downtime analysis.

     

 08  And Mr. Dunn's here offering opinions on that and I want

     

 09  to examine him about other analysis that's been done.

     

 10              JUDGE NOBLE:  Is it part of an exhibit

     

 11  that's been admitted?

     

 12              MR. POTTER:  I don't believe it has, Your

     

 13  Honor.  I didn't realize that there was an objection to

     

 14  it.

     

 15              MR. JOHNSON:  Well, because I think it's one

     

 16  of the exhibits that you offered.  Was it recently?

     

 17              MR. POTTER:  Correct.

     

 18              MR. JOHNSON:  So we haven't gotten to it

     

 19  yet.

     

 20              JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there a way we could get to

     

 21  it now?  What's the number?

     

 22              MR. JOHNSON:  It's 3130, Your Honor.  It's

     

 23  3130, Your Honor, it's Appendix N to the DEIS.  And this

     

 24  would be one that I think Ms. Reed has put into the

     

 25  record for you, but it's subject to further review

�2212

                           POTTER / DUNN

     

     

     

 01  because we haven't gotten to it yet.

     

 02              JUDGE NOBLE:  Subject to further foundation?

     

 03              MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, Your Honor.  It's on the

     

 04  list of exhibits that we need to go -- that we intended

     

 05  to go through this afternoon.  It wasn't on the original

     

 06  list.  So the problem with it is that it is part of the

     

 07  DEIS, and I believe it was -- I mean, it's the same

     

 08  problem we've been having with these other DEIS

     

 09  exhibits.  And so --

     

 10              JUDGE NOBLE:  But many of them have been

     

 11  admitted if they were an independent product of the

     

 12  witness and not expressing critique of the draft DEIS.

     

 13  Many of them have these reports --

     

 14              MR. JOHNSON:  I mean, I think that's

     

 15  specifically the testimony Mr. Potter is trying to

     

 16  elicit is a critique of what's in the DEIS from the

     

 17  witness, and that's the problem.

     

 18              JUDGE NOBLE:  I haven't seen the exhibit so

     

 19  I don't know if I can respond to that.  But the problem

     

 20  is that it's not in the record yet, and I don't -- we'll

     

 21  have to have that discussion.  And this witness can't be

     

 22  the witness, I guess, to lay a foundation for the

     

 23  exhibit.

     

 24              Ms. Reed wants to argue about this.

     

 25              MS. REED:  Well, I just wanted to respond in
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 01  that we offered this because we felt it was squarely

     

 02  within your ruling that issues that related to the DEIS

     

 03  but were not about the accuracy of the DEIS could be

     

 04  admitted if it was relevant to an expert's opinion.  And

     

 05  so that was the context in which we offered it.  We were

     

 06  not offering it to argue about the DEIS.

     

 07              JUDGE NOBLE:  I understand that, but there's

     

 08  been -- I guess there's an objection to that exhibit.

     

 09              MR. JOHNSON:  There is, Your Honor, based on

     

 10  your ruling.  So I mean, it's part of the DEIS.

     

 11              MR. POTTER:  The ruling was that there would

     

 12  be technical reports that are part of the DEIS that

     

 13  would be admitted, but this is one of them.

     

 14              MR. JOHNSON:  But not if it's proprietary to

     

 15  EFSEC, and I think that's where we're at.

     

 16              MS. REED:  Proprietary doesn't --

     

 17              JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.  It hasn't been

     

 18  admitted and this witness is not going to be able to lay

     

 19  a foundation for it and there's been an objection.  I've

     

 20  allowed all the exhibits that have been agreed to even

     

 21  though they were also in the draft DEIS as long as they

     

 22  weren't critiques of the draft DEIS.

     

 23              That's the problem with this exhibit is that

     

 24  it's objected to and so you would have to lay a

     

 25  foundation for it, and I don't think this witness can do
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 01  that.  Possibly another witness can.

     

 02              MR. POTTER:  I think one of the rulings was

     

 03  we could not call as witnesses consultants of council,

     

 04  so it's a little tough to lay a foundation when you

     

 05  can't do that.

     

 06              JUDGE NOBLE:  Well, you don't have the

     

 07  person here who created that analysis and that report,

     

 08  as I understand it.  And the other exhibits that have

     

 09  been admitted like that were exhibits prepared by the

     

 10  witnesses.  And there was also agreement that they could

     

 11  be admitted.  And we don't have either one of those

     

 12  conditions here.  So I'm going to sustain the objection

     

 13  at this time.  That doesn't mean that you can't present

     

 14  a witness or one of the other parties could present a

     

 15  witness to try again on that exhibit.

     

 16  BY MR. POTTER:

     

 17     Q.   So your calculation of the delay time was three

     

 18  minutes and 23 seconds?

     

 19     A.   In the Washougal area?

     

 20     Q.   Yeah.

     

 21     A.   I think that's correct.

     

 22     Q.   Okay.  Can you explain why your analysis of the

     

 23  6th Street, you assume a delay time of two minutes and

     

 24  32 seconds, Page 22 of your report?

     

 25     A.   The delay time -- are you talking about current
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 01  delay or unit train delays?

     

 02     Q.   Unit train delay.

     

 03     A.   It would have to be a function, then, of the

     

 04  speed that we selected for that location, that crossing.

     

 05     Q.   Are you at Page 22 of your report?  If you go to

     

 06  the very bottom there, it says, "Based on the assumed

     

 07  unit oil train metrics and speed and current gate

     

 08  operation, a proposed facility unit train is estimated

     

 09  to block the 6th Street crossing for a duration of two

     

 10  minutes and 32 seconds."

     

 11     A.   I'm looking at the tables prior to that, so I'd

     

 12  have to check the calculations on that.  But if it says

     

 13  two minutes, 32 seconds, that's what our estimate is for

     

 14  the oil unit train.

     

 15     Q.   So did the facility unit train get shorter or

     

 16  did it go faster than 35?

     

 17     A.   I'd have to check my calculations on that.  So I

     

 18  don't have an answer for you on that, why that number

     

 19  may be different than the other two.

     

 20     Q.   If you assume it's going 35 and it's 7,800 feet

     

 21  long, that calculation is wrong, isn't it?

     

 22     A.   If you're going 35 miles an hour?

     

 23     Q.   Yes.

     

 24     A.   And 7,800 feet in length?

     

 25     Q.   Correct.
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 01     A.   It's not consistent with the other two.  That

     

 02  number would be different.

     

 03     Q.   Is that another way of saying wrong?

     

 04              MR. JOHNSON:  Objection.  Asked and

     

 05  answered.

     

 06  BY MR. POTTER:

     

 07     Q.   If you use the three-minute and 23-second --

     

 08              JUDGE NOBLE:  Are you withdrawing the

     

 09  question and asking another one?

     

 10              MR. POTTER:  No, I'm not.

     

 11              JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.  Overruled.

     

 12  BY MR. POTTER:

     

 13     Q.   If you did use the three-minute and 23-second

     

 14  delay time for 6th Street, it would then exceed the

     

 15  maximum of existing train length?

     

 16     A.   It would not exceed the maximum time because I

     

 17  believe the maximum time is four minutes and five

     

 18  seconds.

     

 19     Q.   Was there a difference in southbound and

     

 20  northbound, for northbound?

     

 21     A.   There is a difference.

     

 22     Q.   So it would exceed the delay for northbound;

     

 23  right?

     

 24     A.   It would exceed it for the northbound but not

     

 25  the southbound, correct.
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 01     Q.   So would the fact that it would exceed the limit

     

 02  for northbound change your opinion about its

     

 03  significance?

     

 04     A.   It may not.  I'm looking at the prior table to

     

 05  where we use that information to develop what the queue

     

 06  lengths would be for that location northbound, and I'm

     

 07  seeing there still is additional available queue storage

     

 08  so there's additional storage available.

     

 09     Q.   So even if it's worse than the worst, as long as

     

 10  there's queueing it's okay?

     

 11     A.   I believe so, for stacking vehicles safely.

     

 12     Q.   With respect to the 32nd Street crossing, there

     

 13  you acknowledge that there's inadequate queueing space

     

 14  today for southbound traffic during the maximum delay?

     

 15     A.   That's correct.

     

 16     Q.   So is this where there's a phased interface for

     

 17  the signaling?

     

 18     A.   That's correct.  There's signal preemption at

     

 19  the adjacent signal.

     

 20     Q.   Does the fact that the queueing would back up to

     

 21  the intersection and beyond be significant?

     

 22     A.   The intersection is quite close so the

     

 23  spill-back does happen.  And it can extend to a number

     

 24  of different approaches at that signal both for the

     

 25  westbound left turn, eastbound right turn, and
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 01  southbound through.

     

 02     Q.   Your analysis also included, with respect to the

     

 03  ten crossings that you looked at, a review of the

     

 04  alternate routes available to the railroad crossings?

     

 05     A.   That's correct.

     

 06              MR. POTTER:  I believe Exhibit 3014, which

     

 07  was the list of crossings in Vancouver attached to

     

 08  Mr. Lopossa's testimony, has been admitted?

     

 09              JUDGE NOBLE:  My note indicates that --

     

 10  well, I don't have a note about whether or not it's been

     

 11  admitted.  It's on your list of ones that would be

     

 12  offered today.

     

 13              MR. JOHNSON:  Your Honor, I believe it's

     

 14  been admitted.

     

 15              MR. POTTER:  I'd move to admit.

     

 16              JUDGE NOBLE:  Well, let me just tell you

     

 17  that my exhibit list is behind because there was a

     

 18  technical problem and so I'm working on last week's

     

 19  exhibit list.  So I'll take your word for it, thank you.

     

 20  BY MR. POTTER:

     

 21     Q.   Mr. Dunn, can you tell us, what alternative

     

 22  route is available to avoid the crossing of Vancouver at

     

 23  the Steamboat Springs development that has an average

     

 24  daily traffic count of 1,660 vehicles?

     

 25     A.   I believe at that location, which is -- which
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 01  number is it on the map?  We have 27 crossings listed in

     

 02  the exhibit.  I'm trying to find the one that says

     

 03  Steamboat Springs.  Silver Springs.  Well, I've seen the

     

 04  list.  There was another exhibit that had estimated ADTs

     

 05  for the crossings.

     

 06     Q.   Right.  That's 3014.

     

 07     A.   And that particular location you were saying has

     

 08  1,600 ADT?

     

 09     Q.   Right.

     

 10     A.   So we did not look at that location.  It's below

     

 11  the 2,500 ADT that we used as a threshold for whether

     

 12  there could be meaningful delays and queues that are

     

 13  triggered.

     

 14     Q.   So you didn't look at it, you're not aware of

     

 15  any alternative route?

     

 16     A.   I'm not aware of any alternative route.  We did

     

 17  not evaluate it with our study.

     

 18     Q.   You did mention the SDS lumber mill that's

     

 19  located to the south of the railroad tracks?

     

 20     A.   That's correct.

     

 21     Q.   And there's no alternative route for that

     

 22  location, is there?

     

 23     A.   No.  I think there's sole access at-grade.

     

 24     Q.   And with respect to the Wintler Park, did you

     

 25  look at it at all?
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 01     A.   I'm not familiar with Wintler Park location.

     

 02     Q.   Do you know how many crossings in Vancouver the

     

 03  private railroad crossing or public crossing is the only

     

 04  means of ingress or egress to the properties south of

     

 05  the tracks?

     

 06     A.   Well, I'm seeing 27 on the exhibit of public and

     

 07  private crossings in the City of Vancouver.

     

 08     Q.   Right.  That's the total crossings.  Do you know

     

 09  how many of those are the only means of ingress and

     

 10  egress to the property to the south?

     

 11     A.   No.  I imagine there's quite a few given that

     

 12  many of these private driveways lead to a single-family

     

 13  residence or a small grouping of homes.

     

 14     Q.   You talked in your testimony about modern

     

 15  development codes would require a second access or

     

 16  sprinkler systems.

     

 17          Is it your testimony that the homes in the East

     

 18  Evergreen area all have sprinkler systems because they

     

 19  only have one means of access?

     

 20     A.   No.  I think what I'm referring to is that those

     

 21  communities may have been built after the rail line was

     

 22  established perhaps prior to when those codes were

     

 23  developed.

     

 24     Q.   Right, over a century ago.  So I guess the

     

 25  significance of the modern development standards
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 01  requiring the sprinkler system is what?

     

 02     A.   I can't speculate on when those codes were

     

 03  developed.

     

 04     Q.   You used a term in your testimony, "level of

     

 05  service."  With respect to traffic analysis, what is a

     

 06  level of service?

     

 07     A.   Sure.  For the analysis of traffic flow, we in

     

 08  our profession use a term called "level of service" or

     

 09  LOS.  And it's a mechanism that was developed by the --

     

 10  within the highway capacity manual which is produced by

     

 11  the National -- sorry, Federal Highways Administration.

     

 12          So level of service is essentially almost like a

     

 13  report card, A through F, A being light demand, plenty

     

 14  of capacity, good flow, to level of service F which is

     

 15  failure or excessive delays.  And in our field we have

     

 16  developed a number of different level of service

     

 17  criteria for -- which apply to traffic signals and

     

 18  stop-controlled intersections or even yield-controlled

     

 19  intersections and roundabouts.

     

 20     Q.   So for a signalized intersection, a delay of

     

 21  over 80 seconds is level of service F; correct?

     

 22     A.   That's correct.

     

 23     Q.   And for an unsignalized intersection, a delay of

     

 24  over 50 seconds is an LOS F; correct?

     

 25     A.   That's correct.
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 01     Q.   Kittleson & Associates prepares traffic impact

     

 02  analysis for development proposals in Vancouver, doesn't

     

 03  it?

     

 04     A.   Yes, we do.

     

 05     Q.   And in Vancouver, if a development that's being

     

 06  proposed would cause an intersection to experience or

     

 07  roll into LOS F, that's a failure, isn't it?

     

 08     A.   That's correct.

     

 09     Q.   And the proposal, the development proposal would

     

 10  either have to mitigate that to avoid the LOS F or be

     

 11  denied?

     

 12     A.   That sounds like a true statement.

     

 13     Q.   Okay.  Isn't it true in this case that the

     

 14  three-minute and 23-second delay caused by the unit

     

 15  trains is more than twice the LOS F, F for a signalized

     

 16  intersection?

     

 17     A.   That's a true statement.

     

 18     Q.   When you prepare a traffic impact analysis for a

     

 19  development proposal, you prepare an existing condition

     

 20  of the traffic condition without the proposed

     

 21  development?

     

 22     A.   That's correct.

     

 23     Q.   And then you prepare an operating year baseline

     

 24  that's the existing traffic plus traffic generated by

     

 25  the proposed developer?
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 01     A.   That's correct.

     

 02     Q.   And then don't you prepare a future buildout

     

 03  traffic analysis that includes the increase of volume

     

 04  due to growth?

     

 05     A.   From the development itself or from --

     

 06     Q.   No, just background growth in the city.

     

 07     A.   Typically we do produce a background analysis of

     

 08  what conditions would be like in the future without the

     

 09  development.

     

 10     Q.   All right.  And even with the development, don't

     

 11  you do a five-year and ten-year future buildout

     

 12  analysis?

     

 13     A.   Not necessarily.

     

 14     Q.   In this case you didn't do any analysis with

     

 15  respect to the queueing of the crossings that you looked

     

 16  at for future growth and population, did you?

     

 17     A.   No.

     

 18     Q.   So even though there may be sufficient queueing

     

 19  today, you're not able to say if there's going to be

     

 20  sufficient queueing in five or ten years?

     

 21     A.   Not with this analysis.

     

 22              MR. POTTER:  Thank you.  That's all I have.

     

 23              JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other cross-examination of

     

 24  Mr. Dunn?  Redirect?

     

 25  ///
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 01                    REDIRECT EXAMINATION

     

 02  BY MR. JOHNSON:

     

 03     Q.   Mr. Dunn, with regard to the ten intersections

     

 04  that you analyzed, was that a function of the 2,500 ADT

     

 05  baseline that you established?

     

 06     A.   That's correct.

     

 07     Q.   Okay.

     

 08              MR. JOHNSON:  Nothing further, Your Honor.

     

 09              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Potter, before you go, I

     

 10  want to make sure I have the number of the exhibits that

     

 11  we had discussion about.  You had communicated that you

     

 12  were going to be offering 3014 today.

     

 13              MR. POTTER:  Well, 3014 was the one that we

     

 14  talked about that we think is admitted.  If it's not

     

 15  I'll move at this time for its admission.

     

 16              JUDGE NOBLE:  I will check on that to make

     

 17  sure.  But the exhibit that you offered and it was not

     

 18  admitted with your argument, I want to make sure I have

     

 19  the number for that.

     

 20              MR. POTTER:  That's 3130.

     

 21              JUDGE NOBLE:  3130, all right, thank you.

     

 22              All right, Mr. Dunn, thank you very much for

     

 23  your testimony.  You are excused as a witness -- oh,

     

 24  that's right.  All right.  To my right, are there

     

 25  council questions?
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 01              Mr. Snodgrass?

     

 02              MR. SNODGRASS:  Good afternoon.  Thank you

     

 03  for your testimony.

     

 04              I understand that you testified, I think you

     

 05  saw you for the prior witness, so I'll ask a question

     

 06  that I asked him.  And that was about -- he indicated

     

 07  traffic was not his expertise, and that was regarding

     

 08  evacuations.

     

 09              Is it either within your analysis or the

     

 10  scope of a traffic engineer and so on, are you aware of

     

 11  any kind of analysis or information on evacuations

     

 12  through -- most of these at-grade crossings I understand

     

 13  were two-lane road or one in and out.  At what levels

     

 14  that works and doesn't, and by "works and doesn't" I

     

 15  don't necessarily mean somebody might sway over the line

     

 16  a little bit but where there's a serious chance of an

     

 17  accident -- (Court reporter interruption.)  I will go

     

 18  slower, though.

     

 19              Are you aware of any analysis at all on at

     

 20  what point evacuations through a pinch point like that

     

 21  work, meaning that people can get in and out and at what

     

 22  point they don't?

     

 23              THE WITNESS:  No, I'm not aware.

     

 24              MR. SNODGRASS:  The other -- another measure

     

 25  at least to my knowledge of traffic overall is vehicle
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 01  hours of delays for systems or other individual

     

 02  projects.  But for the sake of -- let's say for the sake

     

 03  of argument this project adds four additional unit

     

 04  trains beyond the current level.

     

 05              And so in the ten intersections that you

     

 06  looked at, do you have a figure of what vehicle hours or

     

 07  vehicle minutes or however you want to express that of

     

 08  delay is created by the additional four?

     

 09              THE WITNESS:  I did not calculate the hours

     

 10  of the vehicle delay associated with these crossings.

     

 11              MR. SNODGRASS:  Okay.  And I'm sure it's in

     

 12  the record, I can't remember where.  How many crossings

     

 13  are there, public and private, throughout the rail

     

 14  corridor?

     

 15              THE WITNESS:  I'm not aware of how many

     

 16  there are total.

     

 17              MR. SNODGRASS:  And I guess lastly, just I'm

     

 18  trying to get my head around the issue of the four

     

 19  trains not adding to the total.  Just to kind of

     

 20  illustrate with an example, the days that you looked at

     

 21  I assume were relatively representative, not highly

     

 22  unusual, as best you could determine.  So in 6th Street

     

 23  Washougal, it looks like, if I counted right, 27 or 28

     

 24  trains westbound.  Wouldn't adding four to that increase

     

 25  the total by about 15 percent?
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 01              THE WITNESS:  If you were adding four, yes.

     

 02              MR. SNODGRASS:  Okay.  So there had earlier

     

 03  been testimony, I think it was from BNSF, that there

     

 04  would be no displacement of trains.  So how would the

     

 05  four additional trains serving this project, how would

     

 06  that not represent some sort of an addition?

     

 07              THE WITNESS:  It sounds like because four

     

 08  oil unit trains could already be within that total that

     

 09  you started with.  Because this is one commodity, some

     

 10  of those other trains could have been carrying another

     

 11  commodity and on another day it's a different commodity.

     

 12              The testimony I heard from BNSF was that

     

 13  this -- you know, that the rail corridor has a

     

 14  fluctuation of traffic levels and that this project is

     

 15  within that fluctuation of seasonal traffic and annual

     

 16  traffic.

     

 17              MR. SNODGRASS:  But unless there's a

     

 18  displacement, wouldn't it represent an issue?

     

 19              THE WITNESS:  Well, I'm not -- I don't

     

 20  maintain the BNSF rail line, they manage the line

     

 21  themselves.  But from what I understand, they manage the

     

 22  trains in their corridor according to their plan, and

     

 23  there are many factors I think that go into that plan on

     

 24  how they manage traffic levels.

     

 25              MR. SNODGRASS:  And not being a little bit
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 01  more familiar with traffic analysis and regulations and

     

 02  so forth, I'm not an expert like yourself, is there any

     

 03  jurisdiction in which you, Kittleson, would do business

     

 04  in which you would -- particularly in Washington where

     

 05  there's concurrency regulations, where if you're

     

 06  increasing the traffic at an intersection by about 15

     

 07  percent but the increase was still within the

     

 08  seasonality range, it would still -- there may be some

     

 09  discussion about which is the appropriate baseline, but

     

 10  that it would still be not regulated as additional

     

 11  traffic?

     

 12              Have you ever encountered that

     

 13  professionally?

     

 14              THE WITNESS:  I've encountered analyses

     

 15  performed where we do baseline counts, we do a count for

     

 16  seasonal fluctuations.

     

 17              MR. SNODGRASS:  But where the jurisdiction

     

 18  regulating it sets the fact that as long as you're

     

 19  within the seasonal fluctuation, the amount of

     

 20  additional traffic, which isn't -- everyone agrees what

     

 21  that might be and whatever example -- wasn't represented

     

 22  initially?

     

 23              THE WITNESS:  In the area of traffic and

     

 24  vehicular traffic, that sounds like a reasonable

     

 25  statement.
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 01              MR. SNODGRASS:  Okay.  Nothing further,

     

 02  thank you.

     

 03              JUDGE NOBLE:  Other questions?

     

 04              Mr. Stone?

     

 05              MR. STONE:  Good afternoon.

     

 06              Did your traffic impact analysis include the

     

 07  return route of these unit oil trains?

     

 08              THE WITNESS:  The traffic analysis for

     

 09  at-grade intersections only accounted for the Gorge

     

 10  line.

     

 11              MR. STONE:  So the state Department of

     

 12  Transportation has identified 26 operationally sensitive

     

 13  at-grade crossings along this rail route.

     

 14              Did you include those in your consideration?

     

 15              THE WITNESS:  No, we did not.  We screened

     

 16  for the roadways that had certain volume thresholds,

     

 17  intersecting traffic volumes.

     

 18              MR. STONE:  And that was the 2,500 ADT?

     

 19              THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

     

 20              MR. STONE:  So you're saying that none of

     

 21  these crossings of this railroad on the state highway,

     

 22  none of those exceeded 2,500 ADT?

     

 23              THE WITNESS:  I don't believe so, if they're

     

 24  at-grade.

     

 25              MR. STONE:  Did your analysis include
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 01  impacts of unit oil trains to passenger rail operations

     

 02  in the state of Washington?

     

 03              THE WITNESS:  No.

     

 04              MR. STONE:  That's all I have.

     

 05              JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other questions to my

     

 06  right?  To my left?

     

 07              Mr. Moss?

     

 08              MR. MOSS:  Good afternoon.

     

 09              You used the turn of phrase "no meaningful

     

 10  delay" in describing your general conclusions at the

     

 11  outset of your testimony today.  At least that's the

     

 12  phrase I wrote down.

     

 13              Is that your general conclusion, that the

     

 14  unit oil trains, the addition of these trains, terminal

     

 15  trains would cause no meaningful delay?

     

 16              THE WITNESS:  No.  "No increased delay" is

     

 17  probably the more correct statement, except at one

     

 18  location out of the ten.

     

 19              MR. MOSS:  Okay.  Let me just ask, focusing

     

 20  on Cheney, apparently you recognize there is a

     

 21  possibility of those three crossings being blocked

     

 22  simultaneously.

     

 23              Do you consider a 30-minute drive to an

     

 24  alternative location to be a viable alternative for

     

 25  motorists?
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 01              THE WITNESS:  If it's the only alternative,

     

 02  that's the only alternative to drive around to get back

     

 03  to downtown Cheney on the northwest side of the tracks.

     

 04  In light of the testimony that I've heard from

     

 05  Mr. Rhoads here earlier today, it sounds like that would

     

 06  not be the case in the event of an emergency or

     

 07  derailment; that the train engineer decouples the train

     

 08  as a first priority and moves the train out of the area,

     

 09  which tells me that one of those three crossings in

     

 10  Cheney would reopen, one or more of them.

     

 11              MR. MOSS:  But do you know how long it would

     

 12  take for the engineer to decouple cars and move that

     

 13  train?

     

 14              THE WITNESS:  I do not.

     

 15              MR. MOSS:  Okay.  You talk about something

     

 16  in the approximate range of a three-minute delay for a

     

 17  queue at a crossing on either one of these trains; is

     

 18  that right?

     

 19              THE WITNESS:  I think in Washougal that was

     

 20  the estimates that we were coming up with.

     

 21              MR. MOSS:  Okay.  Well, what I'm wondering

     

 22  is, would that be a three-minute delay for everybody in

     

 23  the queue or just the lead car in the queue?

     

 24              THE WITNESS:  Just the lead car.

     

 25              MR. MOSS:  And so if there were 50 cars
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 01  backed up, do you have any idea of what the delay would

     

 02  be for number 49?

     

 03              THE WITNESS:  If they're just arriving, it

     

 04  would be a matter of how fast the queue dissipates in

     

 05  front of them.

     

 06              MR. MOSS:  So it would take five minutes?

     

 07              THE WITNESS:  It's a function of how long

     

 08  the queue is in front.

     

 09              MR. MOSS:  Now, in terms of first

     

 10  responders, ambulances, fire, police, do I understand

     

 11  you correctly that you disagreed with other testimony in

     

 12  this proceeding that there might be I think ten-minute

     

 13  delay was the reference you used, you disagreed with

     

 14  that on the basis that you heard from two out of four

     

 15  first responders you questioned that there wouldn't be

     

 16  any such delays?

     

 17              THE WITNESS:  Well, I think the information

     

 18  that we presented in our analysis also looked at what

     

 19  our alternative travel times for other routes.  And for

     

 20  our analysis, if you take Cheney out of it which we

     

 21  thought was a 30-minute drive around, those other

     

 22  locations, seven of them, based on our estimates of

     

 23  drive time, travel speed, hitting signals or stop signs

     

 24  along the way to get to the exact opposite side of the

     

 25  tracks, was 5 to 13 minutes.  That's what our analysis
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 01  indicated.  So if a vehicle or an ambulance or fire

     

 02  truck is trying to get to the other side of the at-grade

     

 03  crossing that's blocked, that's approximately how much

     

 04  time it would take to go around.

     

 05              But my other point is that we don't feel

     

 06  we're adding trains to these crossings and, therefore,

     

 07  we're not adding more burden to the system in the event

     

 08  of an emergency response.  That they're already

     

 09  encountering these instances today, they have to

     

 10  negotiate their way around these crossings for normal --

     

 11  or, sorry, current rail traffic.

     

 12              MR. MOSS:  You collected data over 48 hours.

     

 13  What time of year?

     

 14              THE WITNESS:  The date in there was earlier

     

 15  this year.  I would say it was in the spring.  I don't

     

 16  have the month exactly.

     

 17              MR. MOSS:  You mentioned the significance of

     

 18  seasonal and annual variations in train traffic, that's

     

 19  why I'm asking when was it.  It would make a difference,

     

 20  wouldn't it?

     

 21              THE WITNESS:  There's really two factors.

     

 22  The train fluctuations but also for traffic.  We did

     

 23  make sure that we did these counts when there was a

     

 24  normal traffic pattern going on, meaning schools were in

     

 25  session.  We counted during the middle of the week,
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 01  which is like a Tuesday, Wednesday or Thursday and

     

 02  instead of electing to do either a weekend or a Monday

     

 03  or Friday when vehicular traffic patterns can vary quite

     

 04  a bit.

     

 05              MR. MOSS:  Don't train traffic patterns vary

     

 06  quite a bit over the course of a year as well?

     

 07              THE WITNESS:  I'm not aware of the

     

 08  fluctuations in train traffic over the course of a year.

     

 09              MR. MOSS:  You did give some testimony about

     

 10  your understanding of the dynamic nature of the system

     

 11  as testified to by an earlier witness from BNSF?

     

 12              THE WITNESS:  Yeah.  And I think I'm

     

 13  referring to that testimony, not mine.

     

 14              MR. MOSS:  Okay.  You don't have any

     

 15  independent knowledge of that?

     

 16              THE WITNESS:  No.

     

 17              MR. MOSS:  Okay.  Getting back to a question

     

 18  that I think Mr. Snodgrass asked, he pointed out that we

     

 19  have testimony in the proceeding, in fact, I think it

     

 20  was from that same BNSF witness, Ms. Kaitala, that there

     

 21  would be no displacement of current rail traffic, yet

     

 22  there would be 28 additional trains per week as a result

     

 23  of this facility.

     

 24              Now, while that may fluctuate day-to-day,

     

 25  over the course of a longer period of time, that means
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 01  more trains added to the train traffic in Washington,

     

 02  doesn't it?

     

 03              THE WITNESS:  I can't answer that.

     

 04              MR. MOSS:  Okay.  You testified, in fact, it

     

 05  came up more than once, concerning the fact that the

     

 06  railroad was built before some of the development around

     

 07  it.  Why is that significant?

     

 08              THE WITNESS:  I think the point is that some

     

 09  of these residential households have private driveways

     

 10  or accesses that only have one crossing the rail line.

     

 11  And my point being is that many of these developments --

     

 12  sorry, developments that have multiple residences and

     

 13  might have more vehicular traffic, they were developed

     

 14  after the rail line was sustained but made perhaps prior

     

 15  to when codes required either a secondary access or

     

 16  perhaps sprinklers in their households.

     

 17              MR. MOSS:  Does there need to be some

     

 18  accommodation made, then, to account for the change

     

 19  that's taken place historically where those neighbors

     

 20  exist as you describe them?

     

 21              THE WITNESS:  I can't speak to that.  I'm

     

 22  not a building code specialist.

     

 23              MR. MOSS:  Okay, all right.  I think that's

     

 24  all I have for you.  Thank you very much.

     

 25              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Rossman?
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 01              MR. ROSSMAN:  Thank you for your testimony

     

 02  today.

     

 03              I'm struggling a little bit with this

     

 04  conversation around delays, and I'm wondering if you can

     

 05  succinctly define the word "delay" as you've used it in

     

 06  this report.

     

 07              THE WITNESS:  Yeah, so "delay" in this

     

 08  report is reflecting the delay that drivers would

     

 09  experience as they wait at an at-grade crossing for a

     

 10  train event.

     

 11              MR. ROSSMAN:  So it's not dependent on the

     

 12  amount of time they would have waited relative to a

     

 13  different train or anything of that nature, it's simply

     

 14  the amount of time that they wait at that crossing is

     

 15  what the word "delay" means?

     

 16              THE WITNESS:  In this case, yes.

     

 17              MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  And I think you

     

 18  discussed significant or insignificant delays in this

     

 19  report.  Is that right?

     

 20              THE WITNESS:  Insignificant or significant

     

 21  delays?

     

 22              MR. ROSSMAN:  Yeah.

     

 23              THE WITNESS:  I don't know if we

     

 24  characterized delays as significant or not.  Do you have

     

 25  a specific reference?
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 01              MR. ROSSMAN:  Yeah.  Just, I mean, one

     

 02  example would be on the page that is marked Page 18 of

     

 03  the exhibit, second to last paragraph, "Therefore,

     

 04  proposed facility unit oil trains represent a lower or

     

 05  insignificant, but not adverse, impact on delays and

     

 06  queues as compared to current rail crossing conditions."

     

 07              So I think you're referring to the impact of

     

 08  the project on the delays as significant or

     

 09  insignificant?

     

 10              THE WITNESS:  Well, I guess in this case

     

 11  "insignificant" meaning that the delays were less for an

     

 12  oil unit train.

     

 13              MR. ROSSMAN:  Is there some external sort of

     

 14  standard or guideline that informs your determination of

     

 15  significant versus insignificant there?

     

 16              THE WITNESS:  There's no criteria or rating

     

 17  system for at-grade crossing to rate something if it's

     

 18  significant or not.  There was an attempt earlier to try

     

 19  to tie the world of vehicular traffic and level of

     

 20  service with railroad operations and delay at railroad

     

 21  crossings, but they're not connected.  Their criteria is

     

 22  well established for vehicular traffic at intersections

     

 23  and long roadway segments, but there's nothing in the

     

 24  highway capacity manual that has a rating system

     

 25  established for rail crossings and delays at rail
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 01  crossings for motorists.

     

 02              MR. ROSSMAN:  So how did you -- what

     

 03  determines whether something is significant or

     

 04  insignificant?

     

 05              THE WITNESS:  I guess in this case if we saw

     

 06  that the delays increased by oil unit trains, if those

     

 07  delays go up, that there's potential for a significant

     

 08  effect.  And the secondary tool that we use was to look

     

 09  at how did the queues develop as a result of those

     

 10  delays.  Are they meaningful?  Are they excessive?  Do

     

 11  they get longer?  Do they -- would the oil unit trains

     

 12  cause those queues to get so long that there's not

     

 13  enough available storage for those vehicles?

     

 14              MR. ROSSMAN:  And is that analysis of the

     

 15  relation between the delay and the queue length, is that

     

 16  based on some guideline or regulatory standard?

     

 17              THE WITNESS:  No, it was based on

     

 18  assumptions of vehicle length and -- vehicle length.

     

 19              MR. ROSSMAN:  Have you done an analysis like

     

 20  this of changes in rail traffic before?

     

 21              THE WITNESS:  Not like this one.

     

 22              MR. ROSSMAN:  Are you familiar with other --

     

 23              THE WITNESS:  No.

     

 24              MR. ROSSMAN:  I guess I'm wondering what

     

 25  factors went into the scoping decisions.  And

�2239

                                DUNN

     

     

     

 01  particularly I'm wondering about the 2,500 threshold for

     

 02  average daily trips; is that right?

     

 03              THE WITNESS:  Uh-huh.

     

 04              MR. ROSSMAN:  That would seem a thing that

     

 05  would, in terms of its relative significance, depend

     

 06  very much on sort of the size of the community.  I would

     

 07  wonder, it seems like your -- am I right that -- like I

     

 08  can tell that that was just a term as a threshold for

     

 09  the entire corridor; is that right?

     

 10              THE WITNESS:  That's correct.

     

 11              MR. ROSSMAN:  So a community that had a few

     

 12  hundred people couldn't enter into consideration in

     

 13  this?

     

 14              THE WITNESS:  We did look at the three

     

 15  crossings in Cheney, and none of those crossings had

     

 16  2,500 ADT or higher.  We did add those three because of

     

 17  the purported impact on the crossings in that city so we

     

 18  elected to have those three crossings in.  The other

     

 19  seven, I believe one of them was still below 2,500, but

     

 20  we looked at seven others that were at that level or

     

 21  higher.

     

 22              MR. ROSSMAN:  Okay.  Thank you very much.

     

 23              JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other questions to my

     

 24  left?

     

 25              Could I just ask you to expound on the
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 01  concept of available storage.  Why is that important to

     

 02  the person trying to get across the track while they're

     

 03  being blocked by any train?

     

 04              THE WITNESS:  So the factor of addressing

     

 05  available storage is not necessarily for a driver

     

 06  attempting to get across, it's looking at the space

     

 07  available to drivers as they are waiting at a crossing.

     

 08  As those vehicles stack up when the gates go down, what

     

 09  happens to that queue once it develops to its full

     

 10  potential?  Is there enough lane storage on that roadway

     

 11  segment to accommodate those drivers?  Or perhaps is

     

 12  there a major intersection nearby, a signalized

     

 13  intersection where those queues may spill back into that

     

 14  intersection and cause potentially safety issues.

     

 15  Because there are other movements occurring at that

     

 16  signal than just the drivers trying to get on to this

     

 17  particular road.

     

 18              JUDGE NOBLE:  All right, thank you.

     

 19              Questions based upon council questions?

     

 20              MR. POTTER:  I don't have any.

     

 21              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Johnson?

     

 22                    REDIRECT EXAMINATION

     

 23  BY MR. JOHNSON:

     

 24     Q.   You may have answered this already, but

     

 25  Mr. Snodgrass asked you to compare the way you measure
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 01  the increase in delay for other types of projects, and

     

 02  Mr. Potter, I think, asked you more precisely about

     

 03  level of service impacts.

     

 04          In your experience, is it usual to measure

     

 05  impacts from rail on intersections in the same way that

     

 06  you measure impacts on intersections produced by vehicle

     

 07  traffic from a project?

     

 08     A.   No.

     

 09     Q.   Okay.  And with regard to the same issue, even

     

 10  if it were, the delays you spoke of or the level of

     

 11  service that you spoke of, that's a measure of current

     

 12  impact, is that not --

     

 13     A.   Can you ask the question again?

     

 14     Q.   Sorry about that.

     

 15          So to the extent that you provided some

     

 16  testimony about level of service, even though it's

     

 17  apples and oranges, those impacts that you spoke to are

     

 18  impacts currently, they're not impacts related to rail

     

 19  traffic from the project; correct?

     

 20     A.   Correct.

     

 21              MR. JOHNSON:  Nothing further.

     

 22              JUDGE NOBLE:  Thank you.  I have one

     

 23  question for you.

     

 24              Mr. Potter, 3130, again, I think I made an

     

 25  assumption that Mr. Dunn was not the author of that
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 01  exhibit and I can't look at it for technical reasons for

 02  some reason on my computer, so I just want to make sure

 03  before I excuse him as a witness.

 04              MR. POTTER:  He is not the author.

 05              JUDGE NOBLE:  All right, thank you.

 06              Mr. Dunn, thank you for your testimony

 07  today.  You are excused as a witness.

 08              THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

 09              JUDGE NOBLE:  Do you have any further

 10  witnesses, Mr. Johnson, Mr. Derr, Mr. Kisielius?

 11              MR. JOHNSON:  Your Honor, this would

 12  conclude our case-in-chief, if you will, with the

 13  exception of Mr. Barkan who we're reserving.  We will be

 14  reserving the remainder of our time to apply to

 15  cross-examination of the opposing party witnesses as

 16  well as rebuttal at the end of their case.  But we'll

 17  check to find out what the count is as of this

 18  afternoon.  I'm not sure where we're at on that.

 19              JUDGE NOBLE:  So with the exception of

 20  Mr. Barkan, do you rest your case?

 21              MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, Your Honor, we rest at

 22  this point, with the exception of Mr. Barkan.

 23              JUDGE NOBLE:  Thank you.

 24              Well, as I understand it, the opponents are

 25  going to be beginning their case tomorrow morning and
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 01  we're almost at the end of the day.

 02              And so is there anything that we need to do

 03  before we address the exhibits?  And we don't need to do

 04  that in the presence of council so we'll have just a

 05  five-minute recess before we do that.  But is there

 06  anything we need to do on the record before council

 07  leaves?

 08              MR. KISIELIUS:  Witnesses for tomorrow.

 09              JUDGE NOBLE:  Oh, right, witnesses for

 10  tomorrow.

 11              MS. BOYLES:  We would anticipate doing the

 12  prerecorded testimony of Ms. Susan Harvey.  She's on oil

 13  spill risk response and planning.  I'm sorry.  The

 14  prerecorded testimony of Ms. Susan Harvey on oil spill

 15  risk response and planning, followed by Mr. Lopossa who

 16  is transportation manager for the City of Vancouver on

 17  rail crossings and traffic delays, followed by

 18  Mr. Appleton who is the Mosier fire chief to talk about

 19  the Mosier accident.

 20              JUDGE NOBLE:  And as I remember, only Ms.

 21  Harvey has prefiled testimony; is that right?

 22              MS. BOYLES:  She is the only one that has

 23  prerecorded testimony.  She has the prefiled testimony

 24  and then she has her prerecorded testimony.

 25              JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.
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 01              MR. POTTER:  Lopossa has prefiled testimony.

 02              JUDGE NOBLE:  All right, thank you.

 03              Anything else we need to do on the record

 04  before council leaves?  Thank you.  We're off the

 05  record.

 06              (Recess taken from 5:06 p.m. to 5:18 p.m.)

 07              JUDGE NOBLE:  Parties, let's have a look at

 08  these exhibits.  Mr. Potter, aren't these your exhibits?

 09  Do you have a mic?

 10              MS. BOYLES:  They are, Your Honor.  I'm

 11  taking over -- no.

 12              We have two from the other day that were the

 13  Washington State Rail Plan and another report that I've

 14  since provided to Mr. Derr and Mr. Johnson, and so we

 15  can do those faster and let those get out of the way

 16  faster.

 17              JUDGE NOBLE:  Good.  What are the numbers?

 18              MS. BOYLES:  So that was 5630.

 19              JUDGE NOBLE:  And?

 20              MS. BOYLES:  And 5631.  We have sent them to

 21  Ms. Mastro.  And I believe there is no objection to

 22  5630, but there is an objection to 5631.

 23              MR. JOHNSON:  Correct.

 24              JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.  So I don't have a

 25  5630 on my list yet.  But 5630 will be admitted.
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 01              Ms. Mastro, do you have that 5630 is

 02  admitted?

 03              MS. MASTRO:  Yes, Your Honor.

 04              JUDGE NOBLE:  And 5631, could you just tell

 05  me what that is?

 06              MS. BOYLES:  Yes.  The 5630 is the

 07  Washington State Rail Plan.

 08              JUDGE NOBLE:  Right.

 09              MS. BOYLES:  And 5631 is a report done by a

 10  different rail traffic -- an analyst called Heavy

 11  Traffic Still Ahead, which discusses the Washington

 12  State Rail Plan and specifically discusses the oil train

 13  traffic, and so is a good summary of what this much

 14  larger state rail plan says about oil train traffic in

 15  particular.

 16              JUDGE NOBLE:  And there's an objection to

 17  that.  Could I hear the nature of the objection?

 18              MR. JOHNSON:  Yes, Your Honor.  First of

 19  all, I guess I just wanted to clarify, since there are a

 20  number of these, are we actually going to take up

 21  objections on each one or are we going to do like we did

 22  before; get the list, get the ones that we don't object

 23  to admitted, and then take up the objections later?

 24              JUDGE NOBLE:  That would be the proper way

 25  to do it.  I don't even know what witness would be
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 01  sponsoring this, if any.

 02              MS. BOYLES:  These in particular came the

 03  other day in response to council questions.  I offered

 04  them and then you all wanted to look at them.  I can't

 05  recall the witness's name.  It was Ms. Kaitala.  So

 06  these have already been -- they're pending, in my view.

 07              JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.  I'll look at 5631

 08  again.  So they've already been discussed in the course

 09  of the testimony.

 10              MR. JOHNSON:  Well, no, they've been offered

 11  in response to some of her testimony but they haven't --

 12  there's been no foundation laid for them.  I disagree

 13  with Ms. Boyles' characterization of the exhibits that

 14  we do have an objection to for a number of reasons.  And

 15  that's why I asked the question about are we going to

 16  take up each objection now.

 17              So I don't want us leaving thinking somehow

 18  they've already been discussed such that a foundation

 19  has been laid.  And, frankly, that's one of my bases for

 20  objecting is there isn't a foundation for that exhibit,

 21  so.

 22              JUDGE NOBLE:  Right, I got it.  So we won't

 23  be able to deal with that one at this time.

 24              MS. BOYLES:  I'm sorry, Your Honor.

 25              JUDGE NOBLE:  That's all right.
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 01              We have some information about that but it

 02  seems insufficient as to foundation at this time.  And I

 03  don't know whether you'd be able to lay a foundation

 04  with another witness, but I don't feel that I can rule

 05  on it yet.

 06              MS. BOYLES:  Okay.  We'll leave that one

 07  pending, Your Honor.  Thank you.

 08              JUDGE NOBLE:  So now we have Mr. Potter's

 09  exhibits?

 10              MS. CARTER:  May I ask, can we have some

 11  exhibits that don't have -- well, they currently have

 12  objections but they were attached to some direct

 13  testimony, prefiled direct testimony that we had -- and

 14  I talked to both counsel and they have agreed, they're

 15  Google map depictions of treaty fishing access sites,

 16  and they're Exhibits 5221 to 5251.  And I just wanted to

 17  get those admitted.

 18              JUDGE NOBLE:  So every number, 5221 through

 19  5251 and all the numbers in between.

 20              MS. CARTER:  Exactly.

 21              JUDGE NOBLE:  And it's my understanding from

 22  what you just said there's no objection.

 23              Mr. Johnson, is there an objection to those

 24  exhibits?

 25              MR. JOHNSON:  Your Honor, I don't believe
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 01  so, but Mr. Bartz and I are both double checking.  Just

 02  give us 30 seconds.

 03              No objection, Your Honor.

 04              JUDGE NOBLE:  Exhibits 5221 through 5251 are

 05  all admitted.

 06              MS. CARTER:  Thank you.

 07              JUDGE NOBLE:  Now, what do we have next?

 08              MR. HALLVIK:  Taylor Hallvik with Clark

 09  County.  And I have very similar housekeeping kind of

 10  exhibit matter to follow up on with the exhibits we were

 11  just -- the kind of exhibits we were just talking about

 12  which were attached to prefiled testimony.  Originally

 13  these are CVs, and Clark County has now offered them as

 14  separate exhibits for your earlier rulings, and we've

 15  circulated them to everybody and there's no objection to

 16  their entry.  And so I would offer those at this time.

 17              JUDGE NOBLE:  What are their numbers?

 18              MR. HALLVIK:  They are 2012 and 2013.

 19              JUDGE NOBLE:  And it's obvious which witness

 20  they go with?

 21              MR. HALLVIK:  Yes.  And I'll clarify for the

 22  record.  2012 is the CV of Dr. Eric Peterson, and

 23  Exhibit Number 2013 is CV of Richard Bishop.

 24              JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there any objection to

 25  Exhibits 2012 and 2013?
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 01              MR. JOHNSON:  No, Your Honor.

 02              JUDGE NOBLE:  Exhibits 2012 and 2013 are

 03  admitted.

 04              MR. HALLVIK:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 05              JUDGE NOBLE:  Mr. Potter, I think you're

 06  next.

 07              MS. REED:  Your Honor, I'm going to be

 08  discussing it primarily.

 09              JUDGE NOBLE:  All right, Ms. Reed.

 10              MS. REED:  So our additional exhibits start

 11  with 2123 which is a problem versus response timeline

 12  that is contained in Mr. Hildebrand's prefiled direct

 13  testimony.  We provided this because it's a clearer page

 14  version of the figure that appears in his testimony.  We

 15  thought it would be easier for parties to see.  So this

 16  is already embedded within prefiled testimony.

 17              JUDGE NOBLE:  The Exhibit 2123, I don't have

 18  a note as to what party objected to it.  The Port had

 19  objected to the previous exhibit, but does the Port have

 20  any objection to this Exhibit 2123?

 21              MR. BARTZ:  It's 3123, Your Honor.

 22              JUDGE NOBLE:  Excuse me.

 23              MR. BARTZ:  These all came to us last

 24  Thursday.

 25              JUDGE NOBLE:  Yes.
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 01              MR. BARTZ:  And so that's probably why

 02  there's not a caught-up list.  So 3123, there's no

 03  objection.

 04              JUDGE NOBLE:  3123.  Sorry, I misspoke a

 05  moment ago.  No objection.

 06              And any objection from Tesoro?

 07              MR. JOHNSON:  Again, Your Honor, as

 08  Mr. Bartz said, part of our objection is the late filing

 09  of exhibits because these weren't included in the

 10  exhibit exchange.  So when we get to objections, that's

 11  going to be one of the bases for a number of these.  I

 12  won't comment on every one and there's no objection to

 13  3123.

 14              JUDGE NOBLE:  3123 will be admitted.  And

 15  the remedy for the late filing would be just to have a

 16  little bit more time to analyze them.

 17              MR. JOHNSON:  I understand.  And again,

 18  there are other different layers of objection to some of

 19  these, so we should probably --

 20              JUDGE NOBLE:  There always are.

 21              MR. JOHNSON:  We should probably take them

 22  up as they are offered or whatever.

 23              JUDGE NOBLE:  Yes.  So some we'll be able to

 24  get admitted tonight and others we'll just have to do in

 25  course.
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 01              Ms. Reed, what's the next one?

 02              MS. REED:  The next one is Exhibit Number

 03  3124 which is the August 10, 2015 Prior Protection

 04  Assessment Report for the proposed project.  It is

 05  Appendix B to the DEIS.  It is relevant to the

 06  discussions of fire safety and was relied upon by one of

 07  our experts, Chief Molina, and he would be the

 08  sponsoring witness for that.

 09              JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3124?

 10              MR. BARTZ:  Dave Bartz for the Port of

 11  Vancouver, Your Honor.  Yes, there's an objection by

 12  both the applicant and the Port because it's a DEIS.

 13  We're really trying to figure out when the DEIS comes in

 14  and when it doesn't.  This piece doesn't look like it

 15  should come in, so that's why we're objecting.

 16              JUDGE NOBLE:  I should give better guidance

 17  about that.  The problem is, of course, as I said, the

 18  DEIS, this isn't an appeal of that, and so criticisms of

 19  the DEIS, although they come in occasionally in the

 20  course of testimony and in some of the exhibits, that

 21  will not be considered as substantive evidence because

 22  there's no issue about the draft DEIS.  But many or most

 23  of these witnesses have participated in that process and

 24  so their products have been part of the DEIS, and I've

 25  said that that is acceptable and it's the basis of their
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 01  testimony with relation to the things that are at issue

 02  here.

 03              MR. BARTZ:  Just briefly, Your Honor, this

 04  doesn't fit, though.  So when they want to try to put it

 05  in, we'll talk about it then and it will probably be a

 06  lot clearer.

 07              JUDGE NOBLE:  Right, okay, it will.  And

 08  I'll be actually able to look at the exhibit.

 09              MS. REED:  Your Honor, if I could just

 10  address the timeliness issue with respect to this issue.

 11  With respect to this exhibit particularly, when we

 12  provided our exhibit list and determined what exhibits

 13  we would be using, we had anticipated that pursuant to

 14  the parties' stipulation that the DEIS would be an

 15  exhibit, so we had not gone through and specifically

 16  designated portions of the DEIS.  We subsequently did

 17  that and tried to only pick those that we really needed.

 18  So that's why this was late.

 19              MR. JOHNSON:  And, Your Honor, I'm not --

 20  this doesn't fall into that category of objection.  I

 21  would request that we move through these because there

 22  are several.  If Ms. Reed could give the number, a brief

 23  description of what it is, we can say objection or no

 24  objection and move on.  That's my recommendation.

 25              JUDGE NOBLE:  We can.  I didn't hear that as
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 01  one of the layers of objection that Mr. Johnson was

 02  raising about this one.

 03              MS. REED:  Okay.

 04              JUDGE NOBLE:  And I understand, I understand

 05  that about the timeliness.  And I think people will be

 06  reasonable about that.  But there still has to be time

 07  to evaluate it as an exhibit.

 08              MS. REED:  Sure.

 09              JUDGE NOBLE:  So let's move to, is 3125 the

 10  next exhibit?

 11              MS. REED:  Yes, it is, Your Honor.  It's the

 12  June 23, 2016 Federal Railroad Administration

 13  Preliminary Factual Findings Report for Mosier, Oregon.

 14              JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3125?

 15              MR. BARTZ:  There's no objection as long as

 16  we have your representation it's complete.  I haven't

 17  been able to check its completeness.

 18              MS. REED:  It is complete.  We have checked

 19  a couple of different sources.

 20              MR. BARTZ:  There's no objection, Your

 21  Honor.

 22              JUDGE NOBLE:  3125 will be admitted.

 23              Is the next one 3126?

 24              MS. REED:  Yes.  Exhibit 3126 is the

 25  February 17, 2016 NTSB Locomotive Event Recorder Report
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 01  for Heimdal, North Dakota.  And the sponsoring witness

 02  on that would be Mr. Chipkevich who is scheduled to

 03  testify late tomorrow or Wednesday.

 04              JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to

 05  Exhibit 3126?

 06              MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.

 07              JUDGE NOBLE:  So you can make your record

 08  tomorrow about the foundation and reoffer it and I'll

 09  rule on it then.  And we'll hear the whole argument

 10  about it.

 11              MS. REED:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 12              Exhibit 3127 is the April 14, 2016 NTSB

 13  Hazardous Materials Group Factual Report from Heimdal,

 14  North Dakota.

 15              JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3127?

 16              MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.

 17              MS. REED:  And, likewise, Exhibit 3128 is

 18  the May 6, 2015 NTSB Mechanical Group Factual Report

 19  from Heimdal, North Dakota.

 20              JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3128?

 21              MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.

 22              MS. REED:  Your Honor, Exhibit 3129 are

 23  derailment pictures from Heimdal, North Dakota,

 24  contained in a presentation.

 25              JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3129?
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 01              MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.

 02              MS. REED:  Exhibit 3130 is the November 2015

 03  Gate Downtime Analysis calculations for the proposed

 04  facility which are Appendix N to the DEIS, and I believe

 05  we discussed those earlier.

 06              JUDGE NOBLE:  Yes.  3131?

 07              MS. REED:  Is the Port of Vancouver map of

 08  turnout or switch locations from the BNSF main line.

 09  And, Your Honor, we worked with the applicant and the

 10  Port on this, and believe that they do not have an

 11  objection.

 12              MR. JOHNSON:  That's correct, no objection.

 13              JUDGE NOBLE:  Exhibit 3131 will be admitted.

 14              MS. REED:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 15              Exhibit 3132 is the June 3, 2016 photographs

 16  snapshots of the rail accident site in Mosier, Oregon.

 17              MR. JOHNSON:  No objection.

 18              JUDGE NOBLE:  3132 will be admitted.

 19              MS. REED:  Exhibit 3133, the South Dakota

 20  September 19, 2015 Accident NTSB Track and Bridge

 21  Factual Report.

 22              JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3133?

 23              MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.

 24              MS. REED:  Exhibit 3134 is the South Dakota

 25  Operations Accident Factual Report.
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 01              JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3134?

 02              MR. JOHNSON:  Yes.

 03              MS. REED:  Your Honor, Exhibit 3135 is a map

 04  of the Mosier fire district.

 05              JUDGE NOBLE:  Is there an objection to 3135?

 06              MR. JOHNSON:  We just got this e-mail to us

 07  while we were wrapping up testimony this afternoon.  And

 08  there very well may not be, but given what you just said

 09  about needing more time being the remedy, perhaps we can

 10  look at it and we can work with the City tomorrow to

 11  respond.

 12              JUDGE NOBLE:  So at this time you don't have

 13  an objection but you don't not have an objection.  So

 14  all those exhibits for which there was an objection,

 15  they will not be admitted at this time subject to

 16  further testimony and foundation.

 17              MS. REED:  Thank you, Your Honor.

 18              JUDGE NOBLE:  Thank you.  Thank you for

 19  staying late.

 20              Is there anything else that we need to on or

 21  off the record before we adjourn for today?

 22              MR. BARTZ:  Just one more thing, Your Honor.

 23  I heard Mr. Potter suggest Mr. Chipkevich might be

 24  fourth in line.  We heard about three witnesses and

 25  that's a potential fourth for tomorrow.  I didn't know
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 01  if there were any others that were in the on-deck

 02  circle, so to speak.

 03              JUDGE NOBLE:  Any other witnesses on deck?

 04              MR. POTTER:  There are not, Your Honor.

 05              JUDGE NOBLE:  All right.  Well, thanks very

 06  much for this clarification.  We're keeping up with you,

 07  and hopefully the computers will work better tomorrow.

 08  Good night, all.  We're adjourned.

 09              (Proceedings adjourned at 5:37 p.m.)
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 01                    C E R T I F I C A T E

 02  

 03  STATE OF WASHINGTON  )
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 05  

 06         THIS IS TO CERTIFY that I, Diane Rugh, Certified

 07  Court Reporter in and for the State of Washington,

 08  residing at Snohomish, reported the within and foregoing

 09  testimony; said testimony being taken before me as a

 10  Certified Court Reporter on the date herein set forth;

 11  that the witness was first by me duly sworn; that said

 12  examination was taken by me in shorthand and thereafter

 13  under my supervision transcribed, and that same is a

 14  full, true and correct record of the testimony of said

 15  witness, including all questions, answers and
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